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This report details a broad conspiracy involved in the destruction of the Alfred P. Murrah Federal
Office Building in Oklahoma City on April 19, 1995 and subsequent cover up by the Justice
Department and other entities of the U.S. government.

This report is one of the most comprehensive accounts written to date on the worst act of
terrorism in American history, revealing, in depth, the reasons for the bombing, how it was really
accomplished and who was involved, including the identity and whereabouts of the mysterious
John Doe No. 2 and other co—conspirators.

Extensive documentation is available. However, in the interests of brevity, and to eliminate a
document of more than 1,000 pages, in some instances information set forth in this report is
synopsized and summarized. Information contained in this report was drawn from thousands of
documents, news accounts and interviews conducted by the authors.
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SYNOPSIS

On April 19, 1995, the University of Oklahoma Geology Department at Norman, Oklahoma
recorded “two events”: the first at 9:02 and 03 seconds AM; the second at 9:02 and 13 seconds AM.
Seismic recordings indicate that there were two separate and distinct detonations at the Murrah
Federal Building that morning. Expert Michael Reconosciuto believes the bomb in question is one
which he developed while at Hercules Manufacturing in Silicon Valley, Ca—an Electro-
Hydrodynamic Gaseous Fuel Device. This bomb (considered an “Aneutronic” barometric device}
was invented by Reconoscuito in the early 1980s and is subject to a Q" clearance. Abstract of the
bomb is set forth, Numerous experts agree that the bomb was not a fertilizer bomb—a deadly
concoction of fertilizer and fuel oil—as claimed by the government. Fifteen arguments are herein
cited against the device having been a fertilizer bomb. A nuclear scientist employed by the U.S.
government confirms this, A federal criminal investigator at the scene states that Gunderson’s
investigative results and conclusions are “100% correct” Ted L. Gunderson, former Senior Special
Agent in Charge of the FBI Los Angeles Field Office believes the Oklahoma City bombing was an
incident created to hasten the passage of anti-terrorism legislation that would erode our
constitutional rights and civil liberties. He states the current (April 1995) Attorney General
guidelines for domestic security/terrorism investigations are adequate. Attorney General guidelines
are set forth. Hoppi Heidelberg, member of the Grand Jury that indicted McVeigh and Nichols,
believes that the U.S. Government is involved in a cover-up and that John Doe 11 exists in spite of
statements by the government to the contrary. An article in USA TODAY (November 3, 1995) cites
the federal prosecutor who states that others besides Nichols and McVeigh may possibly be
involved—vet claims that Heidelberg’s charges are “unfounded.” Federal complaint against
McVeigh and Nichols set forth. Government contract # DAAA2I90-C-0045 for Riconosciuto
barometric bomb manufactured by Dyno Nobel Inc. in Salt Lake City, Utah set forth. Department of
the Army, Picantinny Arsenal, N.J. (responsible for government contracts, armaments, etc.) denies
that contract # DAAA-21-90-C-0045 ever existed. Dyno Nobel Inc. refuses to respond to an inquiry
from Gunderson International Incorporated. The FBI had prior knowledge of the bombing of the
Murrah building.

McVeigh and Nichols are capable of building a fertilizer bomb, but not a barometric bomb. If the
government admits a barometric bomb was used, it would be obvious that others inside the
government are involved in a conspiracy. The FBI also had prior knowledge of plans to bomb the
World Trade Center in New York City and did nothing to prevent the bombing. (New York Times,
10/28/95). Ahmed Yousef, leader of the terrorist group responsible for the World Trade Center
bombing was trained by the CIA. There is an indication that the World Trade Center bombing and
the bombing of the Murrah Federal building in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, are part of a scheme to
pass anti-terrorism legislation. New anti-terrorism legislation has been passed by Congress. Members
of the grand jury that indicted McVeigh and Nichols claim a government cover-up. Carol Howe,
BATF informant, and Cary Gagan, FBI informant, claim they told those respective government
agencies in advance the bombings would occur.
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I — TED L. GUNDERSON
Post Office Box 18006-259
Las Vegas, Nevada 89114
(310) 364-2280

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

1979-Present TED L. GUNDERSON & ASSOCIATES, Santa Monica, California, Founder,
owner and operator of this international security consulting and investigation firm
in 1979, Investigator for F. Lee Bailey, Esq Mr Bailey describes Ted
Gunderson as “a person with investigative skills that are unsurpassed by anyone
T know ot have known.”

1981-1982 CALIFORNIA NARCOTICS AUTHORITY
Consultant appointed by Govemnor Jerry Brown

1584 LOS ANGELES OLYMPIC COMMITTEE
Consultant

4/79-8/79 PAN AMERICAN GAMES, San Juan, Puerto Rico
Security Coordinator
Special Appointee of United States Attorney General Griffin B. Bell

12/51-3/79 FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

1977-79 Senior Special Agent-in-Charge, Los Angeles, California
1973-77 Special Agent-in-Charge of Memphis, Tennessee and
Dallas, Texas
1973 Chief Inspector
1965-73 Assistant Special Agent-m-Charge, New Haven, Connecticut and
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
1960-65 Special Agent Supervisor, FBI Headquarters, Washingtor, D.C.
1951-60 Special Agent

At the time of his retirement, Ted L. Gunderson had over 700 persons under his command and operated
a $ 22 Million budget.

PUBLICATIONS: How To Locate Anyone Auywhere Without Leaving Home. -E.P. Dutton, 1989
EDUCATION: Bachelor of Science Degree, University of Nebraska

AWARDS: Distinguished Alumnus Award from the University of Nebraska in Recognition of
Distinguished and Devoted Service to His Country, 1579 Alumni Highest Effort Award in the Field of

Law Enforcement from the Sigma Alpha Epsiton Social Fraternity, 1977 Law Enforcement Officer of the
Year Award from the AFL-CIO Metal Trades Council, Los Angeles, California, 1977.
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DETAILS:
UNTVERSITY OF OKI AHOMA SEISMOGRAM

April 26, 1993, Ted L. Gunderson, president and owner of Ted L. Gunderson
and Associates. received a seismogram from the Oklahoma University
Department of Geology, which showed that two surface waves were received on
their seismograph on April 19, 1995, at 9:02 and 3 seconds and one at 9:02 and
13 seconds. He immediately called the University of Oklahoma Geology
Department and talked to Dr. Ken Louzza who confirmed this. Gunderson asked
Dr. Louzza to interpret the chart. He stated "this indicates two detonations
occurred in Oklahoma City at the precise time recorded by the seismograph.”

Dr. Louzza was recontacted on May 11, 1995, as Gunderson had received
information that the Geology Department had retracted its findings.

Dr. Louzza advised the official statement being made now by the University was
that there were TWO EVENTS that took place in the Oklahoma City area on
April 19, 1995 at the precise time indicated on the selsmogram.

Gunderson subsequently received the following official report from Dr.
Raymond L. Brown, Geology Department, University of Oklahoma:
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on  April 19, 1895, The Oklahoma Geological Survey's (0GS)
seismograph station in NoIman, Oklahcoma, recocrded a lLg surface-
vave "train” at 9:02 and 13 seconds a.m. (140213 UTC) shortly after
-he explosion at the Murrah Federal Building in Oklahoma City,
Oklahcma. The seismometer is located approximately 4 miles north
of Norman and 16 miles from downtown Oklahoma City. A second Lg
su=face-wave was recorded at 9:02 and 23 seconds a.m. (140223).
The .locaticn and source cf the second surface-wave recording is
unknown. Detailed investigations at the building site may offer an
explanaticn as to the cause and lccation of the second event.

tnclosed is a portion of the seismogram that contains the two

events. The record is read from top teo bottom and from left to
right. The small vertical offsets of the horizontal lines are
minute marks. Hour marks are twice as long as- the minute marks.

nate and time is UTC which refers to Coordinated Universal Time,
formerly Greenwich Mean Time.

~hase two events were recorded only on one of the 0GS's
seismograph-network staticns. A seismograph station located at the
Omniplex Science Museum in northeast Oklahoma City also recorded
s events about 9:02 a.m. However, their recording clock was not
synchronized to UTC time. Therefore, the location can not be
determined from the seismograph recozrds.

mhe Richter Magnitude is not defined for surface and/or near
surface expleosions. Therefore, ncne is reported.

INERGY CENTER
100 E. BOYD, ROOM N-131 NORMAN, OKLAHOMA 73015-0628 Phone: (405) 325-3031 Fax: (405) 325-706°
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Seismograms Possibly
Associated With The OKC Explosion

By Raymon L. Brown
Oklahoma Geological Survey
Tuesday, May 09, 1995

Two instruments near the explosion in Oklahoma
City (OKC) recorded signals which appear to be related to

the blast.

Station FNO - near Norman, Oklahoma - SE of Blast

The station near Norman, Oklahoma received three
signals after 9:02 AM which could have possibly been
associated with the blast. The first of these signals has a high
frequency character very much like traffic noise that is
frequently observed on these instruments. This event could
potentially be related to the direct P-wave arrival from the
event, but the relative amplitude compared to the later
arriving Rayleigh (or Lg) waves makes this interpretation
unlikely. The second two events have a low frequency
character very much like the signals associated with quarry
blasts around the state.

Omniplex Mus=um - NE of Blast ;

The Omniplex museum has a seismometer On display
which records at reduced gain from that used at the Norman
station (to reduce the noise from the city). Admittedly, |
having a seismometer in a noisy enviropment may not sound
like a good idea, but the instrument was placed there so that
the general public could see seismic wave trains recorded
from large earthquakes.
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Two strong seismic signals arrive at the instrument at
about the time the operator of the seismometer felt the blast.
This is fortunate since the clock for this instrument was out
of sync. because of a power failure. However, the recorded
signal and the relative fiming appear to be in good shape.

In spite of the reduced gain at the Omniplex, the signal
amplitude was large enough to cause the loss of the high
amplitude portions of the signal. The heat-sensitive pens
were moving so fast that the details of the signal were lost
during the highest levels of ground movement. The two,
large events on the Omniplex recording are represented by
the white portions of the record where the signal trace
disappears because of the pen movement. The total signal
duration at the Omniplex Museum is approximately one’
minute.

Initial Interpretation: |
Determining the location and origin fime of an evenlt,

| o a source for seismic signals, requires at least four
recording stations. The two stations mentioned above do not
allow a unique assignment of the seismic signals to the blast.
However, the signals are recorded at about the ime of the
blast. Thus, even though the exact origin time of the OKC
disaster is uncertain at the level of accuracy required for,
seismic studies, these seismic sigmals can best be explained
as being related to the explosion or explosions responsible

for the blast.
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Interpretation of Two Signals

Each of the seismograms has two distinct signals. The
simplest explanation of the two signals is the occurrence of
two events at the site. Other possible explanations include:

1 the second event represents the collapse of the building

2. dispersion acted to cause the Rayleigh wave to split into a
low frequency early phase and a later arriving Airy phase

3. air wave
4. air-coupled Rayleigh wave

(1) The collapse of the building is not a likely to cause a
shorter duration pulse (observed on the seismogram at
the Omniplex) than the direct signal from the explosion.

(2) The difference in frequency between the two signals
observed at the station near Norman is not large enough.

Dispersion is not the likely explanation of the two signals
observed near Norman.

(3) The air wave (a direct wave traveling through the air) is a
possible explanation for the second event at Lne
Omniplex. However, itis difficult to describe the second
ovent at the Norman station as an air wave because the
speed of travel would far exceed the speed of sound in air
(1100 feet/second). Admittedly, the velocity of the air
wave must be supersonic for a certain distance away
from the explosion. This possibility should be considered
in future studies of the blast. Based upon the information

LU



W0
n

Y M3y 1?7’

1
t
]
¥
1
L}
]
9]
vy
{
v
1
<
3
L4}
[=S
O
ul
[¥]]
3%
Ut
-J
(&
(8]
te

P

159

at hand, it is unlikely the air wave travels at a velocity
uch different than the speed of sound in air.

(4) The air-coupled Rayleigh wave is a seismic wave excited
in the earth by a large explosion above the surface of the
carth. The resultant Rayleigh waves then travel through
the earth and appear to have been created by the
explosion. These waves travel at the speed of Rayleigh
waves (because they are Rayleigh waves) but their arrival
time depends upon the nature and distribution of the air
wave associated with the explosion. Most of the felt -
accounts of the explosion were to the north, east and west
of the blast. Few, if any, reports of the blast being felt to
the south were recorded. The destruction of the city
away from the explosion was also predominantly to the
north, east and west too. Thus, the air wave associated
with the blast probably had a south-to-north propagation.
This means that the air-coupled Rayleigh waves
generated from the air wave would be propagating to the
morth. Thus, the second signal at the Norman site is not a
likely air-coupled Rayleigh wave.

Admittedly, the study of the signals requires more thought.
However, at this point in time, the simplest explanation of
the seismic signals recorded at the two stations isthe
occurrence of two events. The Omniplex signal is a near-
field measurement in which many different seismic phases
(separate signals) are likely to be arriving. The onset of the
large events recorded in the nearfield at the Omniplex are
not likely to be representative of the difference in arrival
times of the Rayleigh waves observed at the station in
Norman. The differences in the relative iming of the two
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events observed at the Omniplex (approx. 16 secs between
events) and the two signals recorded at Norman (approx. 12

secs) can simply be an artifact of the number of waveforms
arriving. Since the Norman station is thought to have simple
surface waves (Rayleigh waves), the difference in time of
approximately 12 seconds is the best estimate of the time
difference between the two events. The time between the
two large events recorded at the Omniplex is probably
complicated by the arrival of many different phases and the
relative timing is difficult under these circumstances.

In summary, the two seismic signals observed can be
explained by a number of different wave phenomena and/or
secondary events. The simplest explanation at this ime
appears to be the occurrence of two events. :

(v
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On april 19, 1895, The Oklahoma Geological Survey's seismograph
station in Norman, Oklahoma, recorded a Lg surface-wave "train' at
g:02 and 13 seconds a.m. (140213 uTC) shortly after the explosion
at the Murrah Federal Building in Oklahcma city, Oklahoma. The
ceismometer is located approximately 4 miles north of Norman and 16
miles from downtown oklahoma City. A gecond Lg surface-wave was
recorded at 9:02 and 23 seconds a.m. (140223). The location and
source of the second surface-wave recording is unknown. Detailed
investigations at the building site may offer an explanation as to
+he cause and origin of the second event.

mhe record is read f£rom top £o bottom and from.left to right. The
small vertical offsets of the horizontal lines are minute marks.
Hour marks are twice as long as the minute mazks. Date and time is
uTe which refers to coordinated Universal Time, formerly Greenwich

Mean Time.

The Richter Magnitude can not be defined for surface and/gr near
su-face explosions. Therefore, none is reported. .

A copy cf this record can be obtained by writing the Oklahoma
Geological Survey.

Oklahoma Geological Survey
100 East Boyd
Norman, OK 73019-0628

&



It is noted that the FBI. after insisting for several days after the bombing that it
had occurred at 9:04 am. has now changed the official ume 10 9:02. which
conforms to the seismographic record from the University of Oklahoma.

MICHAEL RICONOSCIUTO

Gunderson, realizing that the official word being released by the government
sources was that a fertilizer bomb was used to destroy the building and that there
would only have been one detonation with this type of bomb, then contacted his
experts and furnished them the resuits of the University of Oklahoma
seismogram. (This included two persons.-one does not wish to be identified).
Michas] Riconosciuto stated that based on the briefing given him by Gunderson
and the unidentified expert, he is convinced that the bomb used in the Oklahoma
City bombing was initially developed by him. He described it as an ELECTRO -
HYDRODYNAMIC GASEOUS FUEL DEVICE. (see exhibit A). Since Mike
Riconosciuto is the original developer of this device it would be helpful to
describe his background and the events which may have led to the dissemination
of the information necessary for someone to have built this type of bomb.

Mike Riconosciuto was the son of Marshall Riconosciuto (now deceased), who
was a powerful municipal leader and politician with numerous major west coast
political connections. When Mike Riconosciuto was young, he was surrounded by
relatives and business associates working with the Office of Strategic Services
(0SS} and later the Central Intelligence Agency (CIA). Marshall Riconosciuto,
his father, owned and operated a "public relations” firm which included long-
time friend and colleague "Fred Lee Crisman,” an OSS psychological warfare
specialist working against the German effort to secure the atomic bomb. It is still
rumored today that Marshall Riconosciuto held a powerful position within the
intelligence community. His son. Michael, was born and raised into this secret
lifestyle. From an early age, Mike was a technological child prodigy. (see
exhibit B) At the age of ten, he was experimenting with radios, television, sound
amplifiers, and remarkably he was one of the first persons to discover the
biological reactions in plant life that are stimulated by external s -und.

Mike Riconosciuto grew up in Berkeley during the early sixties and was already
meking a name for himself as a world ciass scientific genius. While at Stanford
University he developed a method of extracting nuclear isotopes using a laser
(see exhibit C), something which has only recently been perfected. Because of
his family connections to the intelligence community, Mike was a perfect insider
for the CIA to use during their experimentation with LSD.

15



American teenagers loved to experiment with it and Mike became interested in
the chemical structure of these psvcho-active drugs and was eventually linked
with the analvtical side of the CIA's MK-Ultra® experiments. It is at this juncrure
that the CIA developed a "contro] jacket” for Mike Riconosciuto. A control jacket
is an unpleasant blackmail scheme that the CIA uses to keep psvchological control
over their assets. Mike Riconosciuto's jacket was that of an illicit drug
manufacturer. The CIA used Mike to spy on the radical Berkeley crowd and the
ant-war movement then springing out of the Height Ashbury area of San

Francisco.

Mike led a dual life as a young scientist experimenting with highly secretive and
new technology, while associating with motorcycle gangs and radical hippie
elements of society. He reported his intelligence gathering activities to the Federal
Bureau Of Investications (FBI) and CIA on a regular basis. At one point, Mike
refused to cooperate with his handlers, and they used their control jacket to have
him arrested. Mike claims he was set up, then prosecuted as a juvenile.

It was at this point that Mike realized how much power and control was being
exerted upon him to stop all other activities and to continue to explore his
scientific skills in the development of new theories in science. Part of this
pressure was the result of Mike Riconosciuto's own father to channel the young
Riconosciuto into his work. During the late 1970s, Mike was making discoveries
in a new scientific principle that would eventually cause so much excitement at
the National Security Agency (NSA) that the director of this agency would make
a personal appearance at Mike's laboratory to exarune the results of his work.
The laboratory was called Hercules Research, and Mike was developing a new

evice called the Modular Energy Transfer Catalyzer unit (METC Unit). By
itself the METC unit was not so complicated a device to replicate, however, the
control circuitry and the applications in which the METC unit was being used was
nothing short of a scientific revolution. Numerous patents were 1ssued to Inter-
Probe Inc.. under the leadership of former Admiral Henry Renkin.

The Admiral had formed a relationship with the Riconosciutos, and the
sovernment had taken an active interest in everything that Mike was developing.
These included hand-held directed energy weapons systems, infra-red signature
counter-measures for the Stealth aircraft, an improved method of controlling and
breaking down surface friction in winged aircraft, an improved method of
controlling heating and cooling in critical laser-welded applications and a half-
dozen more such projects shrouded in secrecy. Mike was considered years ahead
of his time and important people were now be-friending him.

*MEK-Ultra was the original name given to the CLA’s first mind control program which began with the work of Dr.
Ear] Cameron at the University of Montreal Clinic In Canada duning the laie 1960s.



In the late 70s. Mike Riconosciuto was slowly developing a sense or rejection against his father, who tried to
continue to steer Mike Riconosciuto away from other preoccupations and back into his work. At one point,
Riconosciuto rebelled and broke away from his father’s influence only to come running into the hands of a CIA
control agent named John P. Nichols. J. P. Nichols was a master at controlling the young Riconosciuto, and
even managed to set him up with a former Wackenhut Security Co. female security guard who was hired to
marry Riconosciuto and monitor every aspect of his life. Riconosciuto’s new wife created a fictional daily
account of her activities as his wife and secretly submitted those accounts to J. P. Nichols who proceeded to
create a whole new control jacket for Riconosciuto. On her part, Mrs. Riconosciuto took a few items of truth
and created elaborate reports of exaggerated nonsense on paper.

These reports painted Riconosciuto as a monstrous control freak, a drug addict, and a wife abuser. In reality,
Riconosciuto detested drugs and was upset at how easily the CIA was capable of using drugs to set up and
imprison anyone who objected to the program. At one point a man named Paul Morasca was working with
Riconosciuto at the Cabazon Indian reservation in southern California on numerous secret projects on behalf of
Wackenhut Corporation, then under coniract with the CIA to develop small arms and secret new weapons
systems. In the early 1980s, Riconosciuto was asked to develop new weapons systems. Having already
developed the METC and having used it for numerous other applications, Riconosciuto developed a method
of using the energy enhanced transfer phenomena in a bomb. After spending a few weeks developing the
mathematics, Riconosciuto developed the electro-hydrodynamic gaseous fuel bomb. The electro-
hydrodynamic gaseous fuel bomb was first developed and tested by Wackenhut Research under a government
contract. Among the officials who composed the board of directors for Wackenhut Corporation was William
Casey who eventually became CIA director during the Reagan administration.

When the first version of the electro-hydrodynamic device was tested at “Area 51", an underground test site in
Nevada, the explosion was underestimated by several degrees and the carth above the test site collapsed
several feet down killing one technician and injuring several others. When this information was provided to
President Reagan, the project was compartmentalized and classified under a “Nuclear Weapons™ category. It
was also at this time that something happened to that Riconosciuto has never revealed to anyone: Paul
Morasca was found hog-tied and tortured to death. Something had gone terribly wrong and Riconosciuto
found his life was now in danger. Yet another CIA control agent now promised Riconosciuto an opportunity
to start over again by leaving 3. P. Nichols. Meanwhile, California state authorities were looking into J. P.
Nichols® activities with some concern. Tt appeared that Nichols had employed hired professional killers on his
staff. but these hit men were not average criminals.



These people were trained ritual-type murderers who passionately loved their work. Nichols was tape
recorded negotiating with an undercover police officer to kill several Cabazon Tribal members.  Arrests were
made by the Indio California Police Department and Nichols was convicted of soliciting murder. Nichols
served one and one-half years in prison. The Parole officer interviewing Nichols expressed shock that despite
Nichols’ lack of remorse, or that Nichols never accepted the authority imposed upon him, he was released early
on parole Wackenhut then attempted distance itself from this affair. However, both Wackenhut and the CIA
had intensive information about what was going on and who was involved. It was learned Nichols had made
friends with numerous mafia bosses, several of whom helped Nichols set up the gambling casino in Indio,
California, on Cabazon Tribal property. This blatant connection between the CIA, gambling casinos, and the
Mob was exposed by Geraldo Rivera in an ABC 20/20 segment broadcast on April 4, 1985, To date, nothing
has been done to investigate the Nichols family because of their extensive connections to the CIA.

When Riconosciuto learned that his friend, Paul Morasca, had been murdered, Nichols had also indicated,
through his actions, he also intended to assassmate Riconosciuto. At that time, Riconosciuto left Nichols and
looked for another company to form a business relationship. Riconosciuto struck a deal with a twenty-year
veteran CIA career officer named Robert B. Nichols (no relation to J .P. Nichols).

Robert Nichols formed a corporation called Meridian Arms Corp. By the time Meridian Arms became
involved in Riconosciuto ‘s project activities, Dr. Harry Fair of the Defense Advanced Research Project
Agency (DARPA) was contacted and FMC corporation was solicited to participate in a joint venture with
Meridian Arms.

Somehow the Meridian Arms venture never materialized due to a failure in communications between Mike
Riconosciuto and Robert Nichols in late 1984. Riconosciuto’s laboratory was moved to a small seaside town in
Washington state where he slowly prepared to return to the theoretical research applications of the METC
unit. Meanwhile, Riconosciuto was developing a new idea involving the extraction of precious metals using an
organic chemistry reaction and his modular Energy Transfer Theorem. Mike was looking for some cash to start
up the theoretical research [ab again and decided to apply his method of extracting platinum in the tailings of an
old mine in eastern Washington state. At the time when Riconosciuto was succeeding in extracting his first few
grams of platinum, Riconosciuto received a message from a computer software firm named Inslaw.



Inslaw had successfully sued the government for having conspired to bankmupt the
company that developed the software under contract with the Reagan
Administration. The case was up for an appeal and Inslaw was collecting
evidence. Mike volunteered to provide a sworn affidavit (see exhibit G) to the
originator and true owner of the intellectnal property. This affidavit implicated
the Department of Justice in a plot to steal and modify the software source code
by adding a trap door inside the system which would subsequently allow anyone
with the correct "Macro Sequence” to access unauthorized data from outside the
facility where the computers were operating.

The new administration then sold its new product to other countries without
telling these new customers that it was possible for the United States government
to read all of the world' s secrets by tapping into the foreign computer's modem
Jines and using an unauthorized back door to penetrate the system's normal
security lock-out. Mike proceeded to sign the swom affidavits despite the
government's warning that if he helped Inslaw, they were going to set him up
and throw him in jail. Exactly eight days later, Mike Riconosciuto was arrested
and prosecuted under the control jacket they had used over and over again.
DRUGS. He is now serving a thirty-year sentence without parole for having
conspired to manufacture a controlled substance. "Amphetamine”.

Although other criminals who have killed are getting out within a few years,
Mike is purposely being made out to be a crazy drug addicted liar who will say
anything to anyone to get out of prison. When Ted Gunderson recently made
contact with Mike Riconosciuto, Mike described the type of bomb he bad
designed. (see exhibit A)

ELECTRO-HYDRODYNAMIC GASEOUS FUEL DEVICE
(declassified version is blacked-out for Security reasons)

After having seen the devastation of the Oklahoma bomb, Mike concluded that
someone had gotten hold of his technology and components, which had been
stolen from his research laboratory in the late 1980s. The test bomb consisted of
a cylinder of just "64 ounces or more of agueous Ammonium Nitrate,” which
surrounds a shaft of Aluminum Silicate that has at its center another shaft of an
explosive known as — When the M s detonated, the
top of the canister or tank containing the bomb flies upwards and the bottom of
the tank opens up into a flower-petal shape. Immediately the aqueous
Ammeonium Nitrate TN rxes with the shattered [ N
Aluminum Silicate to create an even more devastating explosive fuel cloud. This
# resulting in the
creation of millions of The cold cloud is then detonated by a

charge that is cushioned from the first blast due to a shock absorbing cavity.




This time the cold cloud ignites. creating a shock wave which surpasses the
rraditional effects of TNT. The most astounding effects of this type of detonation
i< the immeadiate atmospheric overpressure which has a tendency to blow out

windows of any structure within the vicinity of the blast. B s uscd in the
initial detonation which releases Ammonium Nitrate and aluminum silicate/ NN

I > mix in a cloud. PETN is used to-detonate the N c!ouc.
The reason PETN is not used in both charges is because if it were used in the
first detonation. it would be of such a violent explosive nature that it would
detonate the secondary charge at the same time.

The explosive PETN 1s a substance used to detonate the second charge, which 1n
turn detonates the electrified cloud mixtures of Ammonium Nitrate and
Aluminum Silicatejj I cavsing the major devastating blast.

PETN is an explosive used as a primer or initiating charge. It is high speed, very
sensitive and used in small amounts.

Exhibit A was drawn by a technician who has worked closely with Mike
Riconosciuto in the past.

In reporting on the vulnerability of the building to the explosion, the New York
Times in its April 28 edition, page A27, reported as follows: "The Federal
Building in Oklahoma City may also have been vulnerable because of its ground
level atrium and glass facade. The problem was not with flying glass--a small
hazard compared with collapsing concrete--but with the way the blast was able to
penetrate the glass easily and push up the floors at the lower levels, some experts
said.”

The Times reported further: "Anatol Longinow, an engineer at Wiss, Janney,
Elstner Associates, a firm in Chicago that investigates structural failures, satd that
when a bomb goes off at street level, the blast expands spherically, and 1t hits the
floors up instead of down, by coming in under them.

"The floors are not intended to go up in any event, he said. If p. shedina
direction opposite from normal, he said, the floors may break loose relatively
easily and crash down in a pancake-like pile”.

It is this pancake-like pile of the several stories of the building that has caused
rescue workers and firemen so much trouble in their search for survivors and
retrieval of search for survivors as well as retrieval of the dead from the
structure.
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REASON IT WAS NOT A FERTILIZER BOMB

Based on information furnished by Mr. Riconoscuito and other experts the bomb
used in Oklahoma Ciry was not a fertilizer bomb for the following reasons:

1. Commercial Ammonium Nitrate (fertilizer bomb} has too much
moisture to be effective as was the siruation in Oklahoma
City. Even if a person knows what he 1s doing, it is almost
impossible to prepare it with home mixing equipment.
Commercial production of Ammonium Nitrate fertilizer requires
a prill tower over 300 feet high. It would take huge processing
equipment to produce a 4800 pound fertilizer bomb. The
chances of a large quantity such as 4800 pounds detonating 1s
slim. What usually happens is the propagation from the inutial
detonation would be uneven and it would scatter the bulk of
material before contributing energy to the bulk of the
explosion. An improvised bomb can be ferocious but an
unconfined explosive charge is not going to develop the
pressure necessary to demolish the Oklahoma City building.

2. An FBI agent testified that McVeigh's shirt contained PDTN
(pentadirythri-tetra-nitrate) In one nEws report, and PETN was
identified in another report. It is claimed by the government
that the rope used to tie the 55 gallon barrels was soaked in PDTN/
PETN which would be unreliable and probably would not work, as
the propagation would have been uneven and there would have
been no way to shield such a blast. The only way 10 obtain
blast control is with volumetric initiation. This takes elect-
ronic circuits of similar sophistication as would be required in
nuclear weapons. This sophistication is not available to the
average person--rmost certainly the mulitia do not have access
1o this. The calculation on an unconfined device of 4800
pounds does not match the damage in Oklahoma City. It
would have been a confused and uncontrolied biast. Much of
the energy would have cancelled itself out. The over-driven
detonation in terms of energy delivered from the blast was
more explosive from the blast than the chemical energy
which is not the signature of the fertilizer bomb.



3.

Lh

The signature of the bomb used in Oklahoma went in energy
from Class A to Class C abruptly, Class A being the highest
velocity to Class C, being the lowest velocity. The signature
of the Oklzhoma City bomb was not that of a fertilizer bomb.
but it does match the signature of the A-Neutronic bomb.

The University of Oklahoma Geological Survey reports that there
were two bomb blasts in Oklahoma City, 10 seconds apart.

In a recent press conference, Dr. Charies Mankin, Director

of the University of Oklahoma's Geological Survey

Department, stood by a seismographic recording of two shock
waves 10 seconds apart. He stated that "Because there are

two seismograph records, there would had to have been two
explosions or two bombs.” Mankin scientifically refuted other
suggested explanations. The media has ignored this as well

as other evidence.

An ammonium nitrate truck bomb of the size reported does not
produce a crater, it blows upward.

Officials reported finding the Ryder rental truck axle three
blocks away. The obvious question is: How did the axle blow
upwards when the bomb-setting over and on top of the axle
blew out a crater 30ft deep?

A growing number of bomb experts (ex-U.S. military, ex-FBI,
ex-police with extensive demolition backgrounds) are coming
forward to say that it appears two or more sophisticated
bombs detonated inside the Federal Building.

The bomb experts go on to say that a truck bomb immense
enough to break reinforced concrete columns at a distance
would certainly blow out the exterior curtain wall at ground
level on the opposite (undamaged) side of the building.

A retired Air Force General (with impressive ballistic and
government credentials) recently discussed the Oklahoma

bombing with Don McAlvany, Editor, Mc Alvanry Intelligence
Review. His first reaction was that the pattern of damage would have
been technically impossible without supplementary demolition

charges at some of the reinforced concrete column bases mside the
building - a standard demolition technique. "A blast through the air is
very insufficient against reinforced concrete.”
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The pattern of blown columns is not ciose enough to being

circular if the blast emanated from one origin. As virtually

all bomb experts agree. the power of detonation dimnishes
proportionally as the distance in all (circular) direcuons 1s
increased. The pattern of destruction seen at the Murrah Building
was essentially linear. Bomb experts from all over the country have
argued that the truck bomb was not parked in the right spot te do the
resulting damage

Private citizens monitoring police band scanners in Oklahoma Ciry
overheard the Oklahoma City Bomb Squad disscuss the finding of
an undetonated bomb with military markings on the canister
inside the building. This was subsequently reported on national
television as viewing audiences watched people run away from the
building.

The Oklahoma Ryder truck bomb reportedly destroyed 20 to
30 main support columns and the massive horizontal cross
beam from a distance of 30 to 75 feet, and yet the van used
in the World Trade Center bombing with about the same
explosive power failed to destroy even one support beam
from a much closer distance.

It is reported by the news services of April 29, that

"Sources familiar with the investigation said that the bomb
appears to have been set off by hand, rather than 1gnited by

a timing device". How is it that the bomber could have rolled
up the rear gate of the truck, lit the fuse by hand, and rolled
the gate back down without being seen by nearby TV cameras?

The bomb could not have been built by former Persian Gulf
War Army veteran Timothy McVeigh and his rural Michigan
farming fric ads, brothers James and Terry Nichols - - at least
not withourt the aid of persons, as yet unknown. Those
persons would need to possess knowledge of research
classified at the very highest level of top secret by the

U.S. covernment, in addition to access to a vast array of
chemical and electronic compenents.

See the "federal criminal investigator at the scene” coments on
the next page.
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FEDERAIL, CRIMINAL INVESTIGATOR AT THE SCENE

Gunderson has been contacted indirectly by a federal criminal investigator involved in the
investigation. This investigator stated the Oklahoma City bombing on April 19, 1995 was a dual
charge. Had it been Ammonium Nitrate (fertilizer bomb) workers would not have been permitted in
the area with the presence of Nitric Acid vapors without breathing apparatus. The investigator
advised that Timothy McVeigh was a “throwaway”. The investigator further stated the debris was
collapsed toward the crater. There was something inside the building, probably another bomb It was
a shear and drop charge. The investigators have looked for signs of un-oxidized Ammonium Nitrate
pellets left over after the explosion, but found none. This fact alone serves as a critical indication that
something is terribly flawed with the government’s version of the type of explosives used in the
Oklahoma City bombing. The investigator advised that Gunderson is “100% right” in his deductions
and investigative efforts.

Gunderson was contacted by an investigator working on the Oklahoma City bombing.  This
investigator stated there are at least eleven other individuals involved in the investigator in addition
to Timothy McVeigh and Terry Nichols.

U.S A NUCLEAR SCIENTIST STATEMENT

A nuclear physicist from one of America’s top three government laboratories anonymously confirmed
the A-Neutronic device, as devised by Mike Risconsciuto, is far more likely to have caused the
damage in the Oklahoma City bombing, rather than a crude fertilizer bomb.
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COMPARISON WORLD TRADE CENTER, NEW YORK CITY, QKLAHOMA CITY,
SAUDI ARABIA

Our government claims all these incidenis involved the use of the fertilizer or ammonia nitrate
bombs. Note the following comparisons of the crater and damage.

WORLD TRADE CENTER OKLAHOMA CITY SAUDI ARABJA
weight 1200 lbs_ 4800 tbs 5000 Ibs_

(upgraded from 1200 [bs)
crater: 160 feet wide 30 feet wide 85 feet wide
5 stories high 20 feet deep ' b€

6 stonies below

Note the following photographs of Oklahoma City and Saudi Arabia Damage from Oklahoma
City left a half moon in the top of the building Damage from the Saudi Arabia sheered the
building in a straight line with no half moon The ha!f moon configuration fits the signature of the
barometric bomb which is directional.

The bomb in Oklahoma City damaged primarily the Federal buxldmg with limited damage in the

surrounding area. [ can attest 1o this as [ personally visited the site, The Saudi Arabia bomb was

destructive 360 degrees in ali dtrectaons

The size of the craters and the area of damage in Oklahoma City and Saudi Arabia should have
been similar. A review of the above comparison shows they are not.  This further indicates the
bombs were not similar  The damage shown in the picture of the Oklahoma City bomb and the
above statistics fit the signature of the barometric bomb

! talked to two surviving witnesses who were in the building at Oklahoma City. One was onthe

‘heard. Both stated they heard explosions mﬂhseconds apart with the second blest louder than the

- first. This also fits the signature of a barometric bomb. Note data set forth concersiing the
mechanics of the barometric bomb described earlier in this report.

A lady victim who survived was interviewed by CNN. She stated, "Everything was white and

_then everythmg was black.” This also fits the sngnature of a barometric bomb.




Workars on Wednesday stang beside the

Sergeant’s fra

U.S. Was
WARNED

Also Wegdnesday:

& The United States /
recewed threats against
amencans in Saudi Ara-
DI in recent weeKs but
taled 1o prepare tor a
bomo this big. No me-
tIye Or Suspecis have
neen igentified.

B Secretary of State
Warren Christopher vis-
ited the site. talking 1o
SURVIVOrS. and vowed ihe
plast woutd not hurt
J.5.-Saudt relauens.

B President Clinton.
who flew to France for an
aconpmic summit, pians
to cut short the trip to
attend a memanal ser-
vice Sunday i Flonda.
B All of the |dentifled
dead men were sla-
uoned in Florca. The Arr
Force has rejeased a
partial lisl.

STORIES, 6A
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- M Okiahoma City: 384

$1ofy Duiding; truck was
parked 35 yawis away:
crater 18 85 feet wicde and
35 fest ceap

Rilled: 4.800 pounds of
BMMONIUM nitrata n
Bomb: mire-story bulkding.
truck parked directly
uncer Secon-STry OBy
care centar; cratar was
20 faat deep and about
30 fest wide

& —
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crater created when a terronsts’ bomb exploded Tuesday &t a U.S. military faciiity in Dhahran, Saudi Arabia.

ntic warnings saved many lives

A0S T 2

ERLANGER

The New York Times

The Saudi bave, wivere American, British and French
troops are housed i a tommplex cailed Khobar Towers,
w3 under @ Weightened state of alert after

i possible atacka on Americans.

OpTuesdlyu@n.G-uru'omdrwomherAirForc:
security policemen were patrolling the roof of an eight-
ttory barracks ia the horthernmost comer af Khobar
Towers when & lrge gusotine tTuck and a passenger car
pulled up to the perimeer tence.

The driver ran froen s truck and threw himself into
the car, which sped awxy, and Guerrero knew immedi-
nd*{imahmlm

‘ ¢ and his Seliow offoers ruthed down through the
buﬂdinzurmmauizademevmm.'rheyhad

Gumhadmnmadeitdcwutwoﬂoonwhenthe
e;plwmmmmehmuﬂmebuﬂdmgmd
kﬂluuwmmnen.!ﬂmmmomu
peoplewminjmwdﬂmnl\mencm.

“Mmymakvetod:ybeauseoihishmism,"nid
Secretary of State Wagren Christopher, who canceled 2
mpimcndedwbdpmunmchﬁddlcsutpeaceeffon
woomchmmdwemeumtvicﬁmaofwmrism.

Princs Saud Faisal, the Saudi foreign minister. broke
in. “This gentleman’s name is Staff 5gt. Guerrero,
we're very grateful to him.” .

Plaase see BOMBING/GA
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| i S Associated Pregs
A U.S. miiitary building in Dhahran;’s\agqir Arabid, stands in ruins

June 27 after a terrorist ombing two days, garlisr, A report issued
Monday is bluntly critica; of security failures prior to the explosion.
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‘Al the News
T! at's Fit to Print"”

Che?

veww Hork €

. No. 30,481

Lasvright S 199 The New Tore Times

SUNDAY, JULY 7, 1996

-ater at the devastated building that housed Ame

Ng?tc

Associated Press
an forces shows the complex’s vuinerability to bombs just beyond the fence.
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Note the following article which indicates there was a
"double-trigger" mechanism
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“John Doay” bocause tho FBl doeg  T*MS3 SYAPR WairiA o f '

LR

nol knaw hc identity of either * OKLAHOMA CITY—Criminal & [
man. But Kennedy released copy. Investigalory lting through the . i
pasite sketthas of the pair, ond he  vock and iren rubble in downtown !
q  described thom this way: Oklahoma City determined Thueg- o~ !

—Medlum bulld, §-fool.}g. day Lhit sovaml thousand poungs ™
inches or §.fout.]1 sinches, 180 tc  ofy “lowordar” dut highly dudliv o~/
135 pounds, light brown erew Ui mixture of lerlilizer and fue] il ‘
right-kandad. Was usad in the axplosion Ihal low g,l

N
oY

P

-Mcdiumbu!ldjsvfoo:-e-lnchnn apart the feders olflod ‘buiiding
o §efool-{Crinzhes, 175 to 180  here.
eundt, brown hair, tattes visibie Distlosing that the explogive
neath Toshirt sieove on leftarm;  materiais werg fersied in the bazk '
pessibly 2 smoker. of 8 lurge rented truck, aulheriliea
The revard wes announced i said ey have now recoveeed Lhe
Washington by Aly. Qen. Janet  truck's axlz ond hundrods of Uny
Reno, who asked at g nalonally  shrapnel piecoges Fh'across tav.
broadoast newp conferense ihat  eval o SlOCkA duertrt1NE 2
3nyone with information apout the B Murcrfedora Bullding,
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DEVICE: A Mix of

Fertilizer, Fuel O1il

;C;}\llhul& from Al

bombers—~possibly two unidenti-
fied while men Wwho rented the
truck carlier this montheenough

tirheto get out of the vohitle and
rush safaly awsy before the blast
‘tore through the landmark bulld.
Hel'd

They saild preliminavy evidence
alfo shows that the truck, believad
‘¢ be g Ryder rental from Junction
Cily, Kar., was driven up s circular
dr{veway &l the main enirance and
then abendenad in & no-perking,
‘no-standing tone In front of the
Rins-glory structure.

But it &ppears that the building's
video cameras would not have
captured the veklele's arrival be-
‘cauke the cameras were lurned
toward the bullding and not out et
the drivoway. I may never be
&nown for sure how ieng the
vehicle was there before L may
have bran recognized or the bomi
wanl off,

The oxplosion rocked. the nor-
X mally quiel dawntown section
shorily sfter 9 an, Wednesday,
knocking down parts gl all nine
toties of tho offlce bullding, ereal-
ing a 30.foot-wide crater and secat-
tering dehris threughout the area
Office windowr were shatiered end
cars damaged througheut the
cowntown business gection, and
people raported hearing Lhe blrst
from o8 lev awsy as 18 miles
Dozans of bodles of adults and
children were belleved stiil lying
Iside the devastation Thursday,
The dealh tol! i3 now axpected Lo
<[lmb to mors than £00 by the time
tire and rescue officials have com.
pleted their grim eearch by (bt
woekend, ‘Phe number of injured it
reported at mord than 400 afroady.
cedoral lovastigatore here were
moving on saversl frontr on their
firs: [ull day aftar ths sxplosion,
They were chasing @ wealth of
{aadu in what, [ eventuelly proven,
would be the worst single terrorist

e
" 'To my Information we
.only.have one devige. No
bthers have been found.'

_ "Forensle exparts who have ¢x-
amined the zoene Lhus far are shle
to say that i'iz 8 low-grder ¢xplo-
sive, NolL a high explosive. Thay
can tell that from the demage lo
vehicles and olher surrounding
pulldings neoarby.” A low-order
explosive 13 one that usunlly causes
the most damags ab itg ignition slte
rather than exploding throughout a
large arer, Kennsdy said,
Authoritles rcached Lheir con-
tluslen parily Lesause of the huge

.Crater left where the truck had

exploded.

But even with these now revela-
tions, Kennedy said, the probe i
far from complele. ]

“Can I tell the Amerioan public
this morning.that we aye any closer
to finding oul who dld this than we
werd yesterdey?” he asked “The,
anawer Lo thet question 18, no, U
sannol” .

But Kenncdr did say Lhat »o far
fedaral tnvestigatars bolieve only
ona vehitle was used to earry one
explosive mechaniam, dizcoulting
soma reports thpt enother vehicle
mnay have ferried a second bomb.
© YT my Information we only
have ona devize,” ho aaid. “No
others have been found”

Oklahema Gov. Frank Resting, o
former Bl agent, U3 dlstict
sttorney fn northern Dlclahomo
and head of the Buresu of Aloghol,
Tobacas and Firearms in Washing-
ton, said & targe truck.—and not an
open-bed plekup=would have had

" to be used to carry the several

thousengd pounds of fertilizer and
fuel oll,

He said the axis ond othar debris
have besn losatad from whal i
belleved ta ba the atteck vehiele.

"The axie that I saw from that
car was \wo blocke (o the vast,” he
xaid. “And there are liltle plecer
nol any blgger than your fisl that
tel! from thot osr, Arokon, charred
melal, And {t was an enormousiy
powerful biast,”

Could the bomhors have heen
Ingide the vahlcle or bean killed
beloras they got safaly away? "That
iy esrtainiy somathing that will
only be delermined with ditticul-
1¥.” he sald. “There Was nol muek
left.”

He siid the mno-parking, no-

rtesdima mane Fasutfuw bha Fadao.d
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Aiming a Bomb

The diraction and shapa of kn explosive charge are it

'BLAST DIRECTION

The direction of A bomb blast, like ths one in Oklahoms
shisld can be anything fzom 1 line of sandbags to reinfc
far mdre elfective than the February, 1003, World Trac

WORLD TRADE CENTER 0K
The New York Clty bomb wagnot packedtogo TH
of! in any single direction, but in al} directions ber
equally. As aresolt, its main impast was down;it  we
lelt & crater pix stories doep. The rdinforcoment thi
sbove the garsge managad to stifle thelmpact, 1T the
1t had been patked propetly, it could have been

far more lethal in damaging the aboveground
structure,
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Deadly Mix of Fertilizer, Oil Detailed by FBI

Los Angeles Times-Los Angeles, Calift Author: RICHARD A. SERRANO Date: Apr 21, 1995
Start Page: I Section: PART-A; National Desk

Criminal investigators sifting through the rock and iron rubble in downtown Oklahoma
City determined Thursday that several thousand pounds of a "low-order" but highly
deadly mixture of fertilizer and fuel oil was used in the explosion that blew apart the
federal office building here.

Disclosing that the explosive materials were ferried in the back of a large rented truck,
authorities said they have now recovered the truck's axle and hundreds of tiny shrapnel
pieces strewn across several city blocks around the Alfred P. Murrah Federal Building.

In addition, bomb experts and evidence technicians are foperating on a theory that
an elaborate "one-on-one' explosive device was wired inside the truck and
used to set off one detonation, which then triggered a second, massive
explosion.

But perhaps more important, sources said, the double-trigger mechanism|
might have given the bombers-possibly two unidentified white men who rented the truck
earlier this month-enough time o get out of the vehicle and rush safely away before the
blast tore through the landmark building.

They said preliminary evidence also shows that the truck, believed to be a Ryder rental
from Junction City, Kan., was driven up a circular driveway at the main entrance and
then abandoned in a no-parking, no-standing zone in front of the nine-story structure.

But it appears that the building's video cameras would not have captured the vehicle's
arrival because the cameras were turned toward the building and not out at the driveway.
It may never be known for sure how long the vehicle was there before it may have been
recognized or the bomb went off.

The explosion rocked the normally quiet downtown section shortly after 9 a.m.
Wednesday, knocking down parts of all nine stories of the office building, creating a 30-
foot-wide crater and scattering debris throughout the area. Office windows were shattered
and cars damaged throughout the downtown business section, and people reported
hearing the blast from as far away as 15 miles.

Dozens of bodies of adults and children were believed still lying inside the devastation
Thursday. The death toll is now expected to climb to more than 200 by the time fire and
rescue officials have completed their grim search by this weekend. The number of injured
is reported at more than 400 already.



Federal investigators here were moving on several fronts on their first full day after the
explosion. They were chasing a wealth of leads in what, if eventually proven, would be
the worst single terrorist attack on U.S. soil. But they also cautioned that no positive links
have been found to foreign terrorist groups.

They also suggested Thursday that the assailants could turn out to be U.S. citizens
secking revenge against local federal law enforcement officials who worked inside the
office structure.

Along with announcing the search for the two white men, they also confirmed reports
that a third man identified as a "possible witness" had been detained with a U.S. passport
at London's Heathrow Airport and was returned to the United States.

Weldon Kennedy, an FBI special agent-in-charge sent here from Washington to
command the investigation, said that "the explosive used in this consisted of fertilizer and
fuel oil, We know that from the crime scene itself.

"Forensic experts who have examined the scene thus far are able to say that it is a low-
order explosive, Not a high explosive. They can tell that from the damage to vehicles and
other surrounding buildings nearby." A low-order explosive is one that usually causes the
most damage at its ignition site rather than exploding throughout a large area, Kennedy
said.

Authorities reached their conclusion partly because of the huge crater left where the truck
had exploded.

But even with these new revelations, Kennedy said, the probe is far from complete.

"Can I tell the American public this morning that we are any closer to finding out who
did this than we were yesterday?" he asked. "The answer to that question is, no, I cannot.”

But Kennedy did say that so far federal investigators believe only one vehicle was used to
carry one explosive mechanism, discounting some reports that another vehicle may have
ferried a second bomb.

"To my information we only have one device," he said. "No others have been found."

Oklahoma Gov. Frank Keating, a former FBI agent, U.S. district attorney in northern
Oklahoma and head of the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms in Washington, said
a large truck-and not an open-bed pickup-would have had to be used to carry the several
thousand pounds of fertilizer and fuel oil.

He said the axle and other debris have been located from what is believed to be the attack
vehicle.



"The axle that I saw from that car was two blocks to the east," he said. "And there are
little pieces not any bigger than your fist that fell from that car. Broken, charred metal.
And it was an enormously powerful blast."

Could the hombers have been inside the vehicle or been killed before they got safely
away? "That is certainly something that will only be determined with difficulty,” he said.
"There was not much left."

He said the no-parking, no-standing zone fronting the federal building gave the bombers
a special vantage point. "If you wanted fo do damage to the building, that was the best
place for a car,” he said.

But despite the difficult task of reassembling the facts, the governor remained optimistic
that arrests will be made.

"This case will be solved." he said. "Every bomb has a signature. And these types of
crimes are solvable.”

Washington has sent an impressive team of investigators here to work with local
authorities. They include 13 members of the FBI's rapid start team and a second
contingent of 50 agents who will assist with the probe.

The ATF dispatched two response teams and a mobile command center used by
explosives experts and laboratory technicians. Another two dozen ATF agents were also
arriving.

(BEGIN TEXT OF INFOBOX / INFOGRAPHIC)

AIMING A BOMB

The direction and shape of an explosive charge are critical factors in how much damage a
bomb can do.

BLAST DIRECTION

The direction of a bomb blast, like the one in Oklahoma City, can be controlled by using
a shield. A shield can be anything from a line of sandbags to reinforced metal sidings.
The Oklahoma device was far more effective than the February, 1993, World Trade
Center bomb.

World Trade Center: The New York City bomb was not packed to go off in any single
direction, but in all directions equally. As a result, its main impact was down; it left a
crater six stories deep. The reinforcement above the garage managed to stifle the impact.

o
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If it had been packed properly, it could have been far more lethal in damaging the above
ground structure.

Oklahoma City: The Oklahoma City bomb appears to have been packed in such a way
that the explosion would target one side, rather than all sides, thus having a greater
impact on the front of the Alfred P. Murrah building.

TYPES OF BOMBS:

Dynamite (Nitroglycerin and sawdust): Creates strong carbon odor and leaves nitrate
residue and pieces of paper wrappings. Tears metal into fragments several inches in size.

ANFQ (Diesel oif and fertilizer): Creates fuet oil odor and heavy black smoke. Also
leaves nitrates and large metal fragments.

C-4 (Cyclotrimethylene and plastic bonding): Leaves nitrates, unless detonated by
another explosive such as dynamite. Leaves small undetonated particles of plastique.
Tears metal into tiny pieces.

SEMTEX (Cyclotrimethylene, pentaerythritol tetronitrate and plastic): Leaves distinctive
nitrate residue, nearly no odor. Leaves particles of plastique and tears metal into tiny
pieces.

Source: Los Angeles Times; Newsday,; Clark Staten, Emergency Response and Research Institute;
Researched by DAVID F. MONTESING and ROBIN WRIGHT / Los Angeles Times

Credit: TIMES STAFF WRITER
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Phillips Business Information, Inc,
A Phillips Publiching Internctiona! Company

1201 Sevea Locks Rd,, Potomas, MD 20834
(301) 340-1520 + Pax: (301) 4244297 + Intormer: PH @phillips.com

August 15, 1995

Ted Gundergon

Ted L. Gunderson ¢ Asmoc,
P.0. Box 1BQ00-259

Lx® Vagas, XV 85108

Dear Mr. Gunderson: e -
R ) AN
Encloged, please fing the back issus (g} eof Defanse
Dally you requested.

If you have any further questiong pPlease contact me

&t [301}340-7788 ext. 2240, Thank you for your
interest in Phillips Gusiness information, Ino.

ji{cerely. ‘ ‘
w&r\ ' f

Karen Falebner
Client Services Repregentative
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These Atlas prills are indieative of thy propér
bizating grade ptills,

size of gooa

Vihat Is O Absorption?

WY piLas o Sbea In the early 1930's it was discovered that #2 diesel

/ N © "CDS&P&L}Y fuel oil, when mixed with prills st the levei of 5.5%to
Tl CORPRATIO 6.0% by weight, produced 1 practical and inexpensive

DALRS | TEKAS V5281 youl ot e i e Somect i o provie o

est explosive and for ast production

' of toxic fumaes after blasting. It was 300n discovered that b

< agricuitural fertdizer prills when made into ANFO had

very poor explosive characteristics, They would not
—_— detonate efficiently because of their high density, lack of

porosity and heavy inert coatings of antiesetting agents.,
wnat Is Y Manufacturers soon altered the production process lé{/

FI‘ 89 F ]@W SEEng? gmiﬁa?g,%“&:‘;::mfpﬂ& prll to our present day

A good blasting grade prlll is porous, which anables it

Prilt size distribution for good biasting grade prils iy to readily absorb and hold the corvect amount of fuel o,
roughly between six and twenty mesh U.S. standard The ol is distcibuted throughout the prill particle,
screens. This size was chosen because this is the improving the detonability of the oiled mixturs.
optinum tize for (res fow loading. While oled, finer Underoiled prills contain an excess of oxygen which
screen sie product tends Lo provide yomewhat higher decreases detonation velocity and reduces the energy of
bare hale velocitles, but finer product afso haa  greater reaction. Prills which are overolled cregte oxygen
tendency to cake in storafe, which results in difficult deficiency which also adversely affects pe rmange,
nandling problems. For this reason, six to twenty mesh The situation iy gimiar to a properly adjusted retor
smmoniwm Ditrate has been found to be the best in 8n automobils where [ha fuel and alr mixi are
compromise bétween handling and performance. balanced to provide most efficient performance.
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Coal stripping operation using AN,

How Doss Particie
Donsity Affect
Blasting Resuits?

The ability of an olled prill to be detonated depend
greatly upon the density of the prill. Dense prills. suchas
agricultural grade. often xre not detonable at all: or ¥
inittated, performsat 2 very low rate of detonation and

may die out i1 the bore hole performing no useul work, .~

\_ Unshot bore holes and “monumaents” of stone or
averburden stand ss testimornlals 1o the "Ag Prills"
ineffectiveness and poar performarce. We strongly
recommend the use of a relatively lght, porous grade
prill to be oled for blasting. The bulk density of this type
prill should be in the rarge from 0.78 1o 0.82 grams per
cubic centimeter or. put in another way, of about 48.5]
1bs. per cubie foot. The use of agricultural grade prills,
55.59 Ibs. per cublc fool, increases bore hole loading
density and, therelore, the cost! and yet, due to their
poor detonabilily, less energy Is produced: if they
detonate at all.

What Does
Friability Mean?

The dictionary defines the word "friable” as “esslly
crumpled or frogile”. Frabilty i a term that is
sometimes used to describe the soltness or hardness of
a prill. Our resdarch people measure the “friabiity” of
prils by determining how they bresk down or fragment

under cerzain conditions. Thers is, of course, 3
connection between “friability " and density. Agricultural
prills are very hard (and dense) and accordingly ace not
very fristle. A good blasting grade prill, on the, other
hand, hasless strength or a higher friability tating: yet, it
must be rigid enough to withstand normal handling in the
feld 30 as not to bregk down into dust. It must be soft
enough., bowever, to be able to be broken down to
provide sensitivity and good bore hole ipading denaities
in underground mining where the oilled prills are blow
loaded into small diameter bore holes.

l;g‘w Bﬂ“ Know
The Pmpgr Prill?

As s guide, we befeve that the various properties we
have listed can help you in the proper selection of & gond
blasting grade prill There is some controvarsy even
among the experts on which particular propurnty counts
the moat on prill selection. Taking all factors ino
dccount, we submit the following guldelines. Your best

quality prill should have & total rating of 80% ninimum
from the following table:

Characteristic Percentage Importance
Ol absarbence . k0%
Low particle density f 20%
Free flowing 20%
Low clay content T, 20%
Friabdity 0%
Low moisture 10%
e
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June 18, 1990 e Defense Daily Page 450

DARPA MOVES TO VERIFY GROUND-BASED LASER ASATS, DARPA Friday awarded
$2 million 10 & consortium of four national laboraiories to develop and demonstrate an early
vegsion of a device to monitor the ASAT capabilities of ground-based lasers In support of a
potential treaty restricting such devices, The four labs—-Los Alamos, Sendis, Lawrence
Livermore, and Argonne--will develop and demonstrate @ device to monitor the "brightness”
of designated lasers by means of cooperative measurements of laser radiation scattered as the
laser beam propagates into the atmosphere, The critical issue to be determined in the Laser
Verification Program is the precision with which ASAT-type ground-based lasers can be
monitored with current, exportable technologies and the extent to which monitoring techniques

are immune 1o tampering.
v 5 & 0

SYMPOSIUM ON FOREIGN MILITARY SALES SLATED The Pentagon’s Defense Security
Assistance Agency (DSAA) and the Defense Institute of Security Assistance Management
(DISAM) are sponsoring a Foreign Military Sales (FMS) symposium on July 19 and 20 in
Dayton, Ohio. Representatives from the Departments of Defense, State and Commerce,
industry, and foreign governments will conduct pane] discussions and workshops on the changing
environment of foreign sales under decreasing budgets. . [Contact the” ADPA, 703/522-1820,
Two Colonial Place, Suite 400, 2101 Wilson Blvd., Arlington, Va, 22201.3061,] '

v & v » &
.

SEXTANT AVIONIQUE DEVELOPING ‘DATA GLOVE’  Sextant Avionique has developed
a new "data glove" to be used for pilot/system communications in next generation cockpits. At
& GIFAS conference in Washington this week, Jean Noel Perbet, manager, advanced avionics
display R&D, described Soxtant's developments in visual, auditory and hand communicatior
channels, designed for efficient man-machine interfaces, perticularly in cockpits with high
performance electronic copilot alds. Perbet said the glove provides a high accuracy reading of
the hand’s attitude, to be used for hand gestures for simple messages or to detect hand shape

and position, with a 3D tracker, to point Qut or manipulate objects on the cockpit screen.
* & ® 5 =

—

DEFENSE 'CONTRACTS

t

*" 'The Daily Listing Ot Key Contracts in Defense & Acrospace

* Westinghouse Electric Corporation, Electronic Systems Group, Sykesville, Maryland,
$117,961,225 firmed-fixed-price contract for seven AN/SQQ-8 anti-submarine warfare
combat systems for DDG 51 and DD 963 class ships. ‘Work will be performed in Sykesville,
69%); Silver Spring, Maryland (6%); Sylmar, California (11%); Glendale, Californis (2%); and
verett, Washington (12%), and is expected to be completed in January 1994, Two bids were
solicited and two offers were received. The contracting activity is The Naval Sea Systoms
Command, Washington, D.C. [N00024-90-C-6013] (6-14-90)

* Unisys Corporation, Huntsville, Alabama, $7,856,310 firm-fixed-price contract for
Remoted Target System (RETS) for hardware, installation, storage and spares requirements.
Work will be performed in Huntsville and is cxpected to be completed by January 1993. There
were 23 bids solicited on Feb. 4, 1990, and two bids were received. The contracting activity is
the Argrg;amcnt. Munitions and Chemical Command, Rock Island, Hlinois [DAAAOQ—PO-C—O‘J@]
(6-14- . , '

* Ireco Incorporated, Salt Lake City, Utah, a $2,618,000 increment us part of a
$5,934,415 cost-plus-incantive-fee contract for full-scale development of the Tactica) ;ﬂosive
Subsystem (TEXS). Work will be performed in Salt Lake City and is eapected to be completed
by Nov. 22, 1991. There were 34 bids solicited on Nov. 8, 1989, and two bids were received.
The contracting activity is the Armament, Munitions and Chemical Command, Picatinny Arsenal,

New Jersey. [DAAA21.90-C-0045] (6-14-90) v (=8

Lm - .- ! [ - -
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Gunderson International forwarded a Freedom of
Information Request to the Dept. of the Army, Picatinny
Arsenal, New Jersey and requested information concerning
government contract number DAAA-21-90-C-0045. This
information is not classified and is available to the public.
Note the following response.
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
UNW£UST£TESARHYTANK=AUTOMOTNEANDARMAM!NYSCOMMAND
ARMAMENT RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND ENGINEERING CENTER
PICATINNY ARSENAL. NEW JERSEY Qr808-5000

July 24, 1995

Legal Office

Ted L. Gunderscn and Associates

P.0. Box 18000-259

1,46 Vegas, Nevada 89114 .
- R

Dear SiTt o - S

This responds to your amended Freedom of Information Act
(POIA} request for a copy of Ccontract DAAA21-90-C-0045.

after review/research of your request, please be advised
that no information pertaining to that contract pumber has been
located.

should you have any questions, the undersigned may be
reached on (201)724-3411. . r

Sincerely, .
o Baeverly Bowe

Acting Freedom of Information
act Officer

alY




Note the following letters from Gunderson International to
Dyno Nobel INC. We never received a reply to this letter.
We made numerous unsuccessful attempts to call Dyno Nobel
with no response and no return phone call.



TED L. GUNDERSON AND ASSOCIATES e intemational Security Consulting and Investigations
2118 Wilshire Blvd., e Suite 422« 3anta Monica, CA 90403-57 *  310/364-2280 Fax (702} 650-5674

9/21/95
Las Vegas Nevada §9119

To: Public Relations Department
Dyne Nobel Inc.

50 s. Main St. [1th Floor
Crossroads Towcrs, Sakt Lake City
Utah, 84144

Fonietesniliig

Re: Published information regarding past defense coatracting activity under freco

Dear sir or madam

We are researching background information on a government contract which Ireco was
seiected to bid on. Public information was published in “Defense Daily" in the Monday June 18th
Issue of 1990 on page 450. The article kists a "Tactical Explosives Subsystem” (TEXS) as the item
contracted under [DAAAZ21-90-C-0045] dated (6-14-50). We suspect that this contract number is a
misprint, or that the date 1ssued is wrong. Would you be so kind as to review yourrecords and
write back 1o us (o inform us if this contract number is correct or if the publisher has inadvertently
printed an incorrect contract number or date.

If you should also have an introduction or company profile brochure we would be
interested in receiving more general information on your company. Our interest is purely academic +
and we have no litigation motives of any sort, nor are we working for any clients in this mater.
Please send your response whenever you have a chance to the following address:

Ted Gunderson International

T‘e}:hnical Research Departmev

If you wish to respond via fax. our fax number is {NEREGGGRGE

Thank you and best regards

co: Ted Gunderson

: a

Mamhar Sacian: ~F FAarmer Snacial Aagsnte nf the Fedaral Rurean nf Invastigation



One and one-half years after the bombing of the Oklahoma City bombing of the Murrah building,
the U.S. Geological Survey issued its report claiming only one bomb.

It took one and one-half years to come to this conclusion?

H2
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Two-bomb theory
in Oklahoma tragedy

Science undermines
conspiracy buffs’
take on '95 blast

By Keay Davidson
EXAMNER SCIEHCE WRITEH

In the 1960s conspiracy theo-
rists debated the “one bullet” hy-
pothesis of the Kennedy assassina-
tion.

Now, they're debating the “one
bomb”™ notion of the explosion of
the Oklahoma City federd] building
on April 19, 1995,

The Justice Department says a
single, 4,800-pound fuel-and-fertil-
izer bomb destroyed the building,
killing 188 people.

In contrast, militia groups,
right-wing activists and conspiracy
theorists have championod a theo.
rv worthy of TV'’s “X-Files™ that
two or more bombs exploded,
bombs placed by unknown people
with mysterious agendas. An MIT-
trained geophysicist 4ays they may
be right. .

But conspiracy enthusigsts face
& new and surprising foe: the U.S.
Geological Survey, whose laid-
back, nature-loving, John Muirish
employees don't usually play Sher-
lock Holmes, .

The No.l piece of “evidence”
for the two-bcmb argument is a

[ See BOMB, +.-111

Two-bomb theory
in Oklahoma case

squiggly line on a piece of paper.

It's a seismogram, a record of
geismic waves recorded by a seis-
mograph 16 miles from the blast.
The selsmcegraph’s original pur-
pose was to monitor Oklahoma's
occasional earthquakes: 167 in
1995, all pretty wimpy by Califor-
nia standards.

Seconds after the federal build-
ing blast, the seismograph detected
two seismic waves rippling across
the flat Oklahoma countryside.

The dus! wave proves more
than one bomb was involved, con-
spiracy theorists claim. They've
promoted the idea relentleasly for
more than a year via radio talk

- shows, extremist newsletters and

militia Internet sites,

But now, after intengive com-
puter analysis, USGS scientists say
they've anuffed the multiple-bomb
theory. They say the puzzing dual
seismic waves are, in fact, a single
wave that divided underground.

USGS researcher Thomas Hol- .
zer and five associates are sched-
uled to report the finding in a
forthcoming issue of Eos, a publi- |
cation of the American Geophysi-
cal Union. The Examiner obtained

an advance copy of the report, dat- -

ed Aug. 23, from a source outside
the agency.

“What we're really trying to say
is the data are consistent with one
explosion,” says one of the authors,

Thomas M. Brocher of USGS.
“The different (ssismic wave} ar-
rival (times) ... are just the result
of what you'd expect normal wave
propagation to do.”

Dueling shock waves

As the USGS sees it, the explo-
sion triggered vibrations in the up-
per layer of the Oklahoma crust,
perhaps arcund 1,000 feet deep.
The speed with which seismic
waves travel through the Earth
varies according to factors such as
ground density and composition
For example, seismic waves typi-
cally move more slowly through
underground leva than solid rock,
and faster through sandstone than
shale.

In this case, “the seismic veloci-
ty increases significantly with
depth,” the report says. For this

and other reasons, the seismic

pulse split into two main segmonts
that reached the seismograph
about 10 seconds-apart. -

Charles Mankin, the head of the
Oklahoma Geological Survey, con-
curs with the USGS conclusion

and offers a2 down-to-Earth anslo-

gy.

“Imagine two-cars leaving Okla-
homa City at the same time, oneon
the interatats highway and one on
the servige road beside it,”he saye.
“The one on the highway couid get
10 its destination sooner urey
the spead limit is higher.”

Such split seismic signals have
occurred elsewhere, For exampls,
whenever a Freano seismograph
detects an earthquake in the Bay
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Arep, it detects two different seis-
mic waves, Holzer savs. That's be-
cruse the original quake wave split
while traveling through shallow
San Joaquin Valley sediments be-
tween the two areas,

In the Okizhoma City case, both
seismic vibrations are a shatiow-
earth wave called a Rayleigh wave,

after the 19th century English sci-_ 7

entist Lord Rayleigh,

“You can get these Rayleigh
waves at different frequencies,”
Holzer says. “The nigher frequen-
¢y moves faster,”

But the USGS explanation still
doesn't eliminate the possibility of
multiple bombe, argues Raymon
Brown, a geophysicist for the Okle-
homa Geclogical Survey. Brown
has expressed his doubts about the
single-bomb theory since mid-
1895, Conspiracy buffs have relied
heavily, although not exclusively,
on Brown's views,

Brown agrees with the USGS
theory that the two waves came
from & single wave that split under.
.ground. He believes multiple
bombs might kave exploded, how-
ever,

“I have to say that it’s still an
open question,” Brown says. *1
have not seen any information that
can prove one side or another.”

Unusually long signal?
For one thing, “the degree of
+ damage accomplished By a single
bomb not placed in the building
was significantly higher than 1
| would have personally expected,”
- says Brown, who received his geo-
physics doctorate from MIT.
(  Brown also is puzzled that the

— ——————
———

seiamic signai lasted eight secon@s, —

much longer than the blast itsell.
How, he asks, could an explosion
lasting a few seconds generaie a
seismic signal persisting for eight
seconds? Additional seismic ener-
ov may have been emitted by fall-
ing debcis or car explosions trig-
rered by the original blast, but he
:en't convinced they esmitted
ennugh energy to explain the eight-
second rigmal.

Mankin acknowiedges that the
length of the signsl puzeles him,
too. He speculates the blast may
have created **harmenic vibra-
tions” in the building's concrete
columns that persisted a few sec-
ands after the blast and protracted
the ground tremaors,

Brown is “a very competent per-
son,” stresses Mankin, & sedimen-
tary geologist. “In fact, he knows a
lot more about this subject than I
do. I rely heavily on him."

For Brown, his lone stance has
been “an emotional drain.”

“It's not just a 'science’ thing,"”
he says. T wish it were — it would
be a Iot more fun. ... We've got
neighbors that died A lot of kids
who go to schoal with my kids have
iost parents,

“When it's close 10 home (like
that), you tend not be willing to
just say the two signals (received)
in Nerman (a community 16 miles
southeast of Oklahoma City) are
‘consistent” with a single bomb.
There's more there to be done than
make that statement.”

Still, Brown has no personal
quarrel with the USGS scientists,
who, he says, shared their data
with himn and treated him ‘'very
respectfully.” Holzer is “a first-rate
person, a nice guy to work with,” he
says, “but I can only push him so
far.ll

The USGS sacientists acknowl-
edge that they couldn't have distin-
guished & blast from two bombs if
they occurred extremely close in
time — say, a few thousandths of a
second apart. They add, however,
that two such closely timed explo-
sions wouldn’t have generated two
seismic waves traveling at such dif-
ferent speeds that the first would
traverse 18 miles 10 seconds faster
than the other.

Besides, witnesses “heard one
explozion,” Brocher says. “They
certainly would have heard two ex-
plosions 10 seconds apart.”

John Trochmann and his broth-
er Randy Trochmann of the Nox-
on, Mont.-based Militia of Mon-
tana are lay advocates of the multi-
pie-bomb theory.

fire from Ted Gunde of Las
Vegas, forder Ea EEEEE FBI of-
fice in Los Angeles. Now p stalwart

This week, Randy Trochmann
issued a statement dismissing the
USGS report as “nothing more
than election year politics, . .. The
Aug. 23, 1996, report constantly
uses terms such as ‘likely, proba-
bly, imply, prefer, assumes,’ etec.
and therefors is not a conclusive
analysis,"

Randy Trochmann also claims
that after the building blew up,
“rescuers and government agenis
found mumerous explosive devices
which had not detonated.”

The USGS report also draws

conspiracy theorist and Neyada
congress te, G -
press rele 1
inryears, rogardlespof whether they

ere were definitely two ex-

" plosions — one at 9:02 and 3 sec-

onds, and one at 9:02 and 13 sec-
onds,” Gunderson says. In fact, he
believes there was a third explosion
involving a weapon hs calls an
“glectrohydrodynamic gaseous fuel
device — & ‘barometric’ bomb.”

Gunderson, 67, says he inter-
viewed two witnesses and asked
them to re-enact the sound of the
disaster. “Both of them said
‘Boom! .. . Boom! with the second
explosion being louder than the
first.”

He claims government figures
- “an evil slement” — deliberately
destroyed the building to spur pas-
sage of an anti-terrorist bill.

Gunderson also seys they're try-
ing to kill him: “T've had siz at-
tempis on my life. The last time,
they loosened the lug nuts on the
right front wheel of my car. The
tire came off while I was on the
highway.”

St
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OKLAHOMA GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

ENERGY CeNTRR Bipo.-Room N-131-100 EAsT Boyp STRELY « Noraan, OKLAOMA 7301G » {405).
325.3031 Pax: (405)-325-7069

June 27, 1995

State Representative Charles Key

Oklahorma

Dear Representative Key:

Coﬂapse of the Luﬂ&ing is got a lﬂze'.y epranation for ﬂw lﬁgh intensity of ground

movement recorded Jw:ing the Oklahoma City explosion, The signals recorded c]uri:ng t!:e‘
demolition of 3/4 of the Federal ]milcling clearly indicated a Jower exergy level of ground

movement than that recorded during the destructive blast which involved the collapse of

roughly 1/4 of the Luﬂding. It appears that prolonyed explosive energy is the Iil:ely
exp anation'fo: the durstion of the signals ob

Sin cercly,

K irran.

wymen L. Brown
Geophyaicist

ce: Dr, Charfc.a }. Mankin, Director
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_THE SUSPICIOUS SEISMOGRAM -~~~ -

Oklahoma City
bombing scismngram

cumpkacy theorists say these two bumps
on the selsmogram suggeat there ware two
axpiosionﬁ not one,

These raadings
caused by traffic

How the waves split The U.S, Gaclogical Survey
Oklahome City says the explosion smitted
Federal Bullding seismlo waves that split
underground and spread
outward at ditfersnt spesds.
Some waves traveled fast,
othars more siowly, In s
% manner simllar to wavu
¢ from mine explosions and
earthquakes, Result: The
fast-moving and slow-moving
wavaes arrived at differant
timos at a selsmograph 18
miles from the exploalon.

Selsmograph
slte

EXAMINER GRAPHICS

“The damage
. by a single
bomb not
placed in the
building was
significantly
higher than 1
would have

cxpccted. ”

- Raymon Brewn,
geophysicist



Rodger A. Raubach Ph.D
P.C.Box 3042 , Casper , WY. 82602-3042
Phone: (307 )~577~5775 ; FAX: (307)=-237-2500

-

2§ June 1895

The Honcrable charles Rey
State Capitol , Cklahoma

Dear Rep. Rey;

“nank you very much for your call this moraning. -

I will attempt to answer the questions that you posed thi .
morning in as simple terms as possible. As to my gualifications ,
I have a Ph.D. degree in physical chemistry granted iin 1972 by
the University of Wyoming. I have subsequently involved“in elther
chemical/medical research or supervisory positions:in Industry
since that time. ‘ G e

Physical chemistry is the sub discipline in the fleld or
chemistry that deals with rates of chemical reaction and the
heat-energy ralations involved in reactions. Evaluation of
explosives and their properties falls within the realm of the
physical chemist.

You initially asked whether or not I supported BG Partin‘’s
position reyarding the tragic bomb blast in Oklahoma City which
involved. much loss of life , and suffering by both the injured
and surviving fanily members. I have no reservations in
supporting Gen. Partin , since I would consider him to be an
"Expert’s Expert' in this fjield. Gen. Partin’s position regarding
the use of an ammonium nitrate fertilizer bomb mirrors amy, views
exactly. The possibility of an ammoniua nitrate fertilizer bombd ,
regardless of size ,.demolishing a reinforced concrete structure
at a3 twanty or thirty foot standoff
not cnly strainc the limits of credibility but exceeds it by a
considerable margir. Ammonium nitrate is categorized as a low
valocity explosive thet finds it’s use primarily in the mining
Industry. Explosives are very useful tools in industry and
warfare. The salaction of the proper tocl ror the job at hand is
a job for the miiitary ordnance specialist or the aining
engineer , &s the specific case may require. In the case of the
destruction of the Murrah Building in OXC , the alleged "tool* in

the guise of an ammonium nitrate bomb was wholly inadequate for
the following reasons:

(1) Explosives, in general, possess two properties : power and
brisance. Power may generally be regarded as the ablility to move
or displace matter ,.as in heaving dirt or rock in either mining
, construction , or agriculture. Brisance , on tha other hand ,
rafers te the ability of an explosive to shatter , crack , or
destroy structures, Brisance , in general , is directly related
to the velocity of the shock wave generated by the detonation.
'(2) Ammonium nitrate has a detonation velocity that varies with
the admixture of diesal fuel , powdered aluminum , and other
readily oxidizable chemical srecies , within the lower limit of

g
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J000 meters , sec. to an upper limit of 4000 meters / sec. Not
“rasc” enough to shatter concrete and break steel reinforcing
rods. An example of an explosive "fast” enough is T.N.T. with a
detonation velocity of ca. 7000 maters /seac.

(2] Anmoniuam nitrate does not coampletely detenate unless vary
tightly packed against the target for the charge to affect.Had
ammoniul nitrate been detonated in plastic barrels , the entire
area would have been covered with unexploded prill (the
production form of ammoniux nitrate)}.

All in all , the story widely disseminated in the press
leaves many questions unanswered , and that since most of the
evidence has subsequently destroyed with demolition of the -
structure , I have very serious misgivings about the T
"investigation* that is to take place by the federal government.
Many of the inconsistencies in the official story point to the
possibility of an “inside job™ with the possible involvement of
agants of the agencies "investigating® the explosion, .=~ ..
Since when zan any agency or person lInvestigate itgB1f m
manner that is free of self-conflict? We do not need a whitewash

Jok and coverup of the truth. The American People-demand and
DESERVE to knew the truth. o

If I can be

©f any further assistance , pleass contact me
A.S.A.P. - ' -

Sincerely,

%W

Rodger A. Raukach Ph.D.



Prior to the bombing in Oklahoma City, Timothy McVeigh wrote to his sister Jennifer, advising he
was one of ten outstanding soldiers in Special Forces and, as a result, he was recruited by the CIA
for training as a professional assassin working with the CIA in illegal drug matters and to work for
the CIA against the competition in these same illegal drug matters.

Gunderson personally confirmed Dr. Louis (Jolly) West, head psychiatrist at UCLA had personally
visited McVeigh in Oklahoma City and in Denver, Colorado, while McVeigh was incarcerated in
those cities. At the time, the now-deceased Dr. West was the world’s foremost expert in the now
infamous CIA MK ULTRA mind control program.

The CIA’s CIA MK ULTRA mind control program is an outgrowth of “Operation Paperclip” a secret
U.S.A. government project that followed World War I, when in 1947, the U S A government
imported 900 German scientists to America. These German scientists were notable because they
worked on a NAZI sponsored mind control program, under the control of Adolph Hitler. This
program was active prior to and during WWIL

These scientists, now relocated to America, were secretly placed in thirty American universities to
continue their experiments and research in mind control.

The program was designed to trigger the mind-control subject into taking certain actions without
being in conscious control of their actions. After the designated action was carried forth, the subject
did not recall the actions he had undertaken. The mind-control subjects are trained through trauma,

specifically: torture, drugs and hypnosis.

In the U.S.A., Congress investigated this program in the summer of 1977. At the conclusion of this
investigation, CIA representatives admitted their involvement in this cruel, nefarious activities but

added the program was no longer active.

This is manifestly untrue. Gunderson is personally aware of numerous mind-control victims who
have been trained after 1977.
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| Louis J. West; Psychiatrist, Rights Activist

By MYRNA OLIVER

TIMES STAFF WRITER

Cr. Leuis Jolvon “Jolly” Weost,
annternalonally known psychia-
Lrist, civid rights activist and expert
cn alcoholism, drug  apuse and
cults, hazdied. He was 74.

West, who headed the depart-
ment of psychiatry and the Neuro-
vsychiatric [nstwute at UCLA for
30 vears, died Saturday of cancer al
nis Los Angeles home.

Although he partially retired in
1983, Wast had remained active in
research and mentoring students.
He was frequently sought out by
the news media to offer insight into
such cults as Heaven's Gate, which
staged a mass suicide in San Diego
County in 1997.

West also served frequently as a
court-appoinied expert psychiatrist,
fie examined such defendants as
Jack Ruby -—killer of President John
& Kennedy's assassin, Lee Harvey
Oswald—and Patricia Hearst. the
symbiontese Liberation Army kid-
napping victim turned bank robber.

Ruby, West said, suffered from
"major mental iiness apparently
precipitated by the stress of (his]
irial and its aftermath.” West's
opinion forestalled Ruby's death
sentence, and the convicted mur-
derer died of cancer in prison.

West was ane of four psychia-
trists named t0 examine Hearst
oefare her 1976 wial in San Frap-
cisco. The panel found her sane and
able to stand trial but, in West's
words, “psychologically damaged
as a resuit of torture by the SLA”

The doctors urged that she be
treated for mental illness before
the trial, a recommendation ig-
ncred by the court. West said in a
3an Diego speech afler her convic-
tion: "The government finished the
desicuction of her life started by an
anti-government group.” Presi-
ient Iimmy Carter commuted
Hearst’s prison sentence in 1979,

West siudied rtorture and brain-

asmng clarnd Lne Korean o Sar
.

Loa Angeies Times

Or. Louis Jolyon West in 1983

when he was an Air Foree doctor at
Lackland Air Force Base in Texzs.
Asked o determine why American
prisoners of war had falsely con-
fessed to engaging in germ warfare,
- West. determined that guiit coutd be
instilled by solitary confinement and
prolonged sleeplessness as well as
by ohysical abuse.
He continued his studies of

brainwashing over the years, alang
abuse, pain, sleep problems,
dreams and hypnosis.

“What happens in coerced con-
finement,” Wast onee told The
Times, explaining the behavior of
cult members and kidnapping vie-
tims, "can be called the three
Ds—cdebility, dread and depen-
dency. A prisoner is debilitated by
inactivity, by sieep loss or, worse,
by physical harm. He is filled with
dread by constant threats of pain or
ceath or harm to his family, He is
rendered completely dependent
Lporn his captors for information.

food, shelter, iife”

Always active 1a civil rights, from
the Amencan South 0 South Afriea,
West was the {irst white psychia-
rist to go to South Africa to Lestify
on behalf of black zrisoners—and
Afrikaner Auret Van Heerden—
during the atlempt Lo 2nd apartheid.
In 1966 he was a member of ihe
White House Conference on Civil
Rights, and he worked for years to
abofish capital punishment.

“Everybody makes a differ-
ence,” West said about aciivism
while speaking to The Times in
1885, "You can {ight city hall. You
can change the wocld. [t might nat
seem Like much of a change at the
time, hut you have the power as an
individual to dc a great deat ™

Born to Russian Jewish immi-
grants :n Madison, Wis,, West grew
up in poverty. But his mother, who
gave him the middle name Jolyon
after reading “The Farsyte Saga,”
convinced him that he was des-
tined to do great things.

West studied at the University of
Wisconsin and enlisted in the
Army during World War 11, deter-
mined to fight Hitler. [nstead, the

Army sent nim to study medicine, a

profession he had never consid-
ered, at the Wniversity of lowa, He
completed his training at the Uni-
versity of Minnesota.

West was named head of pay-
chiatry at the University of Ckla-
homa School of Medicine in 1954 and
remained there unil he was hired

by UCLA 15 years later. In 1974, -

Oklahoma named its university fa-

cility for aicohol-reiated studies the

Louis Joiyon West House.

He served as director of the '

American Assembly on Public
Policy [ssues Related to Alcohol
Abuse and Aicoholism in 1984 in
New Yark and edited its report. He
also headed UCLA's Alcohol Ze-
search Center.

West wrote several bocks and
scotes ¢f articles on psychiatry, was
a irustee of the American Psychiat-
ric Assn. and served as a consuliant

Please see WEST, 113
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By ELAINE WQO

TIMES 3TAFF WRITER

James Bond nad Q, the sclentific
wizard wha supplied 007 with daz-
zling gadgets to deploy against
‘enemy agents, The Central [ntelli-
gance Agency had Sidney Gettlieb,
a Bronx-born biechemist with a

.ThD from Caltech whose job
head of the agancy's technical
services division was to concoct
Li‘e ro0id of esplonage: disappearing
inks, poxson darts, toxic handrcer-
chiefs.
. Gottlleb ocnce mailed a lethal
' ‘handkerchief to an Iraqi colonel
:and personally ferried deadly bac-
terfa to the Congo to kill Prime
wMinlster Patrice Lamumba. [t
swaan't his petions that eventually
.did In the twa targets, but Gottlies,
conce described by a colleague as
‘the ultimate “good soldier." sai-
diered an.
Poisons and darts were not his

_sole preoccupauon during 22 years -

mth the CIA. He laborad for years
"on a praject 0 unlock and controi
the mysterious powers of lysergic
acid diethylamide, o .SD. Could it
be a potent spy weapon ta weaken
the minds of unwilling targets?

in the 18505 and 19603, answer-
ing that question was one of Gat-
tlieb's missions in MK ULTRA, the
coede name for the agency's secrat
axperiments to probe the effects of
mind-altering drugs. Chief ameng
them was LSD, discovered br Dr.
Albert Hofman, a Swiss chemist, in
1843,

1943,

By the early 195Cs, the CIA,
fearful of LSD falling into Soviet
hands, had cornered tha market on
the drug, which in minute doses
ceuld produce overwhelming sen-
sations ranging frem kaleidascooic
acuily to temporary insanity. The
agency also started io fund re-
search, covertly funneling hun-

.dreds of thousands of doliars o
 academics in prestigious institu-
tions around the country who tried
the drug themselves and reported
the results to Gottlieh,

Sidney Gattlieb in 1977.

Gottlieb and his associates in

. MXULTRA also took LSD “trips,”
-although the concept of tripping
-would not entar the American
“lexdcon for another decade. They
- laced coffee with LSD and served it
- to each other without warning,
_then ohserved each other’s reac-
- tions. Later Gottlieb expanded the

field tests to subjects outside the

“agency—drug addicts, prostitutes,
prisoners, mental patienis—geople
wiho were unlikeiy to complain and

“even less likeiy to be believed if

-they did. Amorg the dosed were
“hookers and their clients in a
"ClA-sponsored brothel in San
F'rancisco, later the epicenter of
the L3S0 explesion.

One human guinea pig was sub-

*lected to an astounding 77-day trip.
Some subjects suffered chronic

mental problems after being dosed.
COne person—an Army germ war-
fare researcher—sank into dark
depression and paranoia, leaping to
nis death from the 10th floor of a
New York hotel several days after

_ being slipped an LSD Mickey Finn

at a CIA retreat. The CIA covared
up g cole in his demise for 1wo
decades. and barely reprimanded
Gottlieh,

In the early 1960s, Gotilieb #as
bromoted to the highest deputy
Post in lhe technical services ap-
eration. By 1967, he had sisen G
the top of the division, guided by
-his {engtime ClA mentor, Director

. Richard Helms. At that time, LSD

Was not a secret anymore. While
the CIA was st examining the
drug's pessibilities as a means of
mird control, many voung Ameri-
¢ans were dropping the hzllucing-
g2n as a vehicle of mind sxpansion
and recreation. America was tun-
ing in, turning on and dropping out,

thanks, in part, o the CIA'S activ-.

ism in the "30s in the rame of
national security.

el2 owrae mar rgmeil FOTO ana.

It was not until 1972 that Cot-
ilieb called a hait o the experi-
menis with psychedelics, conclud-
ing in a memo that they were "10¢
unpredictable in their affects on
individual human zeings . . . o be
operationally useful.”

He retired the same year, spend-
ing the next few decades in eclectic
pursuits that defied the stereotype
of the spy. He went to [ndia with
his wife to volunteer at a hospital
for lepers. A stutlarer since child-
hood, he got a master’s degree in
speech therapy. He raised goats on
a Virginia farm. And he practiced
folk dancing, a lifelong passicn
despite the handicap of a clubicot.

A malignaat, ceal-life Q, or an
eccentric genius whose intentions
were fonorable and just?

Gottlieb led the agency in 149
mind centrol experiments, of which
about 25 were conducted on unwit-
ting subjects. According to the
survivor of one wvictim, the way
Gotuieb duped American citzens
was nothing but despicabie.

Less black and white in his
assessment is John Marks, author
of the definitive beok on the ClA’s
mind control programs, “"The
Search for the ‘Manchurian Candi-
data.” " Marks sees Gottlied a5 an
unabashed patriotl who nonethziess
“crossed the same ethical lines we
hangad Cerman doctors in Warld
War Il for.”

There is also the view af fcrme
CIA psychologist fonn GALLh.ger,
who says nis clese friend wzi a
gentle man whosa acgtlions #»er2
widely misundersigod. The
agency's LSD  experiments
bloomed in the era of Josel S:alin
and Ser. Joseph McCarthy, and
“during that time of Cold War”
Gittinger said recently from his
home in Norman, Oklze. “the atli-
tude we had and the agency had

was we were sull fighting a war.
And when you are flighting a war,
you do things you might not cedi-
narily dg.”

GCottlieb died on March 7 in
Washinglon, Va. He was 80. His
family did not divulge the cause of
his death,
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

V.
TIMOTHY JAMES McVEIGH CASE NUMBER: M-95-98-H

T, the undersigned complainant beinyg duly sworn state the following
is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. On or
about April 19. 1995, in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma County, in the
western District of Oklahoma defencdant (s} did, maliciously damage and
destroy by means of fire or an explosive, any building, vehicle, and
other personal or real property in whole or in part owned, possessed,
or used by the United States., any department or agency thereof, in
viclation of Title 18, United States Code, Section(s) 844 (f).

I further state that I am a(n) Special Agent of the Federal Bgrgau of
Investigation and that this complaint is based on the foﬁié?{gg%%gg
facts: R

See attached Affidavit of Special Agent Henry C. Gibbons, Federal
Bureau of Investigation, which is incorporated and made a part hereof
by reference.

/s/ Henry C. Gibbons
Special Agent .
Federal Buresau of Investigation

sworn to before me and subscribed in ny presence, on this 21 day of
April, 1995, at Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.

RONALD L. HOWLAND
UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE - /8/ Ronald I,. Howland

STATE OF OKLAHOMA:
COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA

AFFIDAVIT

T, HENRY C. GIBBONS, being duly sworn, do hereby state that I am an
agent with the Federal Bureau of Investigation, having baen 80
employed for 26 years and ae such am vested with the authority to
investigate violations of federal laws, including Title 18, United
States Code, Section 844 (f).

Further, the Affiant states as follows:

1. The following information has bean received by the Federal Bureau
of Investigation over the period from April 19 through April 21,
1995;

2. On April 19, 1995, a massive explosion detonated outside the v it
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Alired P. Murrah building in Cklahoma City, Ok&ahpma, aw
approximately 9:00 a.m.

3. Investlgation by Federal agents at the scene of the explosion
tave determined that the explosive was contained in a 1993 Ford owned

by Ryder Rental company.

a. A vehicle identification number (VIN) was found at the scene of
the explosion and determined to be from a part of the truck that
contained the explosive.

b. The VIN was traced to a truck owned by Ryder Rentals of Miami,
Florida. : .

¢. Ryder Rentals informed the FBI that the truek was assigned to a
rental company known as Elliot's Body Shop in Junetion City, Kansas.

4. The rental agent at Elliot's Body Shop in Junction ‘

City, Kansas was interviewed by the FBI on April 19, 199§é¥5§y%i}‘
individual who signed the rental agreament provided the following
information:

8. The person who signed the rental agreement identified himself as
BOB KLING, SSN: 962-4¢2-9694, South Dakota's driver's license number
YF942A6, and provided a home address of 428 Malt Drive, Redfield,
South Dakota. The person listed the destination as 428 Maple Drive,
Ormaha, Nebrasksa.

k. Bubseqguent investigation conducted by the FBI determine all this f
irformation to be bogus. '

5. On April 20, 1995, the rental agent was recontacted and assisted
in the creation of composite drawings. The rental agent has told the
FBI that the composite drawings are fair and accurate depictions of
the individuals Who rented the truck.

6. On April 20, 1995, the FBI interviewsd three witnesses who wre
near the scene of the explosion at Alfred P. Murrah Federal Building
pricr to the determination of the explosives. fThe three witnesses
were shown a copy of the composite drawing of Unsub #l and identified
him as closely resembling a person the witnesses had seen in front of
the Alfred P. Murrah Building where the explosion ocecurred on April
19, 1995. The witnesses advised the FBI that they observed a person
identified as Unsub #1 at approximately 8:40 a.m. on April 18, 1995,
vhan they entered the building. Thay again observed Unsub #1 at
approximately B:55 a.m., still in front of the 5th Road entrance of
the building when they departed just minutes before the explosion.

7. The Alfred P. Murrah building is used by various agencias of the
snited States, including Agriculture Department Department of the
Army, the Defense Department, Federal Highway Administration, General
wcoouinting Offica, General Services Administration, Social Security
dministration, Labor Department, Marine Co 8, Small Busginess
Administration, Transportation Department, ited Statea Secret S
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Service, Bureau of Alcchol, Tcbacce and Firearms, and Veteran's’
administration, -

5. The composite drawings wezre shown to enployees at various motels
ind commercial establishments in the Junction City, Xansasg, vicinity.
Employaes ¢f the Dreamland Motel in Junction City Kansas, advised FBI
agenrs that an individual resembling Unsub #l depicted in the
-omposite drawings had baen a guest at the Motel from April 14
through April 18, 1995. This individual had registered at the Motel
under the name of Tim McVeigh, listed his automobile as bearing an
klahoma licerse plate with an illegible plate number, and provided a
dichigan address, on North Van Dyke Road in Decker, Michigan. The
individual was seen driving a car described as a Mercury from the

137Q0's.

5. A check of Michigan Department of motor Vehicle records shows a
license in the name of Timothy J. McViegh, date of birth April 23,
1358, with an address of 3616 North Nan Dyke Road, Decker, Michigan.
This Michigan license was renewed by McViegh on April 8, 1885.
fcvViegh had a prior license issued in the state of KansasEﬁﬁ?ﬁgfgp;
21, 1990, and surrendered to Michigan in November 1993, with the’
following address: P.0O. Box 2153, Fort Riley, Kansas.

10, Further investigation ghows that the property at 3616 North Van
nyke Road, Dacker, Michigan, is associated with James Douglas Nichols
ind his brother Terry Lynn Nichols. The property is a working farm.
Terry Nichols formerly resided in Marion, Kansas, which is
spproximately one hour from Junction City.

11. A relative of James Nichels reports to the FBI that Tim McViegh
is a friend and sgsoriate of James Nichols, who has worked and
rgsided at the farm on North Van Dyke Road in Decker, worked and
resided ast the farm on North Van Dyke Road in Decker, Michigan.
This relative further reports that she had heard that James Nichocls
1ad been involved in constructing bombs in approximately November
1994, and that he possessed large quantities of fuel oil and
‘ertilizer.

12, On april 21, 1995, a former co-worker of Tim McViegh's reported
%o the FBI that he had seen the composite drawing of Unsub #1 on the
ielevision and recognized the drawing to be a former co-worker, Tim
MeViegh, He further advised that MeVeigh was known known to hold
:xtreme rightwing views, was a4 military veteran, and was particularly
wgitated abeut the conduct of the federal government in Waco, Texas,
in 1993, 1In fact, the co-worker further reports that McViegh had
ean 30 agitated about the deaths of the Branch Dividians in Waco,
‘exas, on April 19, 1993, that he parsonnnaly vigited the sgite.
Afrer visiting the site, McViegh expressed extreme anger at the
"edaral government and advised that the Governemnt should never had
lone what it did. He further advised that the last known address he
had for McvViegh is 1711 Stockton Hill Road, #206, Kingman, Arizona.

3. On april 21, 19684, invesgtigators learned that a Timothy McViegh

was arrested at 10:30 a.m., on April 19, 1995, in Perry, Oklahoma, for
wIHG
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not having a lisencse tag and for possession of a-weapon
approxiamtely 1-1/2 hours after the detonation of the expoloslve
davice at the Alfred P. Murrah Federal Building in Oklahoma City,
tklahoma. Perry, Oklahoma, is approximately a 1-1/2 hour drive from
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. McViegh, who has been held in custody since
his arrest on April 19, 1935, listed his home address as 3616 North
van Dyke Road, Decker, Michigan. He listed James Nichols of Decker,
Michigan, as a reference¢. McViegh was stopped driving a yellow 1377
Mercury Marguis.

14. The detcnation of the explosive in front of the Alfred P. Murreh
Federal Building constitutes a violation of 18 U.8.C. Section

844 (f). which makes it & crime to maliciously damage or destroy by
means of an explosive any building or real property, in whole or in
part owned, possessad or used by the United States, or any department

or agency thereof.
Further, your affiant sayeth not.

/s/HENRY C. GIBBONS
Special Agent
Federal Bureau of Investigation

suscribed and sworn to before me this 21 day of April 1985.

/s/ Ronald J. Howland
UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE
western Digtrict of Oklahoma

Brought to you by Inter-Law's{tm) 'lectric law Library(tm)
WWW: http://www.inter-law.com
e-mail questioqg/comments/suggestions to: staff@inter-law.com
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United States Distrigt Court _
Eastern Distriet of Michigan

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

V. CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

vAMES DOUGLAS NICHOLS and

TERRY NICHOLS

I. the undersigned complainant being duly sworn state the following
is true and correct to the bast of my kncwledge and belief. On or
about 1992 through 1995 in Sanilac county, in the Bastern District of
Michigan defendants digd conspire with each other and with other
persons, including TIMOTHY MCVEIGH, to make and possess firearms,
that is, destructive devices, that ware not reglstered to them in the
Naticnal Firearms Registration and Transfer Record, and that were
made in violation of the provisions of Chapter 13 of Title 26, United
States Code; in violation of Title 18/26 United States Code, Sections
371/5861,

I turther state that I am a Special Agent, FBI and that thig
complaint 1s based on the following facts:

SEE ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT

AFFIDAVIT
1. Pacrick W. Wease, being sworn, state:

i. I am an agent with the Federal Bureau of Irvestigation, and have
been so employed for 16 years. I am vested with authority to
investigate violations of federal laws, including Title 18, United
States Code, Section 371, and Title 26, United States Code, Saection
5861. '

2. The following information hag been received by the Federal Bureau
of Investigation on april 19 through 25, 199%.

3. On April 21, 1995, JAMES DOUGLAS NICHOLE was interviewed in
~ecker, Michigan. During this interview, JAMES NICHOLS stated that
ne is the brother of TERRY NICHOLS and is a friend of TIMOTHY JAMES
MCVEIGH and that both have visited and/or resided with him at hig
farm in Decker, Michigan, over the past several years. JAMES NICHOLS
‘urther stated that he has cbserved MCVEIGH and TERRY NICHOLS making
and exploding "bottle bombg® at his residence in 1592, using brake
{luid, gasoline, and diesel fuel. JAMES NICHOLS furthar stated that
2e participated with MCVEIGH and TERRY NICHOLS in making *bottle
sombs® in 1992, and that in 1854 he, JAMES NICHOLS, has made small
rxplosive devices using prescription vials, pyrodex, blasting caps,
ind safety fuse. JAMES NICHOLS further stated that he was aware of
"survival books* belonging to his brother, TERRY NICHOLS, and that he
‘new that those.books contained information about making bombs and
.nformation dealing with ammonium nitrate bombs. JAMES NICHOLS

lurcher stated that he beliaved that TrmoTuy MCVEIGH had the
mowledge to manufacture a bomb.  TAMES MTAMAr e Amed o ooe
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¢ver purchased ammonium nitrate, and stated that He had no knowledge
that TERRY NICHOLS or TIMOTHY MCVEIGH ever purchasad any.

4. On or about April 21 through April 24, 1995, FBI agents conducted
@ search of the farm belonging to JAMES NICHOLS in Decker, Michigan.
Cne of the buildings searched was a pole barn, in which the agents
found, among other items, the following: 28 fifty pound bags of
fertilizer containing ammonium nitrate; a S5 gallon drum containing
fuel oil; large quantities of 35% solution of hydrogen peroxide; and
1/2 pint of aluminum powder. Also located at the farm were large
fuel tanks, which appeared to contain diesel fuel. all of these
materials can be used as ingredients in improvised explosives. 1In
addition, located in the farm house, the agents found a supply of
ron-electric blasting caps, pyredex (black powder), and safety fusas.
In addition, in a field located in the vicinity of the farm
buildings, the agents found jagged-edged metal fragments, which
appear %o be shrapnel from the detonation of explosive devicaes.

5. An interview conducted on April 21, 1935, with Daniel%aEd@Eénﬁﬁ.
5896 Deckerville Road, Evergreen Township, Decker, Michigan, reveals
that he was present at the farm of JAMES NICHOLS on several occasions
when JAMES NICHOLS and TERRY NICHOLS manufactured small explosive
devices. Stomber explained that the Nichols brothers would mix

fertilizer, peroxide, and bleach in plastic pop bottles and detonate -

them around the Nichols farm. Stomber recalls JAMES stating, "We're
getting better at it* when he referred to the bombmaking.

6. Stomber recalls an individual named Tim (last name unknown) who
had moved onto the Nichols farm last Year. - Stomber described Tim asa
a guy that wore camouflage clothing frequently and carried a pistol.
Stomber believes Tim moved out in the spring of 1994,

7. Stomber recglls JAMES NICHOLS and TERRY NICHOLS freguently making
derogatory commerts about the incident at Waco, Texas, and the
faderal government.

8. On April 21, 1995, Paul Isydorak, a neighbor of JAMES NICHOLS,
was interviewed. Isydorak stated that JAMES NICHOLS wag always
"fooling around“ with common household materials to determine what
type of explosive value they had, Isydorak specifically recalls
Nichols mentioning ammonia as one of tha experimental substances. He
further recalls ohserving TERRY NICHOLS and TIM MCVEIGH at the farm
participating in the experimentation with explosives.

9. On April 21, 1995, lsydorak visited a local bar with JAMES
NICHOLS. He overheard JAMES in a conversation with the Lartender in
which James explained that different types of explosives are used to

¢reate different type of explosive effects.

0. ©on April 21, 1995, 2 cocperating individual who has requested
that his/her {dentity be protected (hereinafter ¢r #1) advised Virgil
Strickier, the Sheriff of Sanilac County, Michigan, that on or around
December 12 or 15, 1893, two individuals visited Thumb Hobbies, Ete.,
a hobby store in Marlette, Michigan. Marlette is approximatelv 2n

o
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miles from Decker, Michigan. These two individuals inguired about
Purchasing 100% liquid nitrg model eirplane fuel. Yhey also wanted to
purchase 200 heavy duty zip-lock bags TeASUXINng 3 x 5 or 3 x 6
inches. The two wers advised that the Store only carried 10-15%
liguid nitro model airplane fuel, but that 100% fuel coulg be
ordered. Cne of the two gave his name ag Terry Tuttle, with a Tontacte
phone number of {517) 872-4008, andg Stated they would return.
Approximately two weeks later, the two individuals returned ad were
informed that the store could not or would not obtain the 100% liquig
Nitro model airplane fuel for them. The individuals stated that thig
was okay, as they had found anothsr source for the fuel..The two
individuals were described by CI #1 as vhite males, approximately 20
to 30 years of age. I have been advised by an FBI agent with

1l. Investigation to date conducted by the FBI has determined that
"Terry Tuttle" and "Tim Tuttle" are known aliases of TIMOTHY MCVEIGH.
In addition, the telephone aumber left at the hobby gtore by *Terry
Tuctle, " (517) 872-4008, is one digit different from JAMES NICHOLS'
telephone number of (517) 872-4018. Also, during the April 21 through
April 24, 1995, search of the Nichols farm, mail addressed to Tim or
Terry Tuttle was cbserved inside the residence.

{hereinafter CI #2Y). CI #2 advised that during the period batweern
August 1987 and May 1990, he/she had occasion to visit the NICHOLS
carm on a regulay basis, approximately 3 or 4 times each year.

approximately £ifty 50-pound bags, which Cl 42 knows is a nitrogen
source of fertilizer. o1 #2 stated that he/she has never seen such a
sizeable amount of fertilizer.

the world. Cr #2 stated that NICHOLS rambled nervously about the
United States being responsible for thig borbing disaster. NICHOLS
went ob to explain how a small bomb can. do damage such as what hag
Jjust occurred in the digaster. -

14. CI #2 adviged that NICHOLS repeatedly blamed the federal - Cal

government for all of the problemg in the world, stating that he
despised the United States Government.

i5. Based upon.the above information, there ig Probable causse to
pelieve that from 1992 through 1995, in the Eastern District of
Michigan and elsewhere, defendant JAMES DOUGLAS NICHOLS has conspired
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with each other and with-other persons, including TERRY NICHOLS and
TIMOTHY JAMES MCVEIGH, to make and possess firearms, that is, ‘
destructive devices, that were not registered to them in the Naticnal
Firearms Registration and Transfer Record, and that wera made in
violation of the provisions of Chapter 53 of Title 26, United States
Code; all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371
and Title 26, United States Code, Section 5861,

Patrick W. Wease
Special Agent, FRI

Subscrived and sworn bafore me
this day of April, 1995,

United States Magistrate Judge

-

Brought to you by Inter-Law's{tm) 'lectric Law Likrary{tm)
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e-mail questionsfcomments/suggestions te: statf@inter-law.com
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The author contends that the World Trade Center and Oklahoma City bombings were
orchestrated by an evil element in our society, including high-ranking persons in the U.S.A
government, to hasten the passage of the anti-terrorism legislation which would further erode our

Constitutional rights and civil liberties.

Note: The FBI knew in advance that the World Trade Center bui]ding would be bombed and
failed to act to prevent this bombing,

Note: Terrorist leader Ahmed Yousef was trained by America’s own CIA.
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Anti-terrorisr i]ea 0¥

on fast track

By Leslie Phillips
and ree Michael Katz
USA TODAY

President Clinton, seeking to
expand the government's pow-
er against terrorism in the
wake of the Oklahoma bomb-
ing, says he won't ignore indi-
vidual rights,

“I don't think we have to
give up our lberties,” Clinton
said Sunday on CBS's 60 Min-
utes. “We do have to take more
seriously threats to our liber-
Hes.”

Qlinton 23 put all federal
buildings on a heightened secu-
rity alert untii a study of their
vulnerability is completed.

He ur_ed formation of a
counterterroris  unit headed

by the FBL And he ordered
preparation of a presidential
directive suthorizing further
steps to comua. te  oris .

Se~rte Judiciary Lo .unittee
Chairman Orrin Hatch, R-
Utah, says he has drafted pro-
visions calling for expanded
FBI authority to track interna-
tional and domestic terrorists,

And House Judiciarv Comm-
mittee Chairman Hen., “yde,
R-TIl., s2ys he’s ready to write
legislaion thct includes the
presilent’s proposals,

For two months, an anti-ter-
rorism bill proposed by Clinton
idled in Congress.

Last Wednesday’s bombing
suddenly changed that.

The proposal, to be rewrif-
ten combining several bills in-

moduced by House and Senate
leaders, is on a fast track to-
ward bi i passage.

Clintoa’s bill, originally
aimed at international terror-
ism, will include domestc ter-
rorism. The bill:

» Establishes a Domestic
Counterterrorismm Center,
headed by the FBI, and creates
a special fund for infiitrating
suspected terrorist groups.

» Gives the FBI increased
authority to search phone logs
and notel and motei registers,
and greater access to credit-
card records.

» Creates a federal crimme of
“international ferrorism com-
mitted within the United
States,” punishable by death if”
someone dies as a result &f a
terrorist’s act.

» Expands federal wiretap-
ping and surveillance powers.

» Forbids tfund-rai g by or-
ganizations the president desig-
nates as terrorist.

» Permits evidence from se-
cret sources o be used in de-
poriation prodeedings.

» Allows the Justice Depart-
ment to investigate crimes
based on the political beliefs
an. as-ociations of suspects.

Arab-Americans say the pro-
posals ignite ant-Arab scnt-
ment. Civil libertarians say

they trample constitutional

rights. Their leaders
their objections today with Jus-
tice Department offici- .

“1 can understand their co..-
cerns, but theyre not valid,”

Clinton’s national security ad-
viser, Tony Lake, says. “It's
almed at organizations that are
supporting terrorism, and we
are unapolegetic about oppos-
ing those orgapizations.”

House Speaker Newt Ging-
rich, R-Ga., says Congress
should make it easier to charge
people who are aware of ter-
rorist plots, even if they're not
directly involved in them.

“I thick what a free society
has to do,” Gingrich says, “is
draw a very sharp distinction
between free speech and crim-
inal activity.”

Gingrich was ange - Safa~
day, after a visit to the Oklaiio-
ma bombing site, when a re-
porter asked if GOP criticism
of government bureaucrats

had encouraged the attackon a
government building.

“Tt is grotesque to suggest
that anybody in this country
who raises legitimate questions

about the size and scope of the
federal govermment has any
implicatior in this,” he said.

» Bomb index, 3~
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- FBI

Linked
To World Trade
- Center Bombing!

4

By Louis Beam
Jubilee Correspondent
The Jubilee Newspzper BBS
P. 0. Box 310
Midpines, California 95345

Cover design by “The Gleaners”
Dated: May 13, 1993
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Re-lyped by " The Olcancn”
FBI Linked to World

Trade Center Bombing
by Louis Beam
Jubilee Correspondent

Tapes made secretly by an FBI
informant of conversations betweer him and
his agency handlers have linked the nation's
largest law enforcement agency to the “the
maost  destructive  terrornst act  in ULS.
history.” [Pricr to the Oldahome City
Bombing]

Emud All Salem, an FBI informant,
used hidden microphones given him by
Federal Buresu of Ipvestigation agests to
record his conversations with agents of the
bureau. A Los Angeles Times article (10
28-93) revealed to shocked readers detuils of
FBI involvement in the terronst act.  FBI
spokesmen in Washington refuse commaent,

The tapes became public knowledge
when they were ordered released by a
federel judge presiding over the case of the
indicted suspects. The Justice Department
fought hard to prevent their release. The
rerrorist bombing of the World Trade Center

ieft six dead and over a thousand people’

injured.

' The tapes  which have heen
published by the New York Times reveal
that Salem warned his FBI bosses that the
World Trade Center was soon (o be bombed
and urged them to prevent it. Speculstion is
now rampant in political circles that certain
factions within the government may have
desired the bombing in order to speed
patsage of new "antd-cnime legislation.”
Trus suspicion was further fueled by the
startling revelstion that the FB! denied
Sslem’s request to use phony explosives in
the bomb he was helping to huild under the
FBi supervision of the homb ultimatcly
used in the World Trade Center explosion,

Formet Watergate ASEOCTHIE
prosacutor Richard Ben-Veniste warned that

these tapes pose "an ubsolute night-mare for
the federal proses utors”

One high-ranking law enforcement
officer who insisted on sccrecy said that in
less than a yews timne thc FBI has been
Unked to criminil abuse of power and the
mishandling of <aws in three different
instances. "First we had Weaver, where an
HRT member shot a mother with a baby in
her arms, then Waco, where mishandiing {or
intentional cfforts] lead to the deaths of a
hundred people, and now the World Trade
Cerier, where it appears the bombing could
not have happened unless the agency let it."

All this comes on the heels of an
internal  affuirs report by the Justice
Department’'s  Office  of Professional
Responsibility, linking FBI agens w
cverything from drug sbuse to shoplifting,

OPR’'s annual report  provided
further startling proof that the agency
formally most respacted for its law

enforcement skills has gone bad.

The report compiled by Michacl
Shaheen, the only person ever o hold the
position of counscl to the Office of
Professional Responsibility, cites drug use,
bribery, brutality, and other crimes as
“representative  examples of misconduct
investigated by the oftice.”

Shaheen dutifully noted thet his
office also monitoved scveral hundred
misconduct cases being handled by the
[nternal Investigative unit of the FBL

The FBi is facing wide spresd
criticism that the bureau has become a
police state agency enforcing political
programs consickered unpopular by the
Amecrican people.

From: The Jubiles Newspaper BBS
{209) 742.-NBBS

P. 0. Box 310

Midpines, Califormia 25345
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Tapes Depict Proposal to Thwart |
Bomb Used in Trade Center Blast

‘i
By RALPH BLUMENTHAL ‘ .

Spevinbie The How York Times

NEZW YORK, Oct. 27 — Law-enforee ’
e ollicials were 1old that T@rrorists . m
Sere bullding & bomb LHEL was eveniu- ‘ ap s D ep]_( t I ropoq al w

L

Iy wsnd 1o bigw up The ¥aorld trede

zeretly subsututin harmless pewder | ‘ h t F
ar B Tosives, an informeg said O V\l ar ata Om

c_explosives, an IMOMmet o=

fter the blast
The informer was o have helped the :
|Jiers DA ¥ up RE] Contirued From Page Al. Mr. Salem's evicenl anguish at net

quz_umu AT wis called off | b(le'mgvabrle to Lhwartmlhe tr'adeh center
v an F.B.L supervisor Who had ot o7 | we didn'L do that " blast is 2 recurrent theme in the tran-
; ; T Emad A o seripts. in one of the first numbered
jrcf*vab":‘ "}‘;Wtjhe"?'grfﬁ’- Ak The Lranscript guotes Mr. Salerm a5 laplei Mr Salem is quoled as ielling
walem, saou c usge " = : —nla 1 L -

o wid e ured e INTOrMEr | saving WNAT DE wanied 10 Complain 10 agen Floyd: "'Since the bomb wenl oft
e . . . ) FH.J. heaoguarters Ul ZsTingion| 1 feel terrible. [ feel bad. | feel here is
i .n.e socount, which Is given I the W ool (he Dureau § TaNure 10 5060 e people who don't listen.” :
'w ——mbing, bul was dissuaded By zn] Ms. Floyd scems 10 commiserate,
cgordings Mr_safem secrel W G saying, “hey, ] mean il wasn' like you
‘i \alks with law-enforeement auenls 1z said | don'T qunk hal TFe New| Cloatiry and 1 didn't uy”

Mﬂ_@ﬁﬂ“ﬁ—‘“—"«‘—f—ﬁ‘ Vork people would like the L1ings out of in an apparent reference to M. Sa:
lern’s complaints about (e supervisor,

sotler positign than revigusly %nown| (e New York office 1o g0 10 “Washing- :
bfﬂl; 1he Eeb. 35 bormoing New YOrk : & 8 agent Floyd adds, Yoy can't force
Tiy's taliesi lowers, The exploslan teft

; cad, more L

Jx penpit 000 in-

Efmci D.E}.,;I_Mr. Sa_lem said Mr. Anticev people (o do the right thing.”
] h had 10 . The invesligalor involved in the case
ured an amages_wggs.giﬂﬂlu

sihion doblars. .

Another apent, idenlified as Nancy| who would not be guoted by name said
Fioyd, does not dispute Mr. Salem’s| that Mr. Salern may have been led
account, but rather, appears to agree] behave by the agents that they wer?
with it, saying of the New York people: b]amgiess for any mistakes. [l was

j

Teyplanarmyc yall of course not, pecause tney dority Crasdid aponis saeli, ne s

Tgrerament Lo snelrale d citgle ot wanl 1o get their buits chewed.” “hlame the boss for all that's bifand

Fushm cxtlromists now charpey in (w3 Mary Jo White, *ho, as the .United| take credit for all the good things.”
Cazes: the world Trade Con-| States Atorney for the Southern Dis- vyou Saw This Bomb®

trict of New York is proseculing €e- L

fendants in twa related bombhing cases, in ;a,:;._other point in the transci

declined today to comment o the Sa Mo Salem recounts & conversation i,

lern allegations or amy other aspect of| Fabehac witn Mr. Anticey, SAYINE, 1
said, 'Guys, now you saw this.. ok,

(he cases. An jnvestigatar close to Lhe) S&b=e
case who refused to be identified fur- wenl off ‘and you belh know ihat W, w
“CRald. avoid. that”" At another, paint '

~ombin
r atack and a Tored plol 5 aestroy
e nited. ations, \ne Fudson RIveT

T ang otncr New Fork City end-
BT SR He s, the cricial wilness im ihe
ccond bombing case, but his work fur
ne Government wis erratic, and for
-anths belore the (rade center blasy,

ce was leuging witn the F.B.L

. h d e 3 h T hd . L -
Lther said, 2 wish he wouid have N7 Salem says,  You g,etpaid.,guysr.}:-_

“saved orid,’” but Ned Mr. - : E By
saved the wOT G, called Mr. 52 “prexent problems like this from hap:

lem's ¢laims ligments of his imagina-
tion.”

The transcripis, which are stamped
edraft” and compiled from 70 tapes

. ; ng.
y ‘N dnup .
Supervisor ) esse P Mr. Salem talks of the plan to subsli-
Altcr the bombing, Re resumed his {ute har miess powder for explosives ir
undercaver wWork. In an undated tran- recorded secretly during the last 1we the trade cenier pombing during an-

script of o conyersalion rom that peri- . years by Mr. Salem, were turned over| other conversation with agent Floyd. Inn ‘;: -&
54, Mr, Sajem recoumis Tiin 0o had || lo defense lawyersin the second bomb-; that conversation, he recalis a previous

aod carlier with an Age ing case by Lhe Government on TUESs discussian with Mr. Anticev.
:r.r.amequ,_ml day under a judge’s order barring law-} Do you deny,” Mr. Salem says he

yers from disserninating ‘hem. A lzrge| told the other agant, "'your supervisor ! i

.

daid, UGam : : 3 ) ¢ !
ﬁucsled 1o meet me in the portion of L.he_:taterxalw_as made aval!-i is the main reason of bombing the
hotel~r Mir. Suiem says of the supervi- able Lo The ?\E'&;York Times. i world Trade Center?” Mr. Salem said
’ . In a letter (o Federal Judge Michaell Mr. Anticav did not deny it “We was

sor. He requcle? to make me 0l] g vigkasey, Andrew C. McCarthy, 2n’ handling the case perfectly well unt!
ms:.jfy and if hc d{dﬂl Pufh for thal.|l aesistant United States atorney, said the supervisor came and messed it up,
wa'll be going building the nomb with 8| (hat he had learnad of the tapes while| upside down.” '

prony powder and grabbing the people || debriefing Mr. Salem and that the in- . .
D o was mvolved it Bu since you. || former oad then voluntardly turmed S‘“d’edfof Slgns of 1ilegality
_— them over. Other Salem Lapes and| TThe transcripls are being ¢losely

Comtinued on Page Al ~olurmn 5 Lranscripts were being withheld pend- ciudied by lawyers Jooking for signs
ing Governmeni Teview, of “security| hat Mr. Salem and the Jaw enforce-
=== . giher issues,” Mr. McCarthy said. me_gt officials, Ln their zealdlo gather
evidence, may have crosse the lega!
Kunstler Accuses U.S. line into entrapment, a charge Lﬁat
delense counsel have already raised.
gut 1he lranscripts show that the
officials were cancerned that by assect
oeer all the maierial. The ating with bombing defendants awail- -
Tranicri Sdsecn he sanl we ing trial in the Metropalitan Carrec-
Mﬂmrlscﬂ(}__?@gmﬂ;ms_ Lignal Center, Mr. Salem might have
“onduct. But ciing the Judge’s order. been accused of spying on the defense

he could not provide any de-l / .i
£
i

g

william M. Kunstier, 2 delense law-
\er in (he case, accused e Lavern-
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- US ‘was
. warned’
. about

| Oklahoma
bombing
in Washlin ton 2

L

:
g

of
the Gklahoma federa) ild-
ing tn 1985, the most deg'dly
act of terrorism in’US
history.". MR
' Next Tuesday ‘the McCur.
tain Daily Gazefte is sched-
uled to publish Row an infor-
mant for the Us Bureau of
Alcohol, Tobaceo and, Fire-
arms was paid $120 % wegk to
monitor a neo-Nari com-
pound in castern Oklahoma,
called Elohim Clty. 7 - :
The -informant, Carol
Howe, wrote moenthly
reports for her ATF case off-
cer in Tulsa, warning that the
group was rianling to blow
up A federal building, with g
probable target dste of April
18, 1995, She told the ATF
that the terrorist cell, some.
times known as the Aryan
Republican Arziy, had nar.
‘rowed down the list of tar.
gets Lo three buildings: oneip
Okiahoma City and two in
| Tulsa, . '
{ The ATF has confirmed
that Howe was g source.
[ After repeating for two yearsg
!that allegations of prior
|

knowledge were a crary
“cunspimy theory"”, the US
| duthorities now -admit that
| they received warning, byt
lazist the information was
, too vague to prompt action.

Sum SR TELE L A O

| Ms Howe said that the
' prime instigator of thé cop-
| spiracy was ‘Andrems Strass.
| meir, a former German army
olficer from a prominent
pelitical family 'ia Berlin.
Strassmeir told The Sunday
Tetegraph {ast year that he
moved {o the United States in
i58% to work ws an under:
cover agent for the US Jus.
tice Department, but says
that the job feil through,
Instesd, he went to Ilvc‘;t
Elohim City, where he togk
tharge of paramilitary
training, & oo N

- Two' days after 'the‘ bomb-
ing, whick killed 165 people,

———

Ms Howe was taken to an -

underground command cen.
tre in’ downtown Oklahoma
City for an extensive debrief-
ing. In her official statement
to Investlgators, she identi.
fied sketches of suspects

“John Doe I and “Johs Dog

I 43 two members of Elo-
kim City's terrorist under.
grourd, both housemates of
Andress Strassmeir. Accorg-
ing to the Gazette,” one of
Lthem was called Michae| Bre-
scia, a member of the Aryan
Bepublican - | , Army
Underground ST
- Other witnesses also rajsed
¢oncerns about Brescia
within days of the bombing,
bat there was no follow-up.
The FEI did not question
Brescia until his' name
started surfacing io the press
last year. Two weeks ago the
FBiarrested him in Phiiadel-
Phia — for bank ropberies
carried out by ‘the TYano
Y, not for bembing. *

- Glenn and Cathy ‘Wilburn,
au Gkiahoma couple who [ogt
two grandck!ldren in the
blast, have mamed Brescia
and Strassmeis g5 co-conspir-.
rtors in gz civil -lawsnit
1gainst the chief suspect,
TimMcVeigh. .

Carol Howe has revealed
that MeVelgh used to vigit
Etohim City, uszing the alfas
of Tim Tuttle. He would
quent the hoﬁﬁg{&

elr; &7 -
RErY influcnice over Lm,

ro OWE represents
the last piece in the Jigsaw,"”
sald John Cash, author of the
| Garette series,

—_——

—_—
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INTERNATIONAL NEW

US turns on its
star witness
In bomb case

T#E US goverament has
rought criminal charges
=Eainst 8 key wiiness who
zave advance warning of a
sombing conspiracy in Okla-
~oma e what looks like a Fla-
~ranl atiempl (o cover i
wn tracks, Ambrose Evans-
Triisha-d writes.

Carol Howe, & former
“udiza besuly queen, has been
adicted for allegedly con-
Dirmg le ke &n unreleted
womb threat snd possession
I & “destruclive device™. It
- a remarkably thin case
cemming from an inflamma.
3ry abti-fovernment mes-
age thant her boyfriend
zvorded on an answerlng
.achine,

The indictment Tollowed
sterviews she gave e mn
slahoma newspaper, the
“cCurigin Daily Gazette.
ne revealed she had been
=crulled by the Bureau of
icehel, Tobaceo, and Fires
~ms {ATF) as an undercover
sferment, al 3124 & week, to
>y ot the activities of & neo-
ari group at Elahtm City in
slahonn,

Frum June 1894 untcil
aich 1935 she fited over 30
poris on her activitles
=T ATF case officer In
<isn, Angels Finiey.

AL Elehim City she learned
-2t a group calied the Aryan
*pubilcan Army was dis-
-ssing s terrorist attack on
itldings in Oklahoma.
~eording to lowe, the

ime instigators ineluded s
~mer erman army offloer

med Andreas Strassmeir,

Strassmelr, Lhe son of a

aminent politician In Ber-

- i3 widely suspected of

ng an undercover agent

*3eries of interviews with

- Sundey Telegraph lsst

ycar he admiited Lhat he
engaged in undercoves intel-
ligence work ir the German
mllitary. He ssid that he had
first come to the Uniied
Stazes in 1983 with the inten-
Lion of working for ihe US
Fustice Deparimens.

According tc Howe, the
Eroup targeied three huitd.
ings, tncluding the Murrah
building. She ssid tha! Lhey
“cased” the Oklxhoms buiid.
ing three tires, In November
and December 1994, and Feb-
“usry 1885, once in her pres-
ence. Il was blown ®p on
Aprit 19, 1955,

Whether ar not she filed
ATF reports detziling spes
cific thrests is now a subject
of great contentjon. The doc-
uments were turned over Lo
the defence team of Tim
McVelgh, whose triel for his
role in the beirbing upens
next week, after thelr exis.

“sence was revealed in the

press,

The critical material dates
fram Detember 1994 when
Carol Howe moved into Elo-
him City for flve weeks and
collected sensitive intelli-
gerce. The December docu-
renis have vanished,

However, a debriefing
reporl filed twn days afier
the bombing quotes Howe
reminding her ATF huadlers
that she had 1otd them of the
Eroup’s Interest in the Mur-
rah building. She aleo identi-
fied an ariist's sketch of sus-
pect Johr Doe II as
Strassmeir's housemate, Mi-
thael Brescia.

The FBI, which has ros.
ducted more than 22,600 wit-
ness interviews, did not ques-
tion =ither Sirassmeir or
Brescin after the bombing.
Fifteen months laler, when

Stragsmeir's name sarfaced
in the press, the FBI tele
phoned him in Berlin, but
only to reassure him that he
was not @ suspect,

The Juitice Bepartment is
novw claiming that Cargl
Howe was unreliable and
hed is 35e droppsd as zn
informznt. But the docu-

ud-mnw,mbmaud-mﬂ,ddmsmpmdmhmbwmrnp

menis show thai she was
given 17 polygraph Lests to
check whether she was tell-
ing the truth: che passed
EYETY ONe,

Immediately after the
bombing the ATF, then ip a
pants, recalied her at g muen
higher pay of $404 2 day and
senl her back imww Elchim

City to find out what hag
happened to Strassmeir, Bre-
scin =8¢ gther members pof
the Aryen Republic Army.

Curol Howe is likely to be
the sinr withess ip the Lrial of
Tim MceVeigh, which starts
on Marck 21, Is that why the
Justice Lepariment declded
o Indict ker?

b7 SR
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Jury Acquits Former Informant
Howe Found Not Guilty of Conspiracy, Bomb Charges

By Diana Baldwin
Staff Writer

TULSA — A federal district court
jury Friday found former government
informant Carol Howe not guilty of
conspiraey, making a bomb threat and
having the components for making a
pipe bomb.

The jury came back after nearly six
hours of detiberations in the case that
took five days to trv.

“I am thrilled justice has finally been
served,” Howe said.

Howe, 26, said she plans to go back to
college where she hopes to pursue a
degree in law.

Her attorney. Clark Brewster, said.
“We are ecstatic. We knew the truth
and we were hopefii we could get that
verdict out in the courtroom.”

Assistant U.S. Atrorney Neal Kirk-
patrick said, “QObviously we are disap-
peinted. We felt we had a good case
and the jury didn't.”

The jury was faced with deciding
whether Howe was working as a gov-
ernment informant among white su-
premacist moverment members in
Oklahoma, or, if Howe was involved in
racial activity with her fermer fiance
James Viethaus Jr.

Viefhaus was convicted last week.
Like Howe, he was charged with ccon-
spiracy, willfully making a bomb
threat and pessession of materials tc
make a pipe bomb.

The government called Howe the
“poster gir!” for conspiracy theorists
who belleve the government had prior
knowledge of the April 19, 1995, bomb-
ing of the Alfred P. Murrah Federa!
Building. The truck bomb resulted in
the deaths of at least 168 people.

Rep. Charles Key, R-Oklahoma Citv,
who said he believes more people were

involved in the Murrah bombing, was
in the courtroomn Friday.

Kev and the late Glenn Wilburn, who
lost two grandsons in the bombing, are
responsible for calling the Oklahoma
County grand jury to investigate the
bombing.

The government found itself on trial
several times this week. particulariy
during the defense's closing argu-
ments.

Brewster accused prosecutors Kirk-
patrick and Keith
Leizon of present-
ing- evidence that
Howe had coHected
while acting as an
informani Her tar-
get was ¢ klahomsz
White Ar- an Resis-
tance leader Dennis
Mahon.

“(zoodness, heow
can they iook you
in the face and ask
you to convict this woman?” Brewster
said.

“That is not the government ! want
to be part of. and [ am pre-government.

“Carol Howe had no intenticn of hav-
ing a bomb in her house ana this man
knows ir." Brewsier said refsrring o
Kirkpatrizk. *I am outragec. ! am <©
fended.”

Kirkpatrick said, "The gorernment
is not on trial. We did not ma afacture
this case against the defendart. To sug-
sest these charges are reraliatory 1S
absurd.”

The prosecutor warnerd the jurors
Howe's case has nothing - 1o with the
Okiahoma Cirv bombing.

“Don't add tc that trage
rick said.

The defense said Howe warned the

Carol Howe

<. Kirkpat

government that residents at Elohim
City, a white supremacist community
in eastern Oklahoma, intended to
bomb federal bulldings.

Howe testified she went to Oklahema
City with the Elohim City residents to
look at possible bombing sites. She
made the trip again, with Bureau of
Aleghol Tobacco and Firearms agent
Angela Graham, to point out where the
group had gone.

ATF reports show they went to the
Greater Cannon Baptist Church, the
Jesus is Lord Garage and Saivage and
the 01d West Lumbermill in Mustang.

Throughout the trial, there was de-
hate over when Howe was an active
agent working for ATF. Recards show:
Howe was on the ATY list from -the
summer of 192 unul March 1995, She
was reactivated after the Oklahoma
City bombing, because FBI agents
wanted her to go to Elohim City to
gather information.

Howe testified she was not aware
that she ha¢ been removed as an infor-
mant. The defendant testified she dug’
deeper into the movement to hide the
fact she was an informant after the
FBI released ner name to attorneys for
convicted Oklahoma City bamber Tim-
othy McVeigh. '

She compiained neither the ATF or
“BI would provide her safety once her
identity was made public.

Howe tolf the jurors Friday that a
bad experience with people led to her
call Mahon's Dial-A-Racist hot line and
began her invelvement with the white
supremacist movement.

Howe sald -=e found Mahon's organi-
gation extreme right-w rg and violent.
“it senred me. (Mahon) was a violent
sort w person. That was something |
didn't want to do.”

¢9



The following information is from a Gunderson associate:

In January, 1997, Cary Gagan filed a civil action in Denver Federal District Court under Case
No. 97 § 308,

Cary Gagan had been working as a courier to transport drugs from the Iranian Embassy in
Mexico into the United States, and entered into an agreement with the FBI in September, 1994, to
gather information from within the drug operation. He accepted the risk and was granted a letter of
immunity in return, and also relied on 18 USC 1512, which provides a deterrent (prosecution) to
those who would harm informants.

Eventuatly, Cary Gagan acquired what he thought was the kind of information he had been
hired to get. He had been asked, by the drug operation bosses, to drive a truck - with a detonator -
from Mexico to the now abandoned Stapleton airport in Penver. A mar, @vith iy the drug operation
told him that a federal building was going to be blown up. Gagan’s civil suit asserts that he gave this
information to the FBL, in Denver, in September, 1994 [The bombing of the OKC building occurred
in April, 1995]. Gagan asserts that the “Arab looking guy”, referred to by McVeigh’s defense team
during pre tnal proceedings, in October 1996, and seen by witnesses at the bombing scene,
(specifically the female victin whose leg was amputated), was in fact, an Arab from the drug
operation crew.

Gagan also asserts that the FBI deliberately chose to allow the bombing to occur. For what
reason? Four, suggests Gagan. (1) To assure the passage of the Anti-terrorist bill (which passed ge
in April, 1996), (2) to provide a way for the CIA to attain jurisdiction within America’s domestic "(V} o
borders, (3) to demonize the “patriot” or “constitutionalist” movement in America and (4) 1o destroy” v¢°

Gulf War records exposing the U.S. government’s experimentation on American G.1."# s last w”f‘ra‘i_

suggestion is not particularly far fetched - in light of 50 USC 1520, a statute providing for a certain g{":w;

procedure when testing biological agents on members of the armed services or civilians. o
W

(Gagan’s assertion that the FBI knew of the bomb plot before it happened has been confirmed P qui“?‘
during pre trial proceedings. In October, 1996, at a motions hearing, (to compel evidence from the
U.S.) Mr. Jones referred to the fact that a member of the OKC fire department states that he was
called about a week before the bombing and told to be in a state of extra “readiness” because there
was a bomb threat to the federal building.

In his lawsuit, filed this January, Gagan asserts that he told the FBI, back in September, 1994,
that he had information on a plot to blow up a federal building, but that the FBI ignored the
information. Indeed, the Rocky Mountain News printed a story on August 11, 1995, on page 49A,
quoting Mr. Jones, of McVeigh’s defense team, as saying they were approached by a former FBI
informant, and told of the very facts Gagan provided to the FBI, specifically, that a mid west federal
building was going to be bombed is April 95, the conspirators were Arabs, Latin Americans and

67 1z



Americans and that he was recruited to carry a detonator in a truck by these people. While the
newspaper story confirms that the Department of Justice knew of the informant’s assertions - they
excused ignoring the information, saying it had not been credible at the time. Even though the U.S.
Attorneys have verified some of this information during pre trial proceedings, the FBI still asserts that
it is not credible information. In fact, they revoked Gagan’s immunity in February 1996 - leaving
Gagan abandoned by the FBI and vulnerable to death threats from the drug operation crews.

On October 3, 1996, at a Motions hearing, McVeigh’s attorney accused the American
government of “covering up” facts related to the bombing - in a nutshell - that the bombing is related
to a foreign group who are involved in drug running. Mr. Jones said, “We know that on June 11,
1995 there was a letter from a senior military official of an allied power, revealing information about
specific involvement of a third foreign suspect.” The government attorneys admitted, at that same
hearing, “We gave the defendants (Mr. Jones defense team) all 302 reports which disclosed
information we have including a report about someone identified as an Arabic caller who took
responsibility for the bombing. . . including a Colombian drug dealer and an Iraqi operating out of the
Phillippines”.

Why would the FBT have ignored Gagan’s information?

The FBI answers that question by saying that Gagan is/was a fruitcake. They went so far as
to assert that the signature on the Letter of Immunity Agreement wasn’t actually an authentic
signature of U S. Attorney James Allison. However, they quickly blew THAT argument, by issuing
the revocation, and asserting that the signature on THAT letter was authentic. Why would they need
a letter of revocation, if the first letter was fabricated?

Gagan answers the foregoing question by saying the FBI is “covering up” the fact that highly
placed government individuals are linked to the drug operation which he worked for, and which is
linked to the OKC bombing, To wit: that George Bush, and his son Neil, along with other extremely
high profile people, (who's initials are WJC and rhymes with Klinton) are involved in the drug
operation, which is supervised by a “Jack DeVoe”.

Gagan asserts that Roger Moore’s gun shop (in Arkansas) was NOT robbed for the money
needed to finance the bombing, {by McVeigh and Nichols} as asserted by the FBI - but that Roger
Moore, was “in” on the plot. What is also noteworthy, is that Gagan says, m his lawsuit, that Roger
Moore, the gun shop owner, is an FBI informant and involved as the paymaster of the drug operation,
and his alias name is “Bob Anderson”. When the U.S. Aftorney was making his opening statements
on April 24, 1997, he reterred to the gun shop owner as “Bob”. Was this a sincerely inadvertent
reference to Roger Moore, exposing the fact that Jones KNOWS that Roger Moore is an FBI
informant? (This can be confirmed on the ‘Net as Rocky Mountain News published the entire
transcript of those proceedings at: http://www.denver-news.com}.

Gagan asserts that the independent news writer, Lawrence Myers, who wrote for Media
ByPass, was working for the FBI, and was recruited by the FBI to deliberately expose Gagan to the
drug lords, so that Gagan would be “hit” by the drug lords, and thereby eliminated as a nuisance to
the FBI because of having too much information.
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Gagan asserts that investigator J.D. Cash, hired by Timothy McVeigh defense attorney Kenneth
Jones was planted by the FBI, under direct orders from George Bush, to misdirect the McVeigh

investigation.

Gagan affirms because he has attempted to expose the link between the bombing and George
Bush, he was attacked and left for dead in August, 1993,

T
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g — ~ |
| _— U{u‘:qd States Attomey
" @ Dismicr of Coloredy

Bron G Repoe Fularol Building [ U INRY,
Towiph Flose. Drewer 13
- M S Srem FAX 8iis?
Oovww, Coiarads 802

Septamber 14, 1994

CAYY JRR4S Guymn

Ra: Letter of Immunity

Deazr Mr. Gagan:

THis lettar i eo vamorializa the agresmant ketween you and
the Unitad gratas of America, by the undersigned Assistant United
Statas Attornay. Tha Carms of thio agreemant are a5 follows; '

1. =~ You have cantacted the U, 3, Marshals Sarvice on today's
date indicating that you have informatien concerning a conspiracy
and/or attampt to destroy United States court facilities ipn
Banver and paasibly other cities, .

2., The United Statss A4gT8&s thAT any statenent and/er
infornation that you providae Televant to thig canspiragy/
cons .L:.'Ecxl.- or attemptas will not ke uged again-’c you in any
eriminal proceeding. Further, tha United § Atas agrees that ne
avidance derived frem the information or statemants Pravided by
you vill ba used in any way against you.

3.. In return for thia yrant of usa/derivative usas
immunity, yeu agres to fully and completaly cooparate wier all
fﬂdarll‘iaw enforcement authoritias in tha District of eolorsds
regarding your knowladge of and participation {n any crimes
and/or fslared activities. All statemants and any tastisony you

. give pursuant to thig Sgresnent will be protacted by
use/darivative yuss immunity as stated in paragraph 2 above.

4.. If you make or give any falus stataments or Cestironv
2% any tlze, tade agresieil buocodes null ane veia. Tne aacision
as to whethar « viulatlon of thig AJTEETANT Nas Occurred ramains
salaly ln the discrstionary Juagment of tne Orrice of the United
States Attorney for tha Oistrict ovf Colorade.

- », IS this agrsemant is violated, any statement made or
testinony given by you during the coursa of thig investigation
and agreement will ne longer be protmcted by any kind of immunity
and you may ba presacutad for any crime arf which tha United
States Has kmawledga, including.kn:wledqe cbtainad by your own
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FROM ¢ UWWN PHONE NC, : 229 2@ geop Fiq

stataments and/or testimany. Adc.iticnally, the infaormation you
pProvide may alsc be used to impeach your testimony during and
future court proceedings relatas to this investigation, shoula

there be any.

It’yau igTes to accept the tayrnx of thix agraamant as gat
forth in thas adeve paragrapha, ynu should aeknowledge your
ACCaptance by signing below. By signing this aqreemant you ary
not only accapting this agrwszens but ats alss stating that ysu
have efully read and fully understood thia sgreamant and
voluntafily accept all of its tarms and provisions. By siguing
this € You further 2gies "hat no additional promisez ar
conditions Rave been entecsd into by sither party and only tha
spacifip terns of this document are tha subject of this
agrashant, .

8ircaraly,

HENRY L. SQLAND
United Statas Atterney

BY: JAMES R. ALLISON
Assistant United Statas Attarnay
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Daaxr Mz, Gagant

‘On|Saptenbar 14, 1994 you wars granted "letter immunity" by =
this offics. In Paragraph 3 of that lattesr you agreed to Sfplly
and letely ccoparata with all federal law snforcament _
authoritiss in the District of Colorade regarding your knowledge
of and perticipation in any corimes and/or related activities.®
In Pasyvaph 4 you were advised that *[i]# you make or give sny
fslse sbatements . . . this agrsement becomes null and void.®

Bincs this grant of immunity yeu havo had contacts with
gpecial Agents of the ¥BI, DEA, Deputy Unlted $tatca Marshallp,
Special Mgents ef the ATP?, and an--h{guturu repragenting the
eslorade Pursau of Invn-hiqahien. 2 have ast with tha aganbs
with whéa you have had gentagt, and each has axpressed tha
opinien'that you arc net oredible in the allegations you hava

nmade.

Atteapts by federal law anforcement officers te msaningfully
orcoborate inforwation you have alleged to bo trus have heen
unsuccessful. The lnability to corxoberats the allegotions yeu
have male stems from your refusal or inability to provide
meaningful datails or from your rulumel to cooperate With agents.
You have avoided all srforts of ths FBI to test the cradiblilicy
of your statements by your refusal to taks a polygreph

sxanination.

The conclusion that your Allegations are incredible bas busn
shown by your dealings with multiple law snforcement agencles,
stats, iccal and federal, and is further supportsd by stateasnts
of none-law snforcement pecple whe have had contacts with you and
ara of the copinion that you ars not to be bellavad. .

TREREFORE, THE IMMUNITY GRANTED BY THE LFTTER OF SEPTEMBER
14, 1994 IS HEREBY REVOKED.

-



You 826 advised that any e
wlav‘onzaramnt otuuim

mul.nt tor Ih

"stats or federal

T Jazmas R, Allison
Assistant U.8. Attornay
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Interview With The Grand Juror Who Wouldn't
Shut Up: The Oklahoma City
Bombing Case - Part Two

BY JON RAPPOPORT

Author of Oklahoma City Bombing - The Suppressed Truth

In the atiermath of the Oklahoma City bombing tragedy on Apri! 19, 1995, independent researchers have
begun to lift the lid on very troubling details of the erime. As in the JFK assassination, disturbing evidence
of a different sott of murder scenario from the official version has emerged; and typically it has been
reiegated to the "conspiracy file” by the mainstream press Very serious questions about bombs other than
the ammonium mtrate truck bomb have surfaced. McVeigh himseif in some eyes begins to appear as the
dupe. the patsy left holding the bag Key stories about federal law enforcement agencies having advance
warning of a bombing in Oklahoma City are gaining credibility. Researchers on the scene in Oklahoma
City are talking about the FBI intimidating witnesses and thereby shaping a false version of events. The
Grand Jury itself which has brought indictments against Tim McVeigh and Terry Nichols has come under
fire for ignoring other potential suspects.

Are we being treated to what is basically a gigantic government press release, a foreshortening and
distorting of the case?

On December 14, 1995, 1 interviewed Hoppy Heidelberg, a grand juror in the Oklahoma City case.
Several months earlier Heidelberg had, off the record, engaged in a conversation with Lawrence Mvers of
Media Bypass magazine Subsequently thrown off the Grand J ury by Judge David Russell for allegedly
going public in the subsequent Media Bypass article, Heidelberg is very critical of the governnient's
refusat to pursue murder suspects beyond Tim McVeigh and Terry Nichols. Which suspects? Start
especially with the notorious John Doe 2.

Grand jurors are not permitted to reveal details of legal proceedings on pain of conterapt-of-court citation
and imprisonment. Heidelberg has now risked being accused of this, because he feels his Grand Jury was
steered away from evidence that could implicate the government itselfin the bombing.

Has such a straightforward rebellion by a grand juror ever taken place before in a high profite American
tnal”? After the Media Bipass arnicle appeared. the major media gave the Heidelberg story one or two
days and passed on to more routine matters: car accidents, murders, storms and potential medical
breakihroughs.

Meanwhile Heidelbery has wrestled with his discovery that grand juries arc basically run by the
prosecuting attorneys who herd jurors like sheep in bringing indictments. (Indictment being the end
product of a grand jury, the defendant is then bound aver for trial.)

However, with a little research Heidelberg has also discovered that grand juries are potentially vital
bodies in which jurors are legally permitted to actually bypass prosecutors and question witnesses
directly, find and call witnesses and in general investigate the crime at hand.

Such a citizen-body, if honored -- not sidetracked and intimidated by prosecutors and judges -- would, of
course, add a whole new dimension to the American legal scene In practice though, these grand juries
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course, add a whole new dimension to the American legal scene In practice though, these grand juries
are never allowed to exercise their legaily endowed powers. This was the very personal discovery of
Heidelberg and it has obviously made him more determined to expose what he considers gross
shortcomings in the legal system.

Across the U.S., several million, yes million, people are plugging inio very active underground netwaorks
of news composed of faxes, videos, internet groups, alternative newspapers and magazines and
self-published literature -- all of which present challenging and unofficial scenarios of the federal building
bombing.

Heidelbery has formed his own unofficial perceptions close up to the action in the Okiahoma case and
that is what we discussed in our interview,

How many John Does are there?

There were an least five men ID'ed by witnesses as being on the scene the morning of the bombing,
Actually, more than five.

People who were with McVeigh?
Yes. or in the key vehicles everybody's pointed to as probably invcived in the bomb plot. The vellow
Mercury Marquis. The brown Chevy pickup and the Ryder truck Actually there may have been two

Ryder trucks.

These witnesses who saw the other John Does -- were any of them brought forward to testify in the
Grand Jury?

No.

Were any of the John Poes brought forward?

NO.

None?

None

So all these suspects are left completely alone by law enforcement.

lgnored.

My understanding is you feel that John Doe 2 was not pursued by the prosecution because he
could well turs out to be a government informant or agent. That would tink the government to the

bombing,

Right

Did you think you'd get what you wanted in the Grand Jury? The presentation of evidence you
felt was vital?

06/24/98 16:40:37
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They kept promising and promising to answer all my questions, but ultimately theyv stalled me. | was had
You had some kind of book on jurors' duties with you in the Grand Jury room.

It was a green government-issued handbook. It said a grand juror could cross-examine witnesses directly
But they wouldn't let me do that. They said I'd have to get the prosecuting attorney's okay for each
question [ wanted to ask But you know, in dialeg one.question leads to another right away, so you can'y
cross-examine that way. But | did get to ask some questions of witnesses.

Did you think the government knows who John Doe 2 is?

I began to feel that way, yes. But, of course, all through the trial the prosecution insisted that John Do 2
was the Ft Riley soldier Todd Bunting who served in the Army with McVeigh.

But they also said Bunting wasn't guilty of any crime.

That's right. And he didn't really look like the FBI artist's sketch of John Doe 2 and he wasn't with
MeVeigh when McVeigh rented the Ryder truck. The actual John Doe 2 did rent the Ryder truck with
McVeigh The whole thing was ridiculous.

When did you decide to go public with your dissatisfaction with the Grand Jury?

A couple of weeks after the indictments of McVeigh and Nichols were brought in. 1 couldn't shut up. 1
didn't want other suspects to walk and kill more people.

You eventually hired an attorney, didn't you?
Yes. John De Camp, for First Amendment purposes, to advise me on what 1 could and couldn’t say.

In a letter you wrote to the judge, David Russcll, you said bomb experts and geologists and
engineers should be called as witnesses. Why?

Well, can an ammonium nitrate bomb cause the pattern of destruction that occurred in the federal
building? I looked at that building and the idea of one explosive charge coming from one focation doesn't
fit. Pillars closer to the truck bomb survived the blast and columns further away went down. That's
impossible unless the building was constructed very inconsistently with some pillars and sections put up
quite well and others very poorly. Let's get the answer . .. Let's get the architects and engineers who built
the building in there and question them. '

Did you request that?

Of course! | demanded bomb experts all along. And engineers and geologists. They said -- do vou want
to know what they said? They didn't have the money! I said I'd go down to the University of Oklahoma
and bring some geologists back myself for free. They wouldn't let me.

The bomb is the key to the whole case.
ANFQ (Ammonium nitrate plus fuel oil) is very symmetrical in the damage it does. You look at what

happened to the federal building. That isn't symmetrical. You can judge the power of the explosion from
the crater lefi under the Ryder truck. The crater tells you everything you need to know. The truck bomb



the crater left under the Ryder truck The cra:er tells you everything vou need to know. The truck bomh
explosion wasn't powerful enough 1o take o 25% of the building. That's why they covered up the crater,
filled it in sv quickly, ANFO is great for moving dirt in mining, but it's no good for knocking dows
buildings.

Wa: any of this discussed in the Grand Jury?

No!

It's clear that if the truck bomb couidn't and didn't cause the major damage to the federal
building, then other explosives were used, charges placed on the pillars inside the building. Then
we have a whole new situation — obviously an operation that is highly professional involving other
people. None of this was brought up in the Grand Jury?

No.

Some people think the trial itself will be a forum, an opportunity to bring forward these ignored
witnesses as well as air a great deal of information about the truck bomb fallacy and other bombs
set inside the building. I think Jones, McVeigh's attorney, will try to bring this up one time and
the judge will call him to the bench and say, "Mr. Jones, these other possible shadowy
perpetrators &re not on trial here. Only Mr. McVeigh, your client, is. So I'm ruling out alil this
'wider conspiracy' business. | don't want 1o hear it again.” And Jones will say, "Yessir," and go
sit down and that will be the end of that.

1 think you're right. Yes.

Of course, just 1o get an initial indictment on McVeigh, all they needed --

They didn't need anything! People down in Oklahoma City say, "I know McVeigh and Nichols did it
alone because I've seen the building.” Building blew up therefore McVeigh and Nichols acted alone Y ou
don't need a jury for that kind of non-logic.

Let's talk about Michael Fortier, McVeigh's friend. At first when the FBI questioned him he said
McVeigh would never have blown up the federal building and killed all thase people. He said all
the FBI had on McVeigh was his arrest for a traffic violation and a concealed weapons charge.
Then a couple of months later he's saying that he and McVeigh actually went to Oklahama City
and cased the federal building with an eye to bombing it. Wkat's going on there?

No. You're off base on that.

You mean on Fortier's confession? He's confessed to being a participant in the bombing.

That's not it.
1 don't understand,

Let me put it this way. I | had been Fortier's attorney, he would have walked. He wouldn't have given a
statement and he would have walked.

That's pretty strong.
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There's a lot you need to know about Fortier,

In the Mediu Bypass article, you said he was just a kid and the FBI put a big scare into him.
Tremendous pressure They brought 24-hour-a-day pressure on him for several months at great expense
They were on him at his job in Kingman, Arizona. and because ol that he was fired. They were on fum at
home at his trailer, too.

That much?

Do you see?

Well, I know there was a weapons charge they were threatening Fortier with, and 1 believe they
also said they'd put his wife in jail if he didn't cooperate.

It has to do with the sheer amount of pressure over that period of time.
Wearing him down.

He had no attorney.

What?

He had no attorney.

Are you serious?

For that whole period. And he wasn't under arrest either.

That's --

He was pressured for 24 hours a day and he had no attorney. He's a kid. He's not smart enough to
understand what's going on.

Not smart enough --

To realize the FBI had nothing on him. He had no one to advise him.

The FB1 couldn’t arrest him?

They didn't want to arrest him.

Why not?

Because if they did. they'd have to appoint a lawyer for him. It was months before he was arrested
I'm digesting this. It's very bizarre,

He got conned.
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But eventually he did give them what they wanted. He confessed to being involved in the crime
with McVeigh.

You're missing it.

He confessed to planning the bombing with McVeigh.

You're missing it.

Well, if he hasn't made an outright confession --

Let me ask you something. What's the fastest way to get from Kingman, Arizona, to Southern Kansas”
I have no idea. If Fortier and McVeigh were traveling from Kingmasn te Southern Kansas . . ,
They'd go through Oklahoma City.

Oh. Fortier just told the FBI they had been in Oklahoma City on their way to Kansas? That's sli?
He didn't say they were casing the federal building?

You're warmer.
Well, ali right. If Fortier never told the FBI they cased the building . . .

It's somewhere in between.

In between? You mean, it's between they were just passing through Oklahoma City and they were
casing the building?

You're warmer.

Fortier told the FBI they were in Oklahioma City on the way to Kansas and they went by the
federal building and they looked at it. Something like that,

Something like that.

And there was never a real admission about planning to blow up the building,
You need to read Fortier's confession. Tt was printed in the Daily Oklahoman,

Fortier, the prosection’s big witness, never confessed. Is that what you're saying? Not even close?

Not even close.

But the prosecution didn't need him to gain an indictment against McVeigh. They want Fortier as
A witness in the actual trial. Big time. But if his statement is so far south of being a confession,
then they can't really use him at the trial,

No. they can use him, What he has to say won't make an impression on some jurors, but it could tip the
scales for other more gullible jurors.

=y
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The FBI spent slt this time pressuring the hell out of Fortier --

That's very important because you see, obviously that was the best they could do. They stayed with him
so long because they had nothing better. Fortier's involvement in the bombing was so minimal it was a
waste of time If ] was the FBI man in charge, | would have made one run at Fortier and then forgotien

all about him

So in other words, he never confessed to casing the building with McVeigh. The media has
completely exaggerated it. Fortier and McVeigh were driving through Otlakoma City ou the way
to Kansas and they passed by the federa! buitding. Something like that. And the media stretehed

that,
Something like that.

And the FBI spent so much time pressuring Fortier to link McVeigh 1o the bombing because they
had nothing better.

They had nothing better.
But you feel McVeigh is linked to the bombing.

Yes, 1 do. But the FBI relied on a man, Fortier, who really coulin't provide anything important to them
You need to remember that. That's important. There's more to this.

As 1 say, 1 know you can't be very specific about exactly what happened inside the Grand Jury,
but you seem to be saying that the FBI used very poor sources Lo gain an indictment against

McVeigh,
Yes.
This seems to be part of a pattern.

Damn right.

For example, judging from the arrest warrant on McVeigh issued by the FBI on Aprii 21, they rely
on unnamed witnesses who saw McVeigh at the scene of the bombing. Witunesses who were found
miracutously before McVeigh's arrest on the 2Ist. That's extremely guick work. There's one guy
who saw the police artist's sketch of McVeigh on TV and came forward.,

What guy”?

That's what I'm saying. None of these witnesses' names have been released. I'll read you the piece
from my book. "On April 21st, a man who used to work with McVeigh called the FBI. He had just
seen (he artist’s . . . sketch on TV, He said McVeigh was a right-winger. Had been in thc Army
and had at one point gone to Waco to look at the ruins of the Branch Davidian compound.
McVeigh was very upset about what had happened there, what the federal agents had done. This
man gave the FBI an address, 1711 Steckton Hill Road, Kingman, Arizona."

(Laughs) All this from an artist's sketch before they even arrest McVeigh?
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Must be a psychie,
Yes. A psychic.

That's what I mean. U's prebabie that the FBI is using extremely thin pretexts in accusing
MceVeigh.

Definitely.

But yet McVeigh is involved.

That's right and that's the whole point For example, the various surveillance videotapes of the bombing,
tapes from, say, Southwestern Bell and the Journal Record Building across the street, we don't know that
they showed all the details of the bombing, including the perpetrators. but it's possible. None of this
material was shown to us in the Grand Jury.

None of #1?

Zero.

There is the possibility that seme of that tape showed the federal building collapsing. The shape of
that coliapse could make it clear that the truck bomb was not the real device that caused the
major damage to the building. That instead, interior charges piaced on the columns did the job.
because that's very casy to see. It looks like a demolition. The building collapsing in on itself.
We've all scen that a hundred times on television,

Yes.

So the Grand Jury indicts McVeigh. But the evidence brought forward by the FBI for that
indictment is extremely thin, They do this on purpose. You feel that McVeigh was definitely
involved in the bombing, but the FBI held back. They didn't provide any real evidence to the

Grand Jury.
That's what I'm saying.

You know there was a witness to the building collapsing on April 197

Who.

A man named Peter Schaffer. Not long after the bombing I spoke with a reporter on the Daity
Oklaheman newspaper, Ann Defrange. She said that a man named Peter SchafTer told her he had
seen the building collapse in on itself from the top down, That would be a classic implosion
signifying charges placed inside the building on the columns. When I spoke with Schafler he
denied seeing the building fall down at all. 1 got back to Defrange. She remained very definite
about what Schaffer had told her. She didn't budge at all.

The FBI must have gotten to him. You know, the FBI has been able to get witnesses to shut up about

important things they know. We've talked to some of these people. In certain instances the witnesses
believe that concealing evidence is the right thing to do. They really believe it. The FBI has sold them a
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bill of goods about nationafl security or semething like that. In other cases the FB1 has used straight-out
intimidation on witnesses. They size up people. On one witness they'll use someihing like national
security. On another, they'll go for intimidation.

So what we’ve got here is an attempt by the FBI and the prosecution to indict McVeigh in the
Grand Jury without introducing other cvidence that could be somehow damaging to the

prosccution's case,

Exactly.

The FBI sticks to very thin evidence and ignores the more solid evidence because the solid
evidence contains uncomfortable information that could somehow link the government to the

bombing.
Sure.

The truck bomb couidn’t have caused the major damage to the federal building. That indicates

the presence of other professional participants who pianted charges inside the building, The FBI
and the prosecution and the Grand Jury ignore all this, They don't want to bring this up, so they
simply focus on McVeigh and Nichols and no one else, They concentrate on Fortier, browbeat him,
and stilf they get nothing of substance from him.

That's right.

Before my second conversation with Heidelberg on December 16, 1995, I reviewed material on Michael
Fortier's indictment. Fortier will apparently be the state's star witness against McVeigh He's a very shaky
star.

Reading through the plea-bargained charges finally drawn against Fortier which were formally filed on
August 11, 1995, it's clear that he never told the FBI he and McVeigh "cased the federal building” just
prior to the April 19 bombing. Fortier said that he and McVeigh simply drove through Oklahoma City oa
thetr way to Kansas and passed the federal building The Daily Oktahoman states that McVeigh at this
point "pointed to the . . _ building as the bombing target.” That remains to be seen. At any rate, this car
trip to Kansas actually took place on December 16, 1994, four months before the bombing.

Federal prosecutor Joseph Hartzler, according to the Daily Okiahoman (August 11, 1995) "noted that
Forticr was not charged as a conspirator in the bombing and said the government has no evidence that he

participated in that conspiracy.”

So what was Fortier charged with? Having knowledge of the McVeigh-Nichols bomb plot before and
after the fact. He was also charged with keeping that knowtedge from the FBI He was also charged with
helping to transport stolen firearms {not bombs) across state lines.

Heidelberg had said that in arriving at a ples bargain FBI investigators had put "huge 24-hour-a-day
pressure on Fortier for several months, during which time Fortier had no attorney and no one to advise

him. Fortier could absolutely have walked if he were more experienced," said Heidelberg.

It does appear possible that Fortier's admission of the charges finally filed against him by the governmen
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was not a compromise downward in his favor, but instead the result of pressure exerted upward, so 10
speak, toward more culpability on his part.

If Mr_Jones, McVeigh's attorney, has a real desire to represent his client, Fortier looks like he could
come apart under cross-examination. Why? Because if these charges filed against Fortier are made out of

scare tactics and forced exaguerations by the FBI, that can be dissected on the stand Fortier, the

so-calied star witness, could admit that his "prior knowledge of the bombing plot” was really

nor-cxistent. That, for example, in reality he had only heard conversation from McVeigh abow
"possibilities.” not a definite plot.

If Fortier does come apart under cross-examination, fthat could create 2 psvchological window ol
opportunity for the in-court or even out-of-court mtroducnon of evidence showing a wider conspiracy in

which McVeigh is the patsy, the dupc,

But Mr. Jones does not seem like the lawyer to risk his career on a fully armed defense of his client.
McVeigh As usual. that leaves outmoded objectives, like honesty, questioning authority and digging for
the truth up to private citizens. Welcome to America, 1996

Obviously. Heidelberg was leading me to a conclusion about what kind of evidence the FBI was using in
this case and what kind they were ignoring. He seemed to be saying that the FBI used the thinuest of
pretexts to get an indictment on McVeigh and Nichols while holding back other kinds of evidence which
could implicate the government in the bomb plot. I had some of that nailed down from the first interview.
but I felt there was more to grasp here. Maybe it was just too simple and 1 wasn't seeing it We staried off
the second conversation talking about McVeigh's sister, Jennifer, and | hoped that we would get to a
more stark understanding of what the FBI and the prosecution were really up to with their manipulation
of evidence. Eventually, we did And as siinple as the truth was, it was quite a shock.

The Media Bypass article said the FBI put a lot of pressure on McVeigh's sister. Like Fortier, she
started out strongly defending her brother, and ended up being & witness against him, 1 mean. a
sister testifying against her brother. ..

The FBI sat on both McVeigh's sister and his mother. My impression is the FBI took them somewhere 10

pressure them. McVeigh's sister is a nice person. So FBI pressure was effective. She has a conscience.
You can turn around a person with a conscience.

Did McVeigh's sister say McVeigh told her he had worked for a special operations Army group
that was engaged in criminal activity?

Not exactly. She said something like that.

That her brother told her such a special operations group existed?
Yes. But more than that.

That they had recruited him and he turned them down.

Yes.

He didn’t testify gt the Grand Jury?
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He won't talk. | don't know if he's happy to be a martyr or he's confident he won't get convicted He
doesn't seem to be terribly worried Seeins possible he thinks he was working for the governmient and that
therefore he won't be convicted. That's a speculation.

McVeigh's behavior is so inconsistent. His combat scores as a soldier are in the top S percent. Hce's
said to be obvious officer material. He’s smart. But then they say he purchased 4,800 pounds of
ammonium nitrate and teft his fingerprint on the receipt. A few days before the bombing he
registered at the Dreamland Motel in Kansas under his real name. He drives away from the
federal building on Apri! 19 in a Mercury Marquis with no license plate and gets stopped by a
state trooper outside town and arrested ninety minutes after the bombing,

Yes.
Unless he's a drug addict or drunk.

He does have druggy-type friends but there's no particular evidence that he's an addict. He does have a
lot of druggy friends. though.

One was possibly Steve Celbern who has been in police custody since last May. They reportedly
found & speed lab in back of Colbern's trailer.

Even if all McVeigh did was deliver the Ryder truck and if he didn't think the destruction to the building
would be significant -- if he was conned -- still it's enough to convict him. There was a chance while the
remainder of the building was still standing aRer the bombing that you could prove it was really destroyed
by demolition charges placed on the interior columns . . . but now there's no forensic evidence left. [The
government demolished the rest of the federal building on May 23, 1995.] Now it would be a big job to
sell the multiple bomb theory to the jury. The public aren't bomb experts. If they were, they'd understand
the pattern of damage couldn't fit with one bomb.

HMcVeigh didn't really understand that this was s parallel operation, with secret interjor charges
placed inside the building and planned to go off simultaneously with the truck bomb . . .

If McVeigh didn't know the extent of the damage that was to be done and he's taking all the heat, you's
think they would have killed him by now because he's too dangerous to them, becausc of possible
revelations at the trial.

The they that you mention, would then be some part of the government. Let's get back to John
Doe 2. Here the prosecution manipulates the evidence by completely excluding the whole idea of
John Doe 2 from the Grand Jury, isn't that right?

Yes. And this exclusion was pointed out to them!

You mean, you pointed it out.

[laughs]

Didn’t you ask for a bomb expert?

Eventually. they brought ane in. They didn't count on the fact that anyone on the Grand Jury could spot
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this guyv a~ a CIA type operator. | found out later he was ClA although he had lots of impressive
credentials His testimony was very effective, but the whole thing was bogus. A dog and pony show.
Now this is hypothetical. If you want to convince someone that ANFO fammonium nitrate plus fuel oil} is
powerful, show a film of a truck and blow the hell out of it and then say you used onlv five pounds of
ANF( to do it But how could the grand jurors be sure that it was only five pounds? All the
demonstralions the prosecution used were like that. Obviously to dupe an unsophisticated audience jthe

Grand Jury] But it's easy to see through (his.
How did you fee! when you first got on to the Grand Jury?

Ldidn't go in trving to cause trouble | tried to pet along T wasn' wanting to be kicked ofT'the Grand
Jury 1 wanted to hang in there longer As it turns out | wouldn't have heard moie about Oklahoma Civ,
anyway They were done with that

You've had attention from the mainstream press. You were on Gaod Morning America and The
Taday Show,

Everybody's interviewed me But they want me to turn out tc be a nut. When I don’t come off that way.
they don't print the interview, they don't do the story,

Who doesn’t do the story, for example?

The New York imes. 've had contacts with them. And with Time, Neswsweek, CBS. They don't want 1o
give me any stature. I was supposed to do 20 20, Dateline, a whole bunch of them. But after my
appearance on Goud Morning Anerica and The Today Show, they ignored me. Even my own governor in
Oklahoma [Frank Keating] was calling me a nut for a while. Then that didn't work because people know,
me. So he invited me to his mansion, but | didn't 20.

There are so many uninterviewed people in this story,

It would seem to me that those rescue workers who found unexploded bombs in the federal building

.. there’s got o be somebody who knows that -- it wasn't a hoax. They found two more bombs that
didn't explode in there. Somebody somewhere can verify this. "Yeah, we found those bombs and reported
it and gave them to whoever.*

Unless they have been teld to shut up about it. Unless this is more manipulation of evidence,

Yeah Even with the Grand Jury witnesses, you could see they didn’t remember everything they
remembered. Their memories had deteriorated. (laughs) The ¥BI does this to people. "Your remembering
would be counter-productive to the tnvestigation. It's your patriotic duty to forget." 1 got to hear tape
interviews with secret witnesses occasionally [witnesses already influenced by the FBI). 1t takes a
tremendous amount to get them to tell what they really know because they think that they'll screw up the
government's investigation. But when some real witnesses the media found who had 1D'ed McVeigh at
the bombing scene didn't show up at the Grand Jury . . . How do you explain their absence? It was a doyg
and pony show. The prosecution spent a lot of money bringing in witnesses who knew nothing about the
bombing How many witnesses do you need 10 bring in to say that McVeigh was at gun shows. Not ten
witnesses! That's irrelevant! Many people go to gun shows and don't blow up buildings. They [the
prosecution] had this Grand Jury to the point where jurors were asking “How can gun shiows be lewai in
the U S.7" These witnesses were used to getacross the idea that McVeigh, because he went to gun
shows, was a bad guy. But we heard nothing from real witnesses who saw McVeigh at the crime scene

2 of 14 06/24/96 16:40:40
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But we heard nothing from real witnesses who saw McVeigh at the crime scene. Isn't that
amazing? You can get most people to buy a story without one bit of evidence. Just on
association alone. You can get them to believe what you said he did. The witness
testimony we got was pretty much all baloney. Why didn't they give us the real stuff they
had, the real witnesses?

Now, we're getting back te what you were implying in the first interview. Are you
telling me that no witnesses who saw McVeigh driving a truck in the vicinity of the
federal building on the morning of the bombing testified at the grand jury?

That's right! And why do you think that was. Because those witnesses saw other people
with McVeigh and those other people might have been able to tie the crime to the
government because some of those other people were --

Government informants or agents.
Yeah.

Well, that's what you're saying then. The FBI uses incredibly thin evidence and
keeps back the real witnesses because they could tie some fraction or faction of the
government to the bombing itself.

You know, there's a saying among lawyers, "You can get a ham sandwich indicted.” The
ham was probably a little sour, so the guy in the restaurant died. He must have eaten the
sandwich and been poisoned. You never tell the Grand Jury he died in a car accident after
he left the restaurant. You just bring in lots and lots of witnesses who saw the ham, tasted
the ham and say the ham was a little bit funny. The color wasn't quite right. It tasted a
little weird.

All right. Now [ see what you're getting to. This is staggering to me. I mean we have
a bunch of witnesses, real witnesses, who saw McVeigh at the scene of the bombing
with other people, other John Does. The Grand Jury doesn't call any of them. They
show you no surveillance videotape. Instead they browbeat Fortier, someone you say
could have walked completely, had absolutely minimal involvement with any of this.
I mean a Grand Jury is supposed to be a place where the crime is looked into.

But it isn't. They had to keep some evidence out of it. That's what you have to
understand. And you have to ask yourself why. Why would they present the most stupid
form of non-evidence to gain an indictment against McVeigh and keep the good stuff
out? You have to ask yourself that over and over, and then you'll sec what's going on
here.

Concealment of evidence so that John Doe 2 is kept out of it, and other suspects,
other John Does are kept out of it, because somehow these other perpetrators would
make it very uncomfortable for the government. They would open up the case into
other areas. Areas showing government involvement,



Can you think of another reasen why the prosecution would withhold the most persuasive
witnesses? People who were really on the scene at the bombing?

No,Ican't.

McVeigh is not cooperating with his lawyer.

‘What do you mean?

He's not saying who the other people are who were involved with him.

From what you tell me, we're talking about a fair namber of involved people.

Well, I think it's more than five, actually. From witnesses' reports, we can count two men
in the pickup, three men in McVeigh's car and maybe even two more in the Ryder truck.
And then there's the possibility there were two Ryder trucks.

McVeigh won't say who they are?

He's the good soldier. 1 think he's willing to take the fall.

Because he's the good soldier?

[ think they're holding his sister Jennifer over him. If he talks something bad will happen
to her. I also suspect he thinks he's working for the government.

After possibly heing recruited by people who said they were Patriots.

Yeah,

These "Patriots” could have told him, "We're connected to a few good people inside
this corrupt government in Washington. People who still want to save this country.
They're our ultimate employer in this."

Yeah, that would work on McVeigh. The flag and apple pie business.

Do you think, sitting in jail, McVeigh hasn't figured out these recruiters set him up
as the patsy?

I don't know. That license plate on his Mercury Marquis -~ the car he was arrested in. The
license had fallen off. He has to wonder about that, about someone loosening the nuts on
those bolts. That's why the Oklahoma highway trooper stopped his car in the first place.
That's how it all unraveled. McVeigh has to be wondering about that.
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MeVeigh’s Lawyers

New evidence sug’gests
the U.S. government is
involved in a massive,
cover-up concerning the
facts behind the bombing
of the Alfred P. Murrah
Federal Office Building
in Oklahoma Cily.

EXCLUSIVE TO Ti{E $POTLICHT
By MIKz BLAIR
At least one membar of the faderal
grand jury that handed down indict-
ments against Timothy J. McVaigh and
Terry L. Nichols—accused bombing sus-
pects in the April 19 Okishoma City
bombmg-—ha: spoken out sgainst grand
Jjury proceedings.
The juror has revealsd tha indjct-
menta ware “la 1 wed" and fedsral -

rosecutors wit v E@E_
{rom the gran Jurors impaneled to fRear

Testimony.

: lawyeu Yeprassnting ig
ed_B_motion peeking Glamisss, of

the indictment lgltnlt their clisnt,
charging mucouduct and & brea f

The grand juror, upset with tae courss
of the proceadings, discussed Lix
concerns with at least two publicationse
the monthly magazine Media Bypass and
the Deily Okhlahomian in Oklahoma
City, as well as his representative in
Longress and several other people,
MYSTERY MAN

m_namniwmmmlyggi
that prosscutors stifled th el from -
iF questions about tke bomb

TREKI
investigation and particularly gbout ths
so-ca:ioa TJohn 600 No. 2." whe h
never on !eaern[
investizators now conte .
s govaroment mad

role of others or a larger
onsgl * Jones said 10 Bas mokicn e
S:lmiu &e indictment against McVeigh.
The grand juror has stated

askmg qunt.om nbout him

Claim Bombing Cover—up

pi.ml ulno fuhul
proucuton dupod M‘ichui Fortisrof
Arizona into pleading gullty to a
lessar part in the bombing. They. s
thresteced th.lhﬂl wi.ﬂ., Iar!. WwUId b'
seattojail el e
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'rhoyhadlmonthhmddhr.._

this Lttle boy and girl'in Arliéna,” the
grand jurori'gajd; Butprosssutprs
insisted “you've got to [confess) 50 we
don't send your.wifs to jail .t; ~All they
had him on was h-ulpn;ﬁng -stolan guns .
intarstate.” - ‘& rRET

The New Yorl!‘inmhﬁnw{udlhnw
‘juror eontended .that prosecutors
intimidated the jum and them-
to confine the investigation to the
activities of Mr, McVeigh and the cthar
defandant in the cass,; Terry L~
to mest ¥ dudlinmat-’ by fnd.r
guidelines on providing spesdy trials”.

In the motion for - Jozas l-lk!

““the zovldnmmt attempted ta prmnt

‘the arors froi

or prqcluded grand jurer-tequestd for
prasantption of mridlm i« M
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eoercion and lack of indipen oﬁco,
meabers of the grufk ury-baginite
contact at lenst threa, poasibly more
outside media sourcas, ma:abers eft'na
legislature and other persena who had
sxperiencs in law’ onfnrunnt ,tn arder
to voice thair complaints.” l{
Jouses said $he jurcr’a cqmp dnu
indicated the prosscutors
grand jury indepandance by Umiting i
scope of its inquiry,. withholtﬂhl
anything that might indicate®: hroader -
conapiracy or a diffarent o

_Ths grand juror also. i.nsﬁcuqd t.‘mt :

20me members of the pansl believed
Nxd;wls an Amy pal o!Mchish tHed
:t.op ‘the tniek - *Nichols got
od with svarything McVaigh gﬁd.
l‘: shouldn't have,” '.'hl gnnd Jurer
lt-atad . "w 2 o
Niche 48 an unw o8
{n the and . . . He backed out.%‘t
wanttodoxt.Hpantmpointto
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Bl  FBi via AP
SKETCH John Doe No. 2 has .
‘so many places’' to hide. = .z
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Cover-up claim in hunt
for Oklahoma ‘witness’

WIILE Premden: Clintor b1 in
Lurope Jernanding 3 tougher res
Ietae 1y tarrorim. hizs own govern:
ment s haviag trouble getting to the
soilua of the Oklahoma bombing,
the most deadly act of terrorism aver
(otng itted on US soil

The Oklshoma investigation is los-
e cedibiily fast. with talk of 2
Lover-up now reaching fever pilch.
Glenn and Kathy Wilburn, who losi
two grangchildren in the hias?, have
scrused the justice Department o
playing palitics with thew grief

Conducting their awn invesliga-
tion they have already raised doubts
sbout the ofliciul stery implicating
Tun McVeigh, the chiel suspect. i
the Apnl 1995 Oklahoma City blast
inswhich 168 died.

MNow the Wilburns believe they
have 1racked down the elusive wit.
ness known a3 “John Due [IY, the
lanned. 1atiooed, muscular man said
o have been with McVeigh when he
#legedly rented the Ryder truck
sied in the bambing,

The man they aeme has been iden:
lified rom & phote by one of the
wilhesses who helped draw up the
artist’s impeession of John Doe I
Several olher witnesses have said
they think the photo is of the same
perion.

il the witnesses are right. the man
15 @ former univessity student from
Philadelphia named Michael Bre-
scia. Overthe lait month sdme of the
major US newspapers and TY nel.
wotks have been searching nation.
wide for him, with no suceess,

13 is remarkable thal the FBI ha
shown 50 liltle interes!l in Bressie, H
1he Wilbums are correcl. The search
for John Doe ] involved hall of the
FBI's entire stalf of special agents,
The vast invesligative machery of
the US government had net been
mobilived in such a way zince Lhe
#ssasnnalion of President Kenoedy,
Apparentiy. it found nothing. Alter
(w0 months the Justice Department
snrounced that the sighting of John
Doe {1 was 2 timple matter of coniu.
sion. The witness was an isnocent
sildict who happened 16 visit the
Avder rental affice in Juectwon City
the day alter MeVeigh, said 1he offi-
Ll statement,

This atcount 1% dispueted vehe-
mently by the thite wiinesies al the
Hader auency who saich they saw
Sl Vesh with Joha Due |

Liiee AW idhsris fuive o hurne::

A toupls grieving for grandechildren kliled In the bombing

last year think they have {dentified a name missad by the

thar ihe Aryan peoples are the 12 Jost
tribes of Iprael,
Brascla shared 3 house #t Eivhim

huge resources of the FBY, says Ambrose Evans-Pritchasd

told the FBI that they knew who the
John Doe I in the artist's impres.
sion was, One. 2 college siudent
named Catina Lawson, was a close
friend of McVeigh. The other was
her mother. Connie Smith.

In a confidential statement 1o the
FBI. dated April 23. Smith gaid ber
daughier “'dated McVeigh for two
years''. Lawson says that she was
just a [riend, bul admits to having
altended parties in Kansit -where
McVergh wat present. Mareover,
also knew Michael Fortier, the man
whao alliggedly “cased™ the Oklahoma
federa) building with MeVeigh sad
wha bas started 4 23-year prisen sea-
tence after pleading guilty (o lesser
charges related 10 1the bombing.

0 Apri

bembing, Lawso
YSTY The !El That The
sKelch STISBA DS

El‘ man WHE lﬂ'ﬂilﬂ

moveg in Eca v E
&,
I5d hiy pame
w3
V- t kngw ¢

1aid. H
statement is gli i 1
5. e at 4
o B
now b

“AWTER, Bow 3. loid Thr Sundey
Telegroph that “Mike” had had a
briel alfazir with & housemate, who
has since disappcared. She believed
it accurred in the summer of 1992, [
never found out what he was going in
Kanass,” the said. " Bu! | emembar
her saying that be came from Penn:
syivania, and | saw lhe Pennsylvania
iags on his car.™"

Smith remembers heing intro-
duced to "Mike'" by her daughter.
Shelater saw him inthe local town of
Herington with McVeigh. In her FBI
staiement she said thad the man was
a lriend of McVeigh and that “she
believed he was Joha Doe {1

-

f1didn") know whyt | was
: .

e, iater,

[20L, 3%
1 +

Wy s
heir tesumony is sketchy, 1! may
be incorrect, What is #stonishins

from a solid Cathelic [amily in Phila.
delphis, the soe of & baitalioa chinf
is the fire brigade. He was an Bagle
Scout at » private bigh school. and
then went oa to study Yy
Satie University ia Philadelphis,

“He was 8 very suigoing, likeable
£uy. bt he triad 10 sat wp a white
supremacist group on cempus,” sabd
George Ralko. 3 “'brotbar” ia the
D=ita Sigrna Pl fraceroaty.

"We threzianed 10 ravake his
membership. We told him the (rater
mity wuuidn't tokeraie (hal kind of
behaviour,'

In 1993, in his third year 3t La
Salle. he mysieriously dropped oul,
telliny triends that he wax taking up
a job atter i Okl shoma.

In fact hie weni to join an armed
religivus colt in the Qzarks called
Elohim Clty, where he fell in tove
with the granal-daughter ol the vom.
n}ul?uv patriarch, Pastor Roberl
Millar

Plas wi 1 ods g birasi i of tive Clidrs .

with Andress Str . & (ormer
officer ia the West German army and
& man the Wilburos bave announced
that they plaa 10 aame 2 8 lawsuit 25
4 *US federal infonmaat with maten-
M kaowledge of the bombing™.

Strassmair said that he has noat
werked 4a iateliigence matiers since
his discharge from the German army i
and denies workiag for the US°
goverrnent.

Strassosic said that Brescia was in
Liithe Kook, Arkagsas, oa the day of
the bumbiag, attending » clemency
taliy for the Right-wing leadar
Waoyse Saali (whe was executed for -

T convictions vhe same day and
was thea brought back for bural at
Elubisu). ' don't think Mike was
bl wd in dmy way.” ba said. “lle
wor osd & typicel kid of bis age,
a ialile,”

i .. histiar, nae of leaders of
Ebituu (Tﬂw that Brescia could
Bl prsasinly ol Dot (1. "He was
Fight bame with ut oa Apeil 17 (the
day the Ryder vouch was rented),
balpisyg to prepare the grave for

Saall," she said

ayae .

Brescia wes sxpadied from Elchim
in the summnr of 1993, apparenily
avir & curfew He went 10
Live with George Eaton. & arighbour
whe publizhes the Pairict Aeport (a
tiny, Right-wing miliths publicatios
T which McVeigh, a others,

. subseribed). Eaton told The Sundey

m:,;::n vhat Strassmeir and Bry-
een stinnag thiags [
Elohim City v

"“They wrrv pusbing for ail these
militsry maworwyres, and it got 1o be
& problem.” be said, Eaton does nat
balieve thut Breacia played any rose
ia the bombing. “All thave rumours
& just nonrease.,” he said.

He said that Bescla had a natioo
o his icft arwm (Joba Doe il was
described a3 Waving one).
decribed & s 8 © will four
1pohes. Exports oa the far Right say
this is the sympel of the Order. the
violent milikary wing o the Ar:n
Mutinar. The Order was suppass dly
disbanded in tha mid-1980s, 1o 2
muy Rave beda reCoRSNTUIC] i
they tey 10 find all the Beces fu tina
ligsaw puzsie, the Willirns buinmyve
that 1he Bthuig wav o drrusd 1 un-
spifacy by members of (he Arven
Natinny Now they want (u hauw why
the Listwe Departensar zas
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OFFICE OF THE CHIEF MEDICAL EXAMINER
BOARD OF MEDICOLEGAL INVESTIGATIONS

UNIPORM MEDIA STATEMERY

7 Magust, 1935
0860 hours ¢

The staff and consultants of this office continus to analyze as yot
anidentified human tissue recovered from the Marrah Buil

Among this tissue is a traumatically amputatod loft thigh and ]
leq rocovared on May 30, 1935. !{.‘Lu leg was clothed in

militaxry type boot, two socks, and an olive drad blousing st
Anthropologic anelysis of this specimen reveals the isdividual to .
be light skinned, dark baired, probably less than w of age,

zale (75% probability), and having an ¢s
or minus 3 inches. fThia leg has not beed matched to aay of the

nown victims or survivors.

ONA and other scientific analyses on this and othe® tiszne continue

at our office and {n the FBY laboratories im D.C. Once
chesa scientific investigationu are cowpletad further {nformation

will releaped.
A Www

Pred B. Jordan, HK.D.
chief Medical Sxaminer
Stata of Oklahoma

2



The FBI Laboratory subsequently examined the leg and
stated it came from a Negro female. We feel since the
barometric bomb is directional and has to be pointed prior to
detonation, this may be the leg of an individual who was in
the back of the Ryder truck who pointed and locked the
bomb in place. The FBI stated they made this determination

based upon an examination of the hair on the leg.

Note: It is not possible to determine the sex of a person from

a hair examination.

Ti
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WITNESSES
DEVELOPED
BY
INDEPENDENT
INVESTIGATION
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The lellowing witnesses have been developed by independent Investigntors:

1. A witness saw a Ryder truck followed by a yellow Mercury at 8:35 am at Main and
Robinson Sts. on 4/19/95.

2. A witness saw a brown Chevrolat pick-up containing two or three individuals speed
away from the federal building just before the bonbing.

3. A witness saw a caravan of three vehicles before the bombing at 10th and
Robinson including a brown Chevrolet pick-up truck and a yellow Marcury. This Witness
saw at least four people including dark-skinned men. The cars were stopped at a light.
4. A witness was almost run over by a yellow Mercury as he left the Journal Record
Building the moming of the bombing. He described three people in the car.

5. On 4/19/85 a witness gave directions to individuals he describes as McVeigh and
John Doe {l at 8:40 am at 10th and Hudson.

6. Another witness saw a Ryder truck at Bricktown approximately 8:40 am that
morning. He recalls seeing two men in the truck.

7. A witnaess ran outside the building as it blew up. He was almost run over by a
brown Chevrolet pick-up truck that was pulling away from the front of the building.
There were three people in the truck. The driver looked like a Middle Easterner.

8. One witness ran outside the building after the blast and saw a Middle Eastemner
grinning from "ear to ear"”.

9. One witness recalls seeing John Doe Il at the Dreamland Motel in Junction City,
Kansas before 4/19/95.

10. One witness saw the Oklhoma City Police Department bomb-signal truck at the
federal building the morning of the biast.

11. Tom Kessinger saw John Doe I at Elfiot's Body Shop. He has now changed his
story "after talking with federal prosecutors."

12. A doctor talked with McVeigh and two other individuals before the bombing.

13. One witness saw McVeigh and John Doe Il at a convenience store in Kansas. The
FBI reportedly took her video surveillance types and told her she was mistaken about
the identity of McVeigh and John Doe il.

14. One witness saw John Doe Il in front of the federal building before the blast.

15. One witness saw McVeigh and John Doe Il at a supermarket where she served
them sandwiches several weeks prior to the bombing.

16. The Sunday before the bombing, one witress in Oklahoma City remembers serving
hamburgers to McVeigh and John i,

Doe 1. She and her girlfriend recall seeing a three- vehicle caravan.
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Ted Gunderson, former Senior Special Agent in Charge (retired) of the
F.B.I. Los Angeles field office, advises the current Attorney General guidelines
(Prior to the passage of the New Legislation) on domestic security/terrorism
investigations, were adequate and there was no need for further measures.

Summary New Terrorism Bill
H.R. 2703
H.R. 2768
S-735
1) Search without warrants
2) President labels groups as terrorists
3) lllegal taps - legal as long as police felt he was acting in good faith
4) Firearms sold - used in crime later, “first person sold” period - 5 years in jail
5) Seizure of assets
6) Secret evidence - not face your accuser
7) Allows the C.I.A. to operate inside the Continental limits of the United States
Senate bill has passed - House bill has passed
Information contained in this report was submitted to the F.B.I. on April 26

and May 18, 1995. Mr. Donald Mc Alvany, Editor of “Mc Alvany Intelligence
Advisor,” contributed to this report.
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McVeigh's father to

THE ASSOCIATED PRESS

PENDLETON, N.Y. — The fa-
ther of condemned Okizhoma
City bomber Timothy
McVeigh says he will honor
his son's request and stay
away from his execution May
16.

“He sent me a letter about
his execution and in it Tim
said he didn’t want me there,”
Bill McVeigh told The Buffaio
News in its Saturday editions,
adding that no other family
members will attend.

Timothy McVeigh, 32, is
scheduled to die on federal
death row in Terre Haute,
Ind., for the April 19, 1995,
bombing of the Alfred P Muyr-
rah Federal Building, which
killed 168 people including 19
children.

McVeigh’s father told the
newspaper he had -watched
ABC’s “PrimeTime

Fesaneeo o o R R

Thursday”, which focused on
a new book in which his son
admits to the bombing.

“I laid awake half the
night,” he said.

In the book, titled
“American Terrorist: Timothy
McVeigh and the Oklahoma
City Bombing,” a remorseless
McVeigh calls the children
kiled in the bombing
“collateral damage.”

Details i the book marked
the first time McVeigh has
publicly and explicitly admit-
ted to the crime.

“He's my son and 1 love
him, but what he did was abso-
lutely wrong, and I have no
idea how anvone could do it,”
the elder McVeigh said.

“It’s on my mind 95 percent
of the time,” he said. “When
I'm busy, I'm not thinking
about it. T try to keep going. 1
can't sit home and start

not attend execution

thinking.”

Timothy McVeigh, convict-
ed of federal murder charges,
has waived appeals and asked
a federal judge to set his exe-
cution date. If the execution
by injection takes place, he
will be the first federal inmate
put to death since 1963.
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Lawver says
McVeigh
lied in book

By THOMAS MULLEN

THE ASSOCIATED PRESS

QKLAHOMA CITY — Timothy
McVeigh exaggerated his role
in the Okiahoma City bombing
in a new book in part to pro-
tect convicted bombing con-
spirator Terry Nichols,
McVeighs former lawver
said.

Stephen Jones said Thurs-
day that “American Terrorist:
Timothy McVeigh and the
Olkdahoma City Bombing” is
“fundamentally dishonest”
and contradicts what McVeigh
told him about Nichols'
involvement.

Jones said he will revise his
own 1998 bock, “Others Un-
known: The Oklahoma City
Bombing Case and Conspira-
cy,” to address some of
McVeigh's claims and to show
“why the case should not be
closed.”

In “American Terrorist,”
written by Buffalo News re-
porters Lou Michet and Dan
Herbeck, McVeigh admits to
the 1995 hombing and says he
has no remorse for it. He even
calls the 19 children killed
“collateral damage.”

McVeigh  said  Nichols
helped make the bomb that
biew up the Alfred P. Murrah
Building, killing 168 people,
but McVeigh insgisted he car-
ried out the bombing alone.

Jones said McVeigh hoped
to help Nichols, who faces a
possible death sentence if con-
victed of murder in Oklahoma.
Nichels was sentenced to life
after his federal conviction for
manslaughter and conspiracy,
but he has not been tried in
state court on murder
charges.

The authors of “American
Terrorist” based the book on
75 hours of prison interviews
with McVeigh and interviews
with 150 other people. But
Jones said they never checked
McVeigh's claims with him,
possibly because they wanted
to protect their relationship
with McVeigh. McVeigh had a
falling out with Jones during
his trisil.
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BLOODY WEDNESDAY
The Day of the Conspirators in Oklahoma City

That Changed the Course of American Democracy

By Ted L. Gundesrson and Michael Blair

This story is written from the persvective of retired
FBI Senior Special Agent Ted L. Gunderson, an investigator of
international reputation with more than 27 years of service
to his country, and Michael Blair, a veteran of 35 years as
an lnvestigative reporter, who combined their skills and
resources to uncover the truth about the fateful Cklahoma
City bombing of April 19, 1995,

Gunderson, an authority on counter-terrorism, who
retired from the bureau to head the anti-terrorist efforts
at the 1979 Pan American Games in Puerto Rico at the request
of then-U.S. Attorney General Griffin Bell and later foiled
a plot by Iranian terrorists to disrupt the Olympic Games in
Los Angeles, no longer holds the FBI in high esteem.

This 1s guite unprecedented, even considering such
former agents as Dr. Frederick Whitehurst of the FBI national
crime lab, who brought about a national scandal in the midst
of the bureau's probe of the Oklahoma City bombing, by
revealing a pattern of gross "contamination" and deliberate

"alteration" of evidence at the forensic facility.
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Sach men have attempted to Join the ranks of
"whistle-blowers," only to have a change of heart at a
crucial moment.

Gunderson and Blair as a team are a far cry from the
several hundred agents and othsr personnel who. servad the
veteran FBI agent in his final posting before retirement as
Senior Special Agent in Charge of the bureau's Los Angeles
Field Office. They have risked careers, reputations and even
their 1lives in an attempt to help halt increasing government
abuses.

The Oklahoma City bombing and subsequent c¢ourt action
comprises a test of how successful this team of sleuths has
been in revealing that America's government has lost its way ,
has veered, once again, from a course of honor, integrity and
loyalty as mapped by the world's most unique constitution.

Regardless of the fact that America is a country which
leads the world in policies referred to as "free speech” and
"freedom of the press,” there is now no doubt that something
is being suppressed regarding what happened in Oklahoma City.

What? Why? Who?

Does anyone seriously believe that two former Army bud-
dies, McVeigh and Wichols, acted alone, as the government
contends?

Through gag orders and supprassed testimony, the United
States hnas carefully controlled the information distributed,
often as disinformation surreptitiously leaked to the public.

But no matter how hard one tries, when there are so many
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people involved, information cannot be controlled completely.

What 1f . . . what if qualified individuals managed to
combine their respective investigative skills, combining
their findings with documented facts, virtually scattered
plece-meal all over the world? Then, the truth would come
bubbling to the surface, 1ike a volcano--a force that cannot
be controlled.

That is what we have here. The pieces of the puzzle, cut
into the tiniest of fragments, have been pieced together to
expose the whole picture of that bloody Wednesday in Oklahoma
City, the day conspirators, in and out of government, altered
the course of American democracy.

Indeed, no one could have said it better than the U.S.
prosecution team during the trial of McVeigh. There, the lead
prosecutor, Joseph Hartzler, reminded the Jjury that although
there was no actual photograph of the bomber doing the deed,
there were enough circumstances, or pieces of the puzzle,
which, 1f put together as a whole, created the necessary
picture,

However, Gunderson and Blair have taken those same
puzzle pileces and when put together by them they reveal the
truth about Oklahoma City, a picture that is far different
than that painted by the U.S. Justice Department.

And vyet, the Justice Department has not been chastised
for creating "a crazy conspiracy theory" with its version of
the "finished picture,” which few of the knowledgeable 1in

America can totally swallow without gagging. It is not easy
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for such Americans to digest their government's deceit and
indiscretions.

The government contends that two lone bombers used a
crude device concocted of ammonium nitrate fertilizer and
fuel o0il (ANFO} to successfully devastate the Alfred P.
Murrah Federal Office Building in Oklahoma <City, something
that too many experts in the field of demolitions maintain
scientifically could not be done.

And so, consider these points that wunravel the
government's "two lone bombers theory," which are detailed,

among many others, by Gunderscon and Blair in Bloody Wednesday

and reveal what really happened in Oklahoma City:

* During the McVeigh trial, the United States did not
call Dave Williams, the Chief of the FBI Explosives Unit and
who supervised the Oklahoma City bombing evidence, as a
witness. The prosecutors had their reasons.

* The United States did not c¢all Roger Martz, Chief of
Chemistry and Toxicology of the FBI crime 1lab when evidence
was being gathered. Again, the prosecutors had their
reasons.

* The United States did not call Roger Moore, alias Bob
Anderson, who was allegedly robbed by co-conspirator Terry
Nicheols to fipnance the bombing. Such an important witness
was ignored?

* There was no evewitness who placed McVeigh at the

scene of the bombing, only "Arab-looking” men.

* Witnesses saw the Ryder rental truck at the Dreamland
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Motel, where McVeigh rented a room, the day before "Kling"
(allegedly McVeigh) rented the bomb truck.

* There was no ammonium nhitrate, one of the more than
two-ton bomb's two main ingredients, found on McVeigh's
clothing, boots, hands, hair, car, etc.

* There was no PETN, the <chemical explosive used in the
detonator cord, on McVeigh's hands, boots, hair, automobile
steering wheel or shifting lever, although he had supposedly
been hanéling/it a brief time earlier at the Murrah building.

* There was no PETN found on McVeigh's knife, which was
supposedly used to cut the detonator cord.

* The prills from the ANFO bomb, which were allegedly
collected from the scene, were not the same prills in the
fertilizer supposedly purchased by WNichols, which was claimed
by the government to have been used to make the bomb.

* Two witnesses who composed the artist likeness of the
bomber in April 1995 were not allowed to testify at trial and
a third witness, who saw the bomber, was allowed to testify
although he gave a different description at trial than that
which he gave in April 1995.

* The only piece of evidence (Prosecution Exhibit Q507),
a 9 by 9-inch piece of plywood supposedly from the Ryder
rental truck, was all the FBI had to support the theory that
an ANFO bomb was used. It was found on the scene by a
civilian and used by the FBI, in violation of the Rules of
Evidence and in violation of forensic laboratory policy, as

testified to by William Whitehurst, the whistle-blowing FBI
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lab scientist. Its authenticity simply could not be
substantiated, as Whitehurst had been told when it turned up.

* 0507 had miraculous evidence of ammonium nitrate
crystals on it, even though these crystals -evaporate in
humidity (and there was torrential rain in Oklahoma City
while the bombing evidence was waiting to be gathered).

In addition to surviving the rain, the crystals aiso
survived the heat of at least 500 degrees generated by an
ANFO bomb--crystals that are destroyed at heat above 200
degrees.

* A1l scientists, other than the FBI's Bermeister, werse
precluded from examining Q507 for the miracle crystals.

* The remains of the Murrah building were demolished
before a full and impartial investigation could be performed,
for no apparent reason other than to be "sensitive to the
pain of survivors," who were reminded of the tragedy every
time they saw the wrecked building.

Bloody Wednesday explores these points and presents all

the =vidence, including mounds of which were not presented at
trial. Thus, the reader will see a completely different
"finished picture™ than that presented by the Justice
Department.
-0
The Oklahoma City bombing was a joint CIA-U.S5. Army
operation that went wrong-—-tragically and terribly wrong.

The bomb in the Ryder rental truck was an Electro-

hydrodynamic Gaseous Fuel Device, often, although not
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accurately, referred to in ultra-top secret U.S. government
scientific circles as a "barometric bomb" (U.S. Government
Contract No. DAARA-21-90-C-0045). Other bombs of a less-
sophisticated nature were planted on the 1inside of the
building. One exploded and others failed to explode. The
total bomb "package" would have leveled the entire building,
killing probably everyone within.

Two government informants, Carol Howe and Cary Gagan,
alerted the BATF and FBI, respectively, well in advance of
the bombing that it was going to happen. A third warned the
Secret Service gqguarding President Bill <Clinton. He was
ignored and the agent informed thus died in the blast.

McVeigh was recruited into the CIA after his Army
service, including a tour of duty in the Persian Gulf War,
with evidence uncovered by Gunderson and his associate that
he was manipulated under the government's top secret MK ULTRA
mind-control program, which, contrary to reports, was not
closed down decades ago.

andreas Strassmier, a known German intelligence agent,
was involved. He came to the United States to act as an
adviser for the Department of Justice and worked his way into
a neo-Nazi compound in Oklahoma, known as Elohim City. Both
Strassmisr and McVeigh were in contact with another
conspirator, Michael Brescia. Howe believes Brescia 1is the
mysterious John Doe No. 2.

But there was more than one John Doe No. 2. Another

conspirator was an American Indian from an upstate New York
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reservation.

McVeigh, Strassmier, Brescia and others plotted the
bombing through their close ties with Elchim City.

Head of the neo-Nazi compound is self-annoited Revw.
Robert Millar, whom it turns out was an informant £or the FBI
and another government source of prior information about the

plotters.

Phone records disclosed at trial revealed that both
McVeigh and Brescia were regular callers of Strassmier at
Elohim City.

After the bombing, Strassmier returned to Germany.

The American Indian was introduced by McVeigh te an FBI
informant at a survivalist exposition 1in Seattle a year
before the bombing and later identified as being with McVeigh
and Nichols by two Missouri real estate agents. So good was
their description to the FBI that a bureau artist composed a
remarkably detailed drawing of the man, which the FBI is
still circulating around the nation, although they claim
there is no elusive John Doe No. 2.

Others in government know the full identity of the
Native American conspirator, including his name and where he
has gone to elude those seeking him. This will be revealed in

Bloody Wednesday by Gunderson and Blair.

The purpose of the operation was to hasten the passage
of a counter~terrorism bill before Congress, which gave the
federal governmentg incredibly expanded powers——-even

superseding the protections guaranteed by the J.5.
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Constitution that limit and control government--all under the
guise of providing "public safety" and purported anti-
terrorism activity.

The bill was found necessary by elements within the
government because of the fact there is a rising movement of
discontent between the American people and their government--
rising discontent that it was feared could reach a point
where "extraordinary measures™ would be needed to control it.

That discontent is sgeen as threatening those in
positions of power, who needed restrictive legislation to
bolster and protect their coveted places 1in society, their
jobs, theilr assets and their lifestyles, but mostly their
power over others beneath them in the social structure in
America.

It can be said, and many c¢ivil libertarians agree, that
America 1is rapidly becoming-hastened along by tne counter-
terrorism bill and a further restricting anti-crime bill--
reduced to the same conditions that existed 1n Nazi Germany
when Hitler seized power.

The fact 1is that through this restrictive legislation,
coupled with executive orders signed by the president in lieun
of constitutionally-enacted legislation, the Executive Branch
of government has secured sufficient power, alone and unto
itself, to be just one step away from dictatorship--really a
fascist government by decree,.

No one can deny the fact that acts of Congress,

harmoniously and carefully enacted since 1933, and
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presidential executive orders have evolved the American
government from a united republic, with 50 independent state
governments, into one massive, all-powerful federal behemoth.

Some now call it a "benevolent dictatorship,” although
what's left of the family of Randy Wzaver, the survivors of
the innocent children o¢f Waco and the victims of other

excessive use of federal powsetrs may question the benevolence.

What has creatsd the animosity between America's
government and its c¢itizens, resulting in the perceived
threat of "“"domestic terrorism," about which government

leaders complain? What was used as evidence that McVeigh
"hated" the government that awarded him twoc medals for wvalor
for service in the Persian Gulf War? Or, did he really hate
the government? Could he 1in fact have besen working for
government in the interest of "National Security?"

Consider this:

* Original newscasts by local Oklahoma City channels 4
and 9, broadcast to the entire nation, reported that the
Oklahoma City Police Department bomb squad had removed ¢two
undetonated "military bombs"” from the shattered building and
then called the U.S5. Army to neutralize them., Witnesses state
that they had seen the Oklahoma City Police Department bomb
squad across the street from the Murrah building at 7:30 a.m.
on April 19, 1995,

Two years later, during the state grand jury probe in
July 1997, a grand jury witness, V. Z. Lawton from the 1U.S.

Department of Housing and Urban Development, testified that
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General Services Administration employees had been sent up
from Texas the day before the bombing and were in the process
of inspecting the building as part of a "security check."

Puring the Federal grand jury probe, grand juror Hoppy
Heidelberg stated the government was covering up the facts of
the case. He claims that the attorney controlling the Federal
grand Jjury would not alliow him to ask guestions about John
Doe No. 2. He believes that a John Doe No. 2 does in fact
exist and was involved 1in the bombing, with government
knowledge.

* The government initially reported a car bomb was
responsible for the destruction, an ANFO bomb of 1000 pounds.
Within a week, the ANFO bomb had grown to 2500 pounds, and
ultimately reached, in stages, 4800 pounds, and the fuel o0il
component was upgraded to highly volatile "racing fuel."

* As the bomb grsw in size so did the wvehicle
transporting it--from a car to one of Ryder's largest vans,
although even at trial the government prosecutors could not
gseem to provide evidence to substantially establish either
the size of the bomb or the vehicle.

* After an "all points bulletin", just minutes after the
bombing, was put out by the FBI for "two Middle East-looking
men” seen leaving the area of the bombed building in a
Chevrolet pickup truck, the FBI decided it was only "two co-
conspirators” who master-minded the entire episode,

* President Clinton soon announced that the militia was

responsible. He blamed talk radio show hosts, who were taking
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nim teo task for his scandal-wracked administration, for
fomenting vioclence, =2.g. "hate talk."

* Within 90 minutes of the bombing, McVeigh, the
"master-mind," was stopped by an Oklahoma State Highway
Patrol officer for not having a license ©plate on the rear of
his car. McVeigh, who had supposedly Jjust blown up the
building and killed 168 people, meekly handed over his
concealed handgun, which he legally carried, to the 1lone
highway patrolman.

* When McVeign was Jailed after his arrest on the
highway his possessions logged in by a jailer included an
exposed roll of film, which was later "picked up"™ by an FBI
agent and then disappeared. What was recorded on that film?

* The University of Oklahoma, Department of Geology,
Norman, Oklahoma, issued a press release that there were two
"ground swells," indicating there had been two explosions. An
inquiry by Gunderson determined that immediately following
the bombing five members of the media, including ABC
television news, visited the university and were furnished
details, along with the geismograph. Gunderson obtained a
copy c¢f the seismograph and sent more than 200 faxes of it
throughout the nation.

The university established that the firgst ground swell
occurred at 09:02:03 a.m, and then, ten seconds later,
another at 09:02:13, Gunderson sent faxes because the media
was not reporting the information.

Appearing before the grand jury in September 1997, a key
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official from the university appeared and testified that
there were not two explosions, although he was unable to
explain the reason for the two groundswells, He was not the
only official or witness 1in the case to change his story.
Oklahoma State Rep. Charles Kay, who was responsible for
getting the 1local grand Jjury seated by public petition,
provided evidence of intimidation of witnesses.

* Then surfaced Michael Riconosciuto, whose family
formerly owned the Hercules Manufacturing Company in
California's Silicon Valley. One of the world's foremost
explosives' experts and a brilliant scientist, who started as
a child predigy and then went on to secretly serve the CIA on
several projects, including the invention of the Electro-
Hydrodynamic Gaseous Fuel Device, said in a taped interview
with Gunderson and co-author Blair that an ANFO bomb did not
destroy the Murrah building.

He stated that his "barometric bomb" was responsible for
the explosion. This explained the absence of unexploded ANFO
mixture spattered all about the building and surrounding
area, which would have been the case with an ANFO bomb, known
to be a "dirty," not particularly effective explosive due to
much of 1its component mixture failing to detonate,.
Interestingly, McVeigh and his co-horts found this to be the
case when experimenting with an ANFO bomb made in a coffee
can.

The unique characterigtic feature of the barometric bomb

is that it creates two explosions, milli-seconds apart, the



first unleashing a white chemical <¢loud followed by the
second and a dark cloud £ smoke. It is a highly-classified
bomb known only to the government, which Riconosciuto
explained that only ten peoble in the world would be able to
assemble. He sald the bomb is under government contract
(DAAA-21-90-C-0045) with Dynamite WNobel, Inc., of Salt Lake
City, Utah,

An inguiry was sent to the Army's Picatinny Arsenal in
New Jarsey and asked for a copy of the contract. It was not
forthcoming.

* A lady, who was in the building at the time of the
explosion, appeared on CNN News the day after the bombing.
She said everything was white and then everything became
dark, further suggestive of the pattern of the multiple-
detonation barometric device.

* Two bombing survivors were interviewad by the
Gunderson team, one who had been on the seventh floor of the
building and the other on the eighth floor. Each stated
emphatically that there were two explosions, milli-seconds
apart. They were asked to demonstrate the sound. They each
described it as a "boom . . . BOOM!I"

The first explosion of the device releases a cloud of
liguid ammonium nitrate and other chemicals, which is then
electrically charged. Then the cloud of electrically-charged
gas is detonated, creating massive destruction. The bomb is
highly directional.

The bomb is similar, although extremely advanced, to a
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fuel-air explosive device, often referred to as a "daisy
cutter,”™ which was used both in Vietnam and the Persian Gulf
War. It was highlighted in the film, Outbreak, about the
spread in a small California town of a deadly viral discase
from Africa, the bomb being used to "sterilize" the area
infected. The differsnce 1is that the Riconosciuto device
utilizes a system of electrically charging the gaseous cloud,
multiplying the explosgsive result.

When the baromehtric bomb was tested, Army demolition
experts were astounded by the force of the explosion,
particularly after members of the demolition team were
gravely injured and killed.

At that point, the bomb was given the highest government
secrecy classification by order of President Ronald Reagan,
personally.

Parts of the bomb, including detonator components, were
taken by the CIia from a warehouse maintained by
Reconoscuito's company in the state of Washington. The
contents of the warehouse were hauled away in trucks. A
previous attempt to break into the building was foiled by
police.

* An Oklahoma state assemblyman was interviewed and
stated he was looking out of the fifth floor window of the
Oklahoma Capital Building in the direction of the Murrah
building when the detonation occurred. He said he saw a
"white cloud rise about 150 feet above the ground, followed

immediately by a dark sgpiraling cloud.”
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* B rescue worker was Iinterviewed who said he had never
sean anything like it. The concrete, he said, was reduced to
"sawdust." He said they needed shovels and wheelbarrows to
clean it up. He explained that he expected to sgsee chunks of
concrete, but in this case there were few.

* A survivor was interviewed on TV immediately following
the bombing. He stated the building shook. He then got under
a desk and next the windows blew in. Characteristic of the
barometric bomb, the white chemical c¢loud would blow the
windows in and permeate the building, then be detonated by
the second blast, creating the dark c¢loud and destruction
that would appear to have been caused by a device within the
structure.

* Riconosciuto explained that an active BATF agent told
him the tagants from the Oklahoma City bombing match the
barometric bomb developed by his family's Hercules
Manufacturing Company. Federal agents, Riceonosciuto said in
his interview with Gunderson and Blair, had been in contact
with him about the bombing a number of times since the
explosion in Oklahoma City.

* Riconosciuto indicated that neither defendant in the
bombing case, McVeigh nor Wichols, had the knowledge or
ability to assemble the bomb.

* Shortly after the bombing, a retired U.S. Army
munitions cofficer visited the officers' «club at Fort Sill,
Oklahoma, and became involved in a conversation with active

army officers. They were discussing the Oklahoma City bombing
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and the active o0fficers discussed participation 1in the
incident. They stated it was classified "National Security"
so they could never go public with the information.

* A lady recognized a BATF agent standing across the
street from the federal building immediately following the
bombing. She asked about his whereabouts at the time of the
explosion. He told her that the BATF agents were informed of
a bomb scare the day before and were told they didn't have to
report for work on April 19.

One BATF agent, who was lauded for his supposed heroics
in trying to save people during the bombing, claimed injuries
sustained when the elevator he was in fell several floors.
Elevator inspectors, 1in ©Oklahoma City to inspect the
building's elevators, rushed to the building at the time of
the explosion and found that none of the elevators had
fallen.

* An FBI report shortly after the bombing indicated that
Oklahoma Gov. Frank Xeating discovered the axle from tha
Ryder rental truck, which allowed agents to trace the
vehicle. Then, it was reported that an FBI agent had found
it. As it turned out, at the McVeigh trial it was determined
that the axle was found when 1t supposedly came flying
through the air and crashed into an automobile owned by a man
who worked in a nearby apartment complex.

No one has ever found the truck's huge V-8 engine, which
could not have been vaporized by the blast. And that engine

would determine the exact type of truck involved. There could
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be a good reason for that determination not beging made.
Not 1long after, Gov. Xeating's brother, Martin, made a
few news ripples locally when it was discovered by the press

that he had written a book, The Final Jihad, which detailed

several major events, including the bombing of the Twin
Towers of the World Trade Center 1in New York City by Arab
terrorists (an event which the FBI admitted having
foreknowledge of during the trial of the perpetrators) and
the bombing of a federal building 1in the nation's mid-West,
Interestingly, the book was written before the events,

Martin Keating later said in a radio interview that he
had gained the information during a wvisit to the FBI's
operations center in Washington, arranged by his brother, the
governor, a former FBI agent and U.S. Attorney.

* Roger Moore, the Arkansas gun dealer who was allegedly
robbed by Nichels of guns, money and other valuables to
finance the bombing, was revealed to the court as "Bob
Anderson" during McVeigh's trial. FBI informant, Cary Gagan,
had earlier, through 1letters to the FBI, the press and a
lawsuit publicly filed in January 1997, identified "Bob
Anderson,” aka Roger Moore, as a fellow FBI informant.

During the trial, McVeigh's attorney, Stephen Jones,
ridiculed the discrepancies 1in the story of the robbery.
Moore/Anderson was never called to testify at the trial,
although the theft of his valuables supposedly financed the
bombing.

* Later, at the trial of Nichols, it was exposgsed by the
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defendant's attorney, Michael Tigar, that the FBI had rigged
evidence in the case. One example was a tigged list of
firearms stolen from Moore's Royval, Arkansas, residence, a
list provided by his live-in girlfriend who travels about the
gun show circuit with nim, posing as his sister. The list she
had supposedly composed included a Ruger rifle, legally
purchased a year before the bombing by Nichols, but it

hecame one of a number of guns confiscated at his home by FBI
agents. How did the firearms get on a list of guns
supposedly stolen from the Moore home? Obviously, they had to
originate from a list of the guns confiscated £from the
Nichols' home by FBI agents, with someone at the bureau
failing to check all of the serial numbers, closely.

* Two days after McVeigh's arrest the government
released artist conceptions o¢f John Doe 1 and John Doe 2.
Descriptions were obtained from employees of Eliott's Body
Shop, where the Ryder truck had been rented. However, these
employees were precluded from testifying at the trial. Why?
Because the descriptions given at the time of the bombing did
not match the descriptions of the defendants? Further, the
government later assertaed that there was no John Doe 2 with
MeVeigh when he rented the truck, and to explain away the
second man the government suggested that the employees ware
mistaken; they were mixing up the Kling, aka McVeigh,
transaction with men who had come into the rental shop the
next day. A sSoldier named Bunting from Fort Riley, Kansas,

had come inte the shop with a friend. That was the day after
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Kling, who was allegedly McVeigh, rented the bomb truck, or
30 the FBI claimed.

* Infermation was released by the media that an
attendant at a Firestone store parking lokt saw a Ryder truck
in his 1ot in Oklahoma City from 8:25 a.m. to 8:35 a.m. on
the morning of the bombing. The attendant identified McVeigh
as the driver and John Doe 2, fitting the description of the
Native American conspirator, as the passenger,

* Gunderson developed a source that identified McVeigh
with a person who resembled John Doe 2 in Kingman, Arizona,
prior to the bombing.

* A source was found that identified John Doe 2 with
McVeigh at the Dreamland Motel in Junction City, Kansas, the
weekend before the bombing.

* Another source claims McVeigh did not flunk out of
Special Forces, as widely reported, but was one of ten
outstanding soldiers picked to work for the <CIA during
operations against "its competition."” This would explain why
McVeigh digplayed no concern during his trial--why he
whispered to his sister that it was "alright" when the death
penalty was announced and why he flashed the peace sign to
the jurors after they condemned him to die.

* Prior to the Oklahoma City bombing, Mark Koernke,
leader of the controversial right-wing Michigan Militia,
advised a confidential source that McVeigh was with the CIA.
He stated that McVeigh attempted to become involved with the

Michigan Militia but they refused to admit him intc the



group. Koernke tipped the source, who 1is 1in the Teaxas
Militia, to be alert for McVeigh, since McVeigh intended to
go from Michigan to Texas—--or Oklahoma.

* Strong evidence indicates that McVeigh was placed in
the MK ULTRA program, the CIA's venture into mind-conktrol.
This is based on the fact that Dr, Louis "Jolly" West, head
of the Psychiatric Department of U.C.L.A., has vigited
McVeigh while he was 1incarcerated in both Oklahoma and
Jefferson County, Colecrado, prior to trial. West 1is the
foremost mind control expert in America and is a known CIA
asset,

Consistent with the elements necessary to recruit a
candidate susceptible to mind control, it is noted that
during the sentencing phase of McVeigh's trial his neighbors,
teachers and army supervisors all agreed to the same thing,

that being: McVeigh obeyed orders no matter what.

* Gene "Chip" Tatum, a former CIA agent, while
incarcerated 1in the Federal Correctional Institute in
Englewood, Colorado, observed construction on April 5, 1995.
He asked what the addition was for and was told it was being
built to hold bombing suspects who were expected at a future
date.

* In connection with the fact that the Oklahoma City
Fire Department was on notice the day of the bombing and that
BATF offices were 90 percent empty, Motions to Compel
evidence were regquired before the prosecution at McVeigh's

trial would cecoperate in pre-trial discovery regarding this



svidence.

* McVeigh's Motions to Compel evidence asked for
discleosure of documents which suggested that the bombing was
perpetrated by "others unknown" and that the FBI knew that
someone had planned to bomb the federal building on April 19,
1995, but the FBI did nothing about it.

* During McVeigh's +trial a witness, who was at the
Dreamland Motel on the Sunday befeore the bombing truck was
rented, said she saw a "white Corsica"™ car outside of the
room which had a second Ryder truck in front of it.

FBI informant, <Cary Gagan, claimed in his lawsuit
against the government that he was involved with the group
that was orchestrating the bombing. He indicated he had
rented a white Corsica.

A Ryder rental truck of the same type supposedly used in
the bombing and what appears to be a white Corsica were
photographed from the air, prior to the bombing, where they
were parked in a secret enclosed compound at an Army National
Guard base near Baggs, Oklahoma, east of Oklahoma City, near
the Arkansas border. A spokesman at the base told Blair that
the project, which had been closed down, was being conducted
by the Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency (DARPA), a
top secret Defense Department agency with links to the
Recconosciuto "barometric bomb"™ project.

* Voir Dire--jury selection--discloses that even though
"randomly selected" more than half of the potential jurors

for McVeigh's trial had personal or professional ties to the
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federal government., All were asked questions to reveal their
political beliefs, their feelings about the IRS and whether
or not they were aware of "conspiracy theories.” A similar
process was used when the Nichols jury was seslected.

* During opening statements of the McVeigh trial on
March 31, 1397, Stephen Jones;“ McVeigh's attorney,
conspicuocusly abandoned his previously disclosed assertions
and his demeanor was suddenly quiet and disinterested, as
opposed to passionate and energetic during pre-trial
proceedings.

The defense appeared to let go of opportunities to
defend McVeigh when they did not call the witnesses who saw
what had to be a second Ryder truck and did not call
witnegsses who saw three men leave the Ryder truck when it was
parked in front of the Murrah building on the morning of the
bombing.

Jonesg failed to object to the government presentation of
theories, using hearsay and unfounded theory, and then he
earned the criticism of professional criminal defense
attorneys who express the opinion that he was inept, allowing
evidence that should have been omitted., Indeed, Jones did not
object to repetitive, redundant, excessive, emotional, gut-
wranching testimony from survivors of the bombing, when a
simple stipulation would have avoided the emotional testimony
which clearly prejudiced the jury.

* The defense failed to call those expert witnesses who

recognized that the characteristics of the bombed building
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were not consistent with an ANFO bomb.

* The court sealed more than 50 percent of the evidence
te keep if from public view, and then completely suppressed
testimony of certain witnesses.

* Carol Howe, who was on the defendant's witness list,
was precluded from testifying. The véfy morning that she was
to testify, about her being an informant for the BATF within
the neo-Nazi Elohim City compound, the court suppressed her
testimony and she was sent home.

Later, McVeigh's defense team filed a motion to include
her testimony in the appeal as a sealed "Offer of Proof"™ that
the FBI had prior knowledge of the bombing and its plotters.

Why was Howe's testimony hidden from the public? Why did
the government suddenly file a stipulation on the morning
that she was sent home, which allowed McVeigh's defense team
to provide evidence that completely discredited Michael
Fortier, who had prior knowledge of the supposed conspiracy
involving McVeigh and Nichols but was given immunity £from
prosecution for turning state's evidence.

Indeed, the prosecution filed two more mwotions to
suppress Howe from testifying at her own trial, where she
faced charges of making bomb threats, conspiracy and
possession of unregistered bomb devices.

Howe reported to her BATF handlers regularly while she
was at Elohim City, reporting, among other things, that
Strassmier's group had intended to blow up a federal building

and that they had cased the Murrah building in Oklahoma City

«
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in November-December 1994 and again in February 1395. Howe
has since passed no less than 17 polygraph tests. BShe was
alsc found not guilty of the trumped-up federal chargesg that
followed her public revelations about being an informant and
government foreknowledge of the bombing.

* Why was 1t necessary to presSure McVeigh's sister,
Jannifer, to testify, to the extent that shé was tricked into
thinking she needed immunity in esxchange for her testimony?
Why was the FBI allowed to use interrogation technigues on
the vyoung woman that are considered, by experts, to be
"psychological torture.”

* Why was Lori Fortier, Michael Fortier's wife, trained
by the U.5. Attorneys to present carefully canned testimony?

* Why were the reasons not brought out by the defense
that the government did not call as witnesses Dave Williams,
chief of the FBI's explosives unit, and Roger Martz, chief of
chemistry and toxiceclogy at the FBI lab, both of whom were
involved in handling evidence in the case? Both had besen
fired by the bureau for incompetence.

* Why did the defense abandon presentaticn of their
investigative findings which linked Edwin Angeles, a Filipino
terrorist, and Ramzi Yousef, the mastermind of the World
Trade Center bombing, to Nichols, McVeigh's supposed partner
in the crime? The defense had material indicating that an
informant, Eﬁad A, Salem, a former Egyptian Army officer, was
in the terrorist group that blew up the World Trade Center.

The leader, Yousef, was trained by the CIA,

{ 2’



* Wwhy did the defense team and Sen. Arlen Spectre of
Pennsylvania ignore a l67-page report prepared by Gunderson
on the bombing, revealing facts necessary to investigate the
true nature of the bomb and, perhaps, the true source of the
bomb?

* Why did Jones blatantly say that "dead men don't talk"
when he summed up the arguments at the sentencing hearing?
What did he mean when he said that McVeigh "might talk" if he
was left alive?

* The trial was an illustration of how constitutional
rights have been superseded by recently enacted c¢rime
statutes, ironically resulting from the Oklahoma City
bombing., It 1llustrates how a «court can now deai with
"thought" crimes and opinions.

After reading Bloody Wednesday readers will face some

burning questions?

Among them:

Has a sacrifice of personal freedom for the ‘“public
safety and welfare" gone too far 1in the case of the new
counter-terrorism and anti-crime legislation? |

Was the public deceived into demanding these new
protections--or 4id we really need them?

Was the bombing of the Oklahoma City federal building
America's version of the Reichstag fire that allowed the
consolidation of the power of the Hitler dictatorship?

Was Ayn Rand warning Americans to protect their standard

of freedom--lest America become another Nazi Germany?

f llﬂa



MICHAEL BLAIR
Michael Blair is an award-winning investigative
journalist who started his career 35 years ago as a cub
reporter for a weekly newspaper in his native upstate New
York. Ultimately, he hecame the editor of two newspapers in
that part of New York state, prior to becoming a naticnal and
international free lance correspondent in the mid-70s. His
awards include the coveted Proiject Censored Award {1990)
given annually by the Schoecl of Journalism at the University
of California at Sonoma, Project Freedom Award (1981) for his
reporting of issues relating to American prisoners of war and
missing in action, National American Legion Golden Press
Award for America's Best Editorial Written in the Interest of
Youth (1973} and several New York State Press Association
awards and citations. His biography appears in the 1993-94

edition of Men of Achievement published in Cambridge,

England. He and his wife Ann reside in central Virginia.
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EXHIBITS PAGES

THE FOLLOWING EXHIBITS ARE PROVIDED IN

SUPPORT OF OUR EXPLANATION OF THE EXISTANCE
AND DEVELOPMENT OF THE TYPE OF BOMB WE ARE
CLAIMING TO HAVE BEEN USED IN THE OKLAHOMA

BOMBING




Electro-hydrodynamic Gaseous Fuel Device

Gl Sxolosive

e \‘\Alui‘ inum ii’icate &
: M —

Agqueous Ammonium

PETN Explosive

&\\Q Q\\\\“ @\Electronic Sequencer &

High Voltage Generator

V\‘\Teﬂon Insulator Legs

- Grounding Electrode

For the sake of clarifying the actual design of the so-called (Barometric Bomb) this is an
accurate drawing of the device and includes alf of the previously mis-quoted information
regarding its construction. Again due to issue of security, the electronic analogy shall be left out
of this flustration: for all the “Bomb Experts™ who doubt the veracity of this device, the

following technical information should be researched:

Tvpe of Material Explosive Velocity Density
o 4500 mysec 3.8
G Ty e 2 6100 m/sec 4.8
. N/A 3.156

b 2700 m/sec 1.00

Flame temperature with normal detonation.1500°C

A shock wave Travelling in a light medium that strikes a plane solid surface reflects
Clue#1 inthe same form. A shock wave traveliing in a dense medium that strikes a surface
adjacent to a light medium refiects as a refraction.

Examine the preasure rise over the surface volums relationshi
Clug#z =Xgmne e P P

The sacondary shock wave is driven beyond the “Chapman Jugo” condition as the leading edge of
the wave is compressed into a thin boundary. The chemical reaction from ordinary explosive effect is
ennanced by the electro-chemical effect. electrons are converted into energy at a much higher
scale. The reaction is considered A-Neutronic as an over-driven detonation takes place.

The only description left is the electronic analogy of this dynamic system and how the ionic separa-
tion takes place. This is a well-kept secret.

Exhibit A .
133 A



An abstract describing the operation of
a Eletro-Hydrodynamic Gaseous Fuel
Device. (Barometric Bomb)

The Device being described in this abstract has previously been classified Top Secret due to the
ease in which the device can be created. Technically it is considered an "A-neutronic” device hence
the designated "Q" clearance is required for information regarding it's construction. For The sake
of security, the Electronic Detonation sequence shall not be described herein due to the complexity
of the scheme.

Basically the Explosives itself is Ammonium Nitrate, however the Ammonium Nitrate is detonated
10 to 15 milliseconds later in a secondary and more powerful blast . The first Explosion is caused
bv the detonation a "Shaft like' shaped charge made up of PDTN surrounded by another shaft of
micro encapsulated Aluminum Silicate. this internal component has been suspended in a tank -
containing 64 ounces or more of Ammonium Nitrate. The complete assembly resembles a propane
tank with a zig zag shaped wedge surrounding the outside diameter of the tank. When the primary
blast takes place, the top of the tank flies upwards and the bottom of the tank opens up intoa
flower petal shape. Immediately the Ammoniurn Nitrate mixes with the shattered
microencapsulated Aluminum Silicate to create an even more devastating explosive fuel cloud. |
This cloud is then energized with a high potential Electrostatic field resulting in the creation of ~
millions of microfronts.

The cold cloud is then detonated a second time with another PETN charge which was previously
cushioned from the first blast due to a shock absorbing cavity. This time, the cold cloud ignites -
creating an shock wave which surpasses the traditional effects of TNT. The most astounding
effects of this type of detonation is the immediate atmospheric overpressure which has a tendency
to blow out windows to any structure within the vicinity of the blast. .

View A

PETN .
View B

Alurainurn Silicate f/,f"w\\\L

) Start

Arnonium Mitrate

— ] L

Detonate

waitel3 m3.

Detonate

PDTN

Judging by the size of the Oklanoma Federal building Blast, a device the size of a small

pineapple could have been used to create the same effect. Several prototype devices was developer’
with the dimensions of 9 inches long by two inches in diameter weighing 11 pounds. itis
unknown whom these prototypes ended up with or how they were acquired in the first place.



Electro-Hydrodynamic | Antenna
Gaseous Fuel Device

"Pineapple Bomb ¥

shown For Comparrison

Top Section — 7 i

Base Sectionf—“"*
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Definition of PETN

Pentaerythritol-Tetra-Nitrate

White powder not sensitive o shock while wet, when dried produces low volume

expiosive.
Also the amonium Nitrate used in the Eiectro-Hydrodynamic Devices must be in
Aqueous form rather than the pellet form used in fertilizers.

This make the bomb physically smaller and more Brissance upon detonation.
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Handwritten Abstract on : .

The Separation of Nuclear Isotopes using Laser Energy.

This work was developed in the late 60s and Early 70s
By Mike Riconosciuto at Stanford Research Institute.

It is considered by many scientists as pioneering
work in the field of laser applications.

_]—E—Xhibit C_
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D _SPOTLIGHT February 2. 1998

DID FEDS HAVE
FOREKNOWLEDGE?

N "
2 :

Deputies Say Congressman Knew

o

An Oklahoma news report claims a congressman and staff member knew the Oklahoma City bombing was coming.
Two deputy sheriffs say that the federal govern-

ment had foreknowledge of the Oklahoma City bomb-

ing. The congressman they name says it’s not true.

Rt



EXCLUSIVE TO THE SPOTLIGHT
By FreD BLAHUT
Two Oklahoma County reserve
deputy sheriffs, on duty at the Alired .

Murrah Federal Building in Oklahoma -

ity immediaieh following the bomb-
ing in April 1995. claim under oath that
the federal government had prior
knowledge of the event.

On January 15, in downtown Okla-
homa City, state Rep. Charles Key (R,
heid a press conference at which Depu-
ties David Kochendorier and Don Ham-
mons said that thev undersiood Rep.
Ernest J. Istook Jr. (R-Okla.) to indicate
that the federal government had fore-
knowledge of the blast. “We blew it”
they quoted the congressman as saying.

“The statements given today [Jan.
15i at the news conference of state Rep,
Charles Key are wrong,” Istook said in
an official statement. “I have no knowl-
edge that any government entity knew
in advance that the Murrah Building
would be bombed, and I've never said
any differently”- :

The press conference, carried live on
KTOK-AM-1000, was reported in the
Tulsc World, but was conspicuous by its
absence in the Daily Oklahoman.

Hoppy Heidelberg, a disgruntled
member of the original, federal grand
jury, said at the time that it appeared
the government had something to hide.
On January 19, Heidelberg told The
SPOTLIGHT that the Oklahaoman was
represented at the press conferencs,
but no story was forthcoming.

According to Heidelberg, the Okic-
foman is an allv of Gov. Frank Keating
Ri, Istook and of County District
Attorney Bob Macy, whe had tried to
prevent the impaneling of the current
county grand jury.

“Tt happened,” Jerrv Bohnen, news
director at KRTOK, told The SPOT-
LIGHT when informed that there had
heen little national news coverage of
what appears t¢ be a major crack in the
covernments ¢laims that the blast
CANE &S 3 surprise.

Bohnen interviewed the deputies
and reports that Kechendorfer said the
congressman was taiking 1o him on the
day of the blast. Istock reportedly said,
“Yeah, we knew this was going to hap-
pen. We blew it.”

At the same time, the cther deputy,
Hammons. was escorting some of the
congressman's aides around the build-
ing site. Hamrmons says one of the
aides told nim the congressman haa
told her that the government knew
about the coming bombing on April g,

10 davs before the incident.
Fochendorfer told the reporters that
{stook said. additionally, “We got worc
through our sources that there is 2 rad-
ical fundamental Islamic group in
Oklzhoma City and that they were
going 10 homb the federal building.”
When Kochendorfer identified him-

self as being with the Oklahoma Coun-
ty Sheriff’s Office, the congressman
reportedly said, “Oh' I thought Fou
were with the highway patrol” and
immediately left the vicinity.

“Why do they {the federal govern-
ment) refuse to admit that [foreknowl-
edge] and why do they refuse to contin-

ue to look for them [alleged other per-
petrators]?”” Key asked. “Why has it
been so difficult to get to the questions?
Why have we been fought every step of
the way in an unprecedented manner?”

He ended the conference by asking
far “truth to be allowed to get through.
That's all we want,” Key said.



14-SPOTLIGHT October 11, 1999

Both BATF and FBI Knew

About McVeigh; Secretly Blame
One Another for Bombmg

Mare findings in the ongoing independent investigation into
the Oklahoma City bombing were discussed on the Aug. 3 and
4, 1995, broadcasts of The SPOTLIGHTs nightly call-in talk
forum, Radio Free America, with host Tom Valentine.

The guest was Pat Brilev, who has been actively involved in
the investigation. Briley honed his investigative and research
skills as a project manager working in Washington, D. C., in
the 1970s under Adm. Hyman Rickover for the design and con-
struction of the nuclear power plant for the Trident ballistic

missile submarine. He is an Oklahoma City native.

What follows is a combined, edited transcription of two con-
secutive interviews with Briley. Questions by Valentine and his
callers are in boldface. Briley’s responses are in regular type.

What are some of your findings?

There are a lot of areas that need to be
discussed, but right up frant we should
state a number of things.

First of all, if Timothy McVeigh was
indeed involved in this bombing—and it
appears that he was, and likewise with
Terry Nichols—he had a lot of other help.

[t appears, from a lot of very credible
evewitness accounts, and other hard evi-
dence, that there was an Iragi who
nelped McVeigh, whe was with McVeigh
in Oklahoma City the weekend before the
bombing and who was seen driving away
rom the bombing site (right after the
bombing) at a high rate of speed.

Is this John Doe No. 22

Yes, this is John Doe No. 2. He's been
identified. We know what he looks like,
his name, whers he lives. [He is an] Iraqi.
He was one of among 3,000 or mare for-
mer Iragi soldiers who served under Sad-
dam Hussein, who surrendered and who
was brought over here by President Clin-
ton over the objections of many people
here in America. The government has
either used these Iragis andfor lost con-
ol andfor track of them.

The important thing here to remember
is that there is a fareign, Arab connection
here. Besides John Doe No. 2, we have
uncevered two more Arabs who were
heavily inveolved in helping McVeigh and
Nichels in Oklahoma City.

This has all been brought te the atten-
tion ¢f the FBI. We do not feel that they
are doing an adequate job in investigat-
ing or interviewing witnesses or following
up with these Arab leaders.

We don't really know why this is so,
but we do have evidence that they are not
following up on these leads.

We believe the FBI, the BATF and
other law enforcement and intelligence
agencies of the United States not only
had forewarning, but most likely, fore-
knowledge of this bombing attempt.

Thev either (a) failed in their attempts
to stap it or (b allowed it to happen.

We have twn witnesses (one of them
was injured i the bombing, and her hus-
band came up to help her) and they knew
people in the BATF office there in the
building.

Two BATF agents came up to these
witnesses out in the street after the

combing and told them that there was a
bomb scare that morning and that the
people in the BATF who were not there
that day had been told that they do not
have to come to work that morning.

No one else was told that.

Do you believe that the govern-
ment had foreknowledge, in some
way, of the impending bombing in
Oklahoma City?

There is evidence both the FBI and the
BATEF may have had foreknowledge.
There was a meeting June
1995 in Washington between

President Clinton. Attorney Presider
General Reno, the FBI and ; :
the BATF to discuss the Clinton a.
Oklahoma City bombing. Attorne;
A witness who was in the G 5
meeting reported that FBI enerail
and BATF representatives got. Reno kno
into an argument during the
meeting, blarmng each other OOUE Lh
for the fact that each knew
about the impending bombmg secret _
but didn't do enough to stopit. FBI-BAT:
A - .
reporter here in Okla conﬂzct.

homa City talked to the per-
son who was in this meeting.
He got a first-hand description of what
happened.

We have other sources that indicate
the FBI received specific warnings two
months before the bombing and the
BATY at least nine days before the bomb-
ing.

v'\'hs:n [ say warnings, I mean official
warnings, from our own intelligence and
from foreign intelligence. At this point
we're not at liberty to give out specifics,
but I can tell you the information we have
1s solid.

The BATF had two distinet warnings
about McVeigh menths before the homb-



DA {'

ing. Individuals had cailed the BATF and

4% thelr names and phone number. and
~nid the BATE that MceVeigh was iring
o huy erplo:,l've fuels to *n'tke a homb.

The BATT admitted on NBC with Tom
Brokaw that they talked o these individ-
uals. but thev are trying to deny that they
had all the informaticn they needed. So
McVeigh was known to them.

Not only that, but there were also neo-
ole in Mi CHJ‘:‘.}H who calisd the BATE and
compiained about Mc\'eigi': and Nichois.

So they were known to the
BATE
However. we alsn have
information that the BaTF
©mer with McVeigh the night
hafirs the Okinhema sombing.
“Wa have scurces that indicate
he was pald to deliver the
crick to Oklanoma City
l’ll Jatels :r lﬂc" 0 eXonerate
MeVeigh at all or to sav thart he
wag not involved in the bomb-
ing. But we have witnesses
who were at the scene of this
meerting.
We know the FBI was at
the scens and talked to the
same witnesses. And there apparently
were some surveillance tapes that were
confiscated. The BATE and FBI mew
1hout this.

It appears as though the federal
authorities could have prevented
this from happening.

We believe s6. We bhelieve it was more
than just a bomb scare. It is possible they
were aven involved with McVeigh. This s
similar to the World Trade Center bomb-
ing where there were thrze FBI under-
cover agents invoived,

The New York Times on Oct. 28, 1593,
srinted che transeripts of the conversa-

tions between the FBI and the paid
undercover informants in the Arab
groups.

These transcripts prove the FBI knew
the details of the bombing and allowed it
to happen. Now I'm starting to be suspi-
cious about this being the case here in
Oklahoma City.

And we have information that the
BATF actually met with McVeigh the
night before the bombing when he was
driving the Ryder truck. He was paid
52,000

We have many sources on that.

We don't know if they were trying to
preak up an operation—perhaps carry it
only so [ar, and then they lost control of it
or if they atlowed it to happen for political
gain.

v—“h:;-ﬁ-

All we xnow is thar they were heaviiv
invelved 1in the surveillance of McVein:
and we xnow that they are not fellow:ng
up on this Arab lead.

There are witnesses who have 2p-
pearsd on local television down here
about having seen this Iragi both alons
and with McVeigh.

They are practically begging the FEI -0
do something about it. This Iraqi has
been cleariy identified and fits the ¢ "r';.—
nal 2il-points-bulletin description of J
Doe No. 2 to a tee,

He's got an anchor tatice on his am.
He looks just like what the witnesses
have described. Yet the FBI wont touch
him and we dont know why,

Perhaps some people should make’
a little citizens’ arrest and guestion
him themselves.

I think so. There’s a problem here and
T just want to make people aware of this.

We have interviewsd many witnesses
on our own, that we later find the FBI
has interviewed. and all of these witness-

== have said that McVeigh was in  the
company of Arabs—more than jus: the
aforementioned [ragi, I might add.

To the best of our knowledge the FBI
has not interviewed any of these Arabs.

We have a lady who is an eyewitness
who saw this Iragi driving a brown
Chevrolet pickup truck away from the
scene of the bombing, right afterward
and he nearly ran this witness over. This
1s the same pickup truck the FBI put out
an all-points-bulletin on immediately
after the bombing.

This woman went to the FBI,

We also have many witnesses who say

they saw this Iragi with McVeigh the
weekend before the bombing.

There is a major naﬁonal news black-
out about the breadcasts by KFOR-TV
{Channel 4) that have reported on this
Iraqt and about the witnesses who testify
te having seen McVeigh in the company
of this Iraqi. Even the NBC network
(KFOR's national affiliate) has put a lid
on this coverage.

What about the rofe of Gov. Frank
EKeating of Oklahoma?

Consider the governor’s conduet sinee
the bombing. The governor has publicly
attacked people who raised questions
about the investigaticn. He did it in the
same way that Bill Clinton did, saying
that if you raise any questions you are
“anti-government” or that vou are “in a
mih'tia” or a “conspiracy nut.”

There was a lady named Edye Smith.
She lost two of her children in the dav
care center. She was interviewed on C-
SPAN and she asked why there were only
five people in the BATF office in the Mur-
rah building when normally there were

15. All she did was raise the question.

The goverror immediately came out on
relevisinn and said, assenuially, “This lady
15 hysterical and ['m going to send some
uPODle over 1o see her to set her straight.”

The next morning agents of the IRS
the BATF, the '\f[arqhala Service and the
Secret Service appeared on her porch in a
line (this was on television) and scared
her.

Both she and her mother are emplaoy-
zes of the TRS, so their jobs were on the
line. Thats the firs: thing the governer
did.

Then there is KFOR, a television sta-
tion in Oklahoma City, that has done
some excellent reporting on the Iragi con-
nectior. Another station *ried to repudi-
ate their piece, bur failed. However, the
governor called KFOR “irresponsible”
and said they had no integrity whatsoev-
er and tried to beat them down and say
people shouldn't listen to them,

There was a group of experts who met
here in Oklahoma City who were exar-
ining the possibility of other hombs (other
than the official government story.) The
governor attacked these people and
called them anti-covernment nuts.

There have been reports that the
architect who designed the Murrah
building recommended the building
could easily be rebuilt from what
remained and yet there was a yush to
demolish it (and thereby, of course,
cover up any evidence within).

I'm glad vou raised that point. The
architect strongly suggested that it would
be more cost effective to rebuild the strue-
ture. However, Gov. Keating had the
mayor of Oklahoma City call the archi-

tect to his office. Once again we are back
to Keating. He wanted this building torn
dowmn as soon as possibie.

This was at a time when experts across
the country were begging this congress-
men in Washington for the opportunity to
examine the building further.

Even the defense attornevs had to beg
a judge to go into the ruins and they were
only allowed to go in for just a few hours.

The rationale given for the hurry
demolish the building was that there was
ane body left in the rubble and it was nec-
essary to do it so that the survivers could
claim the body of their loved one. The
governor—the cover-up artist—led the
charge on this one, once again., 7




Some people believe this photo has no significance. Others believe it is
more evidence against the federal government. It shows a “second” Ryder
rental truck concealed behind screens within'a National Guard training
center in Oklahoma. The nearby car (circled) could be the “white Corsica”
spotted by several persons near the Dreamland Motel where a person said
by the government to be Timothy McVeigh purportedly stayed prior to the
bombing. Independent mvestigators actually hélieve that more. than one
Ryder truck did, in fact, play a part in the bombing conspiracy.
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Okl_ahoma Bomb
Withesses ‘Disap

As in the Whitewater af
fair, Oklahoma City bomb-
ing witnesses are dying fast.

EXCLUSIVE T THE SPOTLIGHT
By Mike Brar

Two key witnesses (n the Cklahoma
ity bormhing case did not appear 1o tes-
iy at the Denver trial of Timathy Me-

Zn. one of the two accused of being
responsible for the bombing, because
they are dead.

One death has been [abeled a suicide.
The other victim was Idlled in an air
crash. Both deaths took place under
questionable circumstances.

The supposed sujeide is Qklahowma
Clty Police Officer Terrance Yeakey. Dr.
Howard D, Chumley was killed when
his airplane crashed on a flight from
Amarillo, Tex., to Guthrie, Okla.

Yeakey is one of those cited for extra-
ordinary bravery right afier the bomb-
ing of the Alfred E. Murrah Federal
Office Building in Oklahoma City or res-
cuing four people from the devastated
structure before he fell through a fleor
and injured his back.

Official reports claim Yeakey slashed
his wrists, one twice and the other three
times, placed two slits in a vein at the
bend of the elbow of one arm and four at

| What Realty 7‘
|
|
|

Viohk

......

| _Happened to
| Terrance Yeakey?

The Medusa File on Terrance Yea-
i key: This audio cassette tape features
' an exclusive interview with Tonig
| Yeakey, the widow of Oklahoma City

Police Officer Terry Yeakey who pur-
" portedly committed suicide, However,
there is evidence that Officer Yeakey
was first tortured and then murdered.
Yeakey scw and heard things in and
around.the Murrah building immedi-
ately following the Okizhoma City
bombing which led him to believe that
| the government was covering up the
| truth about the bombing. “Its not
| what they are portraying it to be,”
Yeakey told his wife. Tb order copies of
this shocking reportiby Mrs. Yeakey,
use the-coupon on page 22 of this spe- |
cial isstte. - o .

the bend of the albow of the ather, and
then siabbed himseif with the knife i
bath sides of the throat, near the jugaliar
veln. Then he wziked one-and-a-naif
miles where he shot himself in the side
of the head. The huilet entered the
dpper temple an the right side and exit-
ed below th2 upner jaw hone on the ek

sice, meaning the zun would have been .

pointed in a downward angle -a most
unlikely way for a person bent on suj-
cide to hold a gun,

HARO TO BELIEVE

“The burning question hers i3 why he
didn't just shoot himself in the first
place, if suicide was his aim,” one inves-
tigator remarked.

Police in Oklahoma claim that Yeakey
had become devressed becauss of guilt
that he was unabie to save more people.
He was scheduled to receive the Okla-
homa City Police Department’s Medal of
Valor.

Yeakey, police claim, left no suicide
note. However, The SPOTLIGHT has
obtained a copy of a letter he sent to a
victim of the bombing who was ques-
tioning the federal government’s claims
about the cause of the tragedy and those
accused as the perpetrators,

Highlights from his letter follow:

The man that you and I were talk-
ing about in the pictures I have made
the mistake of asking too many ques
tions as to his role in the bombing and
was told to back off. ..

I'was told by several officers he was
a ATF agent who was overseeing the
bombing plot and at the time the pho-
tos were taken he was calling in his
report of what had just went down!

Knowing what [ know now and
understanding fully just what went
down that moring makes me
ashamed to wear a badge from Okla-
homa City’s Police Department. [ took
an oath to uphold the law and to
enforce the law to the best of my abil-
ity. This is something { cannot honest-
ly do and hold my head up proud any
longer if I keep my silence as I am
ordered to do ..

The sad truth of the matter is that
they have so many police officers con-
vinced that by covering up the truth
about the operation gone wrong, that
they are actually doing our citizens a
favor. What I want to know is how
many other operations have they had
that blew up in their faces? Makes you
stop and take another look at
Waco ...,

Even if [ tried to explain it to you
the way it was explained to me and

pearing’

the ridiculous reason for having our
own police department falsify reports
to their fellow officers, to the citizens
of the city and to our country, you
would feel the way [ do about all of

this. ..

Aceording to his death certificate,
Yeakey's body was found in a field about
two-and-a-half miles west of the El
Reno - Oklahoma? Reformatory.

“About two weeks before his death,
he'd come into my home at strange
times—2:30 in the morning, 4 in the
morning, unannounced, rving to give
me life insurance policies,” Yeakev's ex-
wife stated. “He kept telling me we
needed to get remarried immediately, or
me and the girls would not be taken
care of . .. [ mean, why would a guy tell
you to take a life insurance policy, know-
ing damn well it wouldn't pay for a sui-
cide? He obviously knew he was in dan-
ger . ..

Two key pages are missing from the

ietter, which was apparently written on
4 computer. Independent investigators
have verified the letter to be authentic,
according to retired FRBI Senior Special
Agent Ted L. Gunderson.

According to reports, described to
The SPOTLIGHT by Gunderson,
Chumley was approached shortly after
the bombing and asked to falsify reports
concerning injuries that BATF agents
suffered when the building was bombed.

The physician flatly refused to make
any reports of injuries that didn’t oceur.
When he learned that another doctor in
the Oklahoma City area had agreed to
make the false reports, he objected and
threatened to tum the physician in to
medical authorities.

Chumley was killed on Sept. 24,
1895, while the plane he was piloting
from Amarillo to Guthrie was in a climb
and suddenly plunged into a field. He
was killed instantly. v
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;leads Ignoranée -

&foreknowledge of the
QELEloma City bombing. The
congressman they name says
il's not true.

st »E:I_ECLLEWE TO THE SPOTLIGHT
- By FreED Branur

- TworOklahoma County reserve de-
puty: $Heriffs, on duty at the Alfred P
Murrah Federal Building in Oklahoma
City immediately following the bombing -
n April'1995, claim under oath that the
federal .government had prior knowl-
edge of a plan to bomb the building.

On Jan. 15, 1998, in downtown Olkla-
homa City, state Rep. Charles Key (R)
held a press conference at which Depu-
ties David Kochendorfer and Don Ham-
mons ‘said that they understood Rep.
Ernest J. Istook Jr. (R-Okla.) to indicate
that the federal government had fore-
knowledge -of the blast. “We blew it,” -
they quoted the congressman as saying.

“The statements given today [Jan. 15)

at the news conference of state Rep. .
Charles Key are wrong,” Istook said in- .

an official statement. “I have no knowl- - : tice, 41 o0 fman.
- portedly said, “Oh! I thought you ‘were

edge that any government entity knew
in advance that the Murrah building-
would be bombed, and T've never said
any differently.” . o

-The press conference, carried live on

KTOK-AM-1000, was, reported in,,the...

Tilsa World;but was conspicuous by its -
absence in Oklahoma Citys.The Daily
Oklahoman. . . :
- Hoppy - Heidelberg, a disgruntled
member of the original, federal grand
Jury, said at the time that it appearsd
the government had something to hide.
On Jan. 19, Heidelberg told The SPOT-
LIGHT that the Oklahoman was repre-
sented at the press conference, but no
story appeared in that paper. 5
According to Heidelberg, the Okla-
homan is an ally of Gov. Frank Keating

{R), Istook and County District Atter-

ney Bob Macy, who had triedfo prevent
the impaneling of a sécond gragld Jury
nQuiry. ca... ., . . . -

“t happe;n_ed_,”_.]’e:’ry“ gqlllpep,,,news

director at KTOK, told The SPOT-
LIGHT, when informed that there had
been little national news coverage of
what appears to be a major crackin the
government’s claims that the blast came
as a surprise:

Beohnen interviewed the deputies and
reports that Kochendorfer said the con-
gressman was talking to him on the day
of the blast. Istook reportedly said,
“Yeah, we knew this was going to hap-
pen- We blew 1t7 .- S

“At the same time, the other deputy,
Hammons, was escorting some of the
congressman's aides dround the build-
ing site. Hammons said one of the aides
told him the congressman had told her
that the government knew on April 9
about a bombing conspiracy, 10 days be-
fore the incident. AR

Kochendorfer told the reporters that
Istook said, additionally: “We got word
through our scurces that there is &'rad-
ical fundamental Islamic, group in Okla- _
homa City and that they were going to
bomb the federal building.”. . -

When . Kochendorfer identified him-
self as being with the Oklahoma County
Sheriff’s” Office, «the congressman: re-

with the highway. patrol,” and immedi-

ately left the vicinity, .~ -
“Why do_they {the federal govern-

- ment] refuse .to ,a}}.ﬁﬁit'ph}i't:’ [forekmowl-

edge] and why do théy refuse to contin-
ue t6"100k for them [alleged othe? perpe-
trators]? Key asked. “Why has it heen

so difficult to get to the qiiestions? Why

have we been fought every step of the
way in an unprecedented manner?”
Key ended the conference by asking
for “truth to be allowed to get through.
That’s all we want.” ¥

e
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' ment on Jan. 15, 1998;
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| 7 Fallowing is the te_rt of Rep.

i know of ne such conspiracy.

" tions.”T have confidence in the grand  bombing. Above,BATFagents Stand-

- can. We need ’co tet them do’ their job statements to e a6 " em*wlﬁfﬁe:r

“CHls Keft “He's had~ almot’ hree T and my Stalf have® wavked'ﬁarfw'

_befor%(he embarraSsed_h_lmself thh a

Istook Demes Report of F orekncmledge

Ernest Istook’s (R-Okla.} state-

“The statements given today at the
news conference of state Rep. Charles
Key are wrong. I have no Lowledge
that any government entity knew in -
advance that the Murrah building
would be bombed, and Tve never said
any differentiy. .

“Everyone who Xnows me knows I
would not sit idle if I knew of 2 conspir-
acy of silence. [ would never rest until
such a conspiracy was exposed. Buf [

“Tt’s time that all of us stop mistaking §
rumors and  misunderstandings for
facts. Anyone senously mterested in the
truth will do what I do: Cooperate with -
law enforcement aznd investizators, claims of two deputy sheriffs Who
rather than using news conférences to  gaid they heard Istook make incrim-
pubhczze false clairas and exaggera- inating remarks regarding the” OK’

jury and District Attorney Bob Macy to
continue to identify and prosecute those

responsxble for this act of terror, and I - — R ———
will continue to help them every way I’ - ““The“two > attribute

amidst a pile of rubble frdinfthe'

rather than wasting their time and it beby misunderstanding or otherwise,
em:rgj, and our money, mllowmcr Wﬁd— They may sign any afidavit they -wish
gooéze chases. . {They bave.—Ed], but'the fact‘”isT d;&*

s dlsapgomted in 1y, friend, - not say what they elaim

years to ask me about this supposedl}rlj;.»supporf the Fictims” throughott ¢ thzse‘
‘new’ information—and he never both-" ordeal” Tve done everything - éan &5
ered. I could have set him stralght make SUIe thatthls tragedyls nerthar

e,
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Private Spy Agency Was
Monitoring McVeigh Over a Year

gefore Oklahoma Gity Tragedy

The Anti-Defamation League (ADL) is up to its old
tricks, blaming its enemies for its own crimes. It is clear
that the ADL played a part in the OKC tragedy. This is
why the ADL accuses this newspaper of exactly what if is
guilty of in order to cover up its own criminal guilt.
Here's an update on this amazing story.

EXCLUSIVE TO THE SPOTILIGHT
By MicHaeL CoOLLINS PIPER

On May 22, 1895, The SPOTLIGHT
first published evidence that Oldahoma
City bombing suspect Timothy McVeigh
was (n close, and probably sustained.
iong-time contact with an agent of the
Anti-Defamartion League (ADL) of B'nal
Brith who was operating in McVeigh's
immediate circle. This demonstrates
that the ADL had McVeigh under sur-
veillance for some time. How The
SPOTLIGHT came to discover the ADL-
McVeigh conpection is an interesting
story in itself.

On Apri 21, 1995, just two days after
the bombing, The “Washington Post
reported, to the surprise of The SPOT-
LIGHT, that in the fail of 1993—nearly
two years before the bombing—
McVeigh, purpertedly using an assumed
name, “T. Tuttle,” had taken out a clas-
sified advertisement in The 3SPOT-
LIGHT.

According to the Post, the source of
this information was a press release
from the ADL, The ADL claimed the ad-
vertisement promoted a “rocket launch-
=r.” In reality, the sc-called “rocket
launcher” was a flare gun. The ad ulso
offered a pepper spray ey chain.

Needless to say, The SPOTLIGHT
wus surprised to learn from the Post
that McVeigh had advertised in this
newspaper. When alerted to this allega-
tion, The SPOTLIGHT's advertising
staff underwent a iaboricus and time-
consuming effort to locate the advertise-
ment and the paperwork relating to the

purported transaction with “T. Turtle.”

Somehow, the ADL had been able wo
dig up this cbscure fact with little diffi-
culty and The SPOTLIGHT assumed
that the ADL's well-heeled and nighly
sophisticated intelligence apparatus
nad all of The SPOTLIGHT s ads on 113
computer database.

However, The SPOTLIGHT learned
from a source with close ties to the ADL
that the ADL had learned of McVeigh
having advertised in The SPOTLIGHT
from what The SPOTLIGHTs source
described as an “inside source” in
McVeigh's circle of acquaintances.

[n other words, McVeigh was either
associating so closely with an ADL cper-
ative that the ADL knew that he had
advertised in The SPOTLIGHT using
an alias. or dlcVeigh was associating
with someone who was in turn provid-
ing information on McVeigh's activities
to semeone working for the ADL.

Here we can report for the first time
why The SPOTLIGHT can state, with
certainty, that the ADL did not obtain
the information ahout McVeigh's adver-
tisement simply by reviewing The
SPOTLIGHT from week to week znd
why it had to have come from a scurce
ciose 1o MeVeigh.

Although McVeigh had contracted -
run the same advertisement in several
consecutive issues, the ad did not run
the first week (Aug. 9, 1993) for which it
was scheduled.

Yet, when the ADL released 1ts “facrs”
about McVeigh's ad, the ADL reported
that the ad had first run in that issue.

The o did aot sz Sor the Srstocim

arer. in the Ayg 17

Loang weei

1993 issue.

[n nther words. the ADL knew
rhrourh g source ciase to MeVaigh thge
the ad had been scheduled to run in the
Aug. 9issue. Whar the ADL did not real-
‘ze when it (ssued its press release was

thar the ad, in Zact. had not run z:
scheduled.

The ADL did not snow about an in-
house scheduling cornflict at The SPOT-
LIGHT that had prevented the ad from
mnearing in the Aug. 9. 1993 issue. ve:
rhe ADL had mistakenly assumed thar
“ae advertisement had run on that date.
Thus, the ADL slipped up and proved
that it was privy (perhaps even in
advance) to the fact that McVeigh
intended to advertise in The SPOT-
LIGHT in the first place.

What is interesting is that in a later
edition of that same issue of The Waush-
ington Post, the Post reprinted the sanie
rather lengthy article in which the
ADL’s reference to McVeigh's advertis-
ing in The SPOTLIGHT appeared, but
deleted the single reference to the ADL
and McVeigh's advertisement.

The ADL had clearly discovered its
mistake by that point and arranged
with the Post to have the evidence of its
apparent foreknowledge of McVeigh's
activities deleted. From that point for-
ward the ADL continuad to make refer-
ence to McVeigh having advertised in
The SPOTLIGHT, but it was cautious
never to use the first date that it had
initially claimed in its press release to
The Washington Post.

Obviously, dMcVeigh was well known
to the ADL prior to the bombing. So
what did the ADL know and when did it
know it? Was the ADL somehow manip-
ulating McVeigh, and, if so, why?
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Cable News Network reported in
June 1995 thar as long as two years
iore the bombing, McVeigh was under
survetllance bv undercover operatives
i an Arizena gun show. So there is con-
frmacon fom the “mainstream media”
hat MeVelgh was indeed being watched
TR ANY agencies.

S Wasiungeon Post also reported on
June 3, 1995—buried deep in an other-
I INNOCUOUS St0rv—that it was one or
MeVewrh's associutes who firse tipped ff
rie FBI that MeVeigh might have been
involved in the bombing,

This contradicts the sffieial story hat
MceVeigh's arrest came about ssleiv
Sevdlse a sharp-eved loeal oolice vilicer
sported McVeigh's resemblance to ~he

izetea of the “Jonn Doe No. 1° bormoing
suspect that had been circuiztad.

Thus the question: Was tre MceVergn
Assoclate who tipped off the FBI also the
ADL informant who supplied the ADL
with details of McVeigh's advertising in
The SPOTLIGHT?

The ADL has a long nistory of report-
g s findings to government agencies

=l

-ucn as the FBL and the BATF and the
LA not o mention to [srael’s intell].
sence service, the Mossad. Is it alzo a
etch of the imagination to ask
wnether any of these agencies thus had
advance “inside” knowledge of Mec-
Seigh's activities and his intentions?

If McVeigh is indeed responsible for
the Oklahoma City bombing, then it is
“he responsibility of the law enforce-
mient agencies to come clean and inves-
nzate the ADLs connection with
tleVeigh and those in his immediate cir-
“a of acquaintances. (For more on the
:irange characters with apparent ingel-
.igence connections wha were operating
-0 McVeigh's circles, see the story on
nages 6 and 7 of this issue of The SPOT-
LIGHT)

It has been documented, time and
:gain. that the ADL has, for vears, de-

aved agents inside 1 wide variety of
Aiteal organizaticns. For example, in
womid-1930s a maverick New York
uniisher. Lyle Stuart, exposed how
22 ADL was actually financing a rag-
g “neo-nazi” organization that had a
culiar habit of engaging in loud pub-
¢ demonstrations outside synagoguas
~ the New York City area at precisely
ne same time the ADL was engaging
2 fund-raising efforts in the Jewish
smmunity to “fight the neg-Nazi
¥

areat.”

‘Iraqi Connection’ Could
Point to Mossad Role

If an Iragi was involved with Timothy McVeigh in the
Oklahoma City bombing, this could actually point q
finger in the direction of Israel’s Mossad. Here’s why.

Some have suggested an “Arab connection” to the Oklahoma City tragedy
an the basis that prior to the bombing Timothy McVeigh was often seen in the
company of an [ragi national living in the Unired States.

However, what many uninformed investigators fail to unders:and is that,
more than likely, if an Iragi living ‘n the United States wers involved in the
bombing, his role would peint in an opposite direction, Le. that [rags longtime
foe—TIsrael’s intelligence service, the VMossac—had a hand in the tragedy,

According to the investigaters on the scene in Oklahoma City. the Iragi
national who was in McVeizgh's company was one of some 3,000 Zrmer Tragi
soldiers who had either surrendered or were captured by U.S. forces during
the Gull War.

Tuese soldiers—many of whom were forced Lo Aght by their government—
came to the United States, sponsored by U.S. tax dollars. Obviously, the Unit-
ed States did not permit former war-time enemies still loyal te Iraqi leader
Saddam Hussein to come to this country. Because these Iragis (now in the
states} were enemies of Saddam they would be ripe for manipulation by Sad-
dam's sworn foes, the Israelis.

Evidence shows the Israelis do have o long history of using Arah “front men”
tor *false flags” in intelligence jargon) in covert operations.

In such a case, the [ragi national (aperating for the Mossad} would have led
the conspirators (including perhaps even McVeigh} to believe that he (the
[raqi} was actually pro-Saddam and that the Iragis were funding terrorism in
America.
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The Anti-Defamation League (ADL) has been forced into a defensive
discovery (and subsequent widespread

stance over Liberty Lobby's
publicizing) of the fact that the ADL had an undercover operative

the inner circle of convicted Oklahoma bomber Timothy McVeigh
over a year before the bombing. The Sept. 19, 1997, issue of Forward,
featured a headline story (shown
above) in which the ADL denounced Liberty Lobby for circulating a
report that documents the ADUs “inside” knowledge of McVeigh’s
activities. What is interesting {(and revealing) is that the ADL never
once addresses any of the three specific allegations made in Liberty
Lobby’s report. Instead the ADL deliberately diverts attention by say-
ing that Liberty Lobby’s allegations were based on un-related state-
ments about militia groups that the ADL made six months before the

an influential pro-Israel weekly,

bombing. Clearly the ADL has something to hide,

in
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l < The Plot 1o Implicate The SPOTLIGHT
In the Okiahoma City Bomhing

| THE SPOTLIGHT.
x
» 4&‘: L ASPOTLIGET prepaid caling card  purchased under the wias "Darv! Bridges™.
S a2 by Timothy McVeigh fand othzrs - 1o make cal's during the plan-

was purportedly
aing of the bombing. Someone claiming to ke “Darvi Bndges” called The SPOTLIGHT
nack ustng

and zaid the rard didn't work and asked a SPOTLIGHT szafer <o call him ka
ehe card. Someens was rying w make it look as sheugh MeVeigh was calling direqr
v trom The SPOTLIGHT's office,

TR 2

»

v

*\:«z- o
L
Prepaid Calling Card

J

2 Minsteen montns before che bombing, T Turtle” purchased a classified ad n —
The 3POTLIGHT. Two davz after the bombing, the ADL anncurced that T Tut-

SURVIVAL

LAW LALNCHER REPLICA firss 37mm Flares, 2

sie” was McVeigh, Evidence now shows the only way the ADL could have known

e’ was Mcbeigh. mapm-' O STIOWS Bhe Pioy e A [aUalgh e Fares inct. $125. ea AdG fares $12 sa. Pepoer

the specific detarls about the ad was if the ADL had someone = MeVeigh's inner Cra $10 e Mm? Crers ony. T Tut-

cirele sand who probably grompted McVeigh to purchase the ad tie 1 }H ockton Hik, #206, Kingman, Az 86401,
FO0n Aprid 17, 1825—uwo days sefdre the bombinz—someadns anoavmously mailed

a posteard from Oklanoma City to The SPOTLIGHT, It was a famous Depression Era
ohoto =ntitled “Black Sunday” picturing 2 dust sterm approaching Oklahoma. The
card arrived the day arter the bombing. The hand+Titing was neither Meleigh's nor
Terry Nichols” Semeone eise—another *John Doe”—had forelnowladge of the bomb-
ing and was trying to iink The SPOTLIGHT. Had we not reported the card to the FBI,
3 “zource” would have tipped off the FBI and The SPOTLIGHT would have been
accused of "hiding evidence.” The FBI refuses to commeant publicly about this evidence.

OKLAHOMA - 1935

Personal . . . From the Editor

It's official. Attorney General Janet Reno has an-
nounced that the government lied to the Amerjcan peo-
ple about what really happened at Waco. Until her
momentous announcemeut, those who had questions
about Waco were demonized by the media as “anti-gov-
ernment extremists,” “bigots,” “kooks” and “fear-mon-
gers.” But now the truth is out.

There’s also much more to the story of the Oklahoma
City bombing and the government has been deliberate-
ly covering up this evidence.

In fact, there’s no doubt that some in the government
knew something was going to happen at the Murrah
Building that day. Was there a horrible blunder? Was it
a “sting” gone awry? Who covered it up? These are the
questions that need to be addressed. Independent inves-
tigators—outside the government—have tried to bring
up these issues, but their efforts have been ignored or
| branded as *kookie” by the so-called “majinstream me-
dia” In America.

That’s where The SPOTLIGHT has stepped in and
filled the void over the past several years. This special
“All Oklahoma City” issue of The SPOTLIGHT features a
compilation of facts about the bombing suppressed by
both the government and the major media. If any of this
information sounds “new” to you, that’s because it is.
This information has never been reported by Time or
Newsweek or The New York Times or The Washington
Post. The big media has been the most important part of
the cover-up. . : L T

Be sure to see the article by former Oklahoma state

" Rep. Charles Key. He’s been spearheading independent

efforts to investigate the bombing and for doing so, he
has been vilified by politicians and the media for daring
to question the official government line on the tragedy.

Key asks the poignant question about the Oklahoma
tragedy that every responsible party in power should be
demanding: “If some in the government have lied to us
about Waco, what else is the government lying to us
about?”

We couldn’t put it any better than that.
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Fertilizer Truck Bomb
Couldn’t Be Responsible

A retired military explo-
stves expert says the gov-
ernment’s “fertilizer truck
bomb” story is hogwash.

By Trisaa Katsoxy

A Z5-year expert on explosives and
iemolition has called for a congression-
2l investigation to officially determine
“he initiators of the tragic Oklahoma
~ity bombing which killed 168 people
and injured hundreds of others.

Ben Partin, a retired brigadier gen-
aral in the United States Air Force, has
arovided every member of Congress a
letailed, comprehensive report of his
analysis of the April 19 bombing.

The general contends the explosion
vas caused in part by demolition
-harges placed at critical structural
>oints inside the building.

The official story by the Clinton
idministration’s FBI, accepted virtual-
¥ without question by the Establish-
Tent media, is that the bombing was
:aused solely by a single truck homb
-onsisttag of 4,800 pounds of ammoni-
im nitrate transported to the location
1 a Ryder truck which was parked out-
ide the building.

Partin said the destruction to the
uilding could not have passibly result-
d from such a bomb alone.

To verify his analytical conclusions,
‘artin visited Oklahoma City during
1e last week of June 1995, where he
ad the opportunity to review hun-
-=ds of photographs taken throughout

.2 cleanup operation.

The photos, taken before the debris
15 hauled off and buried at another
2, provide, in Partin’s view, “irrefut-
sle evidence that at least four demsli-
»n charges were set off at four critical

fumns- of the reinforeed concrete

structure at the floor level of the third
floor.”

Says Partin: “Based on my experi-
ence in weapons development and
bomb damage analysis, and on my
review of all evidence available, T can
say, with a high level of confidence, that
the damage pattern on the reinforeed
concrete superstructure could not Z0s-
sibly have been attained from a single
truck bomb without supplementing
demolition charge.

“The total incompatibility of this pat-
tern of destruction with a single truck
bomb lies in the simple, incontrovert-
ible fact that some of the columns col-
lapsed that should not have collapsed if
the damage was caused solely by a
truck bomb, and some of the columns
were left standing that should have col-
lapsed if the damage had been caused
by the truck bomb.”

The architect of the Alfred P. Murrah
Building, Partin said, agrees with the
retired general's assessment. “In my
discussions with the building arehi-
tect.” said Partin, “he told me that the
residual building was structurally
sound and that the Murrah building
could have been rebuilt. This ig totally
consistent with the collapse of columns
with demolition charges because the
inflicted structural damage is local-
1zed.”

PRESERVE LIBERTIES

Partin has requested that action on
so-called anti-terrorism legislation,
which raised serious civi) liberty ques-
tions, be deferred until the causes of
the bombing are determined by inde-
pendent investigators. That measure,
introduced in Congress in February
1995, was going nowhere until the tra-
gic borbing cccurred.

Each lawmaker has been provided

by Partin with & packet of documenta-
tion including 2 letter, an 1l-page
report. nis biography, charts and color
photographs documenting his analysis.

Partin's background includes 25
years in weapons developmernt. He was
also the first cha:rman of the OSD
‘Office of the Secretary of Defense)
Joint service Air Munitions Regquire-
ments and Development Committee.

The report conciudes: "The primary
reinforeed concrete structural falure
salely aziributable to the truck bomb is
the stripping out ot the ceilings of the
first and second floors in the ‘pit’ area
behind columns B+ and B3."

The effort required to bomb the
building, said Partin, “pales [n compar-
ison with the effort to cover it up. It is
truly unfortunate that a separate and
independent bomb damage assessment
was not made during the cleanup—
before the building was demolished on
May 23. 1995, and hundreds of truck
loads of debris were hauled away,
smashed down and covered with dirt
behind a security fence.”

Whether any member of Congress,
after having been presented with this
evidence, will go public with the infor-
mation is another matter.

“The bottom line is” an aide to a
Republican congressman told The
SPOTLIGHT, “is there anybody in Con-
gress with the Intestinal fortitude to
challenge the powerful forces behind
the orthodex version of what happened
in Oklahoma City?”

Other points in Partin’s report in-
clude:

* Heavily reinforced concrete beams
can be destroyed effectively through
detonation of explosives in contact with
the rewnforced concrete beams. The
entire building remains in Oklahoma
City were collapsed with 100-plus rela-
tively small cherges inserted into
drilled holes in the columns. The total
weight of all charges was on the order
of 200 pounds.

* Blast-through air is a very ineffi-
clent energy coupling mechanism
against heavily reinforced concrete
beams and columns. Blast damage
potential initially falls off more rapidly
than an inverse function of the distance
cubed, which is why in conventional
weapons development, one seeks accu-
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Murrah building as it appeared after the terrorist blast that
zi.led scores of Americans.

BEN PARTIN
... Has serious doubts.

* This leaves a relatively smooth but
sranular surface, with protruding, hare
-intorcement rods—a distinetive sio-
nture of contact sxplosives. The etfeer
[ the contact explosive on the rein.
wrcement rods cwhich are inertiallv
confined and only see a wave of plastic
deformation) can only be seen under
microscopic metallurgical examination.

* When a reinforced concrete strue-
rure s damaged through air <hock cou-
viing and the pressure below the

mpressive vield strength of the oon-
vt the fullure mode s ceneradic
campresstve structural friacture 5noope
sde and tensile fracture on the Sther—
coth characterized by cracks and rough
tructure surtaces. Such 2 surface tex.
ture is very different from the smaoth
zranular surface resulting trom contact
¥
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Soon after the Murrah building was damaged by explosives, it was
leveled by the federal government. One investigator finds this odd, in
1e architect believed that the building could nave been rebuilt
its structural integrity had been maintained. The debris from
“he demolition was hauled away, smashed down and covered with

dirt behind a security fence.

=xplosives.
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WERE THESE MEN INVOLVED IN THE OKLAHOMA BOMBING? These two have yet to be
identified, although federal employee and bombing survivor Jane Graham saw them inside
the Murrah huilding acting suspiciously the day hefore the bombing. Who are they? Have
you ever seen these men? Can vou identity them and resolve this controversy? They appear
on the new video, Coveraap in Oklahoma, - See ad page 2 of thiy issue.;




Jane Graham (shown above), a survivor of the Cklaboma bombing,
has deseribed two mysterious men she saw the day before the tragedy
inside the Alfred P. Murrah Federal Building. Her shocking revela-
tions appear in the updated version of the video, Cover-up in Okla.
homa (which can be ordered by using the coupon on page 24 of this
issuel. Mrs. Graham said that on April 18, 1995 she saw the two men—
whom she described as memorably grim and unpleasant—roaming
the Murrah building with what appeared to be plans of the building.
She did not recognize the men as regular building workers but
assumed they had a right to be there. According to Mrs. Grabam,
when the two men realized they had been seen, they hurriedly closed
the papers they had been locking over and moved on. The next day, at
902 am. on April 19, 1995, 168 men, women and children were killed
in the worst act of terrorism in the history of the United States. It was
not until much later, when she saw a fleeting television news video,
taken outside of the Murrah building following the bombing, that Mi=.
Graham recognized the two men on the video as'the men she had seen
Yet no one in Oklahoma City seems to be able to identify the two men
and the federal aunthorities have refused to accept her testiriony

P

about thismatter. ™~~~ o B2

§ where approximately 300 million tons of concreté and’s
Alfred P. Murrah Federal Building was takeri after the bo
vate mvestigntor_s, who'_wished.;d i Y o

s AT e

ABOVE, A DUMP TRUCK REMOVES RUBBLE from the wreckage of, .
the Murrah buildin. It is hidden over the hill in the distance, buned“'
below the Earth. The picture was taken at some distance gff the fam]f sl
ity because investigators were kept from inspecting the site. B
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Tragedies Explozted

Special interests have a
long history of turning
tragedy tnto legislation.

EXCLUSIVE TO THE SPOTLIGHT
By ANDREW ARNOLD

The bombing of the Alfred P Murrah
Fn‘ticz';il Building in Oklahomua Citv un

il 13, 1993, has gone down on record
|~ one of the most tragic events in U3
;.J.}T,f)!_v‘q_

Jut this rerrorizm. like too many
nther Cf\m;t'npr& of the 20th century.
his been used by the zovernment and
soectal interest groups 0 ol Americans
of their rights.

For example, it seems that whenever
a tragic attack on a rminority occurs,
someone clamors for more race-based
legislation. Never mind that states
already have laws for assault, murder,
arson and scores of other violent crimes.

The trend has moved bevond race, to
irclude sexual preference, gender and
religion. This tendency has been grow-
ing for at least 40 years and promises to
continue.

For instance, Congress passed the
Effective Death Penalty and Anti-Ter-
rorism Act in 1996, This law, which
passed 91-8 in the Senate and by a 229-
191 margin in the House, was dubbed
“the Bill of Right Decimation Act” by
critics.

[n a message to the Senate on May 3,
15935, the president called for an anti-
terrorism bill in response to che Okla-
homa City bombing.

“The tragic bombing of the Murrah
Federal Building in Oklahoma City on
April 19 stands as a challenge to all
Americans to preserve a safe society,” he
sald. “In the wake of this cowardly
atfack on lnnecent men, women and
¢hlidren, bllowing other terrorist inci-
dents at home and abroad over the past
several years, we must ensure that law
anlorcement authorities have the legal
tools and resources they need to fight
terrorism,”

[n the name of stopping terrorism.
the bill gave the president the power to
outiaw charitable contributions to legal

JIM BRADY
. Tragic shooting manipulated.

zetivities by claiming the oreanizations
were linked to groups the president
deems to be terrorists. This begs of
selective prosecunion. [n other words, if
vou gave a hospital blanket to the wrong
charity, you could be locked up for 10
years and flned.

Another chilling feature of the law is
that it allows 175, courts to admit secret
evidence in deportation cases. Critics
fear secret evidence is @ Pandora’s Box
that will come back to haunt all Amert-
cans.

The law aiso allows the federal gov-
ernument to investigate Americans with-
out evidence of criminality. This expan-
sicn  of counterintelligence probes
threatens your privacy. Feds can check
vowr telephone records, employment,
travel information, credit reports ete,
without cause. All the FBI has o do is
rell a judge vou may be in contact with a
forelgn agent.

“Some  will remember the FBIs
worthless investizgations: In tne 19305 of
1.3, citizens opposed o our foreign pol-
ey in Central America,” former Rep.
Don Edwards 1D-Calif) wrote in The
San Jose Mercurv News before the bill

to Steal Rights

was passed. "I the name of Sghting
mternational terroriam, the FBI monji.
tored peaceful demonsirations against
L3, military aid to El Salvador, spied
on groups housed in churches, and
interviewed travelers to Nicaragua

Edwards had that law changed in
1994, His omendment said the FBI
could not open an invesrigation of‘sup—
pors for terrarism” saizly on the Lasis of
political activities protected under the
First Amendment.

Congress repealed the Edwards law
as part of the anti-terrorism package.

“U'npopular or dissident points of
view will be effectively silenced by the
mere threat of criminal sanctions,” the
American Civil Liberties Unicn rACELD
warned in its offensive against the bill.

The law also requires federal courts
to ignore uncenstitutional convictions
and sentences unless the state court
decision was “unreasonably” wrong,

These are just some of the highlights
of the repressive legislation passed by
Washington in the name of stopping ter-
rorism following the Murrah bombing.
Critics of the law are quick to point out
that not one feature of the new statutes
would have stopped the bombing., But
several rights are endangered.

“The people should know grave dan-
gers lie ahead if the authorities are
given the right to decide when and
under what circumstances one'’s consti-
tutional rights are to be applied,” colum-
nist Lawrence Crincer said. “Uin-
checked, it would be but a small step to
a conditicn that exisis in some Third
World banana republics, where liberty
is but an empty promise.”

NOTHING NEW

The Brady iaw was passed in 1993
after years of lobbying by former Rea-
zan aide James Brady. Brady was per-
manently damaged in an assassination
atternpt on the former president. The
Brady law mandated a five-day waiting
period for anyone wanting to purchase a
handgun.
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"Now six years later, there is no hani’a’

ewdence the Brady law has stopped any
violent crime. Criminals still ebtain
weapons illegally. But rest assured, the
pext time a nut shoots up a schoo! or
church, gun grabbers will be clamoring
for more restrictions on the Second
Amendment. Never mind there are
already more than 20,000 gun laws on
the hooks.

Before the assassination attempt on
Ronald Reagan, gun grabbers rallied
behind the murders of Robert Kennedy
and Martin Luther King Jr. in 1968 to
force handgun owners to register their
weapons. That was the 1968 Gun Con-
trol Act.

In 1963, the country was rocked by
reports of shootings and bembings in
the South. Liberals in Washington were
already hard at work on sweeping civil
rights laws, The liberals’ agenda was all

but blocked in 1963 as poor whites }I&\\&v

the North were cpposed to the cha.ngw;

Once John F. Kennedy was assassi- =

nated in November, Lyndon Johnson
invoked Kennedy's memory to have the
laws passed in 1964 and onward.

“No memorial oration or eulogy could
more eloquently honor President Ken-
nedy’s memory than the earliest possi-
ble passage of the civil rights bill for
which he fought for so long,” Johnson
said in his first address to Congress

You can contact the U.5. Capitol
switchboard at (202) 224-3121.: Call”
and ask for your lawmaker's office.
(If you don't know the name of your
representative or senators, the oper-
ator will be able to provide those
names for you.)

Write your representative in care
of the Hpuse of Representatives,
Washington, D.C. 20515. Write both
of your senators in care of the U.S."
Senate, Washington, D.C. 20510,

If you wish to check on the status
of any legislation, you may call (202)
225-1772.

* i w
Liberty Lobby's 106th Congress

Handbook is available for 510 post-
paid from Liberty Library, 300 Inde-
pendence Ave. SE, Washmg':on D.C.
20003.

after the assassination. ¥

Where Was BATF When Bomb Went Off?

BATF aofficials were no-
where to be seen on the
morning of April 19, 1995.
Were they forewarned to
stay clear of the Murrah
building?

EXCLUSIVE TO THE SPOTLIGHT
By GREGORY DOUGLAS

Since the bombing of the Murrah
Building in Oklahoma City April 18,
1995, one aspect in the case has not
received the news coverage it deserves.

The Bureau of Aicohol, Tobacco and
Firearms (BATF) had a central office in
the Oklahoma City federal building.
The office was in charge of the Branch
Davidian siege that ended in the fiery
deaths of nearly 80 people, including
children, and resulted in a wave of
anger and revulsion throughout the

country.
Approximately 30 BATF agents

were assigned to the Oklahama City
office, which also employed clerical
workers,

April 19 was a regular business day
at the BATT office in Oklahoma City.

The BATF office opened at 8:15 a.m.
on work days. When the bomb went off
in the Murrah Building shortly after 9
a.m. April 19, the office, however, was
completely empty and its doors were
locked. Even with a flu epidemic or a
staff picnic, there would had been per-
sonnel on duty. The office would have
certainly been open to the public by
8:30 am,

Other federal agencies, such as the
FBI, were open In the building. Sever-
al FBI agents as well as agents from
other agencies were Injured, some
severely, from the explosion.

Following the blast, reports were
compiled by the local police depart-
ment and federal officials. The reports,
many of which are classified, note the
empty and locked BATYE office in the
federal building on the day of the
explosion.

INCREASE CONTROL

The Clinton administration pro-
posed a number of anti-terrorist mea-
sures immediately after the blast.
These measures were actually intend-
ed to increase law enforcement control
and surveillagce over individuals or
groups viewed hostile by the adminis-
fration.

Given the slowness with which bu-
reaucratic Washington always ad-
dresses any issue, this instant, well-
preparsd response, coupled with the
empty BATF office in Oklahoma City,
is a matter that should give pause to
any reflective person.
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Remain in the OK Bombing

T overnment would.
ou believe that Tim

hav
M’cVézgh is a. “master- con-

spzf‘ator” and ‘that debris
m’g bombed buildings -

fro

ﬁ'zes backwards.

EXCLLEI‘"E TO THE SPOTLIGOT

By Mixe BrLam _
Deipltanguat you may have seen or

neard: om the mamstrea.m medla in-

Fsicn came from’ “outside the. Murrah
" building? (Shades of John F. Kennedy’s.
_head. jerking backward when he was

allegedly shot from the rear.)

- » Why did the feds prohibit-any m--'

pecuon of the building after the ‘bomb-

e n o

. Why dld the feds blow up the buﬂd—

ing, then:cart the remains to7a:large.
dnmp, cover it over with dirt and post'

security around it?

 Why did the prosecution fait  cat,

as a witness Roger r Moore (aka “Bob An-
derson”), from Arkansas, who was sup-
posedly robbed of his gurig “and other
valuahbles to finance the purchase of the

Here are just a few questions that the

trial didn't answer:

» Why did Judge Richard Matsch rule
out all excujpatory evidence pointing to
a wide conspiracy and federal mvolve—
ment in the crime? 7 . .

« Why did Matsch rule out any testx-,
mony .that. there were two un
bombs inside the buﬂdmg as. repofﬁu"gﬂ'
by the Oklahoma City, medla l.mmedl-,
ately aftef the bombmg'7 N )

* Why deo heucopter shot: from. above
the building taken' _Iust Eours after the.
blast fail to show any érater where the’
truck allegedly was parke&? .

*» Why the cnly evidence of' an ANFO
bomb that the federal prosecumon could
produce ‘as, evidence -was resulue on 8

e Ly

degree heat of the blast when scientists
testified that it Would be destroyed by
heat reaching only 250 degrees?

* What happened to the indestrue-
tble engine of the Ryder truck, its drive
shaft, transmission frame, bumpers,
doors and wheels? No ANFO ' explosion
or anythmg" less -than ‘an? atomgbomb
could have /pulverized: theghardsned H
steel and rubber that these tru.ck parts
were manufacmred of. R

s Howicould™ pIyW surv:n'fe a.n

explosion tbat ha.rdened steel" cmﬂdmt” .

exploded

explosive ingredients?

+ Why did the defense' faul to call’

Moore as a witness?

» Why were WIcVe;gﬂs ﬁﬂgerpnnts
found ‘on-a; receipt . for fertlhzer pur-;

chased, not: by lnm, “but by :Nichdls;.
ts were notfoundon the.

whose fin

smah;,QX&m chpiece fgfﬁi ood,ial-r
de*?-%?zshm .

» HOW-dld ﬁhe residue Vs‘urvwé“the 500

recmpt nor were ‘those of of the's gtore tlerk?”

s Why didn't the prosecutmn or de-
fense-call the owner of the Ryder truck .
rental dealersblp (allegedly - Where Me-
Veigh' rented the” truick) who 'deséribed
the renter as.a, relatively short, dark-"
skinried man ‘when he testlﬁed before a
gran d Jury'?‘ R AN

The above are only a few of the unan-
swered questions.thatMatsch; the pros=s,
ecution and the-defense: failed (or re-
fused) to explore dunng the trial. Hun-
d_reds of questlons remain. N
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Judge Blocks Key Defense Evidence

The jurors in the McVeigh
trial never got to hear evi-
dence that a reputed feder-
al wundercover operative
was Involved in a plot to
bombd the federal building
in Oklahoma City.

EXCLUSIVE TO TILE sPOTLIGHT

By MicrAEL COLLING PrPER
The national media suppressed infor-
on ifreely repcrted in major daily
wapapers 0 Denver: regarding possi-
fefense testimony for Timothy
wh that could have blown the
lahoma City bombing conspiracy sky-
I,

Americans resyving on the major news
networks and on wire service reports
about the McVeigh trial were told lit-
tle—if anything—ahout proposed testi-
mony by former paid BATF informant
Zarol Howe whose informaticn could
aave shed light on:

* Foreknowledge by federal authori-
ziess of a plot to bomb the federal build-
nig in Oklahoma City: and,

* The possibility that a federal under-
cover agent was actively encouraging
such activity.

Here's what the Rocky Mountain
News reported to its readers on May 28:

A cornerstone of Timothy McVeigh's
defense was removed Tuesdav when a
judge barred testimony from an
undercover informant about a plot to
bomb federal buildings.

In pre-trial pleadings. McVeigh's
attorneys had claimed a larger con-
spiracy was respaonsible for the Okla-
homa bombing.

U.S. District Judge Richard Matsch
ruled in a closed-door session with
attorneys that Carol Howe’s planned
testimony was irrelevant to the
charges against McVeigh.

Howe. of Tulsa. Oklahoma, was a
paid informanrt for the federal Bureau
of Aleohol, Tobacco and Firearms.
Prosecutars said her information was
unreliubhle and unrelated to the bomb-

i
T

ng.
Howe's attorney, Clark Brew-
ster. . ., said Howe would have given

~compelling” testimony that others
had motive and epportunity to bamb
the Aifred P. Murrah Federal Build-
ing.

“Tt wnuld have allowed this jury to
consider at least how some other peo-
ole had not only the intent to bomb
buildings but also the means to carry
it out,” he said.

... Howe's information is relevant,
argued Oklahoma state Rep. Charles
Key, who has pursued theories about
a broad conspiracy.

“The government is shutting this
case down fast, and it raises questions
in a lot of people’s minds,” Key said.
“Lets not kid ourselves; they're covec-
ing up something very significant
aore.

Glen Wilburn of Oklahoma Ciwy,
who lost two grandchildren in the
bombing, said he wasn't surprised
that Matseh had barred Howe's testi-
maony. “You bring Carol Howe in, let
her tell her story. Well, the federal gov-
ermment doesn't look oo good,” he
said.

... In her FBI statement. Howe said
two people—former Tulsa Hu Klux
Klan leader Dennis Mahon and Ger-
man army veteran Andreas Stras-
smeir, an undocumented alien Lving
at Elohim City—made several trips to
Oklahoma City and had talked about
taking action against the government.

Each denied involvement in the Qk-
tahoma bombing,

Mahon, Howe said, taiked with her
in late 1994 about bombing such tar-
gets as the Oklahoma City federal
huilding.

Strassmeir is the person McVeigh
was orying to reach with that Elohim
City phone call, leaders there said.
Strassmeir returned te Berlin in -Jan-
uary 1996 without speaking to the
FBI.

On May 28 the Denver Post alsc gave
its readers a similar account of Howe's
allegations, mirroring the Rocky Moun-
tain News report, saying that her testi-
mony could have been “one of the
biggest wild cards in Timothy McVeigh's
trial.”

GOVERNMENT PLANTS?

The Post also reported that “although
the FBI and federal prosecutors repeat-
edly denied that either Strassmeir or
Mahon were suspects in the bombing,
documents turned over to the defense
prove that they were, and that Howe
was extensively interviewed by federal
agents two days after the bombing ” The
Fost also reported that “the government
has refused to talk about Howe.”

Independent investigators who have
been examining all of the evidence that
has emerged in the wake of the Okla-
homa bombing have repeatedly focus-
ed—in particular—on the role of the
enigmatic Strasgmeir.

The role of Strassmeir’s close friend
and attorney, Kirk Lyons, who popped
up some years ago in the “right wing” is
also drawing attention, Lyens plaved a
key role In spiriting Strassmeir out of
the country and out of the hands of the
McVeigh defense,

This has led to speculation that Lyons
was actually functioning as Strass-

¥
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RICHARD MATSCH
... Part of cover-up?

meirs “handler” for the federal gov-
ernment which, of course, wanted to
keep any evidence of its foreknowledge
f any bombing conspiracies out of the
reach of the McVeigh jury—particularly
since 1ts own reputed informant was
perhaps acting as an instigator.

If Strassmeir was a government
agent actively instigating acts of vie-
lence, that would certainly be reasen for
the prosecution to be eager to keep tes-
timony regarding Strassmeir’s strange
activities cut of the McVeigh trial,

According 1o reports, Mahen is now
convinced that Strassmeir was actually
a federal undercover informant report-
ing back to either the FBI, the BATF or
both on the activities of so-called “right-
wing extremists,”

Lyons has yet to thoroughly explain
his ties to Strassmeir or why he {Lyons)
appears to have actively frustrated
efforts bv independent investigators and
the Mo 1 defenze 1o get to the bot-
tom of events that led 0 the Okla-
homa City tragedy.

Over the past several vears numerous
prominent figures in the nationalist
movement have retained Lyons as an
attorney. convinced that he was devoted
to their cause. ¥

To see the evidence that was ’
U blocked in the McVeigh case, get Tim-
| athy MeVeigh: Mastermind or Patsy
from Liberty Library. See aur ad on

i page 11 of this special issue. J
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Were FBI, CIA
Infiltrators of Right Wing

Was the Oklahoma bomb-
ing “a sting aperation gone
awry” tnvolving federal in-
formants inside the Ameri-
can “right wing”?

EXCLUSDVE TO THE SPOTLIGHT

By Miczapn CoLLing PIeeEr

On May 12, 1897 highiy-regarded
svndicated columnist Sum Francis—a
director of the Council of Conservasive
Titizens—raized questions about an
individual named Andreas Strassmeir
whom Franeis described as “perhaps the
single biggest anomaly in the whc_Jle
case” surrounding the Oklahoma City
hombing.

Untl that time only The SPOT-
LIGHT and a handful of independent
publications had questioned whether
Strassmeir may have had some connec-
Tion to the tragic events.

However, on Oct. 20, 1997, The Wash-
tngion Post rocked the otherwise com-
nlacent warld of those who decry “con-
épiracy theories” by publishing a col-
umn by syndicated commentator Robert
Novak that suggested that undercover
government informants—specifically
Strassmelr—may have been moving in
Timothy McVeigh's circle prior to the

Okiahoma City bombing.

Novak focused on what he c_alls
~grave and disturbing questions” raised
i.: a book by Ambrose Evans-Pritchard,
the longtime Washington correspondent
for The Deaily Telegraph of London.

The new bock, entitled The Secret
Life of Bill Clinton. The Unreported Sto-
ries, npens with 108 pages of facts abo'un
-he Oklahoma bombing unearthed by
Evans-Pritchard. ‘

Novak advised his readers that the
English writer was “no conspiracy-zhep-
rv lunatic” but instead “was known a
‘f\"ashington for accuracy, i.ndus_trj,' and
courage.” Evans-Pritchard had “offered
teads to discovering a pattern of lies and
deception after Oklahoma City that, if

verified, would approach Vietnam _and
Watergate in undermining American
citizens’ confidence in their govern-
ment.”

In particular, Novak described Evans
-Pritchard’s inquiries into the strange

activities of Strassmeir, 2 former Ger-
man army intelligence officer who was
llegally in the United States, Evans.
Pritchard says he is “certain” Strass-
melr was “under federal protection.”

The English investigator alse exam-
ined the activities of another individual,
Dennis ¥ahon, who was closely associ-
ated with Strassmeir prior to the bomb-
ing.

According to Evans-Pritchard, Ma-
hon s convinced that Strassmeir was
actually o federal undercover informant
reporting back to either the FBI or the
Bureau of Aleohol, Tobacco and Fire-
arms (BATF)—or both—on the actv-
ities of so-called right-wing extremists.

Novak's report ‘based on Evans.
Pritchardi echoes what The SPOT.
LIGHT reported on June 16, 1997:

Americans relying on the major net-
warks and on wire service reports
about the McVeigh orial were told Lt-
tle—if anything—about proposed tes-
timany by former paid BATF infor-
mant Carol Howe whose information
could have shed light on not oniy:

* Forelmowledge by federal auth-
orities) of a plot to bomb the federal
buiding in Oklahoma City; but also

* The possibility that a federal
undercover agent was actively en-
couraging such activity ..,

On May 28, 1997, The Dencer Post
also gave its readers an account of
Howe's allegations saying that her
testimony could have been “one of the
biggest wild cards in Timothy Mec-
Veigh's trial.”

Miss Howe charged that German
immigrant Andreas Strassmeir had
talked about bombing federal build-
ings.

The Post also reparted that “al-
thaugh the FBI and federal prosecu-
tors repeatedly denied that either
Strassmeir or Mahon were suspects in
the bombing, decuments turned over
to the defense prove that they were
and that Howe was extensively inter-
viewed by federal agents two days
after the bombing.” The Post also
reported thai “the government has
refused to talk about Howe.”

Then, the judge in the MeVeigh
trial, Richard Matsch, ruled in what
The Rocky Mountain News described
on May 28, as a “closed door session”

that Howe's testimony was “irrele-
vant” and would not be permitted.

Despite the successful effort to
block Miss Howe's testimony, investi.
gators who have been examining all of
the evidence have repeatedly focused
—in particular-—n the role of the
enigmatic Strassmeir.

The role of Strassmeir's close friend
and atterney, Kirk Lyons, who popped
up some years ago in the “right wing,~
is alsn drawing attention. inasmuch
as it was Lyons who played a key role
in spiriting 3trassmeir out of the
country and out of the hands of the
McVeigh defense. {In fact, McVeigh is
krown to have actually called Lyons
office just prior to the bombing.}

This has led to speculation thart
Lyons was actually functioning as
Strassmeir’s *handler” for the federal
government. which, of course, wanted
to keep any evidence of its foreknowl.
edge of any bombing conspiracies out
of the reach of the McVei gh jury--par-
ticularly since its own reputed infor-
mant was perhaps acting as an insti-
gator.

Lyons is close to Don Wassall, a pot-
smoking Piftshurgh lawsyer who folded
up the Populist Party and who now prof-
its from a sole proprietorship known as
“the American Nationalist Union.”

Lyons is also close to Mark Weber,
Greg Raven and the gang that hijacked
the Institue of Historical Review (IHR)
at gunpoint six years ago, looting the
[HR since then of over 31 million in as-
sets. Lyons has actually signed a fraud-
ulent fundraising letter for Weber and
Raver, praising their alleged benevo-
lent intentions.

A key figure in the THR takeover was
another attorney, Andrew Allen, who
has admitted invelvement in two addi-
tional covert operations of the (LA,
JOHN DOE NO. 2

Evans-Pritchard’s new book contains
ntriguing information z2bout the possi-
dle identity of the now-infamous “John
Doe No. 27

The English writer suggests that Doe

geg
No. 2 is actually a Pennsylivania man,
Michael Brescia, who was seen with
McVeigh and Strassmeir on at least one

occasion.
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[n fact, Lyons’ close friend Wassall is
Known to have hosted Brescia at a Pop-
ulist Party event—a tidbit that ties the
Lyons-Strassmeir connection even
tighter.

However. perhaps even more inter-
esting is Evans-Pritchard’s revelation
tnat there was an individual. “mid-
40ish. with a red sports car” who w
“always around” McVeigh at marijuana-
smoking parties in Kansas during :he
summer of 1992.

According to written statements by
Lyons. Strassmeir came to the United
States because of his Strassmeir’s:
interest in Civil War reenactments.

[n light of Strassmeir’s interest n
“Civil War reenactments.” it is wort!
aoting, according to John Hurlev—the
longtime head of the Confederate M-
morial Hall 1C¥MAr—the CIA has fre-
quently used Civil War reenactment
activities as a front for their own cove-:
operations.

Hurley tangled with the CIA when it

used front men in an attempt to seize
control of the CMA and use it for iis
“black ops.”

Evans-Pritchard comments:

[t is assumed that Strassmeir
could not have been a CIA asset
hecause he was operating on U.S.
soil. But this is not necessarily the
case. He could have been reporting
to the domestic services section of
the CIA, which has offices all over
the country. Under usual proce-
dures, his reports would bhe passed
through them to the CIA's Direc-
torate of Operations. Or alternative-

Iy, he could have been an FBI opera-

tive working under CLA auspices.

My own conjecture, for what it is
worth, is that Strassmeir was a shared
asset, on loan to the U.S. government.
but ultimately answering to German
intelligence.

Evans-Pritchard also points out that
the federal prosecutors portrayed Mc-
Veigh as “an anti-government radical
set on avenging Waco” but have “down-

olayed” McVeigh's links to the circles in
which Strassmeir was operating. And,
e adds, “the U.S. press has followed
suit. The question is why. Why detlect
attention from the white supremacist
movement?”” -

Strassmeir’s friend Lyons has re-
ferred to “incessant and vicious demo-
nization of our efforts by kooks in the
Oklahoma City bombing conspiracy
crowd” iwhich apparently even includes
columnist Sam Francis) and Lyons has
also attacked The SPOTLIGHT, in par-

ticular.
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No Doubts About Government
Culpability at OKC

By Louts R Beay

T November 1983 someocne had

told the American peopie that the

CIA had plaved a rofe in the murder

aof President John F. Kennedv, ‘ew

would nave believed it at that time.
Siightly over 30 vears after the assassipa-
don it is kard to find an informed citizen
who does not know of invelvement by CIA
wents 1n JFR death,

In aralyzing the bomoinyg of the Okia-
noma federal Suilding, or anv other o
©or that matier, one must foilow certain
nudelines In the political world e mus:
135 "Who Benetits?” as weil as “Why'” 1o
determnine those likely to be behind an aet.
A further tool in wacking down chose
responsible for present crime is to allow
Jistory to serve as willing witness—a wit-
ness which often provides an unobstrucred
window into the fiture.

The paramount threat ro the Constitu-
tion of this nation is not the Unired
Nations nor seme sccialist pipe dream of a
“New World Order.” The rope that is stran-
ziing the life and breath out of liberty is
freld tightly in Washington by governmen-
tal hands intent upon conducting a police-
state lynching of liberty. This hanging was
designed from its very beginning to snuff
nut freedom. A fierce choke-hold on Ameri-
:a that became tighter moments after the
horrendous explosion and senseless loss of
fe in Okiahoma City.

As a political crime, clearly the bombing
-n Oklahoma City serves the interest of,
and will benefit solely, those in govern-
ment wanting more power over sach citi-
zen of this country. And surely, aleng with
the handful of guilty Oklahoma City
sambers, every single innocent citizen in
“he United States will be punished for the
:2t, By having rights and freedoms

~minged as movernment response t- tha

2vent 15 to legisiate new laws which “ur-
“her erode constizutional liberties. An ero-
sion of liberty totally unnecessary o pre-
~ent such future acts, hut completely nec-
253Qry to construct the mechanisms need-
=4 in fostering what now constitutes the
<merging federal police state,

A political rebedion against these in
power and the evil they represent is ongo-
‘ Long confused, musled, led to and
ved, the people are now taking back
“he government. Piece by plece, election by
siection. corTupt poiiticlan by corrupt
politician, a ransfer of power s in process.

Who benefits from the bombing of the
‘eceral building? The FBI government
peice agencies, bursaucrats, corrupt
voliticians and Bill Clinton 2ll profited
from the tragedy. An angry and hoerrified
public may be zeen on nightly news
singing mediz-orchestrated praises to the
FBI for their quick work in nabbing the
suspected bomber. This is the same FBI
hat but one day before the bombing was
the brunt of three long vears of citizen out-
rage which began with the FBI's “hostage
rescue team” sniper-killing of Mrs. Weaver
in Idaho as she stood holding an infant in
her arms.

Clearly the corrupt Clintor administra-
tion and some equally corrupt allies in
Congress and law enforcerment must be
rendering heartfelt thanks to whatever
god they worship for the bonanza Qkla-
homa has brought them. New laws were
passed. New enemies lists were created.

New heights were reached in government
spying and intrusion into the Lves of ¢iti-
zens. And the FBI was rehabilitated after
their bleody murder in Waco.

Is this possible? Is it really likely that
the government would do such a thing?

Let history answer these questions. For
oniy by knowing what has been dore by
such men in the past can we judge present
events.

What explosion in the dead of night led
t0 a declaration of war against Spain? The
sinking of the hattleship Maine ‘'n Havana
norkor with the loss of 260 men was
biamed on a Spanish torpedo. The news
media used this incident to manipulate
public opinicn in favor of war, Years later
the ship was uncevered from the mud of
the harbor revealing that the explosion
had gone off inside the ship in the forward
AMIRC Mmagazine,

What bombing produced an instant dec-
taration of war on Japan and Germany n
13417 Dec. 7 is truly & day of infamy. But
no more tor the Japanese than for Presi-
dent Rooseveit and others in his adminjs.
tretion who xnew the Japanese were on
their way to bomb Pearl Harbor Their
murderous failure to warn the young men
on the ships there was rreason. A toral of
2,403 sailors and Army soldiers died n 4
torm of bomds drpeed from Japan-

& . government. in vain ar-
AR o hide s complicity in the bomb-
ing at Pear] Harbor. has classifed the doc-
uments dealing with a war that ended 50
years ago. A huge cache of top-secret
records at the U.S. Navy Storage Depot at
Crane. Ind., many of them dealing with
the Japanese attack upon Peari Harbor,
remain hidden trom public view. An esti-
mated 28.6 million pages and 4,631 rolls of
microfilm remain classified materials from
World War II.

Why the fear of releasing the docu-
ments? Because manv of the World War II
generation are alive and would instantly
become foes of Washington were thev 1o
see the documents. These documents,
which deal with the Roosevelt conspiracy
to withheld informarion cbtained through
the breaking of secret Japanese codes, are
records that expose murderously criminal
benavior and are not to be released until
the next century. Other classified docu-
ments lying on shelves in the National
Archives are growing older by the day, fad-
ing, but not fading as fast as the genera-
tion who fought the war, Admiral Kimmel,
the commander at Pearl Harbor that fate-
ful day, later called Roosevelt *a damned
traitor,” and so he most certainly was.

What torpedo attack upen a U.S. ship
“in international warers” led to war in
Vietnam? The Tonkin Gulf resolution was
passed immediately after Lyndon Johnson
and others in the federal government
deceived the American people into believ-
ing that a US. destroyer was attacked
without provocation by the North Viet-
namese navy [t was revealed 10 years
later that no such attack had oceurred.
This deception by the president of the
United States led to the deaths of 57,800
men in Viet Nam. The government to this
day has engaged in a eriminal cover-up of
the fact that they left another 2,500 in
bamboo cages as prisoners of war, Would
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tae governmec: lie to the American peo-
nle? Ask a POW,

Newspaper accounts of the arrests of
Ezvptians accused of blowing up the World
Trade Center raveal that not only did the
FBI have advznce notice o7 the bombing
' worse, neir informant, a former
nian ficer. buit che bomb.
el Al infutrated the zroup for
FBL who asxed him if the Egyptians
could build 2 bomb. Salem told them they
muld out, The FBI matructed Salem o
owild a pomb or the Egvprians, using
chony powder Then the FBI told Salem to
=se real explesives. Salem did as he was
o but began secreniv to rape his FBI
' = meetngs. Transcripts of
2z wers pubilshed in The

sandlers inoth
a reenrdi
i Ti

froperiy plac

o etober 1963,

i . the bomb would have
oty dundred “housand mather than che
< penple & odis siil According o cowrt
weuments fled in New York, the FBI had
idvance Knowledge of the bombing. But
the decision was made on orders from the
adghest level within the government to
low It tw oceur. Why did the government
aeed a bombing with great loss of life? Is
the Omnibus Counter Terrorism Aet so
mmportant to their police state plans that
-heyv had to trv a zecond time? Was Okla-
noraa City a successful second try for the
Zovernment?

It Is ciear then, that bombs, torpedoes
and lies have been bloody tools of govern-
ment for manipulating and shaping public
opinion for all of the 20th Century. Would
anyone but a fool not suspect government
somplicity in the Oklahoma tragedy? s
*here any compeling reason o give Fov-
ernment the benefit of the doubt now”
Those who know and study history can
rezsonably assume the government was
behind the Oklahoma bombing. - Clearly
the disaster there served the interests and
purposes of sinister forces within govern-
ment whoe want o pull the rope tighter
around the neck of al! of us.

The governmen: cares not nne wit about
-he palitics of those .- seeks o control, only

“aat they are controlled. Today they wish
3 3py and violate the rights of those an the
mght: romorrow it wil be the left. The all-
-eeing eye of the state will look evenly
ipon us all.

Finally, the explosion that went off in
-2n. Robert F. Kennedy's head led to the
«assage of the 1968 Gun Control Act, even
aough elements in government had per-
srmed the assassination. Those who wish

Gov T CULPAGILLTY

to foist on the American people a new
world order plainly care nothing for the
lives of Americans, whether they are pres-
idents, women with babies, smali boys
with dogs or children at Waco or Olda-
homa City. Indeed it seems clear that gne
can safely state that public poliey by bomb-
ng is a long-standing traditien of the fad-
eral government. Is the Oklahomg Citw
bombing a break with tradition ar merely
oid metheds in new places? Let history
Jjudge and reason rule,

Blaming the bombing in Oklahoma City
on the militia or unramed “patriots” is an
obscenity. For it was after all, the taking of
lives by government agents at Ruby Ridee
and Waco that provided the innocent blood
that zave birth to the militia and the asse-
claed anti-government feeling sweeping
chis nation. It was the absolute tervor and
siock of watching Black bootz Srom the
government kill, then kil again, that mori-
vated Americans to awaks from their long
peaceful slumber to find that a cightmare
government had metastasized while they
slept.

The black boots af the police state do not
operate w a vacuum, They are directed hy
political leaders whe are elected. One must
keep n mind that there will always be
thousands of iow intelligence, high testos-
terone brutes who will willingly attack
their fellow citizens for money, perks and a
federal pension plan for retirement,
Directing one’s anger at these unthinking
statz supported terrorists is not efficient
ner conducive to correcting the problem,
Rather, we must “take out” the political
leaders who send them. Two-thirds of the
Senate, along with about 250 or s0 House
members, and this black plague is not only
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contained but reversed,

This can all be done legally by castng
hallots at the polls rather than waiting for
the federals to come to vour front doar,
Americans must bewzre of those who seek
to focus their attention on the far more
numernus but vastly less imporant
church door smashers of the ATF and
black-booted back shooters of the FRL who
are, after all, rothing more than “cannon
fodder as good as anv.” To contral this dis-
ease of the American spiric we must go
straight for the command and control cen-
ter in Washington.

We still have the power to take hack
America 30 long as free zlactions are kaid,
Betaveen now and the next national elee-
don we must all arm ourseives wizh ;3
voter registration slip and use it ke a 308
snicer weapon to “take out” the infectious
bougnt whores of the new world govern-
ment who are proposing to rule us all with
an Orwellian iron fist—forsver beating us
all into submission, while claiming to be
protecting us.

Let it be made clear that these in Gppo-
sition to the police state must rot becoms
like those they oppose. It is the govern-
ments style to kil innocent women and
children. If we who love freedom become
like FBI hostage rescue agents, wantonly
murdering, killing, maiming and destroy-
ing the lives of innoccent citizens, then
what difference does it make who wins this
confliet between federal evil and American
good? Let us all strive mightily to make a
difference. ¥

]
Louis Beam is a professional cornputer |
consultant and writer who {ives in I
Texas. i
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The Official Version of

“What Happened’ Dges Not
Correspond with the Actual Fact

Strange new revelations about what really happened before, during and after the terrori.
bombing in Oklahoma City were discussed on the June 6, 1995, broadcast of The SPOTLIGHY;
nightly call-in talk forum, Radio Free America (RFA) with host Tom Valentine.

The guest was David Hall, owner of KPOC Television in Ponca City, Okla., which is roughly 9
miles from Oklahoma City. Hall and his news team investigated t;ze Oflahoma bombing anc
uncovered facts which do not agree with the official government version of what supposedl: hap.
pened. An edited transcript of Valentine’s interview with Hall follows. Valentine's questio;zs are
in boldface. Hall’s responses are in regular text.

Your station is located just about
an hour and a half drive from Okla-
homa City and you were covering
“the bomb” from the beginning,

That's right. We had people on the
scene by about 10:43 the morning of the
bombing. We were covering it ke any
story that we would cover. However,
aiter a week certain things started
developing. So we started looking into it
in a serious manner Censequently
we've hired three special investigators

two of them are former FBI agents)
who are working for us for the last 30
days.

We're working on the McVeigh and
John Doe No. 2 angles, trying to bring
some inconsiszancies into line and make
some sense out of what we've been told,

What have been some of these
inconsistencies and other ques-
tions that have led you into investi-
gating the bombing story further?

I think the thing that really bothered
us is that we were told on the afternoon
of April 19, the day of the bombing, that
they had widectape of a brown Ford
pickup with McVeigh getting in it, leav-
ing the truck that was suppoesed to be
carrylng the bomb, and that there was
another suspect in that brown Ford
pickup with McVeigh. They also stated
that a female witness had been driving
away from the scene as the bomb

exploded. She had her front car window
blown out. She also saw these two indi-
viduals,

Then we find that McVeigh was
arrested at 10:45 that morning by the
Oklahoma highway patrolman, Charlie
Hanger. McVeigh was in a 1978 cream
colored Mercury. That caught our atten-
tion since this car was nothing like the
vehicle that the authorties were sup-
posed to be an the lookout for and for
which they had put out an all-peints
bulletin.

About two weeks ago we and another
television station confronted them on
this and asked why they were not con-
tinuing to look for the brown Ford pick-
up and John Doe No. 2. That seemed to
have fallen by the wayside.

The authorities told us, though, that
thev had pot put cut an all-points bul-
letin for the brown Ford pickup and that
we were totally in error. We videotaped
that interview, by the way, and sc did
e sther television station.

However, we then went to the police
broadeast tapes that went out on April
19. We brought up the tape which indi-
cated thar there had been an all-points
builetin for a brown Ford pickup that
nad two occupants and that this bulletin

was put out with the authority of the
FBI. We played that tape for them and
they said that they had “no comment”
on it.

Now after Waco we had begun io
wake up and realized that these people
[the authorities] didn't tell us the truth
all the time, s0 we started looking at the
Oklahoma City bombing case a little
harder.

At another point they indicated that
McVeigh was arrested at 10:43 on the
morning of Wednesday, April 19, and
that the vehicle he was driving was the
1978 Mercury.

[ happened to be sitting by my radio
scanner on Friday, April 21, about one
o'clock in the afternocon, and I heard a
broadeast coming over from Oklahoma
Highway Patrol that they had a car on
[-35 and that the car most likely had
heen involved in the bombing.

I dispatched a crew over from the sta-
tion and they sot there and a lady then
told us that she witnessed the arrest of
a man about 1:30 p.m. She said he was
taken out of the vehicle, put in a mili-
tary helicopter and [it] went south with
him., We broadcast that story as did
Channel 4 in Qklahoma City as well as
the Oklahoma News Network for radio.
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[f that wasn't enough. then, the fol-
lowing Monday we had cur insurance
agent for the station who came in that
dav o visit. He lives at Perry, Okla. !
mentioned this report to him and he
said. “I was coming down [-35 on Friday
and a highway patrolman passed me
with his red lights and siren on at a high
rate of speed.”

He said that when he got up o where
e patrolman nad gone there were ali
sorts of vehicles and all sorts of police
‘including plain<lothesmen). There was
a helicopter flying away. Sc that sub-
stantiates the stery that the lady had
told. Qur insurance man is a former
Ok'ahoma City police officer.

35 we are trying to determine who
was arrested on Friday, Waz McVeigh
arrested on Wednesday ' as they saytor
an Friday”?

it may be that there is a reasonable
gxpianation for this. [t may be that the
car McVeigh was dnving was left on the
spot for two days but that’s not likely.

The Oklahoma Highway Patrol has a
poiicy in the types of arrest that
MeVeigh was involved in. The car would
be ‘mpounded and searched and taken
off the highway. At any rate, they don't
let a car 3it for a 48-hour period on [-33.

Are you suggesting that Mec-
Veigh's real arrest by a very lucky
patrolman didn’t really happen on

the morning of April 19 (shortly
after the bombing) but that it really
happened on April 217

Well, we've heen told by two witness-
23 that there was an arrest on that date.
“WWe're trving to clear this up wich the
FBI. but we cant get statements from
-hem. Thev are not commenting on that.
3o it's a very real problem.

However, there’s another real prob-
lemn with this arrest.

[f McVeigh left Oklahoma City at 9 in
the morning fand he was arrested at
Perrv, Okla.. at 10:20 that morming,
agrerding o official reports), he would
' wnown rrom early reports that
-nere were ar least six people dead from
tme nombing ' since he had a radio in the

oo

He was running 35 miles an hour
down [-35, which has highway patrol-
men all aleng the highway. He had no
license plate on the car. He had a fully
loaded gun strapped in a shoulder hol-
ster.

Now according to Patrolman Charlie
Hanger, when he stopped McVeigh, the
suspect got out of the car and said, “T've
got a gun under my jacket,” and gave
himseif up.

WA #ROPENED

That doesnt make sense to me. At
that point McVeigh would have nothing
t0 .0se If he shot the officer dght there
and gone on down the road.

It doesn’'t make sense to a lot of
people.

Thers are some real problems here.
I'm not buying the story, nor does mv
television crew. nor do the former FBI
agents who we have on board. What we
have are several problems with the sto-
ries put out by the FBI and even they
are acknowledging that they have prob-
lems.

To build the bomb, rent the truck and
stay in the motels that were used would
have exceeded $10,000. How a man
such as McVeigh, whom we might call a
drifter. and just working to eat each day,
could have come up with $10,000 raises
questions.

We think we have the answer at this
tume, but I'd rather not go inte it over
the program at this time. We've inter-
viewed many, many people who have
actually been with McVeigh and actual-
ly know some of the things involved
around this bombing and when all of it
vomes oul, pecple are going o0 be as-
tounded with what we've uncovered.

We actually know where McVeigh
stopped along the way and talked with
people and we've talked with some of
rhose people. The FBI knows the same
thing that we know.

They know that McVeigh was sup-
posed to be in Oklahoma at 3 a.m. in the
morning and was delayed because he
got lost and we've talked to people who
talked to him while he was lost and got
nim back on the road.

Then there are the stories that there
were no ATTF people in the bureau office
the day of the bombing. A lot of people
have heard those stories. The ATF has
sent out a disclaimer saying that they
had five agents who were dead.

However, there’s a bad problem with
that because two days prior to that, one
agent told us that there were no ATF
agents in the office that day. Ha even
told 113 where they were. He told us that
he was in Oklahoma City in court with
3 fellow named Fuzzy Warren.

Then, he said, there were three
agents in Newlirk, Okla., on an arson
cage and a couple others were involved
in cases around the country. He said
that five agents were up all night
because they were invoived in surveil-
lance until 6:30 in the morning at which
time they went home and went to bed.
What he told us was that no agents
were killed, but that there was a secre-
tary in the office and she didn get hurt.

According to him, they were all out
doing their jobs. I will tell vou this
mu;h: We're going to have real problems
w_-im those five agents who were out all
night and went home to go to bed.

Whatever happened to the brown
Ford pickup that McVeigh and the
other suspect were supposedly
spotted in just prior to the bomb-
ing?

We don't believe there ever was such
a vehicle. Theyve never produced a
videctape of the scene that was sup-
posed to be Southwestern Bell's video
surveillance camera in a building zcross
the street from the federal building. No
nne has seen the video, It hasnt been
released to anybody, aithough several
peodle nave made inquiries.

What about. the seismographic
evidence in circulation that sug-
gests that there were two explo-

sions at the federal building?

There certainly were two explosions.
At the onset we were told that those mwo
selsmic readings were the explosion
going off and then the conerete from the
building falling and hitting the ground.
They retracted that and said that there
was the exprosion and then something
following iz like 2 sonie boom,

We have a former ATF agent who has
looked at the charts and his conclusions,
while not irm yet, are somewhat in con-
currence with thaose of [former FBI offi-
cial] Ted Gunderson [who helieves that
the bomb had to be more powerful than
what's officially been reported]. We are
not ready to draw a conclusion, but we
are still working on this particular ques-
tion.

BOMBS AND MCARE BOMBS

Ancther thing that the authorities
will have to address is that the demoli-
tion of the building by explosives did not
register on the seismograph that sug-
gested there had been two explosions on
April 19,

We had 50 miilion tons of concrete fail
on April 19 2t the time of the blast. Then
when the building was brought down.
there were some 200 million tons fall.
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bur that shock wave didn't register.
~ow heres something sise that we
srsadeast tas did other iocal Oklahoma
stations: and this didn't get outside the
stuien the nacional media reports.

The assistant Oklahoma Cizy fire
extel. John Hanson. teld us that Lnev
fzd found two urdetonnted bembs in
he building as well as one rockat
sviacher in the building.

Ve have confirmed that they wers
thers but we have not heen able to zet
any cominents from the FBIl or the ATE
3¢ there are some problems here,

‘cu’'ve uncovered some other in-
teresting things.

We thing that we've “sund Jsnn Doe
Moo 2 and we have had him ander sur-
Lince for abour six davs,
zarJohu Doe No. 2 was in Tulsa, along
with MeVetzh ata sun show on Apeit L
MeVeigh was attempting to buy some
pisiols over there and he said he was not
goung to register with the ATF So we
snow about that. We talked ac length
with @ man who was selling guns at the
nun show and he reported this o the

3
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“B{ and no action was taken on that,

The FBI were certainly miracle
veople after the bombing. It was the
é{ay after the bombing that they
were ransaclking houses in Mexico
and Arizona. Did they know ahead
about all these people?

I think—as do a lot of other pecple—
rnat MeVeigh was under surveillance
Wr a very long time. I think you could
put that theory in the bank and draw
menev on ik, We have evidence that
would support that. [ think that there
wus prier knowledge of the bombing. ¥

18 in Oklahoma Ci

Y 2

ty shows t

there was no crater like that repovred by the federal government
occaslons.

numerous

TED GUNDERSON

- .. Ex-agent unconvinced.
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Election-Year Tragedy Bill’s Boon

(A digest of significant news
items that failed to appear in
most of the nation’s press
regarding Oklahoma City.}

oy g w

OVEER THE TOP. Flying on Alr
Force Cne afler the election In
Noverter 1996, President Clinton
told repcrtars the Oklahoma City
bombing was the turning powne for
him in the election. “It was the
momen: when the militias, the

BILL CLINTON
. OEC was turning point.

Christian right and the Gingrich
onslaught against government all
melded together in the public rind
as one rampant movement of
extremism,” British reporter Am-
brose Evans-Pritchard said of the
discussior.
< o

HIGH.-LEVEL DISPUTE The
Washington Post revealed on
Aug. 8, 1995—buried at the end
of a story about the discovery
of an unidentified body frag- °
ment at the site of the Okla-_
homa City *-bombing—that-
“other FBI officials said pri-i-
vately that they believed that -~
there was a John Doe No. 2 {in -
the bembing case] but they had -
no idea who he was. There
were too many eyewitness .
accounts describing a dark-
haired, square-jawed, muscu-
lar man to be easily discount-
ed, the sources said.” . -

o w prg

COVER-UP. U.S. District Judge
Richard Matsch cut Timothy
McVeigh's defense short m Denver -

when he refused to allow Me-
Veigh's attornevs to call former
paid BATT informant Carol Howe
to testify Howe has charged the
government knew, in advance, of a
conspiracy to bomb the federal
building in Oklahoma City and
implicated one Andreas Strassmeir
in such & conspiracy.
¢ . 7

WHAT KIND OF BOMBE? Ac-
cording to an Asscciated Press
report that appeared in The
Cape Cod Times on June 12,
1995, President Clinton, while
speaking in Hanover, N.H,, said
the bomb that blew up the fed-
eral building in Oklahoma City
was 4 “miracle of technology.”
Funny, the official government
story is the bomb was a simple

wonder if perhaps it’s mot a
matter of “protection™ but
“‘muzzlmg‘" instead.
4 i
NOT REPCRTED. Remember

the big deal the mainstream media -

made about the fact that Okla-
homa bomber Timothy McVeigh
advertised in The SPOTLIGHT in
1993 using an alias? The media
implied that The SPCTLIGHT had
a role in the bombing when the
Anti-Defamation League (ADL) of
the B'nai B'rith announced Me-
Veigh had run an ad in The SPOT-
LIGHT. Well, the Las Vegas Re-
view-Journol/Las Vegus Sun ad-
mitted on Sept. 21, 1997, that Me-
Veigh, using an alias, also adver-

“tised in the Revieiw-Journal in
-May 1994, to sell a target rifle.

mix of fertilizer and fuel oil, ~Neither the controfled media nor
materials used by the smallest theé ADL rushed forward to sug-
family farms across America. gestthe Las Vegas newspaper had
Clinton had better get his sto- - anything to do with the Oklahoma

ries straight.

FEELING THE HEAT. The Cox
News Service reported in June
1995 in a natenally distributed
article that “in the wake of the ter--_
rorist bombing in Oklahoma City,
Americans already susplmous of
the “new world order” are viewing *’
the Trilateral Cormm;smn, Jong -
viewed by critics as world’ gnvam-«{
ment-in-waiting, with lncreasing
alarm.” Cox reported that the' New -
York office of the commission “has. -
expenenced a significant increase .
in felephone and postal mqumes
about its activities since the Okla™"
homa bombing and news- reports?:
about state militias.” .

woTTT o B 4
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MORE. INTRIGUE. The Womi .

‘ whe cl fo have 7 gel Sherwood, founder of the U.S.

‘Timethy McVeigh near the fed- j
eral building in Oklahoma City i

- has recanted, saying she could :

not positively _identify Me- .
Veigh. Federal officials now
claim the woman said she had
been told that “the- militia

'Wouid get her” if ghe: firmly '
“identified McVeigh. The Dallds

Morning News has reported the
FBI is providing what it
described as “unusual protec-
tion” of witnesses in the case,
prompting some skeptics to

bombing.
o vr hr¢
FISHY. Cable News Network

reported in June 1995 that as-

long ago as 1993 alleged Okla-
“homa bomber Timothy Mec.
Veigh was under surveillance
by undercover operativesat-an
Anzona gun ‘show where he

allegedly expressed violent
attitudes toward the BATF and
FBL Now The Washington Post

“has revealed—buried ,deep in

-an otherwise innscuous: story
on June 3, 1995—that it was
one -of “McVeigh’s- associates
who first tipped off the FBI
that McVeigh might have been
mvolved in the bombmg

e R TR T
‘WHO TRA]NED WHOM? Sam—

Militia Association; points out that
aceused - Oklahoma bomber Timo-
thy McVeigh “was in the military
for four years and at a milita
meeting one night. As much as it
might be unfair to blame the gov-
emment the government did train

e
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Waco Scandal Demands
New Look at OKC Bombing

Former Oklahoma state Representative Charles Key is
about to release a stinging 150-page report on.the Oklakoma
City bombing. Key says evidence surrounding the tragedy
doesn’t match up with the official government claims. Why,
then, is the government lying about what happened?

EXCLUSIVE TO THE SPOTLIGHT
By Crarres Key

The "new” revelations coccerning the
Waes ravedy have caused the establish-
men: media and elected officials o begin
further inquiries into how the Branch
Davidians died April 19, 1593,

The relaticnships te the Oklahoma
City Bombing ara cbvious. According to
the Justice Department official line, the
OKC tragedy was the result of Timothy
McVeigh taking the law into his own
hands by paying back the federal govern-
ment {or its illegal acts against the people
at the Braneh Davidian church. However,
more importantly, Americans need to ask
‘themselves this: [f some in the govern-
ment have lied to us about Waco, what
else is the government lying to us about?

After the Oklahoma City bembing,
many people argued persuasively that
the federal government’s handling of the
investigation before, during and after the
wrials was narrowly focused. Others in-
cluding victims, surviving family mem-
pers, Journalists, state legislators and
over 13,500 people in OKC, believed then
and now that some in our government
were intentionally trying to “cover-up®
raportant aspects of the bombing to hide
he truth about the bombing from the
American people.

Glen and Kathy Wilburn and their
inughter Edve asked reascnable ques-
nons concerning the tragedyv that took

{See OKC COVER-UP, Page 3}

{Continnted from Page 1)

Chase and Colton Smith, Fdye’s young
sons. They, ke VZ. Lawton, who miracu-
lously. Suryived the bombing, and many
other victims and family members, are
convinced that the effect of the Fed’s han-
dling of the case was to limit the pursuit
and prosecution of all those responsible
and clouded the purpose and cause of the
crime.

Consider these glaring problems with
the government’s case:

* 1,034 fingerprints were never
checked against the national data base to
discover their identity. These included
prints from McVeigh's car, the Dream-
land Motel and Eldon’s Body Shop;

* Many eyewitnesses saw MecVeigh
with one or more “John Does.” Some put
him at the scene of the crime with John
Doe No. 2, but were intentionally ignored
by prosecutors in the federal trials;

* Failure to properly heed warnings of
at least two federal government infor-
mants prior to the bombing. Their revela-
tions, if properly acted upon, could have
stopped the tragedy and saved 168 innc-
cent people;

* Numerous problems regarding foren-
sic evidence related to the building, the
absence of bomb residue on McVeigh and
his clothing, and the scientific analysis
and napdling of evidence were so serious-
Iy flawed and lacking that the FBI was
reprimanded in an independent U.S.
Inspector General’s Report;

* Prosecutors improperly meeting with
defense witnesses before their appear-

ance 1n the Denver trials—even in the
race of court warnings against such
Acrions;

* TBI agents’ blatant falsification of
witness statements;

+ The FBI confiscated approximately
20 video surveiliance tapes. Same show
the Murrah building, but none have been
shown in a legal or public proceeding.
"The Justice Department currently battles
legal efforts to release the tapes. Sources
claim that one of the videos show the
often seen dark-complexioned John Dee
with MeVeigh in the Ryder Truck. This is
the same John Dee the FBI has tried to
claim doesn’t exist:

* Federal prosecutors and agents
attempting to convince witnesses to
change their testimony to fit the govern-
ment’s official story;

* The Middle East connection. The or-
iginal APB was for two to three Middle
Eastern men driving a brown pickup
truck. A call from an Tslamic group
claimed responsibility at 9:45 a.m. Many
of the McVeigh witnesses describe John
Doe as Middle Eastern, Arabic, or dark
skinned.

The list goes on. But the most impor-
tant aspect of this case is the information
that points toward, at least, some level of
pricr knowledge. Cary Gagan, one of the
informants, went to the Justice Depart-
ment office in Denver six months before
the OKC bombing to warn of plans to
bomb a federal building. Another infor-
mant, Carol Howe, toid her ATF handlers
of specific people in Oklahoma who were



wace ! oktA C(TY

threatening bombings and assassinations
against the government and elected offi-
cials. ATF agents and other government
employees admitted they were warned ot
had some knowledge of an impending
threat. Federal Judge Wayne Alley
admitted in an interview oo April 20,
1995 that he had been alerted about peo-
ple casing out the federal courthouse.
This and other information demands this
question: Why was there no significant
securiry at the Alfred P. Murrah building
on April 19, 19957

[t has become all too evident that the
Justice Department, its sub agencies and
even the courts do not operate under the
rule of law as all other citizens are
required to do. The examples of the bla-
tant disregard of the law are overwhelm.-
ing.

In a 10-part series on government mis-
conduct in the Pittsburgh-Post Guzette, a
law professor and former prosecutor
states: “The courts used to be a buffer
between prosecutors and defendants.
They are now simply a rubber stamp.”

‘The Justice Department has gotten so
out of control that am increasing number

of former prosecutors and judges. are
speaking out about the misconduct and -

regular violation of law. Hiding facts from
the court and defense, lying in court, pro-

moting perjury and acts of retnbumon

against those who raise questmn are
becoming commonplace. -

In a recent editorial in The Daily Okla-

homan regarding the Waco revelations,
the statement was made: “Let the truth
be found, and let the chips fall where they
may.” I could not agree more. I suppose
there will always be the cry “conspiracy
theorists” from those with power in gov-
ernment and media, whenever people
raise questions about tragedies such as
JFEK, Ruby Ridge, Waco, OKC, et al. But

openness and truth are cornerstones of
our republic that we must fight for, even
against our own biases. [ will never forget
when Glen Wilburn interviewed Assis-
tant OKC Fire Chief Harvey Weathers.
Weathers affirmed to Wilburn that the
department had received a call from the
FBI a few days before the bombing. They
advised that some people would be com-
ing through town over the weekend.
When Wilburn told Weathers that a fel-
low assistant chief denied knowiedge of
the call, Weathers straightened up in his
chair and satd: “Well, 'm not going to lie
for anybody, that's what happened.”

The Daily Oklahoman editorial closes
with this question: “What else have they
lied to us about lately? If past and pre-
sent revelations about Waco justify media
and congressional inquiry, then certainly
the glaring problems and holes left in the
QKC case scream for a true mdependent
accounting.”

The Oklzhoma Bombmg IDVEStlgatIOD
Committee will be issuing its final report
shortly. It has been a long and difficult
task trying to expose this massive cover-
up. Unlike Kenneth Starr, we have got-
ten. by on a shoestring budget.and. a
“skelaton crew” staff, But also unlike the
special prosecutor, we will let the facts
speak for themselves. Our two primary
goals have always been to first inform the
Ameriean people and secondly cause Con-
gress to hold hearings. We need the sup-
port of The SPOTLIGHT readers to help
us put pressure on Congress to investi-
gate the OKC bombing and audit the Jus-
tice Department—something that hasn't
happened in more than 40 years.-

To help, contact Charles Key at OK
Bombing Investigation Committee (OK-
BIC), PC. Box 75697, OKC, COK 73147;
phone: 405-879-2760; e-mail: mail@okc-
bombing.arg ¥

\}
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tongressional Inquiry Sorely Needed

he American peogle are law-
I abiding, God-fearing and in gen-
eral believe in a2 government of

laws and not of men.

They are always inclined to give the
benefit of the deubt to their elected
officials at a!l levels of government—
from the court house to the White
House. They are patriots.

Sometimes. this largess on the part
of the public becomes strained to the
neint where these consumers, taxpay-
ers and vozers begin to doubt their gov-
ermment. Corruption in high places
makes them skeptical abour all levels
of government.

[t has been during the Clinton
administration that the mistrust of
government has reached an all-time
high. Of course, because of the rapid
communicaticns explosion the people
xnow and hear more than thev ever
have,

Members of the House and Senate
blatantly violate their oaths of office to
uphoid, protect and defend the Consti-
tution. The House impeached the pres-
ident, but the Senate, because of
stonewalling on the part of the Demo-
cratic minority, failed to cenvict him.

Congress seems to have a penchant
for conducting investigations. They
male headlines that play well to their
hometown audiences and then they
allow their efforts to quietly disappear
from public view.

The tragic deaths of neariy 30

Branch Davidians at Waco, Tex.,-on
April 19, 1993, have returned to the
news with new evidence of deliberate
government incineration and bombing
of their church. Among the dead were
at least 17 children.

When investigators think of Wacs
they can't averlook the fact that if our
government .ied to cover up that atroc-
ity. what has prevented the govern-
ment from |lving about the bombing of
the federal building in Oklahoma City
on April 19, 1995?

The Oklahoma City
bombing cries out for
a full-scale congres-
sional investigation.

Here was an atrocity of even bigger
proportions: 168 innocent men, women
and children were killed. As this issue
of The SPOTLIGHT reports in detail,
the story that the federal government
tells of this bombing is fictitious.

Tre Oklahoma City bombing cries
out for a full-scale congressional inves-
tigation. Qur front page editorial in
this i¢sue of The SPOTLIGHT calls for
such an investigation.

There are just toe many unan-
swered questions about what hap-
pened on that fateful day. The govern-
ment's case states that a truck of ex-

plosives was parked in front on the
federal building and was detonated.
The truck disappeared into thin air;
the building itself was so demolished
that it had to be removed from view.

The facts are that the Bureau of
Aleohol, Tobaeco and Firearms (BATF)
knew of the explosion in advance. The
BATF had closed its office in the build-
ing 30 that none of its employees would
be injured in the bombing.

Pending in Congress was an anti-
terrorism bill that had been stalled. It
was thought that this outrageous
bombing, blamed on terrorists. would
be the one act to get the Congress mov-
ing on the legislation.

The stories in this issue of The
SPOTLIGHT cover all aspects of the
bombing, including CIA infiltration
inta Timothy MeVeigh's inner cirele;
the cover-up of the facts that federal
Judze Richard Matsch so skillfully
implemented; and the role that the
Anti-Defamation League of B'nai
B'rith TADL} played in trying to impli-
cate Libertv Lobby and The SPOT-
LIGHT The ADL monitored McVeigh
over a year before the bombing.

Oklahoma is one of the most Repub-
lican states in the country. Its gover-

por, Frank Keating, and Serns. Don
Nickies and James Inhcfe are Republi-
cans. So too are its six representatives
in Congress: Reps. Steve Largent, Tom
Coburn, Wes Watkins, J.C. Watts, Er-
nest [stook and Frank Lucas.

Thase of vou who live in Oklahoma
should contact these gentlemen and
remind them that they have a consti-
tutional obligation to see that justice is
done. The facts in this most horrible of
bombings in the United States must be
made public.

; Let them hear from you.
" Remember: Your influence counts ...

Use it! ¥
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Was a Known Teriorist

Who was masquerading
as Timothy McVeigh just
prior to the bombing?

TUE THE SPOTLEGHT

~OoLLiNg Plesk

Tep T

EXCT U=
Oy MICHAS

Trmare hav

apout the ex arrival of Timotny
Mcveign in Oklzhoma City orior to the
bombing—a fact the government has
heen eager to SUDLress.

Thus lends crecence to the theory that
there may have actually been a “Tim
MeVeigh No. 27 -that is, someone mas-
querading as McVeight as part of a wide-
rarging conspiracy of which MeVeigh
was possibly unaware,

Even The Washington Post admitted
on Saturday, May 10, 1997, that feder-

.al prosecutors were remarkably selec-
tive in calling only witnesses who con-
frmed their ¢laims about McVeigh.

The example noted by the Post is
quite tejling. Prosecutors called the
owner of a restaurant to testify that

JOHN DOE No. 1

... Official government suspect.

urporedly a Melews

2 OLOer o o

“Rovert Kling”

o
viaced 3 e

gt o

For more on apparent
high-level intelligence
intrigue, see the report
on pages 6-7 of this
special (ssue.

“niing.” The deliveryman later fold the
FBI that “Kling” was not Timothy Me-
Veigh.

Se, if “Kling” were not McVeigh, who
was he? Here's one possible answer

Ten days after the bombing, a “right
wing~ Israeli terrorisi—28-year-old
Sharon Svi Tovai ialzo known as Z+i
Sharon) —was arrested in New York by

srading as McVeigh
Beinze Bomhing=

. authonties. Then. ander escort and
anr <ecurty Toval was deported w

18995, shows a
wichout teard. mus-

" ulke—could be mistaken
oy a either accused Okla-
noma City bomber Timothy YMcVeigh or
for the person shown in the famous
nnn Doe No. 17 sketch that authorities
wsed immediateiv after the bombing
arg which was uzed to identify McVeigh,

in lght of reports in 1995 that
MeVeigh's artornevs were locking inte
the possibility that “right wing terror-
15857 from Israel—or even Israel’s intelli-
gence agency, the Mossad itself~had a
nand in tke bembing, Toval’s specter is
intriguing. Couple that with the obvious
“inside” knowledge about McVeigh's
activities by the Mossad-connected ADL
{see accompanying story) and a whole
new light is shed on the affair. T

SHARON TOVAL
... Deported 10 days after bombing.

TIM McVEIGH
...Did he have a double?



] i ggested an “Ara connectmn o the 'Oklahoma City tragedy -
' op the basis that pricr to' the bombmg Timothy McVeigh was oﬁsen seen m the
| company of dn'Iragi national living in the United States. -~
However, what many uninformed investigators fail to understand is that

l more than 1xkely, if an Tragi hmg in the United States were involved in the
! bembing, his role would point in an opposite direction, i.e., that Iraq’s longtime

‘[ foe—Israeis intelligence service, the Wiossad—had a hand in the’ h'agedy
JL - According to thé: investigators on the s scéne i _Oklahoma:City, the*Iraqx

national who Was'mMcYaghs company. Was one of ; some 3, 00{} furmer Iraq1
+ goldiers: who Had- either surrd dered or w ' : &
“the'Gulf Wars; : -
e These soldiers—many of whom Were'forced to fight by thelr govemment———
came to the United States; spcnsored by U.S. tax dollars. Obviously, the Unit-
ed States did not permit former war~t1me enemies_ stlll,loyal to Iraqileader .
Saddam Hussein to come to this counfry, Because these Iragis (now in:the®
siates) were' enemies, of Saddam they Would be npe far ma.mplﬂahon by Sad‘ '
! dam’s sworn foes; the israelis. .. ., : :

Eﬂdence shaws the Israehs do have along:h:story of usmgArab “front ;

Agr, “false ﬂags"gn mte]hgg-._x‘lbce Jargun) in cove.rtoperahons N £
“mr Insp a:caserthe I:aqmatmnal (operatmgfor,the Mossad) would have led -
the conspxrators (including perhaps even. McVeigh). fo believe that he (the
Iragi) was acma]ly pro-Saddam and that theIraqxs were funding terronsm, m -
Amenca L .

f

i
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BATEF Wanis involvement Forgotten

here ara 5:siI more questions thin
Answers abont che aious ,hr‘- ter-
rorist Aliacs L)l\ J.hon a City in

1967 Manv of -
Dot _-\iccm,..

.JD:ELUJ ar reariis

The BATF hasnt exactly been .‘.ﬂlpful

wring thess ap. For oo ;

dgency retused o pr:)\-'ide
WIIT L CTnn Do

Lesy

: I
Tl

ne fact s i John Masaw remains
director of the BATE If the agency was
ved oo TsUng oone awry, ds many
alleged, then m;m_& beileve

hers shouid be held

cr".'t'.cs nave
the director and ot
responsidle.

Meach of speculation about the sting
shezers 1s avatlable on the [nternec. Orne
lte containing 30 guestions autnicon
stould answer is icrated at:

ttp#/members.localnet.com/~bob
g/ifa30.bhitm

The site auzhor joints nut how. when
rumors began that no federal agents had
been present in the building, the BATF
produced its agent, Alex McCauley. The
account told a long story about his hero-
ism. and that of a fellow ATE agent who
allegedly fell three fleors in an slevaror.
walked awav from it and then helped

[N

copyls) of your

i1 copy ‘s 326 copies for 34: 40+ copies jus

Order more copies of this Special Report! T

Orlshoma 3omeng Mernorial 2

JOHN MAGAW
. Still stonewallingy still there.

rescue others trapped bv the homb.

This was quickly exposed as a fabrica-
LSt ln an angry intérview by building
mamienance supervisor Juane James,
who described McCauley's story as “pure
fanrasv.”

James examined the slevator in ques-
tion and also the central contrel panel
and pointed out a number of technical
and logical recsens why the miraculous
alevator incident simoaly couldn'® have

zocri—24 hages.

2 30c eacr. Prices inciude S&r)
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SR Washinguon

the BATE offices theresin.

hapoened in e wav claimed.

The McCauley account was quietly
rerracted and dushed down the memory
ncle by the ATF. with the help of the
media. The agency admitted rhat Me-

Cauley was acw here near ine buiiding
when the oomb went o, althousa they
retuse to discuss s exacl wWIISrednouls

or the wheareabouts of any other ATF
agent at the Time af the explnsion.
The site as

Will \IcCaulo\ be disciplined for
telling a self-serviog lie =hich
falsely made himself aut to be a
hero? If that was not the purpose.
why did he make this palpably
false public statement?

The site author alsc wants to know
why Ken Stern of the American Jewish
Committee faxed warnings to federal
otficials, legizlators and prosecuters
warning of 2 possible attack on a govern-
ient building o1 installadon on the sec-
ond anniversary of 7 3 on April 10,
1563, nine davs before » bombing?

The site also points out that FEI infor-
mant and star witoess Michael Fortier,
who admits 10 rrading his testimony for
lenient sentencing on gun charges him-
gelf, claims that he and T*'mothy
‘»Ic\/elgn scouted out the Murrah build-
ing several weeks in advance looking for

Next the author asks:

If that is true, why did Timothy
McVeigh stop the Ryder truck at a gas
station on the moraing of the bomb-
ing and ask directions to the build-
ing? And why did he park the truck
on the side of the building the far-
thest awayv from the BATF offices,
when there was an available parking
lot which would have placed the
truck bomb almost directly under the
windows of the BATF even if it was
sgven stories up"

Until these. and other. questions are
answered abour the BATE role in the
Okianema Ciiy sombing, this case will
not be closed. The Internet 1s playing an
‘mportant role in keeping it alive.
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b.cVeigh Trial Judge

Suppressed Evidence

Why has the ‘Fourth Es-
tate’ joined the government
in its conspiracy of silence
involving much of the evi-
dence in the Oklahoma
City bombing case?

EXCLUSIVE T THE SPOTLIGHT
By Toal VALENTINE

{n another sign of just how corrupt
e Tederal government and its sup-
norters within the major media have
become, evidence continues to mount
that the FBI and U.S. prosecutors in
the Oklahoma City bombing case are
cuilty of the felonv of “obstruction of
justice.”

What else can it be called?

Stephen Jones, attorney for Timo-
thy McVeigh, filed a 155-page, care-
fully detailed brief supporting a Writ
of Mandamus on March 25 and not a
peep has been heard about this

* important decurneat from the main-
stream media.

The 10th District Court of Appeals
denied the petition, stating simply
that they agree with Judge Richard
Matsch that the material should be
“sealed.”

Denying the accused access to doc-
uments held by the government,
which would surely implicate many
more perpetrators of the bombing
and perhaps even an international
plot, is certainly obstructing any
opportunity for justice.

When the trial finally began, the
“ederal government wasted the open-
ing day by putting on witnesses to
the tragedy and pain, who were irrel-
svant as tc whether Timothy Me-
Veigh mayv be the culprit as charged.

[n fact. wirhin weeks of the bomb-
ing. the government used a pathetic
“psychological” excuse to destroy the
evidence of the bembed out buildirg.
Despite copposition o the blatant
destruction of evidence, the govern-
ment blasted the rest of the building
into rubble, then carted the rubble
awnayv and buried it

Any forepsic examination is now
impossible. Are we certain that a fer-
tilizer bomb did the dirty work, or
was it merely a cover for well-placed
charges within the building? Will we
ever know?

The brief* calls attention to the
conflicts of the government’s case and
the facts. To cite only two examples,
the brief states:

The theory of the prosecution in
this case, not the Grand Jury’s the-
ory, is that the two named Defen-
dants constructed a simple device
capable of toppling a nine-story
building at a public fishing lake
and that one of them transported
this device over two hundred miles
without blowing himself up. That is
the heart of the prosecution’s case.
Any evidence concerning the par-
ticipation of others, the complexity
of the device, or foreign involve-
ment, takes away the heart of the

government's case and there is

therefore an institutional interest

on the part of the government in

keeping such evidence shielded

from the defense and the public.

But unfortunately for the govern-

ment such evidence exists.

Attorney Jones continues for
mere than 100 pages in his brief
with much more exculpatory evi-
dence. all of which has been denied
and was not admitted by Judge Ri-
chard Matsch.

From the day this petition was
filed with the court, the major media
was aware of it. Why have Americans
beern denled this news? The details
revealed in the brief raise questions
that require straight answers, ¥

*You can obtain a reprint of the complete
brief of the McVeigh trial in the book Timo-
thy McVeigh: Mastermind or Patsy? Use the
coupon on page 22 of this special issue or
call 1-800-522-6292 and charge to your cred-
it card.
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K eds Had Foreknowledge

Fa lies of the Okla-
homaei mbing victims are
sayzngffhat the federal gov-
emnwnt had prior knowl-
edge of - the bambmg con-

spiracy.
By Tur SPOTLIGHT STAFF

Johnnie Cochran, one of Q.J. Simpsen’s
defense lawyers in his eriminal trial for
murder, has been retained by more than
300 relat[ves of the people killed in the
Oklahoma‘*(hty federal - building bomb
blast in'1995. Tke relatives are su.mg the
federal government.

Tak:mg the same posture as numerous
non-government nvestigators and auth-
ors, Cochran and his Oklahoma co-counsel
John Merritt ailege that the bombing was
a bungled sting operation by the FBI and
Bureau of Alcchol, Tobacco and Firearms
(BATFS.

In a “wrongful death” petition filed in
Oklahoma County District Court, the
attorneys allege that numerous fedgral
officials had “detailed prior knowledge of
the planned bombing” yet “failed to pre-
vent it from taking place.”

Documents obtained by The Sunday
Times of London indicate that the Tulsa
office of the BATF was about to arrest a
group of alleged “neo-Nazis” who were
said to be plotting to blow up federal build-
ings in Oklahoma.

The BATF's planred action was pinned
on the undercover surveillance of an infor-
mant; Carol “Howel But-the” FBI:infer-
vened in February 1995 to stop the BATF
raid. Two menths later, the Mu.rrah build—
ing was blown up.

“It appears that the local BATF had
stumbied on a bigger operation being run
by the grown-ups at the Justice Depart-
ment,” said Ambrose-Evans Pritchard, the
Washington correspondent for the Sunday
Times until earlier this year.

The impHeations of the FBI interfer-
ence scenaria indicate government collu-

sion in the bombing of the federal build-
ing. And the Sunday Times is not known
for making unfounded accusations.

The Cochran lawsuit could ultimately
bring out the truth regarding the strange
activities of Andreas Strassmeir and his
close friend, attorney Kirk Lyons.

Although The Washington Post (long
the daily voice of the CIA in the natien's
capital} has rushed to assure its readers
that there’s no evidence that Strassmeir

was ever a federal undercover operative,
there are those who are firmly convinced
that Strassmeir was indeed precisely that
and that he may have had foreknowledge
of the Oklahoma bombing conspiracy.

That Lyons has been so vehement in his
defense of Strassmeir has led some people
to speculate that Lyons has been, in fact,
Strassmeir’s government “handler,” using
their attorney-client privilege to mask the
covert relationship. o

The book, No Amateur Did Tkz.s exam-
ines the strange activities of both Strass-
meir and Lyons in some detail. Now, with
the advent of the Cochran lawsuit, the
truth about the Strassmeir-Lyons connee-
tion may finally come out.* ¥

* No Amateur Did This is available for $10
from Liberty Library, 300 Independence
Ave., SE, Washington, D.C. 20003. See ad

pgge220fthisissue_



In the case of the Okla-
homa City bombing, it’s not
a matter of “Where’s the
beef?” but rather a matier
of “Where’s the truck?”

EXCLUSIVE TO THE SPOTLIGHT
By Mixe BLAIR

Ryder rental trucks are large. In the
case of the Oklahoma Clty bombing,
sither a 20-foot or 1 24-feot truck was
supposedly used by the bombers, al-
though the Justice Department investi-
gators and prosecutors could not make
up their minds, ever during the tral

They ware abie, however, to come up
with a nine-inch square piece of plywoad,
supposedly from the box of the Ryder
truck, which was, we are all supposed to
believe, found with residue of a fertilizer
bomb on it.

In fact. that was the cnly piece of the
truck that was introduced with residue
of the fertifizer bomb ever having been
an it.

Se, what about the rest of the truck?

The iargest plece of the truck aver
found, according to the Justice De-
partment, was the rear axle assembly.

Well, what about the thousand-peunc
V.8 engine that powered the vehicle, a
far mere weighty item than the rear
axle? What about the transmission.
ancther part weighing several hundred
sounds and sobidly attached to the huge
engine, the frame—securely mounted to
the engine—the drive shaft linking the
transmisaion to the rear axle, the big
steel wheels. the tires, the doors etc?

Fadera’ investgators say thev did find

a key, suppcsedly tossed awav by
MeVeigh in an alley as he ran fo nis su

posed get-away car In 2 nearby parking
.01

Did the suppesed mastermind of the

£ -he century throw away the

grition key on the run 1o his 760-

rucs
away ¢ar, 50 (¢ could be found by Investi-
zators and traced? Why dide’t he throw
it alongside the road sutside the v 35
he :ped fram the ares in fis getaway car?
TAINTED EVIDENCE

Cancerning that nine-inch piece of
plywaood, former FBI Special Agent for-
epgic scientist Frederick Whitehurst—
whose defection from the FBI led to a

JCUILLAGHT Uctaber 11, 1999=4 O

Feds Can’t Get Ryder Truck Story Straight

Here’s the axle, Where’s the rest
of the Ryder truck?

scandal  involving  contaminated,
altered and even fabricated evidence at
the FBI lab—stated he had been told
that the item would not be used as evi-
denca. This was, according to what
Whitenurst was told, because it had
been urned over to investizators by an
unxnown civilian and it could not be
rrﬂcﬁ* back and confirmed as being

E; was 3til used nonetneless. Why?
Because. as previously noted, the FBI
had no other evidence to “prove’ a com-
binazien of ammonium nitrate fertilizer
ard “uel ail nad been used to blow up the
building.

This all, of course, eads to a burning
but very basic question that will shock
many people; Was there reaidy a Ryder
truck used in the blast?

SPOTLIGHT readars will recall that
the government frst claimed it was a

~ SPOTLIGHT Introductory Discount Offer! -

300 Independence Ave. SE Washmgton, DC. 20003

simple car bomb used to blow up the
Murrah building. Then the stery evolved
that it was a bomb in a pickup truck.
Next it was a pomb in a2 small van. Sud-
denly, a bomn n a 20-foot Ryder truck
that turned into a 24-foor Ryder sruck.
and finally “wall, not really finally) a
bomb in a 20-feot Ryder truck.

At the wial it was ultimately conclud-
ad that it was a 20-foot truck. But, an
8-fcot plece was intreduced and identi-
fled by a Ford Motor Company expert,
id, ves, you probably already hawve
suessed: [t could have come Fom oniz 2
24-foot Truck.

Engines, bv the way, also vary acr -
ing to the sizes of the trucks of wiuch

Zue

Did the engine not if the intended, or
pretended, oruck?

The bumper was a safe piece of evi-
dence, apparsatly interchangeable with
aither size trucs.

The odyszev of the axle is also inter-
esting. According to various “official”
stazements issued by investigators right
atter the bombing, the axle had been
found by Clklahoma’s governor. Well,
that was perhaps too unbelievable, so it
was then found by an unnamed FBI
agent. Well, no, again finally (maybe), it
was found by the janitor of a nearby
aparzment building, who was nearly
brained by it, along with his family, when
it came hurtling at “hem from several
stories high and ultimately wrecked
their car,

Eig question here. The axle is
beneath a truck, not on wp of it, so how
does it rise to several stories before
coming back to Barth? ¥
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m Investigation: Sealed complaint accuses Terry-Nichols
of role in attack on Oklahomafederalbuﬂdmg,g)ur B
say. Officials are also taking closer Iook at his son.

TR 1 SR e R R 1

By RONALD J. OSTROW and RICHARD A, SERRANO, Tt

L30

OKLAHOMA CITY—Federal authorities have filed a sea_lyedl‘co_mplgi_fxt
charging a second man—Terry L. Nichols, rmy
accused bomber Timothy J. McVeigh—with blowingupthe- federal
building here April 19¢overpment sources said '

Nichols, 40, is-scheduled to be
transporled here today from Wich-
ita, Kan., where he has been held

. as a material witness in.the bomb-
ing and as a defendant in 'an
unrelated case in which he-is
charged with conspiring to make
explosive devices. -McVeigh, 27,
and Nichols have been described as
sharing a hatred of the federal
government. .77

There was no _indication that
federal authorities.believe that
they have enough- evidence 1o
bring similar charges against Nich-
ols’ 41-year-old brother, James D.
Nichols, with wham McVeigh for-
merly lived in Michigan and who
also is being held as a material
witness in the bombing and as a
defendant in the conspiracy case,

The complaint against Terry
Nichols was sealed, one source
said, to give the court advance
notice to lock for defense counsel
in hopes of avoiding the;shuffle
that cecurred with attorneys rep-
resenling McVeigh. The two law-
yers who originally, -defended
McVeigh succeeded “in removing
themselves from the case, noting
that they had known victims of
what is the worst -terrorist act
committed on U.S. soil.

& former Afmy -buddy-of

Tuesday.i: b s T

L e

At the same time, sources closé”
to the case said the investigatién i3
also taking a deeper lock at Terry
Nicholg’ 12-year-old:so, Joshua,
after learning that he lived with his
father for seyeral days before the

attack. The Boy could be g eructal -

witness, the'soudrces said, ;™ .

The boy's mother, Lana; Paditla;”

said in an Interview broadesst
earlier this week that Joshua told
the FBI that he and his:father had
discussed the ingredients of a bomb'
made with 2 soda pop botils, Padil-'
la was interviewed by the syndi-
cated; television show *American
Journal.” )

_ Padilla, who i5 gdivoreed “frem

Terry Nichols, is.to appear befor
the federal grand jury in Cklahdma
City that is investigating .the~
bombing, government sources said.”™
They declingd to give the date, '
The sources said differences ex-
‘st between what she has told the
FBI and what she“said in her TV
interview, But they declined to

* detaill those' disérepancies, rioting

that they hoped: to"resolve them

during her sworn testimony before

the grand jury, . Y
‘Questioning of her son is more of

" aproblem because of hisstatugasa-

juvenile, which, .among other
Lhmgs: allows him to be aceompa-

"Please see BOMB, AZ6 /

Ve
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BOMB: Friend of McVéi sh’ Faces. Charges
Continued from A1l tracehismovements o _' - planets :Ihe_y are Im. the circle

'They are friends, . They are, compa-
. iriots and- they are behevers to-
gether . =~ :
a ... The relat.lonshlp betwaen 'I‘ezary

* -Nicholsand MeVeigh dates to 1988,
igative | time i m When the two served in‘the same
of theman unt, : Ariny unit, Years’ Iater, ‘the- two
 kind of ur uncer— " ‘meh and James NicliolsWerd often
- Seen expenmentmg with small ex-
o dewvices on’ Jameés Nichals’
off [ farmin Decker, Mlch' ighbors
" -havi :

- nied before the grand jury by an .| __He said officlais alse fear th
atlorney, his mother or some other | desen tions and the &

- adult, the government sources said. | i g k
Adult witnesses appear without

.attorneys.

ANVeEstipators, meantime, bega
- 1o fear that they were gf‘en afa se
lead in the deserip tion of the
Sought su suspect_known ag
Loe No. 2,” who was sai
_ accompanied McYmg

oo City, Kan,, Ryder It etital

__franchis _\g};_ﬁprﬂ 17 to rent the
feh;

_.Egmhmg, _

.Some are even advancmg_ the
Lheory that John Doe No. 2 was
" Nichols—wha bears Jittle resem-
%l_gnce Lo the FBI's .composite

rawing of the suspect*or possi-

Bly even Nichols" son, who appears

- 10 Be as fall as 3- foot-T and fo
igh as mich as I70 pounds. One’
‘i_ce close to the case said that if

_John Dce No. 2 turns ot to be
Joshua Nichols, the likelinood is
thathe - had an “innocugus” rolebut
hat he could be helpful 35 3 . wo
_Withessin the case.

mechatelyr efore
.bombmg, “Terry" Nichols “and
here | < MceVelgh'were'in {requent. contact
talse lead, several faise leadq R - federal authontles said.'he * "~ .
.1k got to ‘be a very smaIl After the-blast, mvestxgators
_conspiracy,” he. added, “because” séardhed ‘Nichels' home. i Her-
.with a3 big: consplrac;: you can"t ‘ington, Kan,, and folmd three emp-
keep this under wraps. ~ e B0- pound bags of ammoniury
..,U%der that. assumption, he said, " nitrate, the main ingredient used in
Jpvestigators have a theory that_ - the bombing, and non-electric det-
James Nichols was “the brains” onators, as well as 55-gallon’ plastic
béhmd how 'the hombihg schema drums’and @ meter ‘that ‘medsures
would wark. Terry Ni lchoi wasthe ° fuel ail in ‘precise amounts, TFuelail
£xpert in building ‘the exploswe *was.the: othz;r jor. 1
and McVeigh was the man who"7 the bomb, - :
would carry oyt theplot, .. . ™ AInthe telews:on mterv1ew, Pad~
St McVelgh was not smart, enough ’Llla'saxd Terry Nlchois had left a
*{to_ build th:s _the. _source saxrf

] Har
wag tanned, and that was fals
“he !;heir were chasing d

nother source close to the

m&%‘iﬁou%ﬁﬁ_{
a:s_.mggemng over _whether the
man who accompani i
the Ryder rental agency was ‘the
_same individual that a mtness

“zcparted. seeing with McVeigh as.

sep'a'z-a'u'te letter for McVexgh.
“Although Nichols, who had beeu

er ot to open the’ package unlesy
7 he failed to retirn in €0.days, she

they sped away from downtown - That accomphce, t.he alleged “Said she opened it the next day. It
_Okiahoma City on the morning of | .Jéhn Doe No. 2, alsno could be “contained stocks, Treasury - bonds.
_j;e bombmg Investigators had i_sgmecne still unknown to federaL and keys to a safc dechSJt box E

_thought that the same person was’ investigators. “It -could be a rea! _starage locker and his car, . |
with McVeigh in both places, T ifter,” the sg - The locker ‘was in Las’ Vegas

’I‘he mvesti,é;iors said authorl- it is someone close to McVeigh, -’Where Padilla lives and operates

Lies think that John Doe No. 2 the source said, the investigation’ ¢ real estate firms. Inside, she said

couId be m'io eople and that - eventually. wx]lreach him. Investi- . she was astonished to fmd theout

different men cou ld have accompa« + gators are “homing in on all of . ~sands of dollars in gold and- szl\'er:
Tfed’ McVeigh 1o serve as “decoys”  McVeigh's friends, And these peo-. - bullion, ski masks, tubular pipes’

—and confuse Invesiigafors trying to” * ple don't parachute in from other and survwal gear.

I

Mauririon. — veald I'wa/ ~€JL y sz‘vcﬂ.] Cr/acmg %nt?/ —
(€ ¥ “enT v Ao a7~ Lt Y
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isiting her 'and Joshua, instructed
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Experts:,
R 2

ByLOISROMANO -, .- -
' THE WASHINGTON POST

TULSA, Okla, — Timothy
McVeigh's attorney returned
here Saturday with 3,135 pages
of new FBI files to study and
McVeigh's permission to ex-
plore a challenge to his convic-
tion and death sentence.

“Tim definitely wants to see
where this goes,” attorney
Robert Nigh Jr. said a day after
he spenr five hours consulting
with his death row client in the
Terre Haute, Ind., federal
prison.

With limited time and op-
tions, McVeigh's lawyers facea
difficult fight if they oy to
overturn McVeigh's conviction

for the April 19, 1995, bombing
of the Alfred P, Murrah Federal
Building in Oklahoma City,
which killed 168 people.

But many legal experts
agreethatthe FBI investigative
files, which should have been
given ™ the defense in 1997,
may provide evidence to chal-
lenge McVeigh's death
sentence.

In any case, the legal ball is
now in McVeigh’s court, after
the government's decision Fri-
day to delay McVeigh's execuy-
ton from Wednesday until

MAY 13,

2001

June 11 to give his attorneys
tme to review the documents,
The material was discovered
during a routine archiving of
records by the FBI and pro-
vided to McVeigh's defense
Thursday, a day before Atror-
ney Generai John Asheroft or-
dered the execution postponed.

Ashcroft spent today with
President Bush ar Camp David,
in the Marvland woods, where
they were expected to discuss
the McVeigh case and the FRT’s
ervor. Officials said the visit
had been scheduled before the

revelation about the McVeigh
documents. “He is the presi-
dent's guest” is aj] @ spokes- .
Person would say. C

Nigh and co-counsel Nathan -
Chambers have three Possible
optons in seeking a new trial op :
SeMencing  proceeding  for ¢
McVeigh: to return 1g the feg-
eral trial judge'é_nd ask himw
reconsider hisl denjal of
McVeigh's requékt for a new
triai last year; to
10th U.S. Circuit Guupt of Ap-
peals in Denver on fye basis of
newly discovered e nee; or
to file an original petifan to the
Supreme Court.

“It’s a fluid situati and T
don’t think anyone
> SEE MCVEIGH PAGE 28A

CONTINUED FROM PAGE JA
T T

where anything will come out,”
said Richard Burr, a Texas
death penalty expert who is
advising the McVeigh team.

The court-appointed lawyers
alsomay needto consider going
back to federal court with an
application for expert assis-
tance, more money and help to
plow through the materials and
prepare for any appeals. To
date, the investigations and
trials of McVeigh and his con-
victed co-conspirator, Terry L.
Nichols, have cost taxpayers an
estimated $80 million.

Nigh said the lawyers will
decide shortly whether to seek
an additional stay after they
“horoughly examine the
single-spaced  typed pages,
ibout 700 actual documents,
ind determine whether any of
‘he evidence merits investi-
Zating. Asof taday, the lawyers
itill were awaiting newly found
*hotographs and copies of vid-
0 and audiotapes from the

ustice Department.

Sources familiar with the
material say it contains a con-
siderable amount of informa-
Lion pertaining to “John Doe No.
2" — a suspect who was de.
scribed by witnesses soon afrer
the blastbutnever materialized
-— as well as wimess reports
about other possible
accomplices.

According to two sources,
one file shows FBI efforts o
locate a man who a Missouri
real estate agent claimed ap-
peared with McVeigh and
Nichols before the bombing to
buy a piece of property in the
Ozarks. The FEI never found
him

To attack McVeigh's death
sentence, lawyers could argue
that such references in the FBI
files might have led a jury
considering the death penalty
to believe that someone other
than McVeigh masterminded
the crime,

McVeigh abandared his re-
maining appeals in December
and let pass a deadline to re-
quest executive clemency. At
the time, Nigh said McVeigh
did not want to spend the restof
his life in prison and was pre-
paring to die,

In light of the new develop-
ments, however, Nigh said to-
day that McVeigh is willing to
consider all his options, al-
though he is not yet committed
to legal action.

Nigh and Burr said their
preferred legal option is to go
back to U.S. District Judge Ri-
chard P. Matsch and ask him to
reopen McVeigh's request for
“postconviction relief.” In that
plea, the lawyers argued that
the government had withheld
evidence and that McVeigh had
had ineffective counsel,

Matsch denjed the request
for a new trial last October, a
decision McVeigh did not
appeal.

Burr said the lawyers would
now have to prove to Matsch
that “the suppression of these
documents could have affected
the outcome of either the con-
viction or the sentencing.”
the

More important,

documents must convince
Matsch that he might have
ruled differently had the docu-
ments been available.

The failure to turn over the
documentstothe defense could
be considered “a fraud uponthe
caurt,” Burr said.

Appealing to the 10th Circuit
is a less viable opton. This
would require that the docy
ments show evidence that
McVeigh is innocent, Burr said

is appeal was virtually
“impossible” unless the files
proved McVeigh did not blow
up the building. “We would
have to overcome a whole fot,”
he said.

In fact, one hurdle for the
lawyers to overcome is thar
McVeigh admirted the crime in
4 recently published book,
"American Terrorist.”

Nigh argued, however, that
“the book is not in evidence,
There is not a record in any
court of his remarks in that
book.”

Finally McVeigh could di-
rectly petion the 1U.8. Su-
preme Court to overturn his
conviction in order to get a new
wial. The court rarely consid-
€rs such petitions,
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Senators push for investigation,
hearings to look into FBI operations

By RICHARD A. SERRANO
LGS ANGELES TIMES

WASHINGTON — Lawvers for
Timothy McVeigh said Sunday
that they zre launching a full
investigation into newly dis-
closed FBI files and most likely
will need yet another post-
ponement in his execution date
to complete their review.

Attorney General John Ash-
croft, however, said he will not
grant another delay, raising the
prospect that the case could
return to federal court.

Also Sunday, a phalanx of
senators from both political
parties strongly urged every-
thing from a full review of all
Federal Bureau of Investiga-

tion operations to congression- 4

al hearings, with several law-

makers saying agents should be *

prosecuted or fired if it turns
put the files were deliberately
kept from the defense. ¢
Government sources said
over the weekend that some of
the 3,135 pages of newly dis-
closed material was discovered
as early as January and Feb-
ruary, and yet the McVeigh
defense team was not alerted

until his May 16 execution date
was less than a week away.
While the FBL and pa -

ment of Justice offici ve

Rob Nigh
McVeigh
attorney
says 30 days
nct enough
to examine
documents

not show that McVeigh is in- 3.
nocent in the April 13, 1995, *
bombing of the Alf . Mur-

rah Federal Buildinggn Okla-

cized the bureau for holding on

to the material for solong.

" Onesenator saiditsuggested .

an “arrogance’ on the part of
the FBI that McVeigh should
die without having been pro-
vided the documents, while
another senator said it was in-
dicative of a “cowboy culture”™
that has infested the bureauand
led to a number of major mis-
takes int high-profile cases.
Much of the criticism Sun-
day came from Republican
senators, who now are urging
President Bush for a much
broader review of the belea-
guered agency than the one
Ashcroft has ordered into the

» SEE McVEIGH PAGE 6A

» BOMBING CONFESION IS LEGALLY WORTHLESS PAGE 6A
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» MCVEIGH: Documents called useless for bomber

CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1A

missing files.

McVeigh has been on death
row four years, since he was
convicted in the bombing that
killed 168 pecple.

Herecently droppedaliofhis

legal appeals and said he was -

ready to die.

He was scheduled to be exe-
cuted and, had Ashcroft not
granted a 30-day delay Friday,
McVeigh would have become
the first federal prisoner put to
death in 38 years.

Nathan Chambers, one of
McVeigh's two attorneys, said
on ABC-TV's “This Week™ that
the new execution date of June
11 gives the defense only
enough time for a cursory re-
view of the new documents.

At some point before June 11,
if Ashcroft does not budge,
Chambers said it will be
“certainly anopton” toask U.S.
District Judge Richard Matsch,
who sentenced McVeigh to die,
for more time to review the
situation.

Chambters and his co-
counsel, Rob Nigh, said that, not
only do they want to examine
the new documents, they also
want tc determine whether the
FBI purposely withheld the
material from the defense in
violathn of a court-authorized
agregment  made  befere
Mcleigh's trial. Furthermore,
they said, they want to make
sire that no other material still
it being held back.

Once they have made a pre-
liminary evaluation of the new
material, Chambers said, they
will ask McVeigh how he
wishes to proceed. The two
lawyers ncted that, until last
week, McVeigh was emotion-
ally prepared for death, but
they also stressed that he fer-
vently believes it is important
to determine how serious this
FBI foul-up might be.

Beth Wilkinson, 2 prosecutor
in the McVeigh case, conceded
that the appearance of new FBI
papers ‘“was an unfortunate
error” in McVeigh's case and
that of his convicted co-
conspirator, Terry Nichols.

“We spent many, many
months turning over an ex-
traordinary amount of docu-
ments to the defense counsel in

both the McVeigh and Nichols

cases, and we went back to the
FBI repeatedly to ask them for
any additional documents that
they had,” she said.

But she added that the ma-
terial basically is useless for
McVeigh. While much of it
consists of witness statements
about an alleged third conspir-
ator, known only as John Doe
No. 2, McVeighneverusedasa
defense during the sentencing
phase of his trial the possibility
that others might have been
involved in the bombing.

But Nigh, saying that more
than 30 days likely will be
needed to review the docu-
ments, stressed that “we have
to get to the precise factual
background of how this could

occur.”

But Ashcroft
telling the Daily Oklahoman
newspaper that the defense
team now has plenty of time to
review the new material and
that a second postponement is
not necessarv. He also pre-
dicted that the courts will not
grant McVeigh another day in
court

Sen. Charles Grassley, R-
Tows, a longtime critic of the
FBI and its outgoing director,

Louis Freeh, pointed to a long

listof FBlmissteps in big cases
— the Branch Davidian siege
near Waco, Texas; the shoot-
ings at Ruby Ridge, Idaho; and
the botched investigation of
nuclear scientist Wen Ho Lee.

On “Fox News Sunday,” Sen.
Arlen Specter, R-Pa, recom-
mended congressional hear-
ings into the FBI, and said that
if it is shown that FBI agents
purpesely withheld the docu-
ments, then people should be
fired and prosecuted.

Others, such as Sen. Charles
Schumer of New York, the
ranking Democrat on a Senate
judictary subcommittee that
oversees the FBI, told CBS that
he will urge Bush to name a
special commission to examine
the entire FBL

disagreed, -

i,
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Lawmak;s seek
probe of FBI after

McVeigh trouble

ASSGCIATED PRESS "

WASHINGTON — As Tim- -
othy McVeigh reevaluates
whether he wants to be exe-
cuted, lawmakers are consider-
ing hearings into the FBP's fadl- ;
ure to disclogé evidence in tﬂ!‘f

Oklahoma City bombing m‘

When McVeigh origi
decided not to pursue furthef'
appeals, he had no idea the
FBI had withheld evidence, at-
torney Robert Nigh said Sen-'
day. :
“In Lght of that, it's COMTY- :
pletely reasonable for him to '
reevaluate his position,” Nigh
told “Fox News Sunday.” “The -
facts of the case are now cer-
tainly at issue,”

McVeigh  “has  indicated
now that he is at least willing
to take a Iresh took at things,
hear our analysis of the facts
contained  within the docy-
ments and our legal analysis of
his options,” Nigh said on
CBS’ “Face the Nation.” =

The FBI's lapse  hag
prompted members of Con-
gress to urge hearings into
how it happened, and ope
Democrat  wants  President
Bush to appaint a blue-ribhon
commission to review the FRL

Defense  attorney  Nathan
Chambers guestioned whether
the FBI has disclosed all evi-
dence. “Are we going to learn
next week that there are yet
more documents?” Chambers
said on ABC's “This Week" ,

“There are a lot of questions
that a lot of people have for '*'
the FBI, and as we move for. |
ward in these next few days,
that question will be one that
is  answered,” said Mindy
Tucker, spokeswoman for At-
torney General John Asheroft.

A former prosecutor in the
case said she believed the foul-
up was unintentional and that
the documents should not af-
fect the outcome of the case,

“He has confessed to the
crime. The evidence durfny i

said on ABC. “T believe it is
very unlikely that there will be
any information that would be
useful to Mr. McVeigh.”
McVeigh and his lawyers
are considering whether to

seek a delay in his execution, "

postponed until June 11 by
Ashcroft because of the evi-
dence foul-up.

Ashcroft said he will not jm-
pose any further delays.

Just days before McVeigh
was to be executed, the FBI
disclosed that 3,135 investiga-
tion materjals —— including in-
terview reports and physical
evidence such as photographs, -
letters and tapes — were with-
held from McVeigh's lawyers,

McVeigh was to be exe
cuted for the April 19, 1995,
bombing of the Alfred P. Mur.
rah Federal Building in Okla-
homa City that killed 168 peo-
ple, including 19 children,

The defense team has just
begqun reviewing the docu-
meuis and Nigh said he wag
not prepared to disclose what
was in them.

the trial was absolutely over- *ﬁ
whelming,” Beth Wilkinson |-

Y4
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| Bombing

confession useless |

. Death ;
Federal prosecutors penaly
. opponentsy
still must prove witha
gian
Sotorh 1 puppet of .,
McVeigh's guilt puppet of 4
protest -
Sunday in
By ANNE GEARAN Terre
THE ASSOCATED PRESS Haute, Ind,, :
WASHINGTON —  Timothy where
-McVeigh says he did it, and he Timothy %
'is not sorry. McVeigh ﬁ
“I understand what they felt was R
in Okiahoma City. T have no scheduledﬂ
sympathy for them,” the con- to be s
victed killer of 168 people said, executed
after detailing how he planned - this week. .
and carried out the 1995
bombing of the Murrah federal
office building, ‘M. SPENCER
Asalegal matter, McVeigh's GREEN
confession is worthless. He THE ASSOCIATED -
admitted the bombing ta book FRESS B

authors, not in court.

That he said i, however,
makes it difficult for many to
understand the furor over an
FBImistake that has postponed

"McVeigh's scheduled execu-
tion and could reopen the legal
question of his guilr,

1 understand why lay peo-
ple, and espetially the victims,
would say, ‘Hey, he confessed,
he admitted it, sc what's the big
deal? " said G. Allen Dale, a
criminal defense lawyer.

But people confess, some-
times repeatedly, to crimes
theydidnot commit, and it is the
government's responsibility to
prove guilt in court, he and
other lawyers said.

“The government has got the
burden of procf, They can't
withhold documents and evi.
dence and then expect to kill
someone,” Dale said.

The Justice Department said
Thursday that more than 3,000
documents gathered by the FBT
before McVeigh's mial were
never given to his defense
team, as required by law. At
torney General John Ashcroft
postponed McVeigh's execy-
tion. scheduled for Wednesday.

McVeigh could ask for an-
other execution delay, now set

for June 11, or make a new as-
sault on his cenviction. His
published statemenrs confess-
ing to the bombing could then
bebroughtinto court, but would
still notequalastraightforward
confession to a law enforce-
ment officer.

One of Mcveigh's current
lawyers. Roberr Nigh, said on
NBC's “Meer the Press” thac
“there has been no evidence at
the time of trial concerning any
statemeant by Mr. McVeigh, and
you have 0 analyze the case in
terms of the evidence at the
time of mrial ™

The wwist derailed what had
seemed anorderly progression
toward the first federal execy.
ton sinee 1963,

McYeigh pleaded inngeent
and was convicred in 1997 and
sentenced (o death. Last vear.
McVeigh asked his lawvers 1o

stop fighting the case.

But until March and publi-
cation of “American Terrorist:
Timothy McVeigh and the
Cklahoma City Bombing,”
McVeigh had never publicly
admitted guilt, McVeigh toid
the authers he knew he would
Zet caught and anticipated ex- 4
ecution as a form of “state
assisted spicide —
1s  apparent desire for:
martyrdom is one reason the
FBI documents are so trou.
bling, said Lawrence Goldman,
vice president of the National
Association of Criminal De-
fense Lawyers.

“Wedon'tjust say someoneis
guilty because he says he is,”
Greldman said. “There are al-
ways people who have political
motives, maybe who have
humdrum lives, who want to go
down in history as a martyr.”
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“McVeigh: John Doe

No. 2 doesn’t exist -

By Kim Cobb found 3,135 documents about the bombing in-
HOUSTON CHRONICLE vestigation that it never shared with the do

fense. Many are “tips” that reportedly did not

With his execution on hold and his attorneys pan out from people who claimed to have seen a
reviewing old leads about possible accomplices, man with McVeigh in the days before the b $
Timothy McVeigh has written a letter to the ing. The suspect came to-be known as 3ig
Houston Chronicle stating unequivocally that Doe No, 2.7 ST Ty
there was never a “John Doe No. 2.” ‘ McVeigh's letter came in Tesponse to a repogts.

Legal experts say the statement, in McVeigh's  eor's inquiries about renewed allegations by his
-own distinctive handwriting, could weaken any estranged trial attorney, Stephen Jones, that ,
argument his attorneys might make to seek x McVeigh has always inflated ‘his ‘Tole in ‘the3
new trial based on the possible existence of bombing to serve his ego. o v
other conspirators in the 1995 bombing of the  Jones claims McVeigh was actually the tool of
Alfred P. Marrah Building in Oldahoma City, in  a larger group of conspirators, o
which 168 people were killed and hundreds in- “Jones has heen thoroughly discredited, so
jured. I'm not going to break 2 sweat refuting his out- -

McVeigh dated his single-page letter May 2 landish claims point-by-point,” McVeigh wrote.
— a full week before the FBI revealed it had  “The truth is on my side.” :

Jones says the attorneyclient privilege no
longer exists between himself and McVeigh,
based on the condemped man's widely published
confessions to the bombing and on McVeigh’s
claims that Jones misrepresented him, McVeigh
clearly disputes that, noting in the letter that
Jones’ “ethical transgressions” will have to be
judged by his peers and the courts,

“And last, does anyone honestly believe that if
there was a John Doe 2 (there is not), that Ste-
phen Jones would still be alive? ... Think about
it,” McVeigh wrote.

McVeigh, 33, had been scheduled to die Wed-
nesday for the bombing. But after learning of
the existence of the unreleased FBI documents,
US. Attorney General John Ashcroft delayed
the execution for ane month, to June 11.
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By ANNE GEARAN .

THE ASSOCIATED PRESS

WASHINGTON — The FBI's
failure to turn over thousands
of docurnents from the inves-
tigation of Timothy McVeigh
and the Oklahoma City bomb-.
ing should persuade the Sy~
preme Court to reconsider the
case of co-conspirator Terry .
Nichols, Nichois' lawyers ar-
gued in a new appeal. ’

Nichols was sentenced in
1997 to life in prison after he
was found guilty in a federal
trial of inveluntary man-
slaughter and conspiracy for
his role in the bombing of the
Alfred P. Murrah Federal
Building two years earlier.

He was acquitted on federal
charges of first- and second-
degree murder.

Nichols has pursued various
appeals since then, including
one the Supreme Court turned
down without comment
April. But that was before last
week's revelation that the FRI
held back thousands of docu-
ments from defense lawyers
for Nichols and McVeigh.

“The newly discovered fact
that the United States with-
held concededly discoverable
FBI materials casts Mr,
Nichols’ request ... in a much
more favorable light," his law-
yers wrote in court papers
filed over the weekend and re-
leased Monday.

.~

!
!
|
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Lawyers want

reconsideration
of Nichols case
They say FBI failure o

"The Justice Department re- '
vealed last week that more
than 3,000 documents were
not turned over to lawyers for
Nichols and the bomber,
McVeigh, convicted of the
henoing and murders of eight
federal law enforcemenggfﬁc-
ers among the attack’s 1 o
tims. Attorney General Johp
Ashcroft delayed McVeigh's
scheduled execution as a
result.

Defense lawyers Michael
Tigar and Susan Foreman did
not immediately respond to
requests for comment Mon-
day. There was no immediate
word from the court on wheth-
er the documents’ appearance

U

™E

would affect Nichols’ case.

Some of the documents ap-
parently concern the FBFs
search for a possible “John
Doe No. 2,” ancther suspect in
the bombing,

Tpe _identity o . Mg

§ ~ primary - co-
conspirator, John Do€ No. 2,
was a key issue in Mr. Nichols’
trial defense, and the withheld
(documents) regarditlg the
identity of that person went to
the heart” of Nichols' request
for reconsideration, his law-
yers wrote.

Nichols ultimately wants a
new trial. He claims a federal
Jjudge did not do enough to en-
sure that prosecutors turned
over all material that might
have helped the defense,

He had asked the high court
to reopen the case, focusing on
whether the trial judge acted
property.

“Justce requires further ...
analysis of the newly revealed
documents and a fresh look at
the wial court’s willingness to
defer” to the FBI when decid-
ing what material had to be
handed over, Nichols’ lawyers
wrote,

-

-
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More McVeigh
cuments found

Ay RICHARD A SERRANC
and ERIC LICHTBLAU

- L0S ANGELES T'MES

WASHINGTON — A second
batch of undisclosed records
in the Oklahoma City bombing
has been found in Balgmore,
sources said Monday, prompt-
ing the FBI to send out a
worldwide directive ordering
all bureau field offices and at-
taches to comb their files for
any more documents that may
not have been turned over to
Timothy McVeigh's lawyers.

Meanwhile, new details
emerged about the contents of
more than 3,000 pages of doc-
uments discovered last week
— witness statements and
photographs relating to a mys-
terious character known as
Robert Jacques, as well as sur-
veillance tapes of sightings.sf
“John Doe No. 2, alleged to
have been a McVeigh
conspirator.

Although the government
later discounted the existence
of either figure, rumors about
their alleged association with
McVeigh spawned endless
theories of conspiracies and
government cover-ups :n what
became the largest investiga-
tion 1n FBI history.

Federal officials last week
discovered the 3,135 pages of
new material after collecting
it from dozens of field offices

around the country. After
turning the documents over to
the defense team for McVeigh
and his  convicted oo
conspirator, Terry Nichols,
seven additional documents
turned up late last week in the
Baitimore office, sources said
Monday. The documents were
expected to be delivered to de-
fense attornevs on Mondav.

Like the material found in
other offices, the Baltimore
documents were discounted
by government sources, who
said they have no relevance to
McVeigh's guilt or innocence.
Baldmore was one of dozens
of FBI field offices involved in
interviewing witnesses and
collecting evidence.

In issuing its sweeping or-
der on Monday, the FBI
sought to ensure that no addi-
tional materials will surface
that should have long ago been
shared with the defense.

“Everybody is checking
again. The whole bureau to-
day,” said an FBI source, one
of several government sourc-
es who asked not to be identi-
fied because of the ongoing in-
vestigation. “Everybody is go-
ing through everything
again.”

A Department of Justice of-
ficial said authorities are wor-
ried that if even more materi-
al is belatedly found after this
latest search, it will be ali the
more embarrassing to federal
law enforcement.

“We certainly want all the
informaton that is availake.”
the official said. “We war * .1l
the information that's .ur

there”

The Aprid 1995 Oklahoma
City bombing was the largest
terrorist attack in the United
States, killing 168 people and
injuring more than 500 others.

in the larger cache of FBI
documents discovered ‘ast
week, references 10 a Robert
Jacques — whose last name al-
so was sometimes spelled
~Jacquez” — crop up several
times, sources said.

Shortly after the bombing, 2
southwest Missouri real estate
broker told the FBI that three
men came to his office wish-
ing to buy secluded property -

that was “in the middle of no- -

where.” He said they told him

they wanted some land with -

caves.

This was in November 1954,
right before McVeigh and
Nichols, a former Las Vegas
resident, began stockpiling
materials for the bomb.

The broker, William Mal-
oney, said that two of the men
fit the descriptions of
MeVeigh and Nichels, and he
recalted that the third figure,
who said his name was Robert

Jacques, “did most of the
talking.”

But the government was
never able to authenticate that
the visitors were actually
McVeigh and Nichols at ail, or
that Jacques ever existed.

Sources said the other mate-
rizgl included photographs of
people resembling Jacques.

Also in the files, the sources
said, was information about
the so-called John Doe No. 2.

Employees at the Ryder
store, where McVeigh rented
the truck to carry the bomb,
insisted that McVeigh was
with a second man. That man
was never found, but an FB{
sketch of him was circulated

nationwide. )

The government later in-
sisted that the Ryder employ-
pes were mistaken and that
McVeigh had been alone, but
the sightings of John Doe No.
2 persisted nonetheless. .

In the missing files also are
surveillance tapes of John Doe
No. 2 look-alikes, as well_p;
statements from various peg-
ple who claimed to have seen
him, $ources said. AR

Defense ldwyers are’ Dow
reviewing the new matertal
and determining how to pro-
ceed. With McVeigh's cooper-
ation, they are likely to_ask a
federal judge for more time to
study the documents.

McVeigh was to have been
executed on Wednesday. But
after the FBI files foul-up, At-
torney General John Ashcroft
delayed the execution until
June 11,

While defense attorneys say
30 days is not long enough to
review the newly disclosed
materials, Ashcroft has said
he will not grant another
postponement.

“The attorney general has
been very generous with the
time he’s allowed,” said an
Ashcroft aide. “He thought 1t

L)
D“’“
A
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was a reasonable amount of
time, and he's not going to de-
lay it past the date he set If
McVeigh wants to push it, I'm =
sure he'll fight it in court.”

Lawyers for Nichols are al-
50 trying to use the new infor-
mation to help him win a new
rial in federal court, or at
least reduce his life sentence.

“In a case of this magni-
tude, where the defendant’s
life and liberty were at jeopar-
dy ... it is essential the defe:g
have the oppertunity to “ﬁ
view and assess the withheld °
materials and then take apprg-- %
priate action,” Nichols’ lad- ~
vers wrote in a petition fiked
with the Supreme Court late
Friday and made public
Monday.

Nicheols’ lawyers had s-
gued earlier this year that
government lawyers withheld
ather key documents from the
defense and that the trial
court failed to fully explore
this issue.

The Supreme Court turned
down Nichols' appeal last
month

But his lawyers argue in
their new filing that “the new-
ly discovered fact that the
United States withheld ... FBI
materials casts Mr. Nichols’
request for a remand for fur-
ther proceedings in a much
more favorable light.”

In Oklahoma City on Mon-
day, where state prosecutors
hope to win a death sentence
for Nichols on first-degree
murder charges, a prelimi-
nary hearing that was to bave
begun next week was post-
poned indefinitely — a sign
that the state judge there is
also concerned about new ma-
terials turning up.
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clear on McVeigh

Field offices certify: No more documents

By LOHS ROMANC
and CHERYL W, THOMPSON
THE WASHINGTON POST

FBI field offices across the
country Tuesday assured top
officials that they have no
more records related to the
Oklahoma City bombing case,
meeting a 9 a.m. deadline set
by FBI Director Louis Freeh
after several more items
trickled in from the Baltimore
field office last week, officials
said.

Freeh ordered 100 FBI of-
fices to certify in writing that
they had sent all bombing files
to the Qklahoma City field of-
fice after 3,135 pages of mate;
rial surfaced last week, six
days before convicted bomber
Timothy McVeigh was to be
executed.

“We've been assured by the
... offices that there should be
no more records,” an FBI offi-
cial said Tuesday.

Meanwhile Tuesday,

law-

makers in Washington strong-
ly criticized FBI handling of
the McVeigh and other cases,
one senator saving it under-
mined the confidence of the
American people.

“Any kind of failure at the
FBI, anything that happens at
the FBI that calls into question
something they did or fatled to
do leads to a lot of mistrust
with the American people,”
Sen. Richard Shelby, R-Ala,
the Senate Intelligence Com-
mittee chairman, said after his
committee met privately with
Freeh.

Freeh told the senators that
information in the newly
found documents “won’t have
any bearing on the case,” Shel-
by said. Reflecting a wariness
of such pronouncements, the
senator added, “VVe'll have to
wait and see.”

“It's something that should
not have happened, and it
shows, probably, a lack of dili-
gence somewhere in the FBIL"
Shelby said. As the bhureau's
director, Freeh is responsible,
Shelby said, but he said others
in the FBI who failed to meet
deadlines or follow orders
“ought to be brought to task.™

Sen. Orrin Hatch, R-Utah.
who chairs the Judiciary Com-
mittee that oversees the FBIL
said of the McVeigh docu-
ments: “There's no question
these mistakes should not

AMY SANCETTA/THE ASSCCATED PRESS

FBI Special Agent Welden Kennedy holds up a sketch of the
man known as “John Doe No. 2,” scught in the Oklahoma City
bombing, during a news conference an May 1, 1995.

have been made i a high-
profile case, or any case.”

Fvery criminal defendant
“he right to these types of
uals and we've ot (o Bve
o our  responsibilities,”
sand Hateh, who was aort in the

Freeh hearing. “We must see
that those rights are
protected.”

Freeh was expecied 10 pro-
vide a: a House hearing oday
some answers about why the
FBI failed to turn over the




LAS J“ﬁ[&{, PQV\-C\__U Ty Rl

pages from the bombing n-
vestigation, officiats said.
On Friday, Attorney Gener-

al John Asheroft delayed
McVeigh's execution  uncii

June 11 to give his lawyers
time to review the new files,

which should have been
turned over (o McVeigh be-
fore his June 1997 trial.

A day earlier, seven addi-
tonal items were found in Bal-
timore. Officials said nothing
in that material casts doubt on
McVeigh's guilt or innocence,
the same position they took on
the witness statements, tapes,
photographs and other docu-
ments turned  Over to
McVeigh’s defense lawyers
last week.

Meanwhile, McVeigh's at-
torneys were ambushed this
week by an unexpected source
__ their own client. In a letter
to the Houston Chronicie

WAL Y l(’,,l doot

written before his execution
was delayed, McVeigh states
unequivocally that there was
no “John Doe 27 — a suspect
who was described by wit-
nesses soon after the blast but
never materialized. :

1egal experts have said that
McVeigh could benefit fromr
the recently discovered FBL
files by challenging his death

sentence — if the materials; T

point to other potential sus-
pects.  When sentencing.
McVeigh to death in June
1997, the jury could have con-
sidered as a mitigating factor
whether other suspects mdy
have played a dominant role in
the April 19, 1995, bombing of
the Alfred P. Murrah Federal
Building, which Killed 168
people.

-

e
The Associated Press contributed to this,
report
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By CHERYL W. THOMPSON
THE WASHINGTON F0ST

WASHINGTON — FBI Direc-
tor Louis Freeh acknowledged
Wednesday that hig agency
“committed a serious error”
by failing to turn aver ail evi.
dence to Timothy MecVeigh's
lawyers in the Oklahoma City
bombing case and promised to
implement changes before he
retires next month,

Speaking publicly on the
McVeigh case for the first
time, Freeh told a House Ap-
propriations subcommittee
that he made repeated written
requests to bureau offices for
all materials related ro the
case. But most of the offices
eifther “failed to locate the doc-
uments, misinterpreted their
instructions and likely pro-
duced only those thar would
be disclosed under normal dis-
covery or sent the documents
only to have them unaccount-
ed for on the other end,” he
said.

“Any of these cases is unac-
ceptable,” Freeh told the
panel.

As a result, 3,135 pages of
material surfaced last week
that had not been turned over
to McVeigh's lawvers before
the convicted bomber’s 1997
trial. prompting  Attorney
General John Asherofr to de-
lay MeVeigh's execution until
June 11 McVeigh, 33, was
scheduled to die by lethal in-
Jection Wednesday for the
1995 bombing of the Alfred B
Murrah Federal Building in
Oklzhoma City, the worst act
of terrorism on American soil.

“As director, I have taken
responsibility,” Freeh said.
“I'm  accountable for the
failure.”

MAY 17, 2001

Freeh said that 11 teletypes
were sent to field offices be-
tween August 1995 and No-
vember 1996 asking that all
evidence be sent to the Okia-
homa City command post, the
office charged with compiling
the records and evidence. On
Nov. 14, 1996, after a court
hearing, officials at the

cemmand post found thar
some surveillance logs had not
been sent to them and had not
been turned over tg McVeigh's
lawyers. :

Freeh said he senf g
“strongly worded priority tele.
type” the next day to the S6
field offices and 44 legal at-
taches ordering all materials
be sent immediately “with
written confirmation from the
office heads.”

The FBI's archivist sent a
letter to all field offices last
December outlining
“procedures for maintenance
and disposition of records” re-
garding the investigation,
Freeh said. One envelope sur-
faced after that letter, prompt-
ing the Oklahoma City office
to send a letter in late January
to all field offices again re-
questing all infermation be
sent for archiving, he said.

"As we now know, there
were still many offices that
had failed to comply,” Freeh
toid the panel.

In February, records began
> SEE FBI PAGE GA

e e s ot St g om0 st ...

Freeh admits
McVeigh case
‘mishandled

CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1A
“pouring in,” Freeh said. But
£ early March, a female FBI
analyst found items that had
not been entered into the data-
base, and another letter was
issued.

The last request came on
Friday from Freeh in a three-
page letter requesting all of-
fices to certify in writing that
they had sent all bombing files
and items to the Oklahoma
City field office.

Additional documents have
been found since Friday’s or-~
der. Those items are being re-
viewed to determine if they
should have been ttumed over
to defense lawyers, Freeh
said.

Although a court order pre-
vents him from discussing the
details of the materials, Freeh
said he doesn't believe any of
the items would change thp

convictions of McVeigh or his
convicted CO-conspirator,
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Terry Nichols.
Rep. David Obey, D-Wis,,

* Las Vegas Review-Journal

Nuclear Laboratory scientist

Wen Ho Lee,

the ranking Democrat on the
House Appropriations Com-
mittee, offered Wednesday's
strongest criticism of Freeh,
for mistakes in the McVeigh
case and other cases.

“I think we have .. some-
thing close to g failed agency,

ey said,

The FBI has acknowledged
mistakes mn fandling the
overnment siege g uDy

Ubey_ sai

Ubev said the burean has
suffered “chronic, eonsistent
alures” and is “desperatelv

in need of reform.”

“There’s such a pervasive
list of problems through the
vears,” Obey told Freeh. “The
failure of 46 of 56 offices to
deliver the goods to vou is an
amazing example.” :

Freeh defended his agency
ancd_sald_many of the cases

e, 0, where federal

agents ed “the e an
cEia of _separatisf_Randy

~veaver the 1993 feder

on the Branch Davidian com-
ear co, Texas that
killed 75 people; the discovery

were investigations conducferd
unger an "o . It was the

O &if FBT wiretap fape de-
cad fter the 1963 Birmmg-
Tam . church FomTTE e
Jilled Tolr guls, missteps i
the investigation o ichar
;iéweﬂ for tﬁe 1998 ii!im%lc
bombing in Atlanta; and the
"aross mishandling” of the m-
vestigation of Los Alamos

FBI of "modern tmes" that
righfed the wrongs, he said.

“Yes, the Brmmingham case
is a disgrace to the FBIL”
Freeh said. “That case should
have been prosecuted in 1964,
The evidence was there.”

Freeh pointed out that it
was his FBI that discovered
the tape used at the recent tri-
al Thomas Blanton, who was
found guilty of murder earlier
this menth in the Birmingham
case,

The Ruby Ridge case “was a
great tragedy” that prompted
the FBI to reform its crisis
management response, Freeh
said.

“I'm not here to minimize
our mistakes or make excus-
es,” Freeh said. “We have had
troubles in this agency ... but
we also have had triumphs.”

In the McVeigh case, Rep.
Frank Wolf, R-Va, the sub-
comrittee’s chairman, asked
why the bureau didn’t search
for documents by hand.

“That is one of the questions
we'll have to answer,” Freeh
told the panel.

Freeh assured the subcom-
mittee that he’s taking steps to
strengthen management and
help make the agency more
accountable. He'’s ordered the
creation of a search commit-
tee to hire a “world<class
records expert, a senior offi-
cial who will be dedicated to
this issue and this issue
alene,” he said.
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Probe finds problems

By JOHN S0LOMON )
THE ASSOCIATED PRESS

WASHINGTON — The FBl's
Oklahoma City office had seri-
ous difficulties handling evi-

i dence at the height of the Tim-

| oty McVeigh bombing case,

| ranging from losing docu-

i ments to improperly storing
bloody clothing that could not
be tested for clues, documents
show.

Two separate internal re-
views documented “serious
deficiencies” and “systemic
problems” inside the office
that were first noticed i an
unrelated 1995 prison death
case that arose four months
into the bombing
investigation.

The internal reports did not
cite any problems with
McVeigh case evidence. But
they broadly criticized the
Oklahoma FBI's day-to-day
handling of evidence and cite
some FBI personnel who were

| involved in the bombing case.

: Excerpts from the court
sealed reports were obtained
by The Associated Press.

For instance, an agent who
was awarded BIs miglest

award for bravery in the
bombng _case made [alse

“Iralements, somle under 0ain,

] I [ € n USs

S L B I T prisomer et
neth i rentadue, the

ustice D aent inspector
general concluded.

FBT officials acknowledge
the Oklahoma City office had
problems but say they have
been fixed. They also say the
perscnnel cited in the internal
reports played only minor

roles in the bombing case be-
cause a team of national ex-
perts arranged a separate fa-
cility to gather evidence about
the bombing.

“We have absclute confi-
dence in the investigative ef-
forts of the Oklahoma City
bombing task force with re-
gards to the entire investiga-
tion,” said Bill Carter, FBI
spokesman in Washington,

Special Agent in Charge Ri-
chard Marquise, who took
over the Oklahoma City office
in 1999, said the problems
have been rectified. “Things
have changed,” he said.
“Obviocusly the problems were
there. We recognize we had a
problem.”

The FBI's conduct is receiv-
ing renewed scrutiny after
revelations it discovered thou-
sands of pages of witness in-
terviews and other evidence
in the McVeigh case just days
before the convicted Oklaho-
ma City bomber was to be exe-
cuted. The FBI has blamed g
computer pliich, and person-
Bel who_incarrectly thought _
dOCUMErTs Were nog relevan.

The internal reviews identi-
fied myriad problems in the
Oklahoma City bureau. Evi-

dence was inventoried bélat-
edly. Photographs and 1ab re-

ports_were Tnisplaced. Bloody
ciothing from the prison death
case wias tmproper]y sfored.

The evidence “was unsuit-
able for serological
-

inaticq d ] .
fied condition in which it was
received,” an FBI memo said,
about the bloody evidence.
lf_lﬁ%’;,a_téam_ﬁnqu
Justice Départment’s inspec-

center.
Trentadue_was found hang-
ing Trom his cell and the deatiy
was ruled a suicide. His fami-
Iy challenged the conclusion,

tor general's oflice reported
“systermnic_problems with the
FBI OKC evidénce program.”
Separatelv, an 1 -
view concluded g “very seric

_%Sr%gblﬂm.tmjmm
KC evidence program.”

The Tawyer who represent-
ed McVeigh at tria] said he be-
lieves the government had an
cbligation to divulge the prob-
lems under court rulings that
require prosecutors to dis-
close information about the
credibility or professionalism
of law enforcement involved
in the case.

“I think it should have been
(divudged),” attorney Stephen
Jones said.

The Oklahoma City
evidence-handling problems
surfaced in connection with

prisoner Trentadue’s death gt
R RS vediddn

a local federal “detention

alleging the inmate’s body was

Mﬂ%

The internal investigations
uitimately upheld the suicide
conclusion but identified wide-
spread  problems, including
false staferments by prison Gi-
fittalzand _an BRI agent; 41
fieces of cvidence flal werg
missing; and_the FBI's de-

struction of g ke orl doc-

eatedly requeste Jus-

1ce Department.
Orie_infternal FBI memo in._

dicates i

ity had con

g_ry__jgalﬁd_ﬁmm_the

aggarmr_me_fam_ﬁ&md-
ence was missin,

Trentadue’s family sued th_e

governumernt. A judge this
month awarded the family
$1.1 million.

Former Justice Department
inspector general Michael
Bromwich, who oversaw
much of the Trentadue review,
said in an interview that FBI
nfficials uncharacteristically,”
resisted and hampered _the

nquiry.
_41_%1 say_in_general that
the FBI has strongly. resisted
15 reviews at their anset and
enerally have
operative once they've be-
gun,” Bromwich said. “The
rr_n_ajo%__fxcc-t:‘g%wm'
"Trentadue, where they fought

“us toath and nait.”
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Attorney: Evidence
kept}:c?n both sides

By ANNE GEARAN
THE ASSGCIATED PRESS

WASHINGTON — A lawyer
for Terry Nichols, the man
convicted of helping Timothy
McVeigh brepare for the Okla-
boma City bombing, told the

iy

“Form 302" reports document-
Ing those inierviews are I1Ss-
1gar contended.

i €_contradicted by the
newly discovere material

where govemment prosecy-
Or's made arg %mnts at trial

“We do e
rosecutors  were i
unethicafly,” ~ Tigar Wrote.

“Rather, "it appears that the

tion that the FBI failed tq turn
over thousands of items to de-
fense lawyers before tria],

“We have reason to believe
——— =" 10 believe

FBI hid from them the evi-

The lawye 1 had BPidercy
Foiing at Teast tug ebad

dence that the defense was
presenfing friy ,  rellable
ence.

John CoHingwood, FBI
Spokesman, said that inn the
FBI's review, “We have seen
no evidence that suggests any
intent tg withhold evidenca
from the defendants.”

“To the contrary, the intent
has always been disclosure be-
yond that called for by law”

ols lawyer alleges FBJ

deception in missing documents |

that the FBI g ents may have -
consciously lajled 15 MEemort. *
dard FBT form that wouig then |
Be aVATEBIe 1o depod 1

€ to defense  Iac
W’lﬂ wyer Michae} |
1Igar WIole in g ﬁgmggmef'1
urt filing released Frig S
~ Documents the FBI belated- |
ly turned over refer fo mier-
Views the FBI com leted dur~
g 1ts mvestigation of the

said Collingwood,

Tigar did not detai] that alle- &

gation and he dig not respond
to requests for comment.

Nichols has long contended
that his lawvers did not have
access to all the investigative
material due them before tri-
al. That allegation was the ba-
sis of his larest appeal to the
Supreme Court, which the Jus-
tices turned down without
comment in Aprif.

|
|



HE shocking deiay of Timathy

McVeigh's execution was secretly

plotted by a group of FBI agents,

who believe the wnole truth behind
the Okiahoma City bombing has rot ye:
come out, say sources.

The agents were behind the “sudden”
discovery of the 3,155 documents
that McVeigh's lawyers never saw
and caused
Attorney Gen.
John Ashcroft
to postpone
the May 16
execution,
the sources
confide.

“The FBI
pecpie realized
that if McVeign
dies, their
chances of
uncovering
the entire story
goes with him,”
5ays an insider.

"They forced
higher-ups in the
bureau to admit that the jury that
convicted McVeigh had not heard all
the evidence”

One shattering fact that has not
previgusiy been reveaied may now
come aut, says former F3i senior
special agent Ted Gunderscn - that
McVeigh was part of 3 12-man terrorist
team.

In an exclusive GLOBE interview, the

McVeigh was part of a 12-man terro'nst team
that blew up Oklahoma City’s Murrah Federal
Building, FB1 insiders befieve

veteran agent, who spent 27 years
with the bureau says, "One of the
investigation team members working
on the Cklzhoma City bombing told
me personally that there were 11 other
ceople besides McVeigh involved in
the planning. .

"The idea that he acted afone on
that day is ;ust downright unbelievahle.”
He was just the
pawn, the fall
guy.”

Gunderson
says it's possibie
that the missing
documents
hold vital
clues to the
depth of the
conspiracy
that led to
the deaths of
168 people in
the destruction
of the Murrah
Federal
Building.

“Terry Nichois
and Michael Fortier were both low- level
pecple. Above them were ‘handlers,’
which means the management
team in the jargon of this type of
operation.

"I don't know if we'll ever learn the
complete truth. But at least the stay
of execution gives a little mare time
for the full story to come out.” -

- DAWNA KAUFMANN
May 29, 2001 / GLOBE 17
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~ 18 Disaster In The Heartland
Harvey Eisner reports on the fire service's response to the biggest terrorict inei-
edint in U.S. history. operatinefor 17 dav=ig Oldaboma Citv.
— 34 Observations From Ground Zero

hllie Wieder provides an eyewitness account from the scene of the blast.

44 Phoenix USAR T2z :
Tim Simmens focuses on Phoenix’s FEMA Urban Search and Rescue Task Force.

52 The Role Of FEMA's USAR Incident Support Team
Larry Collins tells why a disaster management is crucial to safe and effective
rescue operations.

72 Bombing Puts CISD To The Test

Don Forsyth reports on the use of critical incident stress debriefing.

78 Lifting Debris By Crane
Sam Melissi and Dan McDonough spotlight the use of heavy equipment,.

84 USAR Task Forces
Roceo DiFrancesco answers the questions: Who are all those people working at
the disaster scene? What do they do?

94 Collapse Search And Rescue
Vincent Dunn describes how techniques devised by British
firefighters during the German blitz of World War If are
used for rescue operations today.

100 Action Plans For Collapse Incidents
Dennis L. Rubin recounts two disasters and the ways in
which they were mitigated.

104 Initial Controf Of Collapse Scenes
Pete Lund reports on how a few smart moves can prevent
further tragedy early on at a collapse.

=108 Explosives: What Firefighters Must Know
Mike Pickett outlines information that firefighters need
when dealing with explasives.

= 112 Hazards Of Concrete Construction
Francis L. Brannigan points out the dangers firefighters face when responding to
collapses involving concrete structures.

~ 116 Street Management At Explosions & Collapses
John Norman outlines the proper placement of apparatus and assignments for
personnel to operate effectively.
119 Confined Space Rescue Training
Paul Hashagen, Russell Accardi and Michael T. Reimer describe & model program
in Florida created at a low cost, but paying big dividends.

122 Collapse Operations Through History
Paul Hashagen recalls the fire service's earliest efforts to manage collapses.

126 Terrorism In America
Paul Hashagen describes the perils that firefighters face because of terrorists.
— 130 Ammonium Nitrate & The Texas City Disaster
Harry R. Carter. Ph.D., recounts the massive explosicn in 1947,

134 The K.C. Skywalk Collapse

William Keith recalls the monumental rescus effort,

137 Expect The Unexpected
Butch Cobb and Michael K. Loch provide an account that proves that fire scenes
can hide dangercus secrets.

142 Pump Pressure Governors For Electronic Engines
Robert J. Barraciough offers a new twist to a proven system for the pumping
of firefighting apparatus.
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s Fire Politics

Part of the fallout from the
Oklahoma City bombing has been
harsh scrutiny of the FBI, the
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco &
Firearms (ATF) and their handling
of the Branch Davidian incident
near Waco, TX. Of concern to the
fire service is what, if anything,
happens to ATF as a result of this
latest investigation.

It came about because Timothy
McVeigh, the accused perpetrator of
the Oklahoma bombing, may have
been seeking revenge for the ATF’s
raid on the Branch Davidian com-
pound and the FBI assault that
ended the 51-day siege with 80 peo-
ple dyving in a raging fire. The
National Rifle Association (NRA),
militia leaders and others who
believe in conspiracy theories cited
the Waco disaster as an example of
the federal government being out of
control. That was enough for their
friends in Congress to call for spe-
cial hearings by two House subcom-
mittees.

Some House members were
motivated by a genuine desire to
learn more and answer lingering
guestions about what went wrong at
Waco. But some were committed to
helping the NRA carry out its long-
running vendetta against ATF while
others wanted to embarrass the
Clinton administration and, if possi-
ble, link the Waco attack decision
directly to the president. They failed
on that score; Attorney General
Janet Reno onece again took full
responsibility for the decision mak-
ing, and no one could prove other-
wise.

Nor was anyone able to find evi-
dence of a government conspiracy.
However, the FBI and ATF took
some hard criticism for exercising
questionable judgment and acting
on incomplete or erroneous informa-
tion at the start and finish of the
Branch Davidian episode — which
stands as a human tragedy regard-
less of whe's to blame. A lot of peo-
ple died near Waco, including inno-
Hal Bruno, a Firehouse® contributing
editor, is the ABC News political director
and served many years as a volunteer
firefighter.
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By HAL BRUMO

ATF: Fire Service Ally
Under Attack

The “Good Old Boys”
tncident and the
Waco issue have

whetted the appetite

of those who want to
destroy the Bureau of
Alcohol, Tobacco &
Firearms as an
independent branch
of federal law
enforcement.

cent children, and there were mis-
calculations on all sides.

What came through at the hear-
ings is that the Branch Davidians did
the killing. The actions of law enforce-
ment officers may have triggered the
ambush of ATF agents in-the initial
raid and the setting of the fatal fire
when the FBI attacked on the final
day, but it was the Branch Davidians
who were responsible for the deaths of
their own people, They were NOT a
peaceful religious sect merely seeking
to worship in their own way; they
were a band of fanatics armed with
heavy weapons and David Koresh,
their leader, engaged in criminal prac-
tices that gave law enforcement good
reason to arrest him.

As it has from the start, all of the
evidence clearly shows that cult
members set the fires that engulfed
the compound when the FBI tried to
end the siege. Koresh and the Branch
Davidians committed a horrifying act
of mass murder and mass suicide.
The only debatable peoint is whether
the FBI should have known their
intentions and used different tacties.

As for ATF, its tarnished image
took additional blows when media
stories (planted by militia members)
revealed that some ATF personnel
had atrended an annual “Good Old
Boys” picnic where racist activities
took place. This followed other
charges that agents had acted
improperly on previous raids and

B/

allegations that a patfern of racism
and sexual harassment existed with-
in the agency — which only adds to
the difficulty of defending ATF
against those who would like to put it
out of business.

In past troubles, it has been the
fire service that came forward to help
save ATF from its enemies. This col-
umn has always been a defender of
ATF because of the superb job it does
in helping local fire departments
solve arson cases. However, we do not
condone or make excuses for the mis-
behavior of some ATF personnel; we
can only trust that the leadership is
taking strong action to correct its
internal problems. And, there has to
be a close supervision to make sure it
doesn’t occur again.

In fact, that has to happen if the
fire service is going to continue to be
ATF's strongest supporter. It's my
personal opinion that we should con-
tinue in that role because the fire ser
vice needs ATF. Fire department
arson investigators who have worked
with the ATF response teams have
nothing but praise and thanks for
their skill and cocperation. Last year
4,000 arsonists were arrested as a
result of ATF’s assistance or initiative
in clearing cases. ATF deserves sup-
port because every arsonist taken off
the street is one less threat to the
lives of firefighters and the citizens
they protect.

But defending ATF will be a lost
cause if the agenecy doesn’t get its
house in order without delay. A
Senate subcommittee plans to hold
hearings on the “Good Old Boys” inci-
dent and there will be some ugly pic-
tures and testimony. That and the
Waco issue have whetted the appetite
of those who want to destroy ATF as
an independent branch of federal law
enforcement. ATF's enemies failed in
the House hearings, but they will
keep trying. Today more than ever,
ATF needs support from the fire ser-
vice and the fire service should con-
tinue to respond as it has in the past.

Cne final note: whatever may
have gone wrong at Waco, it doesn't
justify the cowardly act of terrorism
that killed 188 innocent people in
Cklahoma City. )

Firehouse/September 1995

e

S ETE LS P e et p

AT

Favrpnpw @R E L R T E DRI Y @ o

-z
F

<

T



Fire Service Comes To The Forefront Following T

Sy HARVEY zIsNER

. Editor's note; The Oklahoma City
Ay Fire Department, along with numer-
(v, 0us city, county, state and federal
agenacles, operated for 17 days at the
site of a terrorist bombing. The
?: death foll siands at 168. Ta date,
640 tnjurtes have been recorded,

@ including 38 injuries to rescue work-
ers. More then 60 cars were dam-
aged or destroved. At least 460

L2 Suildings sustained damage and

Q,) over 60 buildings recelved heauy

. - Tamage. Estimales of property 10ss

5 areat feast 5200 million. Thou-

W) sands of rescue workers and civilian

\Y© volunteers operated during the inci-

dent. With all that activity, Fire-
house® car orily begin fo scratch the
surface of what occurred during that
period. There is no intent to exclude
any part of the operation or any res-
cuers who worked during the opera-
tion, but spuce limitations preclude
us from telling every aspect of the
story, Finel documentation of the
incident by the Oklahoma City Fire
Department of the incident is sched-
uled for completion in early 1996.

The Oklahoma City Fire

Department has just under 1,000 fire-
fighters who operate 33 engines, 13
ladders and six squads from 33 sta-
tions with six distriet chiefs. The
department protects 300,000 people
in a 621-sguare-mile arsa and is the
first-responding agency for medical
erergencies.

In 1929, following the death of
three firefighters in a flashover, resi-
dents approved a plan to increase the
city's sales tax by three-quarters of
one cent, with the extra revenue 2o be
split between the fire and police
departments. This let the fire depart-
ment hire 200 firefighters, build five
new stations. puy equipment and
apparatus and provide money for
skill pay, tuition reimpurserment, edu-
cational incentives and benefits. For
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rioft — money from she sales LG
not be ased Lo repluce the
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EVErY (el
government, inciuding the
city manager, atrended a disaster
management course at the National
Fire Academy in BEmmitsburg, D,

Departme on =watting 2 s B
b Minimum

s Engine —
mocimm {our
o Trieck — Mintmam b,

rLedaunim B

o Rosicuwe squiud — Miniaam
shree, maximur fouy.

¢ Die o three porsuhle rados: ser
i

o Shiit — 24 hours on. 24 howrs

off. 24 hours vn, 24 hours off, 24
heurs on. 96 houss off.

¢ Dispatcn — Minimum four,
maximum five.

* First-alarm responsz for a

(Above) Truck 8 had positioned ils aerial ladder to
remove a man with a serious leg injury. Note the

the blast. (Upper right) A firefighter waits for water

as cars burn in a parking lot across from the collapse. |
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ng Terrorist Bombing

Rolse tire — two engines, one truck.
ne squad, one chief

* Pirst-alarm response for a com-
mercial fire — four engines. twao
trucks, one squad, one chief.

April 19, 1995
At 9:02 aM a tremendous explo-

sion rocked downtown Oklahoma City

and surrounding areas up to 50 miles
away. Fire Chief Gary Marrs was on
nis way to City Hall a
few blecks from Fire
Headguarters when
he felt the blast. Dri-

ving past a few tall buildings he
noticed a dust cloud in the sky a few
blocks away. Engine 5 was away
from its station and available on the
radio. The crew cailed dispatch and
reported, “We seem to have had an
explosion downtown.”

Marrs arrived at the scene of the
explosion and monitored a transmis-
sion over the radio from dispatch,
reporting that the explosion involved
the Water Resources
Board. From his van-
tage point he could see
the Alfred P. Murrah
Federal Building, locat-
ed at 200 Northwest
Fifth — he radioed dis-
patch that it was not
the Water Resources
Building, but that the
north side of the nine-
story Federal Building
had collapsed.

Dispatchers inside
the fire alarm office at
820 Northwest Fifth,
above Station 1 and
Fire Headquarters five

Firehouse/September 1995

blocks from the blast
site, thought their building’s air con-
ditioning had blown up or that some-
thing had hit the roof. Two off-shift
dispatchers ran outside and saw the
dust and smoke to the east.

When the dispatchers returned to
their office all the phones were ring-
ing — they didn't stop ringing for five
days. Pecple were calling from all
over the city. As soon as the dispatch-
ers hung up the phene on one caller
another would ring immediately.

This was the first day back o
duty for the red shift after being off
four days. A meeting with all six dis-
trict chiefs was scheduled with the
acting shift commander in his offica
o the first floor of Station 1 at 8 am.
The meeting was just about to begin
when the blast occurred. The building
shook and ceiling tiles came down,
dislodging dust. All the chiefs walked
out to the rear of the station and
could see dust in the sky toward
downtown, several blocks away. They

prepared o St vl o rhe

the thord Hoor of sudon 1
haid just discussed !h( morning linzup
wen tho his rattled the thrjmf'
she pales to get oug of

the Ht i, Thm«mg snmething had
blown up in the fire administration
butlding. Firefighters saw the cloud of
dust straignt up Fifth Street and pre-
pared te respond as first-in compa-
nies. Engine 1 and 51, Truck 1 and
Squad 1 responded from Station 1.

Phaota courtesy of Dklaroma City Fire Denartm

Okiohoma City Fire Chuey Gary Marrs, the
first fire official on the scene, radios dis-
patchers, informing them that the Federal
Building had collapsed.

Lieutenant Dennis Griffin, Dis-
trict 3 Chief Jim Conner's driver on
car 803, was on the phone ar Station
1 with anether frefighter four miles
away. He told the firefighter it sound-
ed like lightning had just hit Station
1. Griffin hung up and the person on
the other end of tne phone hung up.
walked two steps and felt the blast.

Engine 8 and Truck 8 were on the
way to the department drill field in
the western part of the city for hose
testing when the crews heard and feit
the blast. Their response area s cloze
to downtown. Figuring they were
going to be dispatched to the incident
soon, they headed toward the scene

E‘lr‘EflghtET‘S in Station 7. about 30
biocks south of the blast site, heard
the blast and could see the dust cloud
fram their guarters. Captain Chris
Jackson of Truck 7 had heen inside

“.
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and thoughe the noise zounded ke
the 95-ibor 2levated platirm appare-
tus had backed into a wail inside the
station. Firefighters quickly put on
the television and within minutes live
shots from the scene were being
oroadeast. Seconds later they ware
dispatched to the scene as the second
and third alarms were transmitted.

Truck 5. the second- or third-clos-
est truck to the site, was in quarters
about 17 blocks north of downtown,
heard the blast and dispatched itself,
Most of the remaining companies
that are assigned to respond on the
first three alarms also responded on
their own.

Many of the executive staff at
Fire Headquarters responded to the
blast. Assistant Chief of Qperations
Ken Bunch saw the mayhem while
responding and circled the area to see
how widespread the damage was.
Three blocks from the site he could
see heavy damage in the area. Within
one to twa blocks, he said, it looked
like & war zore. Bunch said when he
saw the Federal Building it tock his
breath away.

Chief of Special Operations Mike
Shannon figured that whatever it
was, 1t was going to impact Special
Operations and EMS. Gary Davis, the
EMS chief, stopped in front of the
Regency Towers, a 22-story high-rise
building at Fifth and Hudson, all of

Three truck companies position aerials and platform to remove trapped people. Note the

rooy coliapse on the Athenic building. The Regency Towers high-rise in the background had
every window blown out. Parking meters were sheared off at ground level.

ing shift commander, could see the
debris in the arez and heavy black
smoke. He couldn’s see the Federal
Building, but noticed windows blown
out in allSTrrounding structures,

THeWindows In the building had been
blown out as a result of the blast.
About Z5 peoplé were exiting the
building, suffering miner injuries
from flying glass. The walking wound-
ed were helping with other injured
parties. Davis couldn’t see the Faderal
Building a block away because of the
thick black smoke, He knew he had a
difficult decision to either
stay and help the injured
people or, as par:t of his
command function, coordi-
nate with the transport
company and rescue feams
that ultimately would help
more people. Davis said
when he finally saw the

amageé to the Federal

‘Building he couldn't imag-
ine anything Bemg that bad.

Upon his arrival there was chaos in
the streets. Police, EMS, hundreds of
civilian volunteer and nearby fire
companies were arriving. McMahon's
gut feeling was to help the people, but
he had to set up the incident com-
mand system (IC3). Marrs radiced
MecMahon and told him, “Your hig
problem is the nine-story building.
We're going to have a long-term res-
cue and recovery., Get a2 number of
alarms headed this way. Start break-
ing the exposures into divisions.”

fatal, 11 knjured, 4 hot injured

- *4th Floor-54 total, 12 fatal, 26 infured, 10 rot injured
*3rd Floor-52 wotal, 27 fatal, 24 injured, 1 not injured
*2nd Floor-Z5 total, 19 fata!, 6 injured

*15t Floor-102 total, 40 fatal, 37 injurea, 25 not injured

Incoming units ware
arriving from the north, south, east
and west, Each company radiced for
help, as they were getting different
perspectives of the scene depending
on the direction from they arrived.
Twao ar three times a request was
made to clear the air, then Marrs (car
600) transmitted over the radio an
order for all companies to clear the
air. Chief Robert McMahon, the act-

20

Marrs could see that all the exposures
were damaged, but he was nct clear
as to the specific damage inside.

The front of the Federal Building
was now ripped open from the ground
tloor to the roof. About 80 percent of
the front wall and facade was gane.
There was a pile of debris that was
three stories high from a pancake col-
lapse involving the front portion of all

nine floors. The neoprene-membrane
roof was hanging over the top floor
and shielding some of the hanging
debris. Firefighters would later find
that a pisce of the roof weighing in
excess of 35,000 pounds {and later
nickramed the “mother slab”) was
hanging by only several reinforcing
rods and slanted onto remaining par-
tions of the eighth and ninth floors.
Debris littered the entire neighbor-
hood. Apparently a wheel from one of

the vehicles near the blast was blown

up O top O the “2-story Regency
‘Towers on the next biock. In another
car close to the blast 2 piece of carpet
was found in the trunk, stuck
between a tire and its rim.

The Murrah Building was named
after late federal Judge Alfred P.
Murrah, who served on the U.S. 10th
Circuit Court of Appeals. [t was com-
pleted in 1977. The replacement
value in today's dollars is $35 million.
The building had 315,000 square feet
of interior space, of which 187,000
square feet was for offices, 196,000 for
storage and 11,730 that included
restrooms and a cafeteria. About 650
employess worked in the building, but
oceupancy could be expected to be as
high as 900. A child day-care center
was located on the second floor. The
building was cast concrete, nine sto-
ries high, with a glass facade mea-
sured approximately 300 feer long
and 50 feet wide and it had several
levels of below-grade parking. The
building was protected by automatic
alarms, a wet-sprinkler system and
standpipes un each floer. It also had a

Firehouse/September 1995
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dry spriakler svstem tor the below-
grade areas. The southeast and south-
west stairwells were pressurized tor
evacuation. A tire pump was located
on the second floor. Windows were
made of non-movable plate glass.

Exposures (see photo on
pages 90 and 81}

The Water Resources Board build-
ing was three stories high, brick con-
struction, approximately 30 feet long
and 100 feet wide. There was a partial
collapse in the front of the building.
The Athenia building inamed for a
Greek restaurant inside), next to
Water Rescurces, was under renova-
tion. There was a partial collapse of
all floors in the front third of the
building. Half of the rosf had col-
lapsed. This building faced Fifth
Street and bordered a parking lot,
where numerous cars were burning.

At the other end of the parking lot
the Journal Record building {(built in
1922) is six stories high, of brick con-
struction and measures 200 feet deep
by 50 feet wide; half of its peak roof
was blown off. The multi-story YMCA
on the corner of Fifth and Rohinson
sustained many broken windows. The
First Methodist Church (built in 1904)
at the corner of Fourth and Robinson
and St. Joseph’s Old Cathedral (built
in 1903) at Fourth and Harvey sus-

tatned structural dam
SooJoseph’s was biown
Medlahon histed hiz five priorities:
u tire problerm, a huge EMS problem,
a rescue problem, a possible haz-
ardous materials incldent and a sate-
ty issue. The safety issue was not only
for the firefighters and rescue work-
ers, but tor the people trapped in the
building. Hundreds of people started
coming up to the command past to
offer their services or donate squip-
ment, and it didn't step for six hours.
MeMahon tried to place the people
who had special training in specific
functions in the management system.
All six district chiefs and the shift
commanders’ vehicles are equipped
with cellular phones. Because of the
number of pecple in the area using
the system it became overloaded and
it was impossible to get thraugh.
Davis set up medical triage at
Northwest Sixth and Robinson and a
smaller site at Northwest Fourth and
Harvey. St. Anthony's Hospital is six
or seven blocks away, but close
enough that it also received some
damage. Three other hospitals —
University, Preshyterian and Chil-
dren’s — are in a complex 1% miles
east of the scene. During an average
day 20 ambulances would be on duty
citywide. At the time of the blast
seven ambulances were dispatched.

. The root of

Additional srivare ambulances that
huad been dropping off patients at
nearby hospitals alse responded.
Shannen responded to the scene
and was being inundated, just like all
the other chief officers as they arrived
on the scene. When Shannon first saw
the building fie thought To himself
that it looked ke if had been an air
§trike. He also noted tae parking
meters (n irent ol the bullding were

Sheared ol two inches above The con-
crete, shannon entered the Federal
Bullding and made his way upstairs.
He could see civilians throwing desks,
furniture and debris, wildly looking
for children and other victims.

Truck 1 Captain Nathan Shipman
responded straight up Fifth Street. As
the apparatus approached the scene,
the crew saw people lining the street,
looking in the direction of the blast. As
they drew closer they noticed people
bleeding, cryving and screaming. They
stopped the rig in front of the Regency
Towers and directed the injured peo-
ple to one corner. Adjacent to the
apparatus was a car, occupied by a
Thild, AT had 1ts rool crushed by an

. € ax ad been blown from a
Tehicle o € EXPIoSton. Witness-
T5 s ThE axie fiow through the air

like a boomerang before landing on
the car. The Truck b crew started see-
ing broken glass and people covered

Tina Francis
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A Stokes basket is carried up an gerial as
e bleeding injured party awaits attention
in the area thae was once the front of the
Federal Buiiding.

with blood eight blocks from the
scene. The aerial ladder could not
position closer than Sixzh and Robin-
son — people, cars and ambulances
treating people were in the way.

Conner, the District 3 chief,
arrived and was assigned te division
1, the front of the Federal Building. It
took a few minutes to see that all the
smoke was coming from the car fires
and blowing into the Federal Build-
ing across the street. Visible were
people covered in white dust and who
looked like mannequing on the third
floor of the Water Resources Building.
Conner asked Truck 1 to remove
those people.

Engines 1 and 6 laid lines to extin-
guish the numerocus car fires in the
parking lot opposite the Federal
Building. Two cars were burning very
close to the exposures. [nside the Fed-
eral Building Conner could see one
man on the third floor and several
people on other floors. He then
received a report of four critically
injured people inside. Conner request-
ed several more truck companies to
report to the front of the building.

A serious problem for fireground
commanders was that hundreds of
civilians, medical personrel and law
enforcement officers were running
through che building, looking for vie-
tims. They were throwing chairs,
tables and furniture wildly. This
added to the stress of the haif-demol-
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ished building by shifting loads.
Apparently at one peint the second
floor was so overloaded that it
dropped several inches. Firefighters
attempted to control the situation,
but many of the civilians and other
personnel wouldn’t listen. People
throwing and overturning debris
were asked to leave; they were caus-
ing small debris to fall on people
working below them. Despite the
good that the people thought they
were doing, they were bringing a seri-
ous risk to themselves.

Fireground commanders now
were faced with additional people
who were placing themselves at risk.
Many felt it was fortunate that there
wasn't a secondary collapse. Conner
requested three additional district
chiefs and the police to the rear of the
Federal Building for crowd control.

Griffin noticed a women, « :
with bload, sereaming in the Atheor,
building. As Griffin went o the renr
of the building to attempt entry b
noticed a large natural gas meter
been blown over. The huge meter swa-
spewing gas under pressure. Cars in
the nearby parking lot were burnin.
He and Conner were worried that the
fire could ignite the gas and exten:d
into the two or three nearby expo-
sures that were badly damaged. [fth
fire communicated o these buildinis,
it would add many problems to tne
already complicated incident. Griffin
radioed for the gas company Lo
respond. Entering the rear of the
building, Griffin met the woman .t
the top of the stairs and directed her
to the triage area.

Returning to the parking lot near
the Journal Record building to de &

OCFD Time Line: The First 36 Hours

4-19-55

09:02 a.m.CCPD notified dispatch of an explosion. Primary backup shones down at Emer-
gency Medical Service Agency

09:05 Engine 51, Truck 1,E6, T8, E 4, E1, Squad 1, Chief <
Third alarm: Chief 3, Haz Mat 5, Deputy Chief, E5, T 5,
CS estabiished, Sixth & Harvey.

0810 6014 designated IC.

08:11 Fourth & fifth alarms: E 4 on scene, ali patients ro Sixth & Roninsaon.

08:12 E 1 began fighting car fires.

08:14 T7 E10,E7,T8,E8 Squad17, T 24, Squad 18, Squad 21, Squad 34.

09:20 E 1,71, Squad 17 searched Water Resources, 1 patent.

09:27 First patients transported.

10:00 Electric, gas, water off, 8014 ordered avacuation because of possible second
davice. Command post at Eighth & rlarvey, Margue on the south side of Feceral
Building.

1015 Water Resources evacuated,

-+ 10:22 Building evacuated secongd fime, Triage at Fifth & Robinson, staging at Seventh &
cbinson.

0:27 Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) offered Urban Search and Res-
cue (USAR) teams,

10:30 General alarm, T 14.

10:32 Six bedies recovered.

- 10:45 E 1,7 1 sent to Eighth & Harvey staging. Fire under control. Building evacuated,

possible third deyi

11:.00 Staging moved to 10th & Harvey,

11:20 Outside parimeter controfled.

11:35 Rehab estabiished at Eighth & Harvey.

12:09 E11,E19,T19,E21,E15, T 15, E22, 722, £30. T 20,

12:12 EQ, T9. E25E24, £17. 12 transports from the building.

12:30 Shawnee FD loans OCFD ropes, generatars, lights,

+ 1331 Beport of fourth possible device.

17:00 227 injured.

18:22 Severe thunderstorm watch issued.

1810 Sacramento & Phoenix FEMA teams dispatened.
United States Fire Administration (USFA) investigators dispatched. Yirginia Beach
on standwy.

18:18 28 doa's,

20:34] U badges ordered.

22:301 S-year-cld female found alive.

4-20-95

O1:00 Primary search above third floor complete.

0645 Ferces erected.

06:59 Southwestern Bell installed cell sites and provided 150 phones.

0730 Large contingent from FBI, ATF, U.3. Marsnals, Cxiahoma
Highway Patrol, Military Police at scena,

13:32 Airspace restricted for five miles, Count stancs at 38 doa, 200 missing, 423 ‘njured.

1T Suspect composites released.

£2:25 Doa #41 rermoved.

+-21-95

02:140 Respirators needed for rescue workars.
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size-up, CGridin intended to report
back to Rz chiefl He wius unable tw
get through on the radio, so he contin-

ued on and checked the parking lut
lor victlmz. He noticed a small firs on
the f{irst Duer of the Journal Record
building. His main concern was res-
cue und extrication. Hollering in each
window rfor any injured or trapped
people. Griftin continued his way
down the alley. The roof of the Jour-
nal Record building was made of steel
wire meszh and twe-inch-thick con-
crete. After the blast one entire side
of the roof  see pages 90 and 91 came
down like a blanket in the allev.
Criffin then heard a voice; he said
it was lixe looking for a needle in a
hay stack. Apparently a man who
lived in the area had been waiking
down tne alley on his way to the post
office when the blast threw him
against the wall of the Journal
Record building. If that wasn't
enough, then the roof fell on top of
him. After several minutes Griffin
found the man, who remained calm.
He asked the injured man whether
anyone else had been with him or
whether he had seen anyone else in
the area. Griffin was concerned

beeause there was anather lamp
under the roo! — it turned cut tu be o
telephone pole. The man said he was
alone und hadn't seen anyone else.
Griffin and firefishters from a squad
with 2 variety of tools freed the man
from under the roof. Griffin related
that the sounds during the first few
rminutes on the scene were incredible;
water-flow alarms, car alarms,
screams, sirens, natural gas hissing,
debris falling, people talking, burglar
alarms sounding. "You tried to block
out the noise and stick to the task of
search and rescue,” he said.

Truck 8 reported to staging.
When Conner requested another
truck, Captain Curtis Mayfield had a
face-to-face meeting with him and
was directed from staging to poaition
his 100-foot aerial ladder at the base
of the pancake collapse, almost direct-
ly in the middle of the Federal Build-
ing. Chairs, desks, computers, toys,
debris, steel reinforcing rods and
glass had fo be cleared so the appara-
tus could back into position. Shannon
reported he had several victims and
needed help on the third ficor. The tip
of the aerial ladder was extended at 2
low angle to the top of pancake area

which wus nearly three stwries aigh.
A man was visible, lving face down on
top of the big pile. The man. who had
sulfered a crushed leg and serious
fucial injuries, said it felt like there
wags someone underneatn him. [t was
later determined that there was
another person under him, but he
was deceased.

The wind was blowing chunks of
concrete, A chunk of concrete the size
of a small microwave fell and hit the
ladder. Computers, chairs, & stream of
paper and rocks kept falling.

Truck 1 reported to Conner and
was ordered to search the Water
Resources Building. Firefighters
entered the second floor via interior
stairs. Firefighters wers unable to
walk anywhere in the building
because of the debris. They located a
man who had large lacerations on his
back and the back of his head. Hun-
dreds of stitches were needed to close
his wounds. Nearby a women was
found under a file cabinei that had
fallen an her. Firefighters spent a lot
of time digging for victims on &l floors
in many areas under books that had
fallen from collapsed shelves.

Truck 5 firefighters worked their

Flawless Fire Service Graphics

Now you can produce incredible pre-plans and street maps with ease never before possible. Drag, drop, and you 're
done! The new VISIO/FireLine graphics program supports detailed black and white or COLOR graphics.

It's a breakthrough! Ifmapine drawing de-
tailed, professional locking street maps, pre-
fire plans, fire critiques, haz-mat plans and tac-
tcal workshests. You cap do that and more
using the ¥ISIO/FireLine color graphics pro-

floor plans, tools, equipment, aircraft, trains,
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images. You can combine symbols and images
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import your existing clipart, pictures, plans and
other images, and combine them with smart
shapes, all on the same drawing beard. No

gram for Windaws, This advanced technology
program features smart image technology,
drag-and-drop drawing tools, and extensive
image import/export. Smart image technology
allows images to react intuitively when ma-
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war toward the building, Sevara)
members entered the below-grade
garnge arca to search fur vietims.
They cnuld see that the crew from
Engine 4 had Incated o live per-
son. Daylight was visible where
the blast had blown a hole in the
basement ceiling. File cabinets
were turmed over, water was over
the firefighters bouts and electrical
crackiing could be heard overhead, A
few bodies were lpcatad,

Truck 5 was then asked to posi-
tion its 135-foot aerial ladder close to
the building on 5tk Street for possible
rescues from the upper levels of the
Federal Building, Firefighters were
concerned about driving over debris
as they made their way to their next
assignment. As the apparatus
approached the scene, it tack several
firefighters and volunteers to move
large pieces of debris, concrete,
bumnpers and parts of vehicles, There
was an abundant amount of help to
help clear a path for the truck, When
the truck was being backed into posi-
tion several people were visible, Cap-
tain Bart Evereit went up the aerial
ladder first to check conditions. The
people said they were able to walk.

Building. The crew had to maneiys.
around and make quite a detour, dr
ving up and around several streer
until they could bhack their 95-fo

apparatus into position. Startin

on the third floor Jackson an:
Corperal Kenneth Oleson foun:
numercus blood trails. These Je.
from where people had been it
ting to the puhlic stairways and dowr
out of the huilding. Firefighters ha¢
to crawl over desks and file cabinets
From their vantage peint on the

The only place to spot the aerial
ladder was directly under 2 large
piece of hanging concrete. Pieces of
concrete, chairs and other debris were
still falling. The aerial was not at the
best climbing angle and the ladder
was not supported on the concrete

upper floors, frefighters observed the
Truck 8 crew removing their patient.

They also saw 2 boulder land five
feet {rom the driver of Truck 5 If it
had hit him it would have killed him.
Finding more blocd trails, it was obvi-
ous that many pecple had already
exited the building,

A woman was located trapped in
debris on the third floor. Truck 8 and
Squad 18 observed a huge picce of
concrete on her lower torso and lower
legs. Many power and hydraulic tools
were used to try and lift the concrete
high enough to extricate her. Fire
department chapiain Ted Wilson
came by to comfort the woman,

A report was received that 5 possi-

floars, which looked unstabije. Everett
removed a weman. Corporal Clint
Greenwood went up and led the next
person down. Next, Firefighter Mark
Mollman assisted a third person
down: the ladder.

Truck 7 was standing by at Sixth
and Robinson, checking on the wallk-
ing wounded, when the crew was
ordered to the front of the Federal

-_—
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and Print any pre-printed Sform in min
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or Fax your completed form. What couid be
simpler?

Isn't it time you did sorgething about those
complicated paper forms? You know, the ones
with dozens of litde boxes or lines that people
dre expected to Fil out in Pen. o pencil. - Neat=
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EMS forms already digitized. These forms are in
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country,

and skill. The FormLine form conversion pack-

forms are not enly easier 1o complete and med-
ify, they print out to produce flawless reports. I you don't have a scanner or fax modem, a serv-
ice i3 provided to scan your forms. Se, get rid of
those tedious paper forms by converting them to

£asy-10-use computer screen forms, toxday!

You can maintain ail your screen forms right in
the FormLine package where they can be found
when you need them

The new FormLine package including digit-
" ized forms and form conversion program is
available for immediate delivery for $129 plus
%6 shipping and handling,
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i package. . '
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ers:for many ODBC database programs
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bie second explosive had been found.
Thesrder was given (0 evacuare the
entire building. Truck 8 and Squad 13
had been working for 20 to 30 minutes
moving debris to extricate a woman
pinned in the debris. Members of
Truck § left the Squad to finish with
the woman and exited the building.
From a positicn in the elevating
platform bucket of Truck 7 firefighters
had been checking the exterior walls
and visible structural members for
damage. Oleson could see people
sprinting away from the area in all
directions. “They weren't walking or
running,” he said. “They were sprint-
ing.” Because they were leaving ina
hurry, Oleson asked Jackson, “Do
they know something we don’t know?”
At that time a radio transmission told
the crew of Truck 7 that because of a
second possible device they were to
=t down. They reported later that the
ket wasn't going nearly as fast as
they wanted it @ go. When the elevat-
ing platform reached the first section
of boom they climbed out of the plat-
form and ran down the aerial ladder.
The aerial of Truck 8 would not
retract. There ssemed to be some-
thing preventing the aerial ladder

from moving in any direction. May-
field climbed the ladder and discov-
ered a piece of reinforcing rod had
hooked the ladder. He pried the rod
away and the zerial moved. Maytield
held on. Once on the ground the aeri-
al ladder’s stabilizers were raised and
the apparatus was driven away with
the ladder still extended. Mayfield
said they couldn't ses anybody else in
a six-block area.

Firefighters frem Squad 18
remained behind during the evacua-
tion to continue to work on the debris
trapping the woman. It took quite an
additional amount of time, but they
finally accomplished their task and
carried the woman to safety.

Up to this time civillans and med-
ical personznel came to a medieal base
until officials could determine where
they were needed. Initally it was
unknown how many patients there
were. Companies were letting the inci-
dent commander know how many
patients they had and where they
were located. Off-dury Oklahoma City
Srefighters and mutual-aid companies
were reporting in. Many of the civil-
ians and medical personnel stayed in
base for a few minutes and then went

on down on their pwn. It was chautlce
with all the medical personnel trying
to help until the bomb scare required
that they all leave the area.

VeMahon feit that the bomb scare
was a blessing in disguise. It gave the
incident commander and the fire
department time to regroup. [t
allowed them to identify problems so
they could be addressed. Despite the
initial chacs the civilians who needed
help, received treatment, rescue and
transport. The bomb scarg also
allowed the police to set up a soft
perimeter to control civilians and
medical personnel whe were freclanc-
ing. Safety and tracking wers impar-
tant. McMahon said, “When you don't
have control of peaple going in and
something happens, you den’t know
who and where they are operating.”
Apparently an unofficial request was
broadeast by a local radio station, des-
perately asking all available medical
help to respond to the scene. Davis
added, “Medical personnel were com-
ing in by the hundreds, walking right
past the command post. At times fire-
fighters working in the Federal Build-
ing had to remove protective clothing
and helmets to protect the civilians.”

—
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Aonurse whee coame to the s
strucs o the he:
noupper Huur mri died
aiter. Uranes and buck
foes worse roguested gquickiv trom
local contractors. The frst furge crune
with at least a 30-ton capacity arrived
in one hour

Mchlahor set up functions in the
I35 to let the svstem grow for davs.
An EMS D and & rescue group
were estahblished. Logistics was set up
to Keep tracx of special equipment.
Tre community overwhelmed the firs
department with items they could
provide. Logsiics and planning took
names and phone numbers. Caprain
Mike Mahoney drove the mobile com-
=2nny Turpen Samse FPA WRWA DK Oty

s
cdebris from
several dax

-l

4.0

Firefighters carry a victim as the massive destruction of vehicles that
of is visible to the right of the firefighters on pile.

A portion of the ro

mand post to the scene. The command
post had te be moved several times
due to the proxmity of buildings with
questionable stability. To assist the
incident LOI"LudeEI‘] Mahoney
zent walking zround the perimezer of
the blast site to make an assessment
of the structural damage.

Many of the walking wounded
heiped carry liczers for vemoval of the
more seriously injured. Transporta-
tion to nearby hospitals was accom-
plished by private vehicles. ambu-
lances, police cars and two buses that
were brought in, A total of 204
patients were ransported within the
first minutes 55 the blast,

[ntormution on extensive {ire
department pre-plans for the Federal
Butlding noted that upwards of 700 1o

Wils

30

contd e the becldings
iy al blsimess hours, Diavis
noted Paar wiven the normanl necupin-
e and weth 200 peopiv aivendy trans-
ported s hospital ere could still
b 2000 1o 300 eritics! Snjuries since
Lhey weren't coming our on their own.
A mobile hospita! was set up at
Northwest Fifth and Harrison. Dawvis,
responszible for all hezith activities,
started ordering additional perseonal
protective equipment, distnbectant
and zloves within the first hour.
Eventualy respirators were ordered.

«n the bomb squad gave its
ampmval for operation: to continue,
f lghe -entered the Federal
Building and JdJmmng structures.

T

S

. Ok, Fire-Reszua

e
- N

Marrs directed Adams, in charge
of suppart services, to lea”e the scene
and go to dispatch to start a callback
of the higher ranks from the off-duty
shifts. The repair shop was advised ta
prepare every reserve riz and venicle
that could be placed into service.
Bventually six to seven pumpers and
several aerial ladders were placed
intw service with af~duty parsonnel.

Adams radiced Marrs to advise
nim that the Federal Emergency
Management Agenev FEMA! had
cailed and could not send any assis-
tance until they were invited in sn an
efficial vequest. Marrs was told that
twoe Uirban Search and Rezcue
PUSARY Tusk Furves were on alert
and others would be o ed. Marrs
told him to make the official request

had been parked nearby is

mut not to dispatch any teams other
“han those on alert until people with
more expertise could determine
whether they were needed.

Marrs then requested a general
alarm, alerting all personnel on duty.
Almost every piece of rolling stock
headed toward downtown. Units were
advised to stage at Station 1. Compa-
nies in gutlying districts were left in
place. Mutual-aid companies, many of
which also heard and felt the blast,
responded {0 the scene. Dispatchers
were rying to keep up with what com-
panies were at the scene and which
ones were available so they could
maintain coverage. Many companies
were used to fill empty stations. Fire-
fighters from all over the
country called to help. Sev-
eral foreign countries called
to offer assistance.

Marrs realized early on
that it was going to be a
long-term incident recuir-
ing lighting, food services
and portable toilets. An
important finance item
needed to be taken care of.
Officials are unable to cir-
cumvent the city’s purchase
procedures unless an emer-
gency is declared by the
city manager. The finance
director quickly established
emergency purchase order
numbers. The fire depart-
ment business manager
was ordered to check on the
purchase orders and to
address finance.

After the bomh scare
special operations was sep-
arated into three groups.
Firefighters trained in
high-angle rope rescue were
used to search the third
floor and above. Hazmat
personnel were assigned to monitor
the air from the ground to the third
floor. Firefighters trained in collapse,
trench and confined space rescue were
directed below ground. When the pri-
mary search was completed rope
teams were sent to check surrounding
tuildings up to six blocks away. Sever-
al one-story commercial buildings par-
tially collapsed.

Truck 7 left staging and was posi-
rioned in the same location as before
the bomb scare. The crew was then
directed into the building t¢ continue
searching. Already on the second floor
were police and other law enforce-
ment personnel digging through the
rubble, Jackson got their attention
and explained that many firefighters
were walting outside, but he couldn’t

evident.

Firehouse/September 1995

_

L

tir
cle
tr:
sti
S0
o

tol
sel
th

de

he:
loc
Bu
Bl
Wa
int
ers
lea

Fire

"7
L

L

—
e



[ RS P B Y
w e 5T
L SEHRNES S = My I -}

b
&

T

ar-

z1-

re

Sie
-or
‘-
e
a1

s

Relid

bring them in unti! the police and
others left. They pointed out some
cbvious bedies and then left the area.

Eventually it was determined that
seven pecple had been killed outside

the Federal Building’ one was recov-

ered 1n the parking [ot across iE}e
street, tWo in the Water Resources
Building and Iour in tie Athenia

LIIGIng,
Ore firefighter was moving vic-

tims when a woman who was trapped
close by grabbed his hand. She was
trapped between two floors and was
still lodged in her chair. It took quize
some time to remove her. She had
only miner injuries.

Firefighters regrouped and were
teld “no freelancing.” When they
searched the Journal Record building
the stairways were covered with
debris. Many people who who had
been sitting near the windows that
locked directly toward the Federal
Building were cut by flving glass.
Blood was visible leading to the stair-
ways. Glass shards were embedded
into interior walls. Early on frefight-
ers were told o go for the living and
leave the dead.

Firefighters searched the Federal
Building from the top dewn. One fire-
fighter described the scene as looking
as though somebody had taken the
building and shook it. Debris and fur-
niture were evervwhere. In
certain areas the debris was
compacted tightly as
it was blown from
she front toward the
rear of the strue-
ture. Voids were
visible In other areas.
Firefighters often
became entangled in
a web of wires that held
dropped ceilings, com-
puter, electric and
phene lines. Firafighters constantly
had to cut these wires.

As the search continued another
possible explosive was found, inside a

“crate marked “explosives,” This infor-
mation was communicated through
channels and the building was evacu-
ated once again. The countv bomb
squad left with the {Tem. The com-
mand post was moved for a third time
and was now set up in a fenced-off
area that housed other command

posts from the FBIL. Bureay of Alechol,
Tobaceo & Firearms (ATE), military,
police and county officials. The police
set up a hard perimeter with a check-
in and chack-out system. Fire depart-
ment identification
+*  was needed, unless
a firefighter had
on  protective
egquipment.
Armed mili-
tary person-
nel assisted
the police.
Firefight-
ers returned
™. after the bomb
seare and in the
next several hours were able to locate
only three more live victims, Several
firefighters lost relatives or friends in
the blast. Acecessible portions of all
floors wera searched three and four
times. Everything was powdery white;
it was hard to distinguish anything.
One little girl who was killed was
lecated in ihe lightly covered white
debris. Truck 7s piatform transported
search dogs to the upper floors.
Southwestern Bell hooked up a

THE PEOPLE WE ALL COUNT ON
COUNT ON EVERSON ROSS

GREAT BADGES - DELIVERED ON TIME

G 1

56 CHURCH ST.
SPRING VALLEY, NY 10977
Calil your favorite dealer or
call us at
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ground line to the command post e
provided space in its building for «
critical incident stress debrie!l
(CISD) area. Oklahoma Gas &
tric hooked electricity to the vehicle.
which had been running off a gencri-
tor. Southwestern Bell and Cellulur
One distributed about 150 portable
cellular phones with built-in priority.
Military personnel erected tents and
brought water supply stations
to be used for decontamination
sites. Mobile data terminals
were used to send messages to
dispatch to keep the radio fre-
quencies free. Fire officers had
face-to-face meetings to keep
radio traffic to a minimum.

Many off-duty firefighters
responded to the scene to vol-
unteer their services. Mutual-
aid companies also went to
work in various functions.
Many firefighters converged
on the site from all over the
country. Initially they were
allowed to work, but that was
curtailed due to liability over
the next few days.

Firefighters continued to
search. Jackson noted, “You
couldn’t walk in a single room.
I was very concerned for the
concrete slabs that were hang-
ing. You were constantly look-
ing upward. They checked the
major pillars for any cracks or
structural defects.” He stated,
“It was something that pic-
tures can't tell, television can’t
tell, only being there can you
actually know the incredible
devastation.”

One woman was trapped
in the basement area, where a
huge portion of the floor was
pinning her leg. Eventually a
doctor had to amputate her leg
so she could be removed. Just
to reach the area, firefighters
had to shed most of their pro-
tective clothing and portions of
their uniforms.

During the first two or thre=e
hours between 15 and 20 people
been removed alive from the debris.
After the bomb scare only three other
people were removed — the first at
2:30 p.M., another at 4:30 and the last
at 10:30. After that no one was found
alive. The EMS operation slowly de
escalated. If any victims still ¢
been in the building, they were |
to be trapped in the voids. Three
ambulances would be on-scene 2t
hours a day.

A rescue plan was formulated.
Inspection of the structure was unde.r-

“lec-

sl

32

Truck 7 crew used their p
h nine. Truck S remot

VISR N SR coomeerss {Uwas
detern - saerning would be
necde s oof the strue-
ture. Locul con “ors were requested

cod of time during
dayv tubular steel
nt to the site. Mea-
ken and the long,
ighing about 10
s manhandled by

‘Eire-Rescue

andd over oo <ho

the second and
shoring was brou
surements were
heavy steel
pounds per fo

ers to the exact area
needed. The steel was
‘s operating in dan-
gerous places. The tubular steel
furmed a paraliel chord truss like
structure. This helped to reinforce
walls and floors that spread the load
and supported tons of debris within
the shattercd acture. This shoring
was lett in place and there was no
intention to remove it In other areas,
wouden zhor was used because of
its versatility and case of placement.

dozens of fire
in which it wa
welded by w

So much wood was needed for shoring
that at one point during the operation
w <torage arca looked like a lumber-

tform to search floors three
! & man from the third floor.

vard. Reduction of hanging debris was
also undertaken. Concrete floor slabs
and debris hung over the side of the
building. Winds up to 40 -mph kept
blowing debris onto personnel below.
This debris was removed over a period
of days. The larger pieces were drilled
through and tied to other substantial
supports in the building. Firefighters
used a squirrel cage supported by a
crane boom to work in remov-
ing the debris. During one 12-
hour period over 500 pieces of
hanging debris were removed.

Generators supplying
portable lights in the building
resulted in bad air. The air
was monitored by hazmat per-
sonnel for any problems
resulting from excess carbon
monoxide.

Concrete cutters, bolt cut-
ters, technical search equip-
ment, listening devices were
donated. A special evacuation
signal was set up in case of
impending danger. Several
people around the site were
equipped with boat horns.
Four blasts signified that it
was time to leave the area.
The building was being shot
every two hours or sooner if
needed by transits, equipment
used to determine whether
there was any movement of
the structure. Steel cables
were used to tie pieces of the
building together. Between
the first and second floor at
one side of the building, steel
cables were put loosely in
place. Hours later the cables
were taut. The rescue process
continued with removal of
light debris and office furni-
ture. Portions of the building
were then stabilized and then
recovery. Eventually smart
levels were used to check
building stability. They were
set to zero and would be taped
or attached with epoxy. This device
could detect any movement of the ver-
tical supports. During night opera-
tions the power company installed
new light poles. Generators and tele-
scoping light towers from Tinker Air
Force Base turned the night into day.
Planning meetings were held every
12 hours. Several top members of the
FEMA team discussed difficult deci-
sions with Shannon.

Several portions of the building
were given nicknames. The “pit” was
located in the center of the building
where debris from the upper floors

(continued on page 83)
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DISASTER IN THE HEARTLAND

{conitinued from page 32;

was hanging when the first-flcor level
disintegrated. The “cave” was the
area where the split-leval entrance to
the building was located. To enter the
building a person had to go down four
or five steps into a courtyard. Two
live victims were located there. The
“pancake” was in front of the building
where the front portion of its nine
flecrs landed on top of each other
compressing all the material tightiy
between floors like a stack of pan-
cakes. The “hill” was the huge pile of
debris in front of the Suilding. In
some places it was 30 feet high. The
“forest” was built because the build-
ing was movirg. This was an
area on the lower level of the
building that contained so much
shoring for support that it was
like a forest.

A special group of people
warked o track down people who
had been inside the building been
when the blast accurred. A repra-
sentative from the medical exam-
iner’s office worked with the
building office manager and a
maintenance official from the
building. & floor plan was grid-
ded into five-square-foot sections.
The maintenance man noted
where their desks were located.
In about 90 percent of the cases
where the people had been placed
was where they were found.

A new medica! plan was
established. Anywhere from 50 to
150 rescue workers would be
working on the site at a given
time. Enough medica) supplies
for 100 people were kept on-site
in a mass-casualty trailer. Fire-
fighters used garden sprayers to
disinfect gear. Gloves were
thrown away. Firefighters were
also issued respirators with the
highest protection because of the
unknown hazards of bicod-borne
pathogens and possible ashestos, One
person was assigned to walk around
the site every two hours to pick up
biohazard waste. A 40-foot refrigerat-
ed trailer was brought to the site.
Eventually 9,000 pounds of bio waste
was generated at the site. Six aye-
washing stations were set up around
the site. Portable toilets were set up,
along with hand-washing stations.

Firefighters hated to decline any-
thing anyone was willing to donate.
When the weather turned coid one
night somehow a news reporter found
out that some out-of.state firefighters

Firehouse/September 19495

hadn't encugh warm clothinz Within
minutes there was 4 craffic jam down-
town of citizens who hrought clothing
from their homes or stores. Another
news report stated that cne of the
Orefighters lacked like he had sun-
burn and needed some sur block.
Within an hour dozens of peopie were
stopping by with sun block. Other
concerned people dreoped off razors,
toothpaste and ather items for the
rescue workers.

Members of the USAR teams
were provided with temporary shelter
in the Myriad-Convention Center g
few blocks from the scene. Foad,
clothing and almost a lirtle city
Sprung up inside the center. A post
office and manufacturers’ representa-
tives with rescue tools and assoclated

Firefighters raise a portable ladder to gain qecess to
upper floors. Note debris near windows, hin dering entrv.

items set up shop. United Parcel Ser-
vice sent and received packages.
Alter five days the risk of blood-
borne pathogens was downgraded, but
there was still the threat of bacteria in
the bodies. Representatives from the
Centers for Disease Control CDCy,
Envirenmental Protection Ageney
tEPA) and the county and state health
departments did a walk- through.
They determined that there were
exceilent bio-waste controls, Deconta.
mination and resprratory protection
was good and could be downgraded.
All personnel had been instructed to

go through decan every time thev fn-
ished a tour. This was then changed
to include only those persons who
came in contact with blood, Theres
were two hot and cold showers within
a block of the site operating 24 hours
a day. After severa] days the bodies
starting decomposing, When a body
was found the area was cleared of rub-
ble, then personnel donned white
encapsuiating suits for additiona! pro-
tection while removing the body, Addi-
tional duct tape and reusable filters
were ordered. It took 15 firefighters 24
hours 2 day to perform decon and pick
up medical waste Personnel sanitized
and dried respirators. Morale was an
important issue. It was a hard task to
explain to the firefighters assigned to
the medical sector that those jobs
were just as important as being in
the building.

Rescue workers reporting in
for duty on the following days had
to attend two safety briefings after
picking up equipment. Each was
outfitted with knee pads, gloves
and a respirator, Next they were
informed about the dangers to res-
cuers. A 10-minute briefing
explained bio-hazards, how to use
respirators, fit testing, how to use
the respirators and medical dan-
gers found in the-building. To
eliminate freelancing, firefighters
checked in at the command post,
stopped at rescurces to pick up
equipment, went to rescue com-
mand for assignment, worked,
then went to decon and CISD.
Some firefighters left decon or
CISD and recurned to work, Fene.-
ing was used to make corridors
where the personnel couldn't go
around. Three check points
stopped the freelancing.

Everyone wanted a piece of the
action, so to speak. Those compa-
nies just wanted to be allowed to
complete a removal so they could
feel a sense of accomplishment
and respect the dead.

One person was designated a
liaison with the medijeal examiner's
office. Rescuers would remove a body
and turn it over to the medical exam.
iner. The official bedy count came
from Davis only when a body was
recovered and placed into a hoiding

trailer. Although identified, thg bodies .

still trapped in the rubble were not
included until they were removed.
These numbers were then given anly
te Marrs. These stringent contrals
were in place because the media were
reporting all sorts of numbers. There
Wwas an urgent sense that the public
was being misled. Rescuers kept going

83



__;.;,{of-ano er osm

with the thought that they
still might find somebady
alive.

Marrs said, "the sheer
compactness of the rubble
pile, as the number of days
went by the likelihood that
anybody was alive was
decreasing.”

Griffin said, “Everywhere
you dug, you found a body. It
was a tough time for every-
body involved. The victims
families, rescuers. All the
cards and letters from all over

the world gave us the
strength to go on and keep
digging. It was a good feeling
to know that we were not just
in there by ourselves, that we
had everybody behind us, and
that really kept us going. Many res-
cuers may have reached their thresh-
old for an entire lifetime, but they
managed to continue.”

Marrs added, “One of the things
that made me most proud of this
department was in the first few min-
utes the people out there put the inci-
dent command system in place. There
was no alteration, the system expand-
ed and was allowed to grow. All of the
firefighters’ training and skills and
the equipment that the citizens
bought for them all came together to
make this incident run for 17 days the
way it did. During all this time I con-
stantly stopped by operaticns,
respurce command, support at the
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department. They knew what they
were doing and that it was an impor-
tant part of the operation.”

Griffin said, “The citizens
applauded you, shaking your hand
when you were leaving the scene. We
couldn't have done it without the
FEMA teams. We'll be there to
return the favor. Hopefully we'll
never need to.”

Lessons Learned
» During medical training vou
have ¢ be ready to face the fact that
you don't always save the person.
* Be sure that al] of the agencies
are involved in the disaster plan not
just public safety, The
disaster plan is a tem-
plate not etched in con-
crete but it must be able
to be followed.
* A list of
the suppliers of
items and equip-
ment that

needed at a
moment's no-
tice for any
contingency

4. huildinags Wi
ms:d b graim «'m ere tOId fo must be up-dated con-
go; JO nita m mmedrate!y stantly.
Wi - + Think of

Myriad Conven- %

tion Center, not to

give orders, but to see if they needed
anything. [ never ance went to any of
those locations where I didn't see peo-

ple working hard. Many of the staff
-officers in logistics and support would
rather have been doing rescue activi-
ties. When we gave them an assign-

ment they ook it willingly and put qut
100 percent. They had a good attitude
and that speaks weil for the entire
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the possibility of

a long-term oper-
ation; fire departments usually
think of a tornado or an alrplane
crash where units are back in service
in 12 or 24 hours.

* Think about the safety of res-
cuers. The injury rate went up as
fatigue set in,

* Safety officers must be placed in
strategic locations.

* The fire department operated a
17- day incident with 30 minutes of

fire; the rest was EMS and res-
cue/recovery.

» People making decisions could
possibly use a small tape recorder
with a battery pack and clip the
microphone on the collar. This would
help document the incident, instead of
trymg to remember everything that
happened over several hours.

* You have to depend on the com-
panies out in the field. They are the
eyes and ears of the IC. If they have a
problem, they will let you know.

* Isolate the IC and the other
people in key management roles. Peo-
pie with suggestions swarmed those
commanders.

* Use communications systems
that have numerous tactical and com-
mand channels, possibly 800 MHz
systems.

* Use cellular phones that are pri-
oritized for the fire department.

* Unity of command. The faster
you set up other agencies in a single
location, the faster vou will be able to
communicate with other decision
makers.

* Scene security was a major
problem from the beginning. It took
an alaborate system to cvercome the
problem.

* Require additional personnel
early on to assist the {C. Three or
four people were needed to deal with
ail the issues the IC had to contend
with. A number of people were stil]
gaining access to the IC from odt of
city agencies, medical personnel,
civilians, volunteers, food service.
They were all trying to provide help
and information.

* Would like to have had a nor-
mai dispatch. A call to 911 then dis-
patch apparatus instead of the self
dispatching from a management

fcontinued on page 140/

Firehouse/September 1995

‘ AL

e —a

T e e A g W1 ; L A e

AXP WL ko e e

TR OTIR Rt T T 1YY




DISASTER IN THF HEARTLAND

leanunued from page 84)

standpoint would have caused less
confizsion.

* The community support kept
firefighters and rescuers going. Thou-
sands of postcards and drawings were
received from all over the world. Per-
sonnel were physically and mentally
worn out and this kept them going.

* Until some of the department
heads went to the disaster manage-
ment course they didn't realize that
when you had a disaster there were
things that they were expectad to da:
they should not wait to be asked.

+ The identification tagging pro-
cedures allowed oo many people into
the site. The department welcomes a
more enforceable pass system.

* Accountability: have a tag syg;
tem at the command post to keep
track of who is working on site.

* Have a clearly labaled delivery
site for items intended for the logis-
tics area. The people controlling the
gate needed to know who ordered
equipment. Put the logistics area in
one place with cne delivery point so it
could be determined wha was going to
pay for it, whether it was a donation
and to which agency was the equip-
ment to be delivered.

* Establish a mutual-aid com-
mand post to check in personnel. The
burden was placed on mutual aid to
see if their personne] was authorized
to be there and if they were qualified
for their assignment.

* Need a plan within the master
plan to handle mutual aid compa-
nies. Department didn’t have a pro-
cedure to funnel these people into the
ineident.

* Peaple converging on the scene
unsoiicited was a problem.

* Allowed out-of-state firefighters
to assist, then had to stop after sever-
al days due to liability concerns.

* Lost vital information at shift
changes.

* After four davs fatigue set in,
Rotated some personne] after 12
hours and others in command roles
every eight hours.

* Rotated existing personnel
throughout the city for everybody to
get a fair share of the work.

» Escalate and de-escalate slowiy
and cautiously.

* Make a list of the names of fire-
fighters who had special training:
confined space, rope, hazmat or
shoring. When companies were
released, the information and teams
previously set up for those specifie
functions went home with them.

140

* The military brought in army
shovels that worked well i1n the
debris,

* Hazmat personnel are methodi.
cal and cherck items in a systematic
way. They helped check the struc-
tures for any hazmat problems.

* Blitzing the building with
numerous people fatigued everybody
and confused the operation.

* Needed to outline goals and
objectives and decide how many peo-
pie are needed to do each job.

* Hazards within the building
needed to be outlined, Keep track of
those hazards: were they addressed,
being addressed and completed?

* Probably had too many peagple
at the scene. [t was 3 ona-block inei-
dent with thousands to support it.

* Took burden off dispatch by set.
ting up a command post at Station 1
Lo set up rotation. Everybody on
every shift had a chance to EO to the
incident.

* Backed zerial apparatus in for
optimurm reach and in need of a hasey

retreat.
x ¥ W

Firehouse® would ijke to thank
Chief Gary Marrs and the staff of the
Oklahoma City Fire Department for
their assistance in the preparaticn of
this report. ::.

N.Y. Task Force (NYTF-1

+21-95

0700 Relieved from duty at collapse site,

Q7:30 TF parsonnei load equipment to retumn to base of operations.

08:00 Unloading completed. Advised to get rest, but on standby, remain fit for duty and in
COoNtact with base at 2l times,

17:25 Task Foree leaders briafing. Check for fatgue, Rotate taams. Discussion on which
building should be saarched. TF leader Shelley advises OCFD cetermines what
builging will be searched net FEMA
doing strenuous work, rotate through rehab, plenty of fluids and rest, Logistics will
be on site with equipment. Remaining logistics wiil remain at base. Trying to obtain
ancther van for transportation, Rescus managers must have tools immediately
availabia,

80 radios part of equipment cache s
pornt, tactical point to 2aint, and repeatar 1o base.

1740 Begin koading vans and trueks.

18:05 Leaving for sita.

18:20 On sita rolf cail and brisfing. Medical teams can be called at togistics. Teamns should
wash hands frequently and plan for R&R,

18:45 Begin working at site at 19:15,

18:15 Second briefing. Safety message. Be aiert in and out of the eollapse zone ang
beware of high winds. One team on
afforts on this agent.

19:30 Tearn briefect by Battalion Chiaf Ray Downey.

18:45 Team 1 will go on pile, others in basement.

2100 TF 2-4 in 0id courthouse conducting secondary search,

21:10 Taarn 1 finds DEA agent in rubbie, Winds in area are increasing. Safety officar Cas-
sani wifl make an assessment,

21:40 Team 1 utilizing air harmmers uncover DEA documents, given to DEA.

22:25 Member injured in Joumal Record building.

22:30 Aemoved DEA agent from pile {doaj.

22:45 Member being treated at rehab, retumad to Convention Center.

23:25 Hain beginning, wind picking up, lemperature dropping.

23:35 Started to retrieve tools from pila.

2345 Haavy haii storms.

23:50 Team 1 redepioyed to basement of
2. Team 34 complete search in Jou

4-22-55

00:30 Logistics pick up 12 foot long 6 X 6 lumber for shonng.

01:30 Teams 3-4 work on second floor conducting voia and flcor search.

02:00 All members removed from the building while structural engineers conduct evalug-
tion, all members to rehan,

0z:2% All teams reenter the building.

02:46 Find victim in rear second foor. begin extrication.

Q3:25 Body ramoved

Q3:35 Bedy count 469,

Q3:40 fAequested by hazmat specalist for
used.

04:00 Found another femats victirn in rear of second ficer {doa).

04:20 Waeather repont, rain, heavy thunder
mph. Logistics erect femporary snefter to protect

04:30 Team 2 raports finding three bodies
pila, identified the arsa.

5:00 As per Task Force Leader aif cperati

07:00 Task force relieved.

48:00 Tearn retumed to base.

)} 24-Hour Time Line

Maedical team addressed rehydration for thosa

et up. Channels salected for dirsct point te

pila. Confimmied OEA agent in pile, concentrata

main building, Rake sharing completed by team
mal Recard building, then to rehas,

MSDS sheets for insecticide/disinfectant eing |

SIonms. with ligh windgs approaching 20-30
eguipment cache on site.
i vanous vords, stil not remaved from rubble

0N3s Ceasad dua 1o severs weathar conditions.
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2 MIKE v EDER

or me, as for most Qklaho-
mans, Wednesday, April 19 1995,
zot off to a beautiful start, We were
greeted by warm temperatures,
nny skies, and the chance of thurn-
rstorms later in the dav. A pretry
tvpical Oklahoma spring dav. Littie
did any of us know that the day
would turn cut to be anything but
“typical.”
I started the day in my office.
My early-morning routine is to

o

[

v

L
i

Mike Wieder 15 ¢ senicr edicor of Fire
Pratection Publiications a: Oklchoma
State Univers He (s a graduate of the
GEU School of Fire Protection and holds
a master's degree 1n adult education.
Wieder is @ former firefighter in Penns-

burg, PA, end Stillwater, OK.

Protos by Mike Wiexer
s T -

answer correspondence, return tele-
phone calls and begin the dav's work
on the latest International Fire Ser-
vice Training Association (IFSTA;
manual Cur office is located in Still-
water, OK, which is about 50 miles
north of downtown Oklahoma City
At 9:02 aM. [ was on the tele-
phone talking to Jim Cottrell (a
familiar figure to many people in the
fire service). He was providing me
with some advice on the manual I
was working on. I didn’t notice the
sonic boom-type reaction that many
other people in Stillwater did, How-
ever, while talking to Jim I did
notice a lot of radio traffic on the
Oklahoma City Five Department fre-
quencies that I had programmed
into the scanner in my office.
Because of my telephone conver-
sation, I was not paying particular
attention to the scanner. However,

Observations From

GROUND ZERO

after about 10 minutes another cne
of our staff members called me on
my second telephone line and asked
whether [ had heard any zing on
the scanner about a big explosion in
Oklahoma City. The commercial
radio stations had hegun breaking
into their regular programming to
report the incident. At that point I
was completing my eall to Jim and
began to pay closer attention to the
scanner.

Within a minute or 50 [ heard
the fourth-alarm assignment being
dispatched, along with special cails
for all 3ix of the Oklahoma City Fire
Department rescue squads. Think-
ing that what they had was a major
gas explosion, I quickly decided that
it would be worth the hour’s drive to
go to the scene to observe and shoot
photographs for possible future use
in our publications. After checking




in with my supervisors [ gathered
up my camerd equipment, acquired
an office vehicle and headed for
Oklahoma City.

It did not take me long to realize
that I was.going {0 more than the
usual gas explosion. All of the music
radio stations in Oklahoma City had
stopped playing music and were air-
ing live reports from the scene. Most
of these reports were from radio sta-
tion personnel who had been quickly
dispatched to the downtown area
and were calling back into the sta-
tions on pay telephones or cellular
telephones.

I could tell by the panic and hor-
ror in their voices that the incident
wasg of tremendous magnitude. The
best way I can describe the reports
that were being aired is to compare
them to the famous “Oh, the human-
ity ..." footage of the Hindenburg
blimp burning and crashing in New
Jersey in 1937. Admittedly, my foot
got a little heavier on the pedal by
naow,

It wouldn't be until several days
later that I had another scary
thought. Based on the time and loca-
tion of the arrest of suspect Timothy

McVeigh, I passed him going in
apposite directions on Interstate 35
about halfway between Stiliwater
and Oklahoma City,

I arrived in downtown Oklahoma
City about 75 minutes after the
explosion. What first struck me as

m
Following the order
to evacuate, people
fled the scene of the
explosion in a
stampede fashion:
screaming, pushing
and running in all
directions.

1y

kind of odd was the noticeable lack
of traffic or pedestrians in the down-
town area. [ was raised on the East
Coast, where even a minor-injury
auvtomobile accident can draw hun-
dreds of spectators. But that day,
the streets of downtown Qklahoma

City more resembled Lawrence, KS,
in the movie “The Day After.” After
parking my car in a parking garage
about three blocks south of the
Alfred P. Murrah Federal Building
(probably a dumb move) I grabbed
my camera gear and portable scan-
ner and headed toward the explo-
sion site. The first person I saw
after leaving my car was a man sit-
ting oo a retaining wall around the
parkicgz garage. He looked like a
businessman of about 60 years of
age. To lock at him was an eerie
sight. His suit was torn in several
places. Stains of blood were notice-
able on his white dress shirt and a
small trail of bloed flowed from a cut
on his trow, He sat on the wall with
mostly a blank look on his face,
except ‘or the hint of a smile. As
walked by, I asked him whether he
was all right. He looked at me, nod-
ded to the affirmative and then
stared off in space again. [ left him
and cortinued on.

As recounts of the event will tell,
most of the damage from the blast
occurred to the north of the Federal
Building. 30 as I approached from
the south, there was little damage

Count On Us Under Pressure

MC Products, the nation's largest maker of fluid level measuring devices for the
fire industry, has set the new standard in reliability with its Series 2000, the newest
member of the MC Products’ family. Featuring an innovative new design, the Series
2000 uses head pressure in the tank to monitor fluid levels and is the first fluid
measuring device to completely isolate the electronics
from the fluid.

® Custorn calibration
at the factory or field
sizing available

® For use in
pressurized or
vented tanks

* Sealed transducer
protects electronics

from fluid

® Automotive-type
waterproof

) connectors

. ® Sequenced

lights, easy-to-read bulbs

Version available with digital read-

" out of “gallons remaining”

* Fasy installation
through the front of
the pump panel

Cnea Rabro Drive . . ey
m Haugpauge NY The new standard in reliability
e B seseason | For product information, call 1-800-843-6465
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e coby evident did notiee
that ~ e ol the windows 1n the
upper cosels of high rises to the
souti o the Federal Budding were
~hatterod [ began to think tha

marbe Ui trip to the city would not
be productive. [only had to walk
one meor= block to find out how
wronyg thatanitial impression was
Whren I reached the intersection
ol Nurtnwest Fifth and Rebinson
ned to my left, | was stunned
bv the sizht that greeted me. [he
“Federa Suilding, a structure I had
driven past many times during vis-
e Oklahoma City Fire

its to 2
Deparinient Headgquarters just
down street, was sheared com-

1w in half The porGiow That naa
ot was lving in a mas-
T« LI TUDble in front of the
stand.nZ portion. 1ne Oklahoma

ater Xesources Bullding across the

street ‘rom the Federal building had

AlS0 ConZpsed. wrecked cars were

sStrewn ai: over.
T Fire apparatus and firefighters

worked the entire scene. All of the

to severa gas explosions in my
carcer. rncioding one early in my
curcer that (nvolved eight fatalities
tnoan apartment building, and this
was definiteiy not a gas explosion.
At first [ wus so stunned that I for-
got I had a camera with me. Once I
got over the nitial shock I began to
shoot pictures
However, once [ was over the
initial shock a second and more
threatening concern arose. Chatter
on the fire department radio fre-
uencies rocused O TNE possible

The panic of the evacuation was
unbelievable. People. including fire.

tighters, police officers and civiliang_

exXISTETICE 0t another explosive device

on the scene.
—————

Evacuation Ordered
Within m:inutes an emergency
message was pul out over the fire

ediate

evacuatiion o! the emergency scene.

clannels crderin

All personnel were ordered to board
their apparatus and report to one of

o staging areas. Apparatus that

4rad Teen committed to the scene,

such as eéngines attached to hydrants

O trucKS With thelr aerials in the air,

buildings in the area appeared to

were left In place. What followed next

have sustained significant damage. |

rememoer (hinking that | had been

was sometning the [jkes of which [
had never before axperienceden—

ran from the scene in a stampede

fashion. People were screaming,
~asnion

pushing and running in all direc-
tions. [ twice walked around the cor-
ner of a building and almost was
trampled by groups of people run-
ning from the area. My good friend
Bob Noll, the fire chief in neighbor-
ing Yukon, OK, and who was operat-
ing on the scene as mutual aid at
that time, aptly compared the scene
to the running of the bulls through
the streets of Pamplona, Spain. I
couldn’t describe it any better.

I decided that [ would head
toward the north staging area in the
vicinity of Northwest 10th and Har-
vey to shoot pictures of the appara-
tus arriving at that location. We
usually only get good large-scale
staging- area pictures from brush
fires in California. I thought this
would be a rare opportunity.

As [ walked that direction [ ran
into the entire on-duty platoon of
the Edmond, OK, Fire Department.
They were parked a few blocks
south of the staging area and were

38

Firepigheers were directed to a staging area several blocks from the scene after authorities received a report of a possible second device.
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just getting ready to head that way.
[ have worked with these folks on
several I[FSTA manuals in the past
and many of them have become good
friends of mine, including Trainiog
Chief David Barnes. who was with
this group. I hopped in a stafl veki-
cle with them and headed to the
staging area.

The staging area was actually
closer to Northwest 11th and Har-
vey in the parking lot of a church.

Despite the fact that we were seven
BT5cKs ffom the Federal Building, all
of the windowsd in the church and
surrounding builldings were blown
mmmﬂ%;mm
immediate scene was Beyond
aes:—;p.:on, 1t was the damage of

this type — [0 Some cages bulldings
T T Wi oWE 1eft 10 them LU

f blocks trom ground zero — that gave
me an :mpre35ot of Just how power-
j TTul'Zw explosion this was,
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The parking lot soon filled with
apparatug and firefighters. Each
apparatus reported to a staging offi-
cer and each company was ordered
to perform an accountability check
for all of their personnel. Most of the
apparatus were parked facing south.
Locking toward the south I could
see the top of the Federal Building
over the roofs of the shorter build-
ings that were in between. The fire-
fighters took off their turnout gear,
sat on the front bumpers of their
rigs and whether they knew it or not
began the critical incident stress
debriefing (CISD) process. The fire-
fighters were talking to each othei
about their experiences and t
to unwind.
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After a2 few minutes of hanging
around there I became restless and
began to wander around looking at
the damage to buiidings in the area.
I walked one block to the east {to
Northwest 11th and Robinson) and
ran into the EMS staging area.
There must have been 50 ambu-
lances parked here. Many were from
communities that are 60 to 80 miles
from Oklahoma City. This area was
not nearly as organized as the fire
department staging area; however,
that was by no fault of the Okla-
bhoma City EMS people. They we
doing their best to control a mess
that had been created by 'he lacat
radio and TV media.

Shortly after the explosion

media representatives who initially™

responded to the scene took it upon
themselves to broadcast requests
that all doctors and nurses in the
Oklahoma City and Dallas, TX.
areas respond to downtown Okla-
homa City to help. It is estimated
that between 2,000 and 3,000 med-
ical people showed up at the scene.
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This made life extremely difficult for
the EMS fglks. Doctors, nurses,
EMTSs and paramedics in full surgi-
cal serubs were rurning all over the
place. My immediate thoughts were:

* Who is left at the hospitals to
help the victims once they get there?

* If there is a second bomb,
we're £oing to wipe oUt o3t o e
gogters and nurses in Oklahoma

* Why couldn’t have someone
broadecast that we need lawyers at
the scene?

By this time radio traffic was
indicating that authorities were
about to resume operations in the
Pederal Building. As I headed back
toward that building [ stopped at
the main incident command post at
Eighth and Harvey. Here the Okia-
homa City fire and police depart-
ments, the State Department of
Publie Safety and other agencies
had positioned their command vehi-
¢cles to run the incident.

There must alse have been at
least 500 firefighters from depart-
ments other than Oklahoma City’s
whao had showed up and wanted to
help. I even ran into a Stillwater
Fire Department ambulance crew.
While the outpouring of help was a
wonderful sight, I couldn't help but
think that all these folks running
around the command vehicles were
making things more difficult for the
incident command staff. [ guess the
people running the incident thought
the same thing. When I returned to
this command area a few hours
later, all the vehicles had been clus-
tered together in 3 parking lot and
an eight-foot-high chain-link fence
had been constructed around them,
Paolice officers guarded the gate and
would allow admittancs only to nec-
essary personnel.

At this time I returned to the
Federal Building, On the way I
stopped by a large triage area that
was being set up by doctors, aurses,
EMS and American Red Cross and
military personnel in a parking lot
at the corner of Northwest Fifth and
Broadway. This was about a block
and a half east of the Federal Build-
ing. It appeared that they were set-
ting up treatment pesitions for
about 20 to 25 vietims, Ambulances
were backed up to this area to trans-
part any victims to the hospital.
Large quantities of medjcal supplies
were stashed here. [ guessed that
this area was being set up in antici-
paticn of many more live victims
being brought out of the building
after the rescue operations resurmed.
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However, not only did I see this area
set up, but about three hours later [
aldo saw it being disassembled. In
between, [ gever saw them receive a
gingle patient.

[ then wandered back to the
north (collapsed) side of the Federal
Building. The scene was guite differ-
ent from the first time [ had made it
past there. There was little activity
in the front of the building. Most of
the victims who were in this area
had been removed to nospitais,
Much of the rescue work was being
done inside the building. Rescuers
were entering through the south
side of the structure, out of my view.

The only activity on the now-
famous north side of the building
was Oklahoma City Fire Depart-
ment Truek 7 and its crew using the
aerial ladder platform to gain access
te upper floors and search areas
that were not immediately accessi-
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At the main
incident command
post there must have
been at least 500

firefighters from
departments other

than Oklahoma
City’s who had
showed up and
wanted fo help.

M

ble from the cutside. Also at this
time law enforcement officials were
Surveying the street in front of the
building and the surrounding area
for evidence.

The next thing that I began to
notice was that the beautiful, sunny
skies that greeted this day were
gone. It was quite clear that the
thunderstorms that had been pre-
dicted as a possibility were about to
become a reality. Fire radio broad-
casts indicated that the National
Weather Service had issued a severe
thunderstorm warning for the area
and heavy rain, high winds. danger.
ous lightning and large hail were
possible. I tegan to think it might he
time to head back to the car, which
was now parked near the command
post. (I had moved it from the park-
Ing garage earlier in the day.l My
decision to leave the scene was then
“confirmed” bv a Ramboe-looking

dude with an M-16 who noted that ]
did not have any identificatigp on
and who was not rea] impreggeg
with my explanation of whar IFSTa
Was.

By the time I reached the com-
mand post and my car heavy windg
and driving rain had hit the area.
Lightning was flashing all about, I
figured it was time to scram, sg [
headed back to Stillwater.

On the hour-long drive back to
Stllwater, many thoughts croased my
mind. I had seen so many things that
day. Was it a bad dream? Who could
do such z thing? Weuld my good
friends at the Oklahoma City Fire
Department and surreunding fire
departments ever be OK or ever be
the same?

Hawever, there was one thought
that kept running through my mind
and I want to share it with all who
read this article. I had Jjust witnessed
the largest emergency that [ will
probably ever see in my career (at
least | hope it is). Despite all of the
&aning and education I have, I had
no [mpact on the events of the day. I
ran around the scene for seven or
eight hours, just like any other fire
buff, and shot a bunch of pictures.
Then I went home. [ had made no
difference in what happened that
day.

Several days later, an electronic
mall message was passed along to all
of the employees in my office from a
very dear friend of mine and our
organization. He conveyed his sympa-
thies to all of us Okies, and also said
we should feel positive about the fact
that most of the respenders who were
handling that incident had been
trained by our manuals. This mes-
sage was a wonderful gesture. The
vast majority of gur employees have
Dever been emergency responders,
and I am sure it did make them feal
like they had an impact on the event.
However, it did not quite cut it for
me,

So my advice to all of you who are
eut there “on the job,” be it for a
career or volunteer department, is to
keep doing that job every day. There
may be many frustrations, like not
having the nicest truck in the world,
fighting dinosaur chief officers. not
BeLlng a big enough pay raise or
dealing with members of the public
who do not appreciate what you de.
But. I ean assure you that none of
these frustrationg equal driving home
from the biggest incident you have
ever seen in your life, knowing that
you didn't do a damn thing to make it

betzer. ‘_:L
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